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To Our Stockholders,

Over the course of the past 12 months, we have made great progress in our mission to develop Tercica as a
premier endocrine company. We now expect to have two products marketed by our sales force in the United
States by the second half of 2007, and at the same time we have developed one of the broadest and deepest
endocrine product portfolios in our industry. This past year was truly transformational and, we believe,
established a very solid foundation for sustainable growth at Tercica.

Increlex™ was launched for the treatment of severe Primary Insulin-like Growth Factor-1 (IGF-1)
Deficiency in the United States in 2006, and we currently await regulatory action for the same indication in
Europe, Increlex™ is the first major innovation in the treatment of short stature in nearly 30 years, providing a
new treatment modality for growth hormone resistant children, and is the only available alternative to
recombinant growth hormone for the treatment of these children.

A key part of our strategy in short stature is to expand the indication for Increlex™ to include children with
Primary IGF-1 Deficiency, a disease which we estimate is about four times more prevalent than severe Primary
IGF-1 Deficiency. We have made significant progress to fully enroll our ongoing Phase HIb clinical trial in this
expanded patient population. In addition, we are also conducting a study evaluating the use of Increlex™
administered as a once-daily injection in the Primary IGF-1 Deficiency patient population. Tercica is committed
to short stature, and we believe that with Increlex™ we are bringing an important advance in medical treatment
to children with this hormone deficient disease.

In October we established a worldwide strategic collaboration in Endocrinology with Ipsen SA of France.
As part of this collaboration, we entered into a product cross-licensing agreement where Ipsen will be our
Increlex™ marketing partner outside of the United States, Canada, Japan and certain other countries, while we
received rights to market Somatuline® Autogel® in the United States and Canada for the treatment of
acromegaly. This is a disease caused by a non-malignant pituitary tumor which secretes excess growth hormone,
causing very high serum IGF-1 levels. If untreated, acromegaly causes a greater than 2-fold increase in mortality
rate compared to the normal population, and a 5-10 year reduction in life expectancy. We believe Somatuline®
Autogel® offers compelling advantages to the current standard of therapeutic care in acromegaly. On January 15,
2007 we received notice that the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (FDA) accepted the filing of the New Drug
Application (NDA) for Somatuline® Autogel® to treat patients with acromegaly. Pursuant to the Prescription
Drug User Fee Act (PDUFA) guidelines, we expect the FDA will complete its review or otherwise respond to the
Somatuline® Autogel® NDA by August 30, 2007. In Canada, where the product received a marketing approval in
2006, Somatuline® Autogel® is currently in the reimbursement review process. Our organization is very excited
and proud to provide the endocrine medical comununity with a novel and important advancement in the treatment
of this debilitating disease.

Through our strategic collaboration with Ipsen, we have a right of first negotiation to license and participate
in the development of other Ipsen endocrine pipeline products, two of which could enter clinical development in
2007. The first, Dopastatin, is a chimeric molecule directed at somatostatin and dopamine receptors. These
receptors affect the secretion of multiple pituitary hormones so this product may have applicability in a number
of different pituitary diseases. The other is a ghrelin agonist, which may assist in the restoration of normal body
composition in wasting diseases associated with chronic illnesses. We believe that access to this exciting
pipeline, which has several additional families of molecules directed toward other endocrine targets, represents
an important long-term value creation opportunity for Tercica.

In addition, we now have certain opt-in rights for [IPLEX™ in non-short stature indications, as a result of
our recent patent litigation lawsuit and the subsequent settlement with Insmed.

In connection with the transaction with Ipsen in October, we received cash proceeds of $77.3 million from
the sale of newly issued shares of our common stock and $11.8 mitlion (net of withholding taxes) from the
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upfront Increlex™ licensing payment. Net of transaction expenses, the closing of the transaction provided
Tercica with a cash infusion of approximately $86.2 million. Our cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments as of December 31, 2006 were $125.6 million, providing us with a solid financial footing.

Qur most important assets are our employees. Tercica’s core values of partnership, accountability,
genuineness, and excellence have fostered a well-defined and unique corporate culture, which in tum has been a
key to our ability to attract and retain high-performing individuals. All the progress we have made to date is a
testament to the dedication and talents of our employees in all aspects of our business.

With the strong strategic position we established last year, excellence in operational execution will be key to
our suecess in the coming year. As stockholders, we appreciate your ongoing support as we progress toward our
goal of establishing Tercica as a premier endocrinology company by bringing important and novel medical
products to market.

John A. Scarlett, MD
President and Chief Executive Officer

A CE X

Ross G. Clark, PhD
Chief Technical Officer and Founder

Richard A. King
Chief Operating Officer

Except for the historical statements contained herein, this stockholder letter contains forward-looking
statements, including without limitation, that: (A) Tercica expects to have two marketed products by the second
half of 2007; (B) Primary IGF-1 Deficiency is a disease that Tercica estimates is about four times more prevalent
than severe Primary IGF-1 Deficiency; (C) Tercica expects the FDA will complete its review or otherwise
respond to the Somatuline® Autogel® NDA by August 30, 2007; and (D) Tercica believes that Dopastatin and a
ghrelin agonist could be effective treatments for certain diseases and enter clinical development in 2007;
(E) Tercica’s clinical development pipeline represents an important long-term value creation opportunity for
Tercica. The forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties, and the actual results may vary
materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements are subject to
the risks and uncertainties contained in the Risk Factors section of, and otherwise contained within, the
Company’s 2006 Form 10-K, which was filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 9, 2007
and the following risks and uncertainties: (1) regarding (A) and (C) above, the FDA would need to approve
Somatuline Autogel for commercialization by August 30, 2007, (2) regarding (B) above, Primary IGF-}
Deficiency may not have the prevalence estimated by Tercica; (3) regarding (D) above, Dopastatin and a ghrelin
agonist may not enter clinical development in 2007, or at all, and in any event, Tercica and Ipsen must agree on
the terms on which Tercica could participate in their development and commercialization; and (4) regarding
(E) above, all of Tercica’s development pipeline opportunities including Dopastatin and a ghrelin agonist are
subject to clinical development risks and uncertainties and subject to Tercica’s ability to fund such projects.

#H##
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TERCICA, INC.
2000 Sierra Point Parkway
Suite 400
Brishane, California 94005

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
TO BE HELD ON MAY 24, 2007
Dear Stockholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of TERCICA, INC., a Delaware
corporation. The meeting will be held on Thursday, May 24, 2007 at 11:30 a.m. local time at 2000 Sierra Point
Parkway, Brisbane, California 94005 for the following purposes:

1. To elect three directors to hold office until the 2010 Annueal Meeting of Stockholders, as described in
Proposal } in the accompanying proxy statement.

2. To ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of Tercica’s Board of Directors of Emst & Young LLP
as Tercica’s independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2007, as described in Proposal 2 in the accompanying proxy statement.

3. To approve amendments to Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and Tercica's
amended and restated bylaws, as described in Proposal 3 in the accompanying proxy statement.

4. To conduct any other business properly brought before the meeting,
These items of business are more fully described in the proxy statement accompanying this Notice.
The record date for the Annual Meeting is April 17, 2007. Only stockholders of record at the close of

business on that date may vote at the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

By Order of the Board of Directors

St LAY

Stephen N. Rosenfield
Secretary

Brisbane, California
April 18, 2007

You are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person. Whether or not you expect to attend the
meeting, please complete, date, sign and return the enclosed proxy, or vote over the telephone or on the
Internet as instructed in these materials, as promptly as possible in order to ensure your representation
at the meeting. A return envelope (which is postage prepaid if mailed in the United States) is enclosed for
your convenience. Even if you have voted by proxy, you may still vote in person if you attend the meeting.
Please note, however, that if your shares are held of record by a broker, bank or other nominee and you
wish to vote at the meeting, you must obtain a proxy issued in your name from that record holder.




TERCICA, INC,
2000 Sierra Point Parkway
Suite 400
Brisbane, California 94005

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR THE 2007 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

MAY 24, 2007
QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THIS PROXY MATERIAL AND VOTING

Why am I receiving these materials?

Tercica, Inc. sent you this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card because the Board of Directors of
Tercica is soliciting your proxy to vote at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. You are invited to attend the
Annual Meeting to vote on the proposals described in this proxy statement. However, you do not need to attend
the Annual Meeting to vote your shares, Instead, you may simply complete, sign and return the enclosed proxy
card, or follow the instructions below to submit your proxy over the telephone or on the Internet.

Tercica intends to mail this proxy statement and accompanying proxy card on or about April 23, 2007, to all
stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

Who can vote at the Annnal Meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 17, 2007 will be entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting. On this record date, there were 50,162,610 shares of Tercica common stock outstanding and entitled to
vote.

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If on April 17, 2007, your shares were registered directly in your name with Tercica’s transfer agent,
Computershare Limited, then you are a stockholder of record. As a stockholder of record, you may vote in person
at the meeting or vote by proxy. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, Tercica urges you to fill out and
retumn the enclosed proxy card, or vote by proxy over the telephone or on the Internet as instructed below, to
ensure that your vote is counted.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of a Broker or Bank

If on April 17, 2007, your shares were held, not in your name, but rather in an account at a brokerage firm,
bank, dealer or other similar organization, then you are the beneficial owner of shares held in “street name™ and
these proxy materials are being forwarded to you by that organization. The organization holding your account is
considered to be the stockholder of record for purposes of voting at the Annual Meeting. As a beneficial owner,
you have the right to direct your broker or other agent on how to vote the shares in your account. You are also
invited to attend the Annual Meeting. However, since you are not the stockholder of record, you may not vote
your shares in person at the meeting unless you request and obtain a valid proxy from your broker or other agent.

What am I voting on?
There are three matters scheduled for a vote:
* The election of three directors, as described in Proposal 1 of this proxy statement;

* The ratification of the selection of Ernst & Young LLP as Tercica’s independent registered public
accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, as described in Proposal 2 of this proxy
statement; and
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» The approval of amendments to Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws, as described in Proposal 3 in of this proxy statement.

Why is Tercica seeking stockholder approval of the amendments to Tercica's amended and restated
certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws as set forth in Proposal 3?

The amendments described in Proposal 3 of this proxy statement would eliminate Tercica’s classified board
of directors and certain other anti-takeover protections in Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws. Given Tercica’s strategic collaboration with Ipsen, S.A., which
is described under the section of this proxy statement captioned “Collaboration with Ipsen,” Tercica’s Board of
Directors believes that these anti-takeover provisions are no longer necessary or appropriate and submitted the
amendments described in Proposal 3 of this proxy statement to its stockholders for approval at a Special Meeting
of Stockholders held on October 12, 2006. The proposal submitted to the stockholders at the Special Meeting
also included proposed amendments relating to Ipsen-specific corporate governance matters concerning the
power and authority of Ipsen’s designees to Tercica’s Board of Directors. Although a majority of the issued and
outstanding shares of Tercica common stock voted in favor of the amendments at the Special Meeting, the
amendments, which required approval from at least 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of Tercica common
stock, were not approved by the required 80% vote at the Special Meeting. Pursuant to the terms of the affiliation
agreement Tercica entered into with Ipsen in connection with the strategic collaboration, Tercica agreed to
resubmit the proposed amendments to the stockholders at the Annual Meeting if the amendments had not been
approved by the stockholders at the Special Meeting. Tercica and Ipsen subsequently agreed to resubmit the
proposed amendments to the stockholders for approval at the Annual Meeting, with the exception of the proposed
amendments relating to the Ipsen-specific corporate govermnance matters described above. Tercica’s Board of
Directors believes that the proposed amendments, as revised and described in Proposal 3 of this proxy statement,
are in the best interests of the stockholders and recommends a vote “For” Proposal 3.

How do I vote?

You may either vote “For” each of the nominees to Tercica’s Board of Directors or you may “Withhold”
your vote for any nominee you specify. You may vote “For” or “Against,” or abstain from voting with respect to,
each of Proposal 2 and Proposal 3. The procedures for voting are fairly simple:

Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If you are a stockholder of record, you may vote in person at the Annual Meeting or vote by proxy using the
enclosed proxy card, vote by proxy over the telephone, or vote by proxy on the Internet. Whether or not you plan
to attend the Annual Meeting, Tercica urges you to vote by proxy to ensure your vote is counted. You may still
attend the meeting and vote in person if you have already voted by proxy.

> To vote in person, come to the Annual Meeting and Tercica will give you a ballot when you arrive,

> To vote using the proxy card, simply complete, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return it promptly
in the envelope provided. If you return your signed proxy card to Tercica before the Annual Meeting, Tercica |
will vote your shares as you direct.

> To vote over the telephone, dial toll-free 1-800-652-VOTE (8683) in the United States or Canada using a
touch-tone phone and follow the recorded instructions. Your vote must be received by 1:00 a.m., Central !
Time, on May 24, 2007 to be counted.

> To vote on the Internet, go to http:/www.investarvote.com and follow the steps outlined on the secure
website. Your vote must be received by 1:00 a.m., Central Time, on May 24, 2007 to be counted.

Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker or Bank ‘

If you are a beneficial owner of shares registered in the name of your broker, bank or other agent, you ‘
should have received a proxy card and voting instructions with these proxy materials from that organization

2




rather than from Tercica. Simply complete and mail the proxy card to ensure that your vote is counted.
Alternatively, you may vote over the telephone or on the Internet as instructed by your broker or bank. To vote in
person at the Annual Meeting, you must obtain a valid proxy from your broker, bank or other agent. Follow the
instructions from your broker or bank included with these proxy materials, or contact your broker or bank to
request a proxy form.

Tercica provides Internet proxy voting to allow you to vote your shares on-line, with procedures
designed to ensure the authenticity and correciness of your proxy vote instructions. However, please be
aware that you must bear any costs associated with your Internet access, such as usage charges from
Internet access providers and telephone companies.

How many votes do I have?

On each matter to be voted upon, you have one vote for each share of Tercica common stock you own as of
April 17, 2007.

What if I return a proxy card but do not make specific choices?

If you return a signed and dated proxy card without marking any voting selections, your shares will be voted
“For” the election of all three nominees for director and “For” each of Proposal 2 and Proposal 3. If any other
matter is properly presented at the meeting, your proxy (i.e., one of the individuals named on your proxy card)
will vote your shares using his or her best judgment.

Who is paying for this proxy solicitation?

Tercica will pay for the entire cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to these mailed proxy materials,
Tercica’s directors and employees may solicit proxies in person, by telephone or by other means of
communication. Directors and employees will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies.
Tercica has engaged Innisfree M&A Incorporated, a professional proxy solicitation firm, to assist in soliciting
proxies and has agreed to pay Innisfree M&A Incorporated fees not expected to exceed $7,000, plus
out-of-pocket expenses. Tercica may also reimburse brokerage firms, banks and other agents for the cost of
forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners.

What does it mean if I receive more than one proxy card?

If you receive more than one proxy card, your shares are registered in more than one name or are registered
in different accounts. Please complete, sign and return each proxy card to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

Can I change my vote after submitting my proxy?

Yes. You can revoke your proxy at any time before the final vote at the Annual Meeting. If you are the
record holder of your shares, you may revoke your proxy in any one of three ways:

> You may submit another properly completed proxy card with a later date.

> You may send a written notice that you are revoking your proxy to Tercica’s Corporate Secretary at 2000
Sierra Point Parkway, Suite 400, Brisbane, California 94005.

> You may attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person. Simply attending the Annual Meeting will not, by
itself, revoke your proxy.

If your shares are held by your broker or bank as a nominee or agent, you should follow the instructions provided
by your broker or bank.




When are stockholder proposals due for next year’s annual meeting?

To be considered for inclusion in next year's proxy materials, your proposal must be submitted in writing by
December 20, 2007, to Tercica’s Corporate Secretary at 2000 Sierra Point Parkway, Suite 400, Brisbane,
California 94005. However, if Tercica’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is not held between April 24,
2008 and June 23, 2008, then the deadline will be a reasonable time prior to the time Tercica begins to print and
mail its proxy materials.

If you wish to bring a proposal before the stockholders or nominate a director at the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders, but you are not requesting that your proposal or nomination be included in next year's proxy
materials, you must notify Tercica’s Corporate Secretary, in writing, not later than the close of business on
February 24, 2008. However, if Tercica’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is not held between April 24,
2008 and June 23, 2008, then the deadline will be not later than the close of business on the 10th day following
the date on which the notice of the date of the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders was mailed, or the 10th day
following the date on which public disclosure of the date of the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders was made,
whichever occurs first. Tercica also advises you to review its amended and restated bylaws, which contain
additional requirements about advance notice of stockholder proposals and director nominations. The chainman
of the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders may determine, if the facts warrant, that a matter has not been
properly brought before the meeting and, therefore, may not be considered at the meeting. In addition, if you do
not also comply with the requirements of Rule 14a-4(c}(2) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, Tercica’s
management will have discretionary authority to vote all shares for which it has proxies in opposition to any such
stockholder proposal or director nomination.

How are votes counted?

Votes will be counted by the inspector of election appointed for the meeting, who will separately count
“For” and “Withhold” and, with respect to Proposal 2 and Proposal 3, “Against” votes, abstentions and broker
non-votes. A broker non-vote occurs when a nominee, such as a broker or bank, holding shares for a beneficial
owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have discretionary voting power with
respect to that proposal and has not received instructions with respect to that propesal from the beneficial owner.
In the event that a broker, bank, custodian, nominee or other record holder of Tercica common stock indicates on
a proxy that it does not have discretionary authority to vote certain shares on a particular proposal, then those
shares will be treated as broker non-votes with respect to that proposal. Accordingly, if you own shares through a
nominee, such as a broker or bank, please be sure to instruct your nominee how to vote to ensure that your vote is
counted on each of the proposals.

Abstentions and broker non-votes will be treated as shares present for the purpose of determining the
presence of a quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions will have the same
effect as “Against™ votes on each of Proposat 2 and Proposal 3. Broker non-votes will generally have no effect on
Proposal 2, but will have the same effect as an “Against” vote on Proposal 3. However, broker non-votes,
together with abstentions, can have the effect of preventing the approval of Proposal 2 where the number of
“For” votes, though a majority of the votes cast on Proposal 2, does not constitute a majority of the required
quorum.

How many votes are needed to approve each proposal?

> For the election of directors, the three nominees receiving the most “For” votes (among votes properly cast in
person or by proxy) will be elected.

> To be approved, “Proposal No. 2—Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm,” must receive a “For” vote from at least a majority of the shares represented and voting either in person
or by proxy at the Annual Meeting on Proposal 2 (which shares voting “For’” also constitute at least a
majority of the required quorumy).

> To be approved, “Proposal No. 3—Approval of the Supermajority Charter Amendments” must receive a “For”
vote at the Annual Meeting from at least 80% of the issued and outstanding shares of Tercica common stock.
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What is the quorum requirement?

A quorum of stockholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. A quorum will be present if at least a
majority of the shares entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting are represented by stockholders present at the
meeting or by proxy. On the record date, there were 50,162,610 shares outstanding and entitled to vote.

Your shares will be counted towards the quorum only if you submit a valid proxy (or one is submitted on
your behalf by your broker, bank or other nominee) or if you vote in person at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions
and broker non-votes will be counted towards the quorim requirement. If there is no quorum, the chairman of the
Annual Meeting or a majority of the votes represented at the Annual Meeting, either in person or by proxy, may
adjourn the Annual Meeting to another date.

How can I find out the results of the voting at the Annual Meeting?

Preliminary voting results will be announced at the Annual Meeting. Final voting results will be published
in Tercica’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q for the second quarter of 2007.




COLLABORATION WITH IPSEN

Overview

In July 2006, Tercica entered into a stock purchase and master transaction agreement with Ipsen, S.A. that
sets forth the terms of a worldwide strategic collaboration in endocrinology. In October 2006, at the first closing
held under the terms of the stock purchase and master transaction agreement, Tercica and Ipsen entered into a
number of agreements that govemn their strategic relationship, including an affiliation agreement, a registration
rights agreement and license and collaboration agreements with respect to the development and
commercialization of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel®.

Equity and Debt Arrangements

Under the stock purchase and master transaction agreement, Tercica agreed to issue to Ipsen (or its
designated affiliate) 12,527,245 shares of Tercica common stock, a convertible note in the principal amount of
$25,037,000, a second convertible note in the principal amount of €30,000,000, a third convertible note in the
principal amount of $15,000,000, and a warrant to purchase a minimum of 4,948,795 shares of Tercica common
stock. In October 2006, at the first closing of the transactions contemplated by the stock purchase and master
transaction agreement, Tercica issued the 12,527,245 shares of Tercica common stock to Suraypham, S.A.S.
(Ipsen’s designated affiliate) and issued the warrant and the first convertible note in the principal amount of
$25,037,000 to Ipsen. If the second closing under the stock purchase and master transaction agreement is
consummated, Tercica would issue the second and third convertible notes to Ipsen. The amount to be delivered to
Tercica for the second convertible note would be offset by approximately the same amount that Tercica would
owe 1o Ipsen as a milestone payment under the Somatuline® license and collaboration agreement discussed
below.

The principal amount of the first convertible note, plus all accrued interest thereon, is convertible into shares
of Tercica common stock at an initial conversion price per share equal to $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment.
The principal amount of the second and third convertible notes, plus all accrued interest thereon, would, if issued,
be convertible into shares of Tercica common stock at an initial conversion price per share equal to $7.41 per
share (or €5.92 per share with respect to the second convertible note), subject to adjustment. The warrant issued
to Ipsen is exercisable for the number of shares of Tercica common stock equal to the greater of 4,948,795 shares
(referred to as the “baseline amount”) or the baseline amount plus a variable amount, which variable amount
generally adds an amount of shares to the warrant in the event of certain issuances of equity securities by Tercica
that dilute Ipsen’s percentage interest in Tercica, offset by equity securities of Tercica acquired by Ipsen from
persons other than Tercica in connection with the maintenance of its percentage interest in Tercica, as well as
shares of Tercica common stock issuable upon conversion of accrued interest under the convertible notes. The
initial exercise price of the warrant is $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment. Ipsen was also granted a preemptive
right under the affiliation agreement to purchase its pro-rata portion of new securities offered by Tercica, subject
to certain conditions. Together with the 12,527,245 shares of Tercica common stock that Tercica issued in
connection with the first closing, the conversion of the convertible notes Tercica issued or that it may issue to
Ipsen and the exercise of the warrant that Tercica issued to Ipsen would enable Ipsen to acquire an ownership
interest in Tercica of approximately 40% on a fully diluted basis, with the opportunity to increase its ownership
position to 60% or greater through market purchases upon the expiration of a one-year standstill period. As of
March 15, 2007, Ipsen beneficially owned approximately 35.7% of Tercica’s outstanding common stock (not
including the shares of Tercica common stock subject to the voting agreements discussed below).

Under the terms of the registration rights agreement, Tercica granted Ipsen and Suraypharm (and any
subsequent holders to which Ipsen and/or Suraypharm may transfer their rights under the registration rights
agreement) certain rights with respect to the registration under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Act, of the shares of Tercica common stock acquired pursuant to the stock purchase and master
transaction agreement, the warrant and the convertible notes. Pursuant to the registration rights agreement, after
the expiration of the one-year period commencing on the date of the first closing, Tercica would be required,
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upon request, to file one or more demand registration statements covering at least $10,000,000 worth (based on
Tercica’s then-current share price) of Tercica common stock, subject to certain conditions and limitations. In
addition, if at any time after the one year anniversary of the date of the first closing, Tercica proposes to file a
registration statement covering the offering of Tercica's securities under the Securities Act, either for Tercica’s
account or for the account of other securities holders, Ipsen, Suraypharm (and any transferees) are entitled to
notice of the proposed filing and are entitled to include, at Tercica’s expense, their shares of Tercica common
stock in the registration statement, subject to conditions and limitations, including the right of underwriters to
limit the number of shares of Tercica common stock included in the registration statement,

Affiliation Agreement

Board Composition. Tercica’s Board of Directors currently consists of nine directors, two of which are
designees of Ipsen. So long as Ipsen holds at least 15% of the outstanding shares of Tercica common stock, Ipsen
is entitled under the affiliation agreement to nominate two out of the nine directots. In the event that Ipsen holds
at least 10%, but less than 15% of the outstanding shares of Tercica common stock, Ipsen is entitled to nominate
one director to Tercica’s Board of Directors. Ipsen’s right to nominate directors to Tercica’s Board of Directors
terminates if its ownership percentage of the outstanding Tercica common stock falls below 10%. Further,
Tercica’s Board of Directors can be comprised of no more than two directors who are employees of Tercica, one
of which must be Tercica’s Chief Executive Officer. The remaining members of Tercica’s Board of Directots are
required to have outstanding reputations for personal integrity and have distinguished achievement in areas
relevant to Tercica’s business, as well as be “independent” under applicable Nasdaq listing standards (or such
other listing standards applicable to Tercica from time to time).

In the event that Ipsen holds at least 60% of the then outstanding shares of Tercica common stock, Ipsen is
entitled to nominate an unlimited number of directors to Tercica’s Board of Directors. Ipsen is also entitled to
nominate additional independent director nominees (which nominees must be independent of Ipsen) for election
to Tercica’s Board of Directors starting in 2008, as follows: one nominee in 2008, two nominees in 2009 and four
nominees in 2010; provided, however, that these rights would terminate if Ipsen holds less than 15% of the
outstanding shares of Tercica common stock and are also be subject to reduction under certain circumstances.

Committees. Under the affiliation agreement, the following committees are to be established, empowered
and maintained at all times during the term of the affiliation agreement:
* an Audit Committee comprised of independent directors;

* a Nominating Committee (i.e., the current Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee of the
Board, or such other nominating committee of the Board responsible for recommending the nomination
of directors to the Board in accordance with the affiliation agreement);

* a Strategic Planning Commitiee comprised of one management director (who is Tercica’s Chief
Executive Officer), each Ipsen-nominated director and two independent directors (who are designated
by a majority of Tercica’s independent directors);

* aCompensation Committee comprised of at least two independent directors; and

= such other committees as Tercica’s Board of Directors deems necessary or desirable, provided that such
committees are established in compliance with the terms of the affiliation agreement.

Matters Requiring Ipsen Approval. Under the affiliation agreement, the approval of Ipsen is required for

Tercica to take certain actions, including:

¢ making, or permitting any subsidiary to make, loans to, or owning any stock or other securities in
another corporation, partnership or other entity, with certain exceptions with respect to certain permitted
investments, including those permitted under Tercica’s investment policy;

» adopting any plan or arrangement with respect to the dissolution or liquidation of Tercica;
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entering into any material transaction or contract unless it would reflect the execution of a budget
approved by Tercica’s Board of Directors and would not be reasonably anticipated to increase future
budgets beyond current projections (or where no current projections have been formally prepared,
beyond reasonably anticipated growth based on Tercica’s recent operating performance);

disposing of or acquiring any property or assets other than in the ordinary course of business, provided
that Tercica may not in any event acquire or dispose of any property or assets with an aggregate value
exceeding $5,000,000 without Ipsen’s written consent, other than certain permitted transfers;

merging or consolidating with any other person other than Tercica,

establishing or approving an operating budget with anticipated research and development spending in
excess of $25,000,000 per year, plus amounts approved by the Joint Steering Committee under the
Somatuline® license and collaboration agreement for spending related to the products of Ipsen or its
affiliates;

entering into any transaction or agreement that would be reasonably likely to require an increase in
research and development spending above the amount specified above;

incurring capital expenditures of more than $2,000,000 in any given year;
making any investment, other than certain permitted investments;

subject to certain limited exceptions, incurring any indebtedness other than indebtedness evidenced by
the convertible notes and other than certain permitted indebtedness; provided that, with respect to
permitted indebtedness, if following the incurrence of such permitted indebtedness, Tercica's total
indebtedness exceeds $2,500,000, then such permitted indebtedness will not be permitted unless
immediately prior and after giving effect to the incurrence of such permitted indebtedness, Tercica’s
ratio of net indebtedness to EBITDA does not exceed 1 to 1;

subject to certain limited exceptions, changing the principal business of Tercica, entering into new lines
of business or exiting the current line of business of Tercica;

declaring or paying any cash dividend on or redeeming or repurchasing any shares of Tercica’s capital
stock, other than repurchases upon termination of services to Tercica;

increasing or decreasing the number of authorized directors on Tercica’s Board of Directors or any
committee thereof,

deregistering Tercica common stock under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended;

amending, altering or repealing any provision of Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of
incorporation or amended and restated bylaws;

entering into any transaction or agreement that results, or is reasonably likely to result, in competition
with any business of Ipsen or its affiliates carried on anywhere in the world at the time that such
transaction or agreement would otherwise be entered into by Tercica;

hiring a new Chief Executive Officer;
changing Tercica’s fiscal year;

adopting, implementing, amending, redeeming, waiving or otherwise terminating or causing to come
into effect or failing to apply any takeover defense measures, including without limitation any
stockholder rights plan, or any change of control provisions in contracts that would reasonably be
expected to have a material impact on Tercica’s operations, prospects or financial condition or the value
of Ipsen’s (or its affiliates’) holdings in Tercica in the event that Ipsen, or its affiliates, increase their
aggregate holdings in Tercica;

supporting, recommending or endorsing any offer by any person or group to acquire more than 9.9% of
the then-outstanding shares of Tercica common stock, where such person or group is not already the




beneficial owner of 9.9% of Tercica common stock or, in the case of a person or group who currently
beneficially owns more than 9.9% of Tercica common stock, where such acquisition would increase the
percentage beneficially owned by such person or group;

* creating any additional class or series of shares of stock or increasing the shares of any authorized class
of stock, unless the same ranks junior to Tercica common stock with respect to liquidation and
redemption rights and the payment of dividends;

+ issuing or selling shares of Tercica capital stock or securities exercisable for or convertible into shares
of Tercica capital stock, other than:

« issuances or sales, used solely for working capital and research and development purposes, after the
second anniversary of the date of the first closing that may not exceed 325,000,000 in any three-year
period,

« issuances or sales of Tercica capital stock, the proceeds of which are to be used to repay the
convertible notes,

+ issuances or sales pursuant to options, warrants or other grants or purchase rights or shares to be
issued after the date of the affiliation agreement to employees, directors or consultants of Tercica or
its subsidiaries pursuant to plans or arrangements approved by the Board of Directors, or

¢ issuances or sales pursuant to any rights or agreements outstanding as of the date of the affiliation
agreement; and

* granting to any party or issue any security the terms of which contain any preemptive right.

Lock-up Period; Restrictions on Block Transfers; Compulsory Acquisition. Under the terms of the affiliation
agreement, without Tercica’s prior written consent, neither Ipsen nor its affiliates are permitted to offer, sell,
contract to sell, pledge or otherwise dispose of any shares of Tercica common stock, or any securities convertible
into or exercisable for Tercica common stock, for a period of one year following the first closing, subject to
certain limited exceptions. Further, Ipsen is not permitted, without the prior written consent of Tercica, to sell,
transfer or dispose of any shares of Tercica common stock to any person or persons known to Ipsen or its
affiliates to be a “group’” (within the meaning of Section 13(d)(3) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended) who would, to Ipsen’s or its affiliates’ knowledge, beneficially own more than 14.9% of Tercica’s
then-outstanding common stock. If at any time Ipsen and/or its affiliates beneficially own 90% or more of
Tercica’s outstanding common stock such that, upon all such commen stock being held either by Ipsen (or an
affiliate of Ipsen), Ipsen would be entitled to effect a short-form merger with Tercica in accordance with
Delaware law, Ipsen will, or will cause its affiliate to, effect such a merger,

Standstill Period; Regulated Purchase Period. During the period commencing on the date of the first
closing and expiring on the first anniversary of the date of the first closing, Ipsen is not permitted, without
Tercica’s written consent, to take any action to effect, directly or indirectly, the acquisition of beneficial
ownership by Ipsen of any additional shares of Tercica common stock from persons other than Tercica. Further,
during the period commencing with the expiration of the one-year standstill period and expiring on the fourth
anniversary of such date, Ipsen would not be permitted, without Tercica's written consent, to take any action to
effect, directly or indirectly, the acquisition of beneficial ownership by Ipsen of any additional shares of Tercica
common stock from persons other than Tercica, other than certain permitted offers and acquisitions in connection
with maintenance of Ipsen’s percentage interest in Tercica, acquisitions by other stockholders and an increase in
Ipsen’s ownership position to at least 60% (subject to adjustment) of Tercica’s outstanding common stock.

Voting Agreements

In connection with the entering into of the stock purchase and master transaction agreement with Ipsen,
certain of Tercica’s directors and their affiliated entities, which held in the aggregate approximately 28.9% of
Tercica’s outstanding common stock as of March 15, 2007, entered into voting agreements with Ipsen and
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Suraypharm. These directors and their affiliated entities include all of Tercica’s current directors (other than
Messrs. Jean and Bélingard) as well as the entities affiliated with MPM Capital L.P., Prospect Management Co.
II, LLC and Rho Capital Partners, Inc. These directors and their affiliated entities are referred to in this proxy
statement as the “supporting stockholders.”

Under the voting agreements, the supporting stockholders agreed to vote in favor of the transactions
contemplated by the stock purchase and master transaction agreement, including the matters submitted to
Tercica's stockholders for approval at the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 12, 2006. In addition,
until such time as Ipsen is no longer entitled to designate at least one director to Tercica’s Board of Directors
pursuant to the terms of the affiliation agreement, the supporting stockholders have agreed to vote, and have
granted an irrevocable proxy to certain representatives of Ipsen to vote, all shares of Tercica common stock
legally or beneficially held by the supporting stockholders as follows:

» in favor of each director that Ipsen is then entitled to designate to Tercica’s Board of Directors pursuant
to the affiliation agreement (not including the additional independent director nominees Ipsen would be
entitled to nominate to Tercica’s Board of Directors starting in 2008), and, to the extent necessary,
withhold votes for all other nominees for director;

= in favor of the number of authorized directors to be set and remain at nine and against any change in
such number, except as agreed between Tercica and Ipsen;

* against any proposal to remove any Ipsen designee from Tercica’s Board of Directors that Ipsen is then
entitled to designate to Tercica’s Board of Directors pursuant to the affiliation agreement;

» for the approval of any transactions contemplated by the stock purchase and master transaction
agreement and each of the agreements contemplated by the stock purchase and master transaction
agreement, and in favor of any related matter presented for approval by Tercica’s stockholders; and

* against the approval of any other action or contract that is intended to or could reasonably be expected
to impede, interfere with, delay or discourage the transactions contemplated by the stock purchase and
master transaction agreement and the agreements contemplated by the stock purchase and master
transaction agreement.

With respect to this Annual Meeting, Tercica expects that the supporting stockholders will vote “For” the
election of Mr. Jean to Tercica’'s Board of Directors and “For” “Proposal 3—Approval of the Supermajority
Charter Amendments” in accordance with the obligations of the supporting stockholders under the voting
agreements.

Increlex™ License and Collaboration Agreement

Tercica and Ipsen entered into the Increlex™ license and collaboration agreement in connection with the
first closing. The major provisions of that agreement are;

* Tercica has granted to Ipsen and its affiliates the exclusive right under Tercica’s patents and know-how
to develop and commercialize Increlex™ in all countries of the world except the United States, Japan,
Canada, Taiwan and certain of the countries in the Middle East and North Africa, for all indications,
other than treatment of central nervous system indications and diabetes indications.

* The collaboration is overseen by a Joint Steering Committee, consisting of an equal number of
representatives of each of Tercica and Ipsen.

* Tercica is solely responsible for the completion of its ongoing development at its own cost with a view
to obtain the target label for Increlex™ in the countries of the European Union. The parties have agreed
to engage in certain initial co-development activities for Increlex™ pursuant to an initial development
plan, and Tercica is responsible for 60% of the development costs relating to such activities under the
initial development plan, while Ipsen is responsible for the remaining 40%.

« Tercica is responsible for all regulatory affairs relating to obtaining the initial European Union marketing
authorization, and Ipsen is responsible for regulatory affairs in all other countries of its territory.
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Tercica has agreed to manufacture and supply Incretex™ to Ipsen (through its third-party manufacturers)
for Ipsen’s clinical development needs at cost and for Ipsen’s commercial needs at a per unit cost equal
to 20% of the average net selling price in Ipsen’s territory, and the parties would agree on the
manufacture and supply of any improved product or combination product.

In consideration of the rights granted to Ipsen under the Increlex™ license and collaboration agreement,
Ipsen paid Tercica an upfront payment of €10,000,000 and, upon obtaining marketing authorization of
Increlex™ in the European Union for the target label (or for a label which provides access to an agreed
upon number of patients), would pay a milestone payment of €15,000,000. If marketing authorization is
obtained but the target label or access to the agreed upen patient population is not approved within three
years from the date of obtaining such initial marketing authorization, such €15,000,000 milestone
amount would not be owed. Ipsen will aiso pay Tercica royalties on a sliding scale from 15% to 25% of
net sales in each country, depending on the annual net sales for Ipsen’s territory.

The Increlex™ license and collaboration agreement is effective on a product-by-product and
country-by-country basis until the expiration of the royalty term with respect to such product in such
country. Upon expiration of the royalty term with respect to a given Increlex™ product, in a given
country, Ipsen would be granted a fully paid-up, irrevocable and perpetual non-exclusive license under
Tercica’s patents and know how and trademarks with respect 1o such Increlex™ product. The Increlex™
license and collaboration agreement can be terminated by either party for the other party’s uncured
material breach or insolvency.

Somatuline® License and Collaboration Agreement

Tercica and Ipsen entered into the Somatuline® license and collaboration agreement in connection with the
first closing. The major provisions of that agreement are:

Ipsen has granted to Tercica and its affiliates the exclusive right under Ipsen’s patents and know-how to
develop and commercialize Somatuline® Autogel® in the United States and Canada, for all indications
other than opthalmic indications.

The collaboration is overseen by a Joint Steering Committee, consisting of an equal number of
representatives of each party.

Ipsen is solely responsible for the completion of its ongoing development at its cost with a view to
obtaining marketing authorization in the target label in Tercica’s territory. The parties have agreed to
engage in certain initial co-development activities for Somatuline® Autogel® in Tercica's territory
pursuant to an initial development plan, and Ipsen is responsible for 40% of the development costs
relating to such activities under the initial development plan, while Tercica is responsible for the
remaining 60% (provided that under certain conditions, this allocation may be different).

Ipsen is solely responsible for all regulatory affairs related to obtaining regulatory authorization to seil
Somatuline® Autogel® in Tercica’s territory.

Ipsen will manufacture and supply Somatuline® Autogel® to Tercica for Tercica’s clinical needs at cost
and for Tercica’s commercial needs at a per unit cost equal to 20% of the average net selling price in
Tercica’s territory, and the parties would agree on the manufacture and supply of any improved product
or combination product.

In consideration of the rights granted to Tercica under the agreement, Tercica paid Ipsen upfront
payments of $25,037,000, which Tercica satisfied through issuance of the first convertible note, and,
upon obtaining marketing authorization of Somatuline® Autogel® in the United States for the target
label (or for a label which provides access to an agreed upon number of patients), and would pay
milestone payments of €30,000,000, which Tercica would satisfy through the issuance of the second
convertible note. If marketing authorization is obtained but the target label or access to the agreed upon
patient population is not approved within three years from the date of obtaining such initial marketing
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authorization, such milestone amount would not be owed. Tercica will also pay Ipsen royalties on a
sliding scale from 15% to 25% of net sales in each country, depending on the annual net sales for
Tercica’s territory.

* The Somatuline® license and collaboration agreement is effective on a product-by-product and
country-by-country basis until the expiration of the royalty term with respect to such product in such
country. Upon expiration of the royalty term with respect 10 a given Somatuline® Autogel® product, in a
given country, Tercica would be granted a fully paid-up, irrevocable and perpetual non-exclusive license
under Ipsen’s patents and know how and trademarks with respect to such Somatuline® Autogel®
product. The Somatuline® license and collaboration agreement can be terminated by either party for the
other party’s uncured material breach or insolvency.

Charter Amendments; Rights Plan

In connection with the first closing under the stock purchase and master transaction agreement, Tercica
amended its amended and restated certificate of incorporation, which amendment provides for the waiver of the
corporate opportunity provisions under the Delaware General Corporation Law and the corporate opportunity
doctrine with respect to opportunities of which Ipsen and Ipsen’s designees to Tercica’s Board of Directors may
become aware as a result of their affiliation with Tercica. The affiliation agreement also includes provisions
related to corporate opportunities’ waivers. In connection with the first closing, Tercica also adopted a rights
agreement implementing a stockholder rights plan, commonly referred to as a “poison pill,” the adoption of
which was a condition to Ipsen’s obligation to consummate the first closing. The amendment to Tercica’s
amended and restated certificate of incorporation and the adoption of the rights agreement were approved by
Tercica’s stockholders at a Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 12, 2006.

As discussed in greater detail below, a proposal to approve the amendments to Tercica’s amended and
restated certificate of incorporation and amended restated bylaws set forth under “Proposal 3—Approval of the
Supermajority Charter Amendments,” as well as to approve amendments relating to Ipsen-specific corporate
governance matters concerning the power and authority of Ipsen’s designees to Tercica’s Board of Directors,
were submitted to the stockholders for approval at the Special Meeting. Although a majority of the issued and
outstanding shares of Tercica common stock voted in favor of the proposed amendments at the Special Meeting,
the proposed amendments were not approved by the required 80% vote of the issued and outstanding shares of
Tercica common stock at the Special Meeting. Tercica and Ipsen subsequently agreed to resubmit the proposed
amendments to the stockholders for approval at the Annual Meeting, with the exception of the proposed
amendments relating to the Ipsen-specific corporate governance matters described above. Tercica’s Board of
Directors believes that the proposed amendments, as revised and described in Proposal 3 of this proxy statement,
are in the best interests of the stockholders and recommends a vote “For” Proposal 3.
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PROPOSAL 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Tercica’'s Board of Directors is divided into three classes. Each class consists, as nearly as possible, of
one-third of the total number of directors, and each class has a three-year term. Vacancies on Tercica’s Board of
Directors may be filled only by a majority of the remaining directors then in office (or by a sole remaining
director). A director elected by Tercica’s Board of Directors to fill a vacancy in a class shall serve for the
remainder of the full term of that class, and until the director’s successor is elected and qualified, or until such
director’s earlier death, resignation or removal. This includes vacancies created by an increase in the number of
directors.

Tercica’s Board of Directors presently has nine members. There are three directors in the class whose term
of office expires in 2007 and who are standing for election—John A. Scarlett, M.D., Karin Eastham and
Christophe Jean. Each of Dr. Scarlett, Ms. Eastham and Mr. Jean is currently a director of Tercica. Mr, Jean was
designated by Ipsen to serve on the Board of Directors pursuant to the terms of the affiliation agreement with
Ipsen. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee of the Board of Directors recommended to the
Board of Directors that each of Dr. Scarlett, Ms, Eastham and Mr. Jean be nominated for election at the Annual
Meeting. If elected at the Annual Meeting, each of these nominees would serve until the 2010 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and until his or her successor is elected and has qualified, or until the director’s earlier death,
resignation or removal. Tercica does not have a formal policy regarding its directors attendance at annual
meetings of stockholders, but Tercica encourages its directors to attend annual meetings of stockholders. Each of
Tercica’s directors at the time attended the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes properly cast in person or by proxy. The three nominees
receiving the highest number of affirmative votes will be elected. Shares represented by executed proxies will be
voted, if authority to do so is not withheld, for the election of the three nominees named below. If any nominee
becomes unavailable for election as a result of an unexpected occurrence, your shares will be voted for the
election of a substitute nominee proposed by the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee of Tercica’s
Board of Directors, subject to Tercica’s obligations under the affiliation agreement with Ipsen. Each person
nominated for etection has agreed to serve if elected, and Tercica has no reason to believe that any nominee will
be unable to serve.

The following is a brief biography of each nominee and each director whose term will continue after the
Annual Meeting.

Nominees for Election for a Three-Year Term Expiring at the 2010 Annual Meeting
John A. Scarlett, M.D,

Dr. John A. Scarlett, age 56, has served as Tercica’s President and Chief Executive Officer and as a member
of Tercica’'s Board of Directors since February 2002. From March 1993 1o May 2001, Dr. Scarlett served as
President and Chief Executive Officer of Sensus Drug Development Corporation, a development stage
pharmaceutical company. In 1995, he co-founded Covance Biotechnology Services, Inc., a biotechnology
contract manufacturing company, and served as a member of its board of directors from inception to 2000. From
1991 to 1993, Dr. Scarlett headed the North American Clinical Development Center and served as Senior Vice
President of Medical and Scientific Affairs at Novo Nordisk Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of
Novo Nordisk A/S, a pharmaceutical company. From 1985 to 1990, Dr. Scarlett served as Vice President,
Clinical Affairs and headed the clinical development group at Greenwich Pharinaceuticals, Inc., a pharmaceutical
company. From 1982 to 1985, Dr. Scarlett served as Associate Director and, subsequently, as Director, of
Medical Research and Services at Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceuticals, a wholly owned subsidiary of johnson &
Johnson. Dr. Scarlett received his B.A. degree in chemistry from Earlham College and his M.D. from the
University of Chicago, Pritzker School of Medicine.
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Karin Eastham

Ms, Karin Eastham, age 57, has served as a member of Tercica’s Board of Directors since December 2003.
Since May 2004, Ms. Eastham has been Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, and as a member
of the Board of Trustees, of the Burnham Institute for Medical Research, a non-profit corporation engaged in
basic biomedical research and the home to three research centers—a Cancer Center, the Del E. Webb Center for
Neuroscience and Aging and a Center for Research on Infectious and Inflammatory Diseases. From April 1999 to
May 2004, Ms, Eastham served as Senior Vice President, Finance, Chief Financial Officer, and Secretary of
Diversa Corporation, a genomic technology company. She previously held similar positions with CombiChem,
Inc., a computational chemistry company, and Cytel Corporation, a biopharmaceutical company. Ms. Eastham
also held several positions, including Vice President, Finance, at Boehringer Mannheim Corporation, from 1976
to 1988. Ms. Eastham also serves as a director for Amylin Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Illumina, Inc., and SGX
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Ms. Eastham received a B.S. and an M.B.A. from Indiana University and is a Certified
Public Accountant and a Certified Director.

Christophe Jean

Mr. Christophe Jean, age 51, has served as a member of Tercica’s Board of Directors since October 2006,
Since May 2003, Mr. Jean has served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Ipsen. Mr. Jean
Jjoined Ipsen in September 2002, and was initially in charge of creating Ipsen’s strategic planning and strategic
marketing departments. From 2000 until September 2002, Mr. Jean served as Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of Pierre Fabre Médicament, S.A., a pharmaceutical company. Prior to that, Mr. Jean served in various
capacities with Ciba-Geigy AG and then with Novartis Pharma AG after the merger of Ciba-Geigy and Sandoz
AG. Mr. Jean is also a director of ExonHit Therapeutics S.A (France). Mr. Jean received an M.B.A. from
Harvard University.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY
RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” EACH NAMED NOMINEE

Directors Continuing in Office Until the 2008 Annual Meeting
Jean-Luc Bélingard

Mr. Jean-Luc Bélingard, age 58, has served as a member of Tercica’s Board of Directors since October
2006. Since December 2001, Mr. Bélingard has served as Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Ipsen. From
1999 to 2001, he was a member of the executive Board and was Chief Executive Officer of bioMérieux-Pierre
Fabre, a French healthcare conglomerate, where he was responsible for the group’s worldwide pharmaceuticals
and cosmetics activities. In 1982, Mr. Bélingard joined the Roche Group, where he held several positions
including head of the diagnostics division and member of the Roche Group’s corporate executive committee.
Mr. Bélingard is a director of each of bioMérieux-Pierre Fabre (France), the Laboratory Corporation of America,
Applera Corporation and NicOx S.A. (France), and is also an adviser to the French government on foreign trade.
Mr. Bélingard is delegate general and spokesman for (S5, an association encompassing the primary French
pharmaceuticals companies. He graduated from the HEC business school in 1971 and was awarded an M.B.A.
from Cornell University in 1974. Mr. Bélingard was appointed to the Board of Directors of the French National
Institute for Health and Medical Research in February 2006.

Ross G. Clark, Ph.D.

Dr. Ross G. Clark, age 56, has served as Tercica’s Chief Technical Officer since May 2002 and as a member
of Tercica’s Board of Directors since December 2001. From December 2001 to August 2003, Dr. Clark served as
Chairman of Tercica’s Board of Directors. From December 2001 to February 2002, Dr. Clark served as Tercica’s
Chief Executive Officer and President. Dr. Clark founded Tercica Limited, Tercica’s predecessor company in
New Zealand, in September 2000. Since September 1997, Dr. Clark has served as Professor of Endocrinology at
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the University of Auckland. From October 1997 to January 2000, Dr. Clark served as Chief Scientist for
NeuronZ Limited, a New Zealand biotechnology company. In July 1999, Dr. Clark served as a board member of
VialLactia Biosciences (NZ) Ltd, a biotechnology subsidiary of the New Zealand Dairy Board. From 1990 to
1997, Dr. Clark served as a senior scientist for Genentech, Inc., a biotechnology company. Dr. Clark received his
B.Sc., Dip.Sci. and Ph.D. degrees in veterinary physiology from Massey University, New Zealand.

David L. Mahoney

Mr. David L.. Mahoney, age 52, has served as a member of Tercica’s Board of Directors since October 2004.
Mr. Mahoney served as co-Chief Executive Officer of McKesson HBOC, Inc., a supply, information and care
management products and services company, and Chief Executive Officer of iMcKesson LLC, a healthcare
information and connectivity company, from July 1999 to February 2001. He joined McKesson Corporation in
1990 as Vice President for Strategic Planning. From 1981 to 1990, Mr. Mahoney was a principal with
McKinsey & Company, a management consulting firm. Mr. Mahoney also serves on the Board of Directors of
Corcept Therapeutics, a pharmaceutical company, and Symantec Corporation, an information and security
software and applications company. Mr. Mahoney has a B.A. degree in English from Princeton University and an
M.B.A. from Harvard University.

Directors Continuing in Office Until the 2009 Annual Meeting
Alexander Barkas, Ph.D.

Dr. Alexander Barkas, age 59, has served as Chairman of Tercica’s Board of Directors since August 2003
and has served as a member of Tercica’s Board of Directors since May 2002. Since June 1997, Dr. Barkas has
served as a managing member of Prospect Management Co., LLC, a venture capital management company. From
1991 to 1997, he was a partner at Kleiner Perkins Caufield & Byers, a venture capital management company.
From 1994 to 1995, he served as Chairman of the board of directors of Connetics Corporation, a pharmaceutical
company. From 1993 to 1994, Dr. Barkas also served as Chief Executive Officer and President of Connetics
Corporation. Dr. Barkas served as Chief Executive Officer of Geron Corporation, a biotechnology company,
from 1992 to 1993, and has been Geron Corporation’s Chairman of the board of directors since 1993. From 1989
to 1991, Dr. Barkas was a founder and served as the Chief Executive Officer of BioBridge Associates, a health
care consulting firm. He currently serves as a director for Geron Corporation. Dr. Barkas received his B.A.
degree in biology from Brandeis University and his Ph.D. in biology from New York University.

Dennis Henner, Ph.D.

Dr. Dennis Henner, age 55, has served as a member of Tercica’s Board of Directors since May 2002.
Dr. Henner is currently a Managing Director of Clarus Ventures, a venture capital management company that he
co-founded in December 2005. Since October 2001, Dr. Henner has also been a general partner at MPM
BioVentures I11, L.P., a venture capital fund. From May 2001 to Gctober 2001, Dr. Henner was a venture partner
at MPM Capital L.P., a venture capital management company. From May 1998 to February 2001, he served as
Senior Vice President of Research and a member of the executive, product review and research development
committees for Genentech, Inc., a biotechnology company. From April 1996 to May 1998, Dr. Henner served as
Vice President of Research for Genentech, Inc. He received his B.A. degree in life sciences and his Ph.D. in
microbiology from the University of Virginia.

Mark Leschly

Mr. Mark Leschly, age 38, has served as a member of Tercica’s Board of Directors since July 2003. Since
July 1999, Mr. Leschly has been a managing partner with Rho Capital Partners, Inc., an investment and venture
capital management company. From 1994 to July 1999, Mr. Leschly was an associate and then a general partner
of Healthcare Ventures L.L.C., a venture capital management company. From 1991 to 1993, Mr. Leschly served
as a consultant for McKinsey & Company, a management consulting company. Mr. Leschly is currently a
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director of Diversa Corporation, a biotechnology company, Senomyx, Inc., a biotechnology company, and
NitroMed, Inc., a biotechnoclogy company. He received his B.A. degree in history from Harvard University and
his M.B.A. from the Stanford Graduate School of Business.

Independence of the Board of Directors

The Nasdaq Stock Market listing standards require that a majority of the members of a listed company’s
Board of Directors qualify as “independent,” as affirmatively determined by the Board of Directors. After review
of all relevant transactions or relationships between each director, or any of his or her family members, and
Tercica, its senior management and its independent registered public accounting firm, Tercica’s Board of
Directors has affirmatively determined that each of Dr. Barkas, Ms. Eastham, Dr. Henner, Mr. Leschly and
Mr. Mahoney is an independent director within the meaning of the applicable Nasdaq listing standards. Each
member of Tercica’s Compensation Committee and Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is
independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 4200{c)(15) of the Nasdaq listing standards) and each
member of the Audit Committee is independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 4350(d)2)A)(i)
and (ii) of the Nasdaq listing standards). The Board has also determined that Mr. Wiggans and Mr. Astrue, each
of whom resigned from the Board of Directors in October 2006, were independent directors within the meaning
of the applicable Nasdagq listing standards.

Information Regarding the Board of Directors and its Committees

The Board has four standing commitiees: an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, a Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee and a Strategic Planning Committee. Each of these commitiees has a
written charter approved by Tercica’s Board of Directors. The following table provides membership and meeting
information for fiscal 2006 for each of the Board of Directors comrmnittees:

Corporate

Governance and  Strategic
Name Audit Compensation Nominating Planning
Michael J. Astrue (1) . . .. ... i it X
Jean-Luc Bélingard (2) . ... .. ... .. e X
Alexander Barkas, PhD. . ... .. i X* X*
KarinEastham (1) ... ... .. i i e X* X
Dennis Henner, Ph.D. ... ... i X* X
ChristopheJean (3) . ......... ... ... .. oo i, X
Mark Leschly ... ... ... ... X X X
DavidL. Mahoney (4) . .......c. i X X
John A. Scarlett, MD. ....... ... ... . . e X
Thomas G. Wiggans (4) ........ ... ..., X
Total meetings in fiscal year 2006 ........................ 11 4 3 1

*  Committee Chairperson.

(1) Mr. Astrue resigned from Tercica’s Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006. In connection with
Mr. Astrue’s resignation, Ms. Eastham was appointed to the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee.

(2) Mr. Bélingard was elected to Tercica’s Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006,
(3) Mr. Jean was elected to Tercica's Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006.
(4) Mr. Wiggans resigned from Tercica’s Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006. In connection with

Mr. Wiggans’ resignation, Mr. Mahoney was appointed to the Compensation Committee.

Below is a description of each committee of Tercica’s Board of Directors. Tercica’s Board of Directors has
determined that each member of the Audit, Compensation and Corporate Governance and Nominating
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Committees meets the applicable rules and regulations regarding “independence” and that each member is free of
any relationship that would interfere with his or her individual exercise of independent judgment with regard to
Tercica.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors oversees Tercica’s corporate accounting and financial
reporting processes and audits of Tercica’s financial statements. For this purpose, the Audit Committee performs
several functions. In particular, the Audit Committee:

* appoints, retains and determines the compensation for, Tercica's independent registered public
accounting firm;

* reviews and approves the retention of Tercica’s independent registered public accounting firm to
perform any proposed permissible non-audit services;

+ oversees and monitors:
» theintegnty of Tercica’s financial statements,

* Tercica’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as they relate to financial statements or
accounting matters,

* the qualifications, independence and performance of Tercica’s independent registered public
accounting firm, and

* Tercica’s internal accounting and financial controls;

» provides the Board of Directors with the results of its monitoring and recommendations, as well as
additional information and materials as it deems necessary to make the Board of Directors aware of
significant financial matters that require the attention of the Board of Directors;

* oversees compliance with Tercica’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Tercica’s directors,
officers and other employees relating to matters of internal accounting controls, disclosure controls or
auditing matters;

» confers with management and Tercica's independent registered public accounting firm regarding the
effectiveness of Tercica’s internal control over financial reporting;

* establishes procedures, as required under applicable law, for the receipt, retention and treatment of
complaints received by Tercica regarding accounting, internal accounting controls or auditing matters
and procedures for the confidential and anonymous submission by employees of concerns regarding
questionable accounting or auditing matters; and

* meets to review Tercica’s annual audited financial statements and quarterly unaudited financial
statements with management and Tercica’s independent registered public accounting firm, including
reviewing Tercica’s disclosures under “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition
and Results of Operations.”

Three directors currently comprise the Audit Committee: Ms, Eastham, Mr. Leschly and Mr. Mahoney. The
Audit Committee has adopted a written charter that is available to stockholders in the Corporate Governance section
of Tercica’s website at http://investor.tercica.com/governance/index.cfm. Tercica’s Board of Directors has reviewed
the Nasdaq listing standards definition of independence for audit committee members and has determined that all
members of Tercica’s Audit Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule
4350(d)(2)(AX(i) and (ii) of the Nasdaq listing standards). Tercica’s Board of Directors has also determined that
Ms. Eastham qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert,” as defined in applicable SEC rules.
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Report of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors(1)

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006 with Tercica’s management. The Audit Committee has discussed with the independent
auditors the matters required to be discussed by the Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61, as amended
(AICPA, Professional Standards, Vol. 1. AU section 380), as adopted by the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board or PCAOB, in Rule 3200T. The Audit Committee has also received the written disclosures and
the letter from the independent accountants required by the Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1,
(Independence Discussions with Audit Committees), as adopted by the PCAOB in Rule 3600T and has discussed
with the independent accountants the independent accountant’s independence. Based on the foregoing, the Audit
Committee has recommended to Tercica’s Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in
Tercica's Annual Report in Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, The Audit Committee has
also retained, subject to stockholder ratification described in Proposal 2, Emst & Young LLP as Tercica’s
independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Karin Eastham, Chair
Mark Leschly
David L. Mahoney

(1) The material in this report is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC and is not to be
incorporated by reference into any filing of Tercica under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective
of any general incorporation language in any such filing, except to the extent that Tercica specifically
incorporates this report by reference in any such filing.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee of Tercica’s Board of Directors approves and evaluates the overall
compensation plans, policies and programs for Tercica. Among other things, the Compensation Committee:

* reviews and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding general compensation goals
and guidelines for employees and the criteria by which bonuses to employees are determined;

¢ reviews and makes recommendations to Tercica’s Board of Directors for the Chief Executive Officer
regarding, and reviews and approves for Tercica’s other executive officers, the following:

* annual base salary,

« annual incentive bonus, including the specific goals and amount,

*  equity compensation,

» employment agreements, severance arrangements, and change in control agreements and provisions, and
« any other benefits, compensations, compensation policies or arrangements;

s reviews and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding the compensation policy for
such other officers as directed by the Board of Directors; and

+ administers Tercica’s current benefit plans and makes recommendations to the Board of Directors with
respect to amendments to the plans, changes in the number of shares reserved for issuance thereunder
and regarding other plans proposed for adoption.

Three directors currently comprise the Compensation Committee: Dr. Henner, Mr. Leschly and
Mr. Mahoney. All members of Tercica’s Compensation Committee are independent (as independence is currently
defined in Rule 4200(a}(15) of the Nasdaq listing standards). The Compensation Committee has adopted a
written charter that is available to stockholders in the Corporate Governance section of Tercica’s website at
hitp:/Ainvestor.tercica.com/governancefindex.cfm.
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Compensation Committee Processes and Procedures

Typically, the Compensation Committee meets three times annually and with greater frequency if necessary.
The agenda for each meeting is usually developed by the Chair of the Compensation Committee, in consultation
with the head of the Human Resources group and the Chief Executive Officer. From time to time, various
members of management and other employees as well as outside advisors or consultants may be invited by the
Compensation Committee to make presentations, provide financial or other background information or advice or
otherwise participate in Compensation Committee meetings. The Chief Executive Officer may not participate in
or be present during any deliberations or determinations of the Compensation Committee regarding his
compensation. The Compensation Committee has the sole authority to retain and terminate any compensation
consultant to be used by Tercica to assist in the evaluation of executive officer compensation and has the sole
authority to approve the consultant’s fees and other retention terms, The Compensation Committee also has the
authority to obtain advice and assistance from internal or external legal, accounting or other advisors. Under its
charter, the Compensation Committee may form, and delegate authority to, subcommittees, as appropriate. To
date, the Compensation Committee has not delegated authority to any such subcommittees. The Board of
Directors has delegated to Tercica’s Chief Executive Officer the authority to grant stock options to employees
below the level of vice president as long as such grants are below 25,000 shares. Such stock options are granted
upon an employee’s first day of employment with Tercica.

From 2004 through the first quarter of 2006, the Compensation Committee engaged Watson Wyait as a
compensation and benefits consulting expert. During 2007, the Compensation Committee engaged Towers Perrin
as a compensation and benefits consulting expert. In each case, the compensation and benefits consulting expert
was generally known to members of the Compensation Committee as a recognized top-tier independent
compensation consultant. The work that each of Watson Wyatt and Towers Perrin performed for the
Compensation Committee for 2006 and 2007 is discussed under the caption “Executive Compensation—
Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

Historically, the Compensation Committee has made the most significant adjustments to annual
compensation and determined bonus and stock incentive awards at one or more meetings held during the first
quarter of the year, however, the Compensation Committee also considers matters related to individual
compensation, such as compensation for new executive hires and promotions, at various meetings throughout the
year. The Compensation Committee’s process comprises the determination of executive officers’ compensation
levels, and the Compensation Committee makes a recommendation to the Board of Direclors regarding the
compensation level for Tercica’s Chief Executive Officer, For executives other than the Chief Executive Officer,
the Compensation Committee typically solicits and considers evaluations and recommendations submitted to the
Committee by the Chief Executive Officer. In the case of the Chief Executive Officer, an initial evaluation of his
performance is conducted by the Compensation Committee, which recommends to the Board of Directors any
adjustments to his compensation as well as any awards to be granted. The Compensation Committee also
periodically reviews the level and form of director compensation and changes 1o director compensation are
proposed by the Compensation Committee to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval. For all
executives and directors, as part of its deliberations, the Compensation Committee may review and consider, as
appropriate, materials such as financial reports and projections, operational data and performance, executive and
director stock ownership information, company stock performance data, analyses of historical executive
compensation levels and current company-wide compensation levels, and recommendations of the Compensation
Committee’s compensation consultant, including analyses of executive and director compensation paid at other
companies identified by the consultant. In the case of director compensation, the Compensation Committee
considers both direct and indirect forms of compensation, including any charitable contributions by Tercica to
organizations in which a director is affiliated and consulting or other similar arrangements between Tercica and a
director.

The specific determinations of the Compensation Committee with respect te executive compensation for
fiscal 2006 are described in greater detail under the caption “Executive Compensation—Compensation
Discussion and Analysis.”
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Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

From January 2006 to October 2006, Tercica’s Compensation Committee was comprised of Dr. Henner,
Mr. Leschly and Mr. Wiggans. Since October 2006, Tercica’s Compensation Committee has been comprised of
Dr. Henner, Mr. Leschly and Mr. Mahoney. No member of the Compensation Committee is or was formerly an
officer or employee of Tercica. None of Tercica’s executive officers serves as a member of the board of directors
or compensation committee of any entity that has one or more executive officers who serve on Tercica’s Board
of Directors or Compensation Committee.

Compensation Committee Report(1)

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed with management the Compensation Discussion
and Analysis contained in this proxy statement. Based on this review and discussion, the Compensation
Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this proxy statement and incorporated into Tercica’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Dennis Henner, Ph.D., Chair
Mark Leschly
David L. Mahoney

(1) The material in this report is not “soliciting material,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC and is not to be
incorporated by reference into any filing of Tercica under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective
of any general incorporation language in any such filing, except to the extent that Tercica specifically
incorporates this report by reference in any such filing.

Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee

The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee of Tercica’s Board of Directors is responsible for,
among other things:

= reviewing the Board of Directors structure, composition and practices, and making recommendations on
these matters to the Board of Directors;

* reviewing, soliciting and making recommendations to the Board of Directors and the stockholders with
respect to candidates for election to the Board of Directors;

+ overseeing compliance with Tercica’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Tercica’s directors,
officers and other employees relating to matters other than intermal accounting controls, disclosure
controls or auditing matters,

= overseeing and monitoring Tercica’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, except as
compliance relates to financial statements or accounting matters; and

* reviewing with management any correspondence with regulators or governmental agencies and any
employee complaints or published reports that raise material issues with respect to all matters other than
with respect to Tercica’s financial statements or accounting policies.

Three directors currently comprise the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee: Dr. Barkas,
Ms. Eastham and Mr. Leschly. All members of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee are
independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 4200{a)(15) of the Nasdaq listing standards). The
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee has adopted a written charter that is available to stockholders
in the Corporate Governance section of Tercica’s website at http:/finvestor.tercica.com/governancefindex.cfm.
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The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee is responsible for the recruitment of new Board
members. Invitations to join the Board of Directors are extended by the Chairman of the Board of Directors on
behalf of the entire Board. With respect to Board qualifications, the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee takes into consideration: applicable laws and regulations (including those of Nasdaq), skills,
experience, integrity, ability to make independent analytical inquiries, understanding of Tercica’s business and
business environment, willingness to devote adequate time and effort to Board responsibilities, diversity, age and
other relevant factors that vary depending on the specific needs of the Board of Directors at any particular time.
In addition, under the affiliation agreement with Ipsen, nominees for director who are neither members of
management nor Ipsen designees must be independent for Nasdaq purposes, based upon Nasdaq listing
standards, and must have an outstanding reputation for personal integrity and distinguished achievement in areas
relevant to Tercica’s business. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee reviews candidates for
director in the context of the then-current composition, skills and expertise of the Board of Directors, Tercica’s
operating requirements and its obligations under the affiliation agreement with Ipsen, and the interests of
stockholders. In the case of incumbent directors whose terms of office are set to expire, the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee discusses such directors and makes a recommendation 1o the Board of
Directors regarding their being nominated for election to the Board of Directors, including based on whether such
directors are required to be nominated for election to the Board of Directors pursuant to the terms of the
affiliation agreement with Ipsen. In the case of new director candidates, the Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee determines whether nominees must be independent for Nasdaq purposes, based upon
Nasdaq listing standards and applicable SEC rules and regutations, and whether nominees meet the criteria set
forth under the affiliation agreement with Ipsen. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee then
identifies potential candidates, for which purpose it may, if it deems appropriate, engage a professional search
firm. To date, Tercica has not paid a fee to any third party to assist in the process of identifying or evaluating
director candidates. The Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee conducts any appropriate and
necessary inquiries into the backgrounds and qualifications of possible candidates after considering the functions
and needs of the Board of Directors and Tercica’s obligations under the affiliation agreement with Ipsen. The
Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee meets to discuss and consider such candidates qualifications,
The Committee, Chief Executive Officer and Chairman then interview candidates that the Corporate Governance
and Nominating Committee believes have the requisite background, before recommending a nominee to the
Board of Directors, which will then vote on the nominee.

The Corporate Govermnance and Nominating Committee will consider, but not necessarily recommend to the
Board of Directors, director candidates recommended by stockholders. The Corporate Governance and
Nominating Committee does not intend to alter the manner in which it evaluates candidates based on whether the
candidate was recommended by a stockholder or not. However, Ipsen has certain rights with respect to the
nomination of directors pursuant to the terms of the affiliation agreement with Ipsen as described elsewhere in
this proxy statement. Stockholders who wish to recommend individuals for consideration by the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee to become nominees for election to the Board of Directors may do so by
delivering a written recommendation by certified mail only, ¢/o the Chairman or Secretary, at the following
address: Tercica, Inc., 2000 Sierra Point Parkway, Suite 400, Brisbane, CA 94005. Recommendations must be
delivered no sooner than 120 and no later than 90 days prior to the anniversary date of the mailing of Tercica’s
proxy statement for the last annual meeting of stockholders. Tercica intends to mail this proxy statement on or
about April 23, 2007, to all stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. Accordingly, for the
2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, your recommendation must be received not later than the close of
business on January 24, 2008, nor earlier than the close of business on December 25, 2007. Submissions must
include the full name of the proposed nominee, a description of the proposed nominee’s business experience for
at least the previous five years, complete biographical information, a description of the proposed nominee’s
qualifications as a director and a representation that the nominating stockholder is a beneficial or record owner of
Tercica’s stock. Any such submission must be accompanied by the written consent of the proposed nominee to
be named as a nominee and to serve as a director if elected. To date, the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee has not received a timely recommended director nominee from a stockholder or stockhelders holding
more than 5% of Tercica’s voting stock other than pursuant to Ipsen’s designation rights under the affiliation
agreement with Ipsen.
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Strategic Planning Committee

The Strategic Planning Committee of Tercica’s Board of Directors was established in October 2006. Five
directors currently comprise the Strategic Planning Committee: Dr. Barkas, Mr. Bélingard, Dr. Henner, Mr. Jean
and Dr. Scarlett. The Strategic Planning Committee is responsible for, among other things:

» reviewing all strategic issues affecting Tercica with regard to research and development, industrial,
manufacturing, commercial and financial matters, as well as all alliances and partnerships;

+ reviewing and recommending to the Board of Directors an annual three-year strategic plan;

« reviewing Tercica’s operating plans and allocation of resources and its relationship to Tercica’s strategic
plans, and making recommendations thereto;

+ reviewing any major investment, asset sale, restructuring, alliance or partnership project; and

* submitting reports, proposals and recommendations to the Board with respect to the foregoing.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors met 14 times during the last fiscal year. Each Board member attended 75% or more
of the aggregate of the meetings of the Board and of the committees on which he or she served, held during the
period for which he or she was a director or committee member, respectively.

Stockholder Communications With the Board of Directors

Tercica’s Board of Directors has adopted a formal process by which stockholders may communicate with
the Board of Directors or any of its individual directors. Stockholders may send written communications to the
Board of Directors or any of the directors, by certified mail only, c/o Chairman or Secretary, Tercica, Inc., 2000
Sierra Point Parkway, Suite 400, Brisbane, CA 94005. All such written communications will be compiled by the
Chairman or Secretary of Tercica and submitted to the full Board, or the individual directors, as the case may be,
within a reasonably timely period.

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Tercica’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (which includes code of ethics provisions applicable to
Tercica’s directors, principal executive officer and principal financial officer} is available in the Corporate
Governance section of Tercica’s website at http:/finvestor.tercica.com/govemnancefindex.cfm. Tercica intends to
satisfy the disclosure requirement under Item 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding an amendment to, or waiver from, a
provision of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics by posting such information on its website at the address
and the location specified above. Copies of Tercica’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics are also available
without charge by contacting Tercica’s Investor Relations department at (650) 624-4949,
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PROPOSAL 2

RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT
REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has selected Ernst & Young LLP as Tercica’s independent
registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2007, and the Board of Directors has
directed management to submit the selection of Emst & Young LLP as Tercica’s independent registered public
accounting firm for ratification by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting. Emst & Young LLP has audited
Tercica’s financial statements since its inception in 2000. Representatives of Ernst & Young LLP are expected to
be present at the Annual Meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement if they so desire and will be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

Neither Tercica's amended and restated bylaws nor other governing documents or law require stockholder
ratification of the selection of Emst & Young LLP as Tercica's independent registered public accounting firm.
However, the Board of Directors, on behalf of the Audit Committee, is submitting the selection of Ernst &
Young LLP to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to
ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if the selection
is ratified, the Audit Committee in its discretion may direct the appointment of a different independent registered
public accounting firm at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best
interests of Tercica and its stockholders,

Stockholder approval of this Proposal 2 requires a “For” vote from at least a majority of the shares
represented and voting either in person or by proxy at the Annual Meeting on this Proposal 2 (which shares
voting “For” also constitute at least a majority of the required quorum).

ON BEHALF OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” PROPOSAL 2

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table represents aggregate fees billed to Tercica for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2006
and 2005, by Emnst & Young LLP, Tercica’s independent registered public accounting firm:

Fiscal Year Ended
December 31,

2006 2005
Audit Fees (1) ..o $790,000  $610,000
Audit-Related Fees (2) ..., — —
Tax Fees () . ..o i i e e e e e 45,000 20,000
AllOtherFees (4) .. ..o it e e e e — —
Total Fees ..ot e e e e $835,000  $630,000

(1) Audit Fees. Consists of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of Tercica’s financial
statements and review of the interim financial statements included in quarterly reports, and services that are
normally provided by Emst & Young LLP in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.
Fiscal 2005 Audit Fees have been revised to reflect additional audit fees billed by Emst & Young LLP after
Tercica’s proxy statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders was filed with the SEC on April 24, 2006.

(2) Audit-Related Fees. Consists of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related

to the performance of the audit or review of Tercica’s financial statements and are not reported under “Audit
Fees.” There were no audit-related fees billed to Tercica for services rendered during fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005,
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(3) Tax Fees. Consists of fees billed for professional services for federal and state tax compliance, tax
planning and tax advice, which consists of technical tax consulting. During fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, these
services included federal and state tax compliance, tax planning and tax advice.

(4) All Other Fees. Consists of fees for products and services other than the services described above.
During fiscal 2006 and fiscal 2005, Ernst & Young LLP did not provide any such products or services to Tercica.

All fees described above were approved by the Audit Committee.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Tercica’s Audit Committee, or the Audit Committee chairperson, pre-approves all audit and permissible
non-audit services provided by Emst & Young LLP, Tercica’s independent registered public accounting firm.
These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other services. Prior to
engaging Emnst & Young LLP to render an audit or permissible non-audit service, the Audit Committee, or the
Audit Committee chairperson, specifically approves the engagement of Emst & Young LLP to render that
service. When the Audit Committee chairperson pre-approves any services, the Audit Committee is advised
immediately and at its next scheduled meeting, the Audit Committee ratifies any services pre-approved by the
Audit Committee chairperson. Accordingly, Tercica does not engage Emst & Young LLP to render audit or
permissible non-audit services pursuant to pre-approval policies and procedures or otherwise, unless the
engagement to provide such services has been approved by Tercica’s Audit Committee, or the Audit Committee
chairperson, in advance. Tercica’s Audit Committee has determined that the rendering of the services other than
audit services by Emst & Young LLP is compatible with maintaining the principal accountant’s independence.
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PROPOSAL 3
APPROVAL OF THE SUPERMAJORITY CHARTER AMENDMENTS

The Board of Directors is asking for your approval to amend Tercica's amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and amended and restated bylaws to eliminate Tercica’s classified Board of Directors and certain
other anti-takeover protections. Pursuant to Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
amended and restated bylaws, approval of these proposed amendments requires the affirmative vote of holders of
at least 80% of the issued and outstanding Tercica common stock. As a result, these proposed amendments are
referred to in this proxy statement as the “Supermajority Charter Amendments.” The following summary of the
Supermajority Charter Amendments is qualified in its entirety by the Supermajority Charter Amendments, which
are attached hereto as Appendix A.

Introduction
The Supermajority Charter Amendments provide for:
» the elimination of Tercica's classified board of directors;

» the right of any stockholder who holds 15% or more of the issued and outstanding shares of Tercica
common stock to request that a special meeting of stockholders be called;

» the right of the stockholders to remove a director by an affirmative vote of at least 60% of the issued and
outstanding shares of Tercica common stock entitled to vote at an election of directors;

» the reduction and/or elimination of the supermajority votes required to amend certain provisions of
Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation; and

* the exemption of Ipsen from the advance notice requirements for director nominations.

Tercica submitted a proposal including the above amendments, as well as amendments relating to Ipsen-
specific corporate governance matters concerning the power and authority of Ipsen’s designees to Tercica’s
Board of Directors, to its stockholders for approval at a Special Meeting of Stockholders held on October 12,
2006. Although a majority of the issued and outstanding shares of Tercica common stock voted in favor of the
proposed amendments at the Special Meeting, the proposed amendments were not approved by the required 80%
vote of the issued and outstanding shares of Tercica common stock at the Special Meeting. Pursuant to the terms
of the affiliation agreement Tercica entered into with Ipsen in connection with the strategic collaboration, Tercica
agreed to submit the proposed amendments to the stockholders at the Annual Meeting if the amendments had not
been approved by the stockholders at the Special Meeting. Tercica and Ipsen subsequently agreed to resubmit the
proposed amendments to the stockholders for approval at the Annual Meeting, with the exception of the proposed
amendments submitted to the stockholders at the Special Meeting relating to the Ipsen-specific corporate
governance matters concerning the power and authority of Ipsen’s designees to Tercica’s Board of Directors.
Tercica's Board of Directors believes that the proposed amendments, as revised and described in this Proposal 3
as the “Supermajority Charter Amendments,” are in the best interests of the stockholders.

Reasons for and Effect of the Supermajority Charter Amendments

The Supermajority Charter Amendments are designed to eliminate Tercica’s classified Board of Directors
and other anti-takeover protections in Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended
and restated bylaws. Given the strategic collaboration between Tercica and Ipsen, as described under the section
of the this proxy statement captioned “Collaboration with Ipsen,” the Board of Directors believes that these anti-
takeover provisions in Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated
bylaws are no longer necessary or appropriate, The Board of Directors believes that it is in the best interests of
Tercica and Tercica’s stockholders for Ipsen to continue its investment in, and collaboration with, Tercica. The
anti-takeover provisions currently in place may hinder Ipsen’s continuing investment and the resulting increase in
Ipsen’s representation on the Board of Directors by imposing unnecessary cost burden and time delay. In
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addition, stockholders should note that the elimination of Tercica’s classified Board of Directors and other anti-
takeover provisions would pul more contro! in the hands of Tercica's stockholders by, for example, allowing
stockholders to vote on all directors on an annual basis and to retnove directors without cause, and allowing
significant stockholders to act independently of management by having the ability to call special meetings of
stockholders.

Elimination of Classified Board of Directors

The Board of Directors is asking the stockholders to amend Article VI of Tercica’s amended and restated
certificate of incorporation. Article VI of Tercica’s amended and restated centificate of incorporation currently
provides that the Board of Directors is to be classified into three classes with the number of directors in each
class elected to hold office for a three-year term. If the stockholders approve this Proposal 3, Tercica’s classified
Board of Directors would be eliminated and directors would thereafter be elected for one-year terms at each
annual meeting of stockholders beginning at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. However, the term of a
director elected prior to the filing of the certificate of amendment giving effect to the Supermajority Charter
Amendments with the Delaware Secretary of State would not be affected by the Supermajority Charter
Amendments. Each of these directois would continue to serve until his or her respective current term of office
expires, including those directors elected for a three-year term at this Annual Meeting. Any new directors
appointed by the Board of Directors by reason of a vacancy, whether due to the death, resignation or removal of a
director, or due to an increase in the size of the Board of Directors, would be appointed only 1o serve until the
next annual meeting of stockholders and until his or her successor is elected and has qualified.

The purpose of a classified board is to make it more difficult for a potential hostile acquirer to take control
of the Board of Directors by means of a proxy contest, as the potential hostile acquirer would need to be
successful in two proxy contests before the potential hostile acquirer would have elected a majority of the
directors to the Board of Directors. The approval of this Proposal 3 would eliminate this anti-takeover provision.

In addition to the reasons discussed above, the Board of Directors believes that the stockholders should have
an opportunity to vote on all directors every year and that this would be an effective way to maintain and enhance
the accountability of the directors to Tercica’s stockholders. The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if
approved, would replace current Article VI of Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation with a
new Article VI. It would also replace Article X, Section 1 of Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and the second paragraph of Section 3.3 of Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws with a new
paragraph to reflect the conforming change in the term of office of a director elected to fill a vacancy on the
Board of Directors as a result of the elimination of the classified Board of Directors.

Stockholders’ Right to Call a Special Meeting

Currently, Article XII, Section 2 of Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
Section 2.3 of Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws permit a special meeting of the stockholders to be called
only by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors or Tercica’s Chief Executive Officer (or
President in the absence of a Chief Executive Officer). Tercica’s stockhelders do not currently have the right to
call a special meeting. The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if approved, would also allow any stockholder
who holds at least 15% of Tercica’s issued and outstanding common stock to call a special meeting.

The Delaware General Corporation Law permits the calling of a special meeting by any persons as may be
authorized by the certificate of incorporation or the bylaws. The Board of Directors believes that a stockholder,
such as Ipsen, with a 15% or more share ownership has a sufficient stake in Tercica that should entitle it to act
independently of management by having the right to call a special meeting of the stockholders. The prohibition
against a stockholder’s right to call a special meeting is essentially an anti-takeover measure that is no longer
appropriate given the strategic partnership between Tercica and Ipsen as discussed elsewhere in this proxy
statement. The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if approved, would amend and restate Article XI1, Section 2
of Tercica's amended and restated certificate of incorporation and would amend and restate Section 2.3 of
Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws.
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Removal of Directors Without Cause

Currently, Article X, Section 2 of Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and
Section 3.4 of Tercica's amended and restated bylaws permit removal of a director from the Board of Directors
only for cause by an affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of Tercica’s issued and outstanding
common stock. Directors may not be removed without cause. The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if
approved, would allow the removal of directors without cause if at least 60% of Tercica’s issued and outstanding
common stock vote in favor of such removal.

The Delaware General Corporation Law permits any director or the entire board of a corporation to be
removed, with or without cause, except that in the case of a corporation whose board is classified, stockholders
may effect such removal only for cause unless the certificate of incorporation otherwise provides. The Board of
Directors believes that the stockholders should have the right to remove a director for any reason to maintain and
enhance the accountability of the directors to Tercica’s stockholders. The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if
approved, would amend and restate Article X, Section 2 of Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of
incorporation and would amend and restate Section 3.4 of Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws.

Reduction or Elimination of Supermajority Voting Requirement

Currently, specified provisions of Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended
and restated bylaws may only be amended or repealed upon the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of
Tercica’s issued and outstanding common stock. These provisions relate to Tercica's classified Board of
Directors, the votes required to amend or repeal certain anti-takeover provisions in Tercica’s amended and
restated bylaws, the filling of vacancies on the Board of Directors and removal of directors, advance notice of
new business and stockholder nominations for election of directors, actions by written consent of the
stockholders, the calling of a special meeting of the stockholders, notice requirements for meetings of
stockholders and the votes required to amend or repeal the provision that requires the 80% stockholder vote for
the preceding matters itself.

The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if approved, would: (i) reduce the voting threshold to amend or
repeal the provisions relating to the advance notice of new business and stockholder nominations for election of
directors from 80% 10 66%3% and reduce the voting threshold requirement to amend or repeal the provision that
requires the 66%3% vote for the preceding matters from 80% to 66%:% and (ii) eliminate the supermajority
voting requirement to amend or repeal the provisions relating to Tercica’s classified Board of Directors, the votes
required to amend or repeal certain anti-takeover provisions in Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws, the filling
of vacancies on the Board of Directors and removal of directors, actions by written consent of the stockholders,
the calling of a special meeting of the stockholders, and notice requirements for meetings of stockholders.
Instead, the vote required to amend or repeal these provisions would be the requisite vote to amend Tercica’s
amended and restated certificate of incorporation or amended and restated bylaws, as applicable, under the
Delaware General Corporation Law and Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws. Under the Delaware General
Corporation Law and Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws, the amendment of Tercica’s amended and restated
certificate of incorporation requires the affirmative vote of at least a majority of the issued and outstanding shares
of Tercica common stock, and the amendment of Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws do not require
stockholder approval unless specified otherwise in Tercica's amended and restated certificate of incorporation.

The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if approved, would reduce or otherwise eliminate certain voting
protections that Tercica’s stockholders currently have by reducing the voting threshold requirement of, or
climinating, supermajority voting provisions. However, most of the provisions that require supermajority votes,
such as those relating to Tercica’s classified Board of Directors, the votes required to amend or repeal certain
anti-takeover provisions in Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws, removal of directors and the calling of a
special meeting of stockholders, would be eliminated or modified if the Supermajority Charter Amendments are
approved, and therefore render the supermajority vote requirements to amend such provisions unnecessary. The
other provisions that require a supermajority vote are similar anti-takeover provisions that the Board of Directors
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believes should be amended or repealed by the Board of Directors and/or by the vote of a majority of the issued
and outstanding shares of Tercica common stock. In addition, given the practical difficulty of obtaining approval
from 80% of the issued and outstanding shares, an 80% voting threshold requirement may prohibit the approval
of amendments that a significant majority of Tercica’s stockholders are in favor of, The Supermajority Charter
Amendments, if approved, would amend and restate Article VII, Section 2 and Article X1V of Tercica’s amended
and restated certificate of incorporation, and amend and restate Article X of Tercica’s amended and restated
bylaws.

Exemption of Ipsen from Advance Notice Requirements for Director Nominations

Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws currently require that a stockholder give notice to Tercica no less
than 90 days prior to the anniversary date of the immediately preceding annual meeting of stockholders if the
stockholder intends to nominate directors for election to the Board of Directors at an annual meeting, or, in the
case of a special meeting called for the purpose of electing directors, ten days following the day on which notice
of the date of a special meeting was mailed or on which the date of such special meeting was publicly disclosed
{whichever occurs first), each subject to specified exceptions. The notice is required to include information as
specified in Section 2.16 of Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws. The Supermajerity Charter Amendments, if
approved, would exempt Ipsen from these advance notice requirements,

The Board believes that such advance notice requirements would no lenger be necessary with respect to
Ipsen because similar requirements are separately imposed on Ipsen under the terms of the affiliation agreement.
Under the affiliation agreement, Ipsen has the right to designate nominees for election as directors by giving
notice of the identity of such director(s} at least 90 days prior to each annual meeting of stockholders or 30 days
prior to the date on which Tercica sends a notice for any other meeting of its stockholders at which directors are
10 be elected. Further, because the intent of the affiliation agreement was to set forth the director nomination
rights granted to Ipsen, limitations on the general process for screening director candidates may be unnecessary
and reliance on restrictions in the affiliation agreement may provide greater flexibility for Ipsen to determine
which candidates it would seek to nominate. The Supermajority Charter Amendments, if approved, would add a
provision to Section 2.16 of Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws exempting Ipsen from these advance notice
requirements.

The Board of Directors is not seeking your approval of the Supermajority Charter Amendments discussed
above in response to or in anticipation of any pending or threatened takeover bid or offer for Tercica common

stock.

Stockholder approval of this Proposal 3 requires a “For” vote at the Annual Meeting from at least 80% of
the issued and outstanding shares of Tercica common stock.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY
RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” PROPOSAL 3
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the ownership of Tercica common stock as of

March 15, 2007 (except as otherwise noted) by: (i) each director and nominee for director; (ii) each of Tercica’s
executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table presented later in this proxy statement; (iii) all
executive officers and directors of Tercica as a group; and (iv) each person or group of affiliated persons known
by Tercica to be the beneficial owner of more than five percent of its common stock as of March 15, 2007,

Beneficial
Ownership{1)

Percent
Shares of Total

5% Stockholders:

Suraypharm, S.A.S.;Ipsen, S.A.(2) ... . e 36,475,290 61.2%
Entities affiliated with MPM BioVentures IITLLC(3) .......... i iiiiniaen.. 6,904,268 13.8%
Entities affiliated with Prospect Management Co. I, LLC(4) ....................... 3,063,540 6.1%
Entities affiliated with Rho Capital Partners, Inc.(5) . ... ......... .. . oot 3,004,951 6.0%
MedImmune, InC.(6) . ...t it et et e e 2,996,250 6.0%
AMVESCAP PLO(T) . ..o e e e 2,837,330 5.7%
Directors and Executive Officers:

John A. Scarlett, M D.(8) . ... ... i e 1,570,904 31%
Ross G. Clark, Ph D) ..o ittt et 764,729 1.5%
Stephen N. Rosenfield(10) ... ... o i s 478,333 *
Andrew Grethlein, Ph.D.(11) . ... . i i et e et e s 356,330 *
Thorsten von Stein, M.D., Ph.D.(12) ... .o i e et e e e 305,000 *
Ajay Bansal(13) . ... s 311,000 *
Alexander Barkas, Ph.D.(14) ... .. oo e e 3,162,579 6.3%
Jean-Luc BELIngard(15) .. ... .. i e e e 22,500 *
Karin Eastham( 1) ... ..ot i i it it e e e e e 45,000 *
Dennis Henner, Ph.D.(17) ... e e e e e e e 6,904,268 13.8%
Christophe Jean(18) . .. ... .. i e e 22,500 *
Mark Leschly(10) . ..o e 3,049,951 6.1%
David L. Mahoney(20) . . ... ..ottt it e e e 45,000 *
All directors and executive officers as a group (15 persons)(21} .......... ... ... . ... 17,575,752  33.0%
¥*

(1

(2)

Less than one percent.

This table is based upon information supplied by officers, directors and principal stockholders and
Schedules 13G filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Unless otherwise indicated in the
footnotes to this table and subject to community property laws where applicable, Tercica believes that each
of the stockholders named in this table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares
indicated as beneficially owned. Applicable percentages are based on 50,162,610 shares outstanding on
March 185, 2007, adjusted as required by rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Includes 12,527,245 shares held by Suraypharm, §.A.S. and 8,405,524 shares that may be acquired within
60 days of March 15, 2007 pursuant to a convertible promissory note and warrant, each held by Ipsen. Also
includes 14,501,271 shares held by the supporting stockholders and options to purchase 1,041,250 shares of
common stock held by the supporting stockholders that may be exercised pursuant to early exercise
agreements, of which 681,147 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60
days of March 15, 2007. All of the shares of Tercica common stock and options to purchase shares of
Tercica common stock held by the supporting stockholders are subject to the voting agreements Ipsen and
Suraypharm entered into with each of the supporting stockholders as described under the caption
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(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

{7

“Collaboration with Ipsen—Voting Agreements.” Ipsen and Suraypharm may be deemed to be the
beneficial owner of the shares of Tercica common stock and options to purchase shares of Tercica common
stock subject to the voting agreements and to share the power to vote or to direct the vote of these shares.
Each of Ipsen and Suraypharm expressly disclaims benefictal ownership of the shares of Tercica common
stock and options to purchase shares of Tercica common stock subject to the voting agreements. Neither
Mr. Bélingard nor Mr. Jean, each directors of Tercica, have shared or sole voting or dispositive over the
shares beneficially owned by Suraypharm and lpsen and each expressly disclaims beneficial ownership of
the shares beneficially owned by Suraypharm and Ipsen. The address for each of Ipsen and Suraypharm is
42, rue du Docteur Blanche, 75016 Paris, France.

Represents 5,707,936 shares held by MPM BioVentures HI-QP, L.P., 482,343 shares held by MPM
BioVentures 111 GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs KG, 383,776 shares held by MPM BioVentures III, L.P.,
112,772 shares held by MPM Asset Management Investors 2002 BVIII LLC, 172,441 shares held by MPM
BioVentures 111 Parallel Fund, L.P., and options to purchase 45,000 shares of Tercica common stock granted
to Dr. Henner, one of Tercica’s directors, that may be exercised pursuant to early exercise agreements, of
which 11,250 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60 days of
March 15, 2007. Dr. Henner is obligated to transfer any shares issued pursuant to the exercise of such
options to MPM BioVentures I11 LLC. Dr. Henner is a general partner of MPM BioVentures III LLC, the
indirect general partner of the stockholders listed above, and holds voting and dispositive power for the
shares held of record by the stockholders listed above. Dr. Henner disclaims beneficial ownership of these
shares, except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. The address for MPM BioVentures III LLC is
200 Clarendon Street, 54% Floor, Boston, MA 02116.

Represents 3,017,588 shares held by Prospect Venture Partners 11, L.P. and 45,952 shares held by Prospect
Associates 11, L.P. Dr. Barkas, one of Tercica's directors, is a managing member of Prospect Management
Co. II, LLC, the General Partner of Prospect Venture Partners II, L.P. and Prospect Associates II, L.P., and,
together with the other managing members of Prospect Management Co. II, LLC, holds voting and
dispositive power for the shares held of record by the stockholders listed above. Dr. Barkas disclaims
beneficial ownership of these shares, except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. The address for
Prospect Management Co. 11, LLC is 435 Tasso Street, Suite 200, Palo Alto, California 94301.

Represents 829,210 shares held by Rho Management Trust 1, 374,629 shares held by Rho Ventures IV, L.P,,
881,971 shares held by Rho Ventures IV (QP), L.P. and 919,141 shares held by Rho Ventures 1V GmbH &
Co. Beteiligungs KG. These stockholders are affiliated with the management company, Rho Capital
Partners, Inc. Mr. Leschly, one of Tercica’s directors, is a controlling shareholder of Rho Capital Partners,
Inc., a managing member of the general partner of Rho Ventures 1V, L.P. and Rho Ventures IV (QP), L.P., a
managing director of the general partner of Rho Ventures [V GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs KG and a managing
partner of the investment advisor to Rho Management Trust I. Mr. Leschly disclaims beneficial ownership
of these shares, except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein. These shares do not include 11,000
shares of Tercica common stock held by Drakensberg, L.P. Joshua Ruch, the managing member of the
general partner of Drakensberg, L.P., is also a controlling sharehelder of Rho Capital Partners, Inc. and may
be deemed to beneficially own the shares held by Drakensberg, L.P. and the entities affiliated with Rho
Capital Partners, Inc. The address of Rho Capital Partners, Inc. is Carnegie Hall Tower, 152 West 57th
Street, 23rd Floor, New York, NY 10019,

Represents shares held by Medlmmune Ventures, Inc, a wholly-owned venture capital subsidiary of
Medlmmune, Inc. The address for MedImmune, Inc. is One MedImmune Way, Gaithersburg, Maryland 20878,

Based upon a Schedule 13G filed with the SEC on Febrvary 14, 2007 by AMVESCAP PLC on behalf of
itself and AIM Funds Management Inc,, or AFM, a subsidiary of AMVESCAP. According to the Schedule
13G filed by AMVESCAP, AFM has sole voting and dispositive power over such shares. Pursuant to the
Schedule 13G filted by AMVESCAP, AMVESCAP and its subsidiaries disclaim beneficial ownership of the
shares of Tercica common stock beneficially owned by any of their executive officers and directors, and
each of AMVESCAP’s direct and indirect subsidiaries also disclaim beneficial ownership of shares of

30




Tercica common stock beneficially owned by AMVESCAP and any other subsidiary. The address of
AMVESCAP is 30 Finsbury Square, London EC2A 1AG, England. The Schedule 13G filed by
AMVESCAP provides information only as of December 31, 2006 and, consequently, AMVESCAF’s
beneficial ownership of Tercica common stock may have changed between December 31, 2006 and
March 15, 2007,

(8) Includes 602,352 shares purchased pursuani to early exercised options, of which 5,469 shares are subject to
Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007, options to purchase 650,000 shares of
Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to early exercise agreements, of which 498,959
shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60 days of March 13, 2007,
153,651 shares of held by The John A, Scarleit 1999 Trust U/A ditd November 26, 1999, and 154,901 shares
held by The Susan E. Scarlett 1999 Trust U/A did November 26, 1999.

(9) Represents 62,847 shares purchased pursuant to early exercised options, of which 2,344 shares are subject to
Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007, 5,490 shares acquired through Tercica’s
2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, options to purchase 140,000 shares of Tercica common stock that may
be exercised pursuant to eatly exercise agreements, of which 99,375 shares will be unvested and subject to
Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007, and 556,392 shares held by Boat Harbour
Lid.

(10) Includes options to purchase 453,333 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to
early exercise agreements, of which 274,029 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of
repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007.

(11) Represents 4,664 shares acquired through Tercica's 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and options to
purchase 351,666 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to early exercise
agreements, of which 186,130 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60
days of March 15, 2007,

(12) Represents options to purchase 305,000 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to
early exercise agreements, of which 208,751 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of
repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007.

(13) Represents 1,000 shares acquired through Tercica's 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and options to
purchase 310,000 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to early exercise
agreements, of which 249,063 will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase within 60 days
of March 15, 2007,

(14) Includes options to purchase 81,250 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to early
exercise agreements, of which 22,500 will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase within
60 days of March 15, 2007, and the shares described in Note (4) above. Dr. Barkas disclaims beneficial
ownership of shares described in Note (4) above, except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.

(15) Represents options to purchase 22,500 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to
early exercise agreements, of which 22,500 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of
repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007.

(16) Includes options to purchase 35,000 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to early
exercise agreements, of which 11,250 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase
within 60 days of March 15, 2007.

(17) Represents the shares listed in Note (3) above. Dr. Henner disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares,
except to the extent of his pecuniary interest therein.

(18) Represents options to purchase 22,500 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to
early exercise agreements, of which 22,500 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of
repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007.

31




(19) Represents options to purchase 45,000 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to
early exercise agreements, of which 11,250 shares will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of
repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007, and the shares held by the entities affiliated with Rho Capital
Partners, Inc. as described in Note (5) above. Mr. Leschly disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares held
by the entities affiliated with Rho Capital Partners, Inc. as described in Note (5) above, except to the extent
of his pecuniary interest therein.

(20} Represents options to purchase 45,000 shares of Tercica common stock that may be exercised pursuant to
early exercise agreements, of which 18,750 will be unvested and subject to Tercica’s right of repurchase
within 60 days of March 15, 2007.

(21) Includes 15,062 shares acquired through Tercica’s 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan, 675,199 shares
purchased pursuant to early exercise agreements, of which 7,813 shares are subject to Tercica’s right of
repurchase within 60 days of March 15, 2007, and options to purchase 3,039,999 shares of Tercica common
stock, of which 2,046,360 shares are subject to Tercica's right of repurchase if such options are early
exercised pursuant to option agreements within 60 days of March 15, 2007.
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SECTION 16(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires Tercica’s directors and executive officers,
and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of Tercica’s equity securities, to file with the
SEC initial reports of ownership and reports of changes in ownership of Tercica common stock and other equity
securities. Officers, directors and greater than ten percent stockholders are required by SEC regulations to furnish
Tercica with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To Tercica’s knowledge, based solely on a review of the copies of such reports furnished to Tercica and
written representations that no other reports were required, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, all
Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to Tercica’s officers, directors and greater than ten percent beneficial
owners were complied with, except as follows:

¢ Each of Mr. Astrue, Dr. Barkas, Ms. Eastham, Dr, Henner, Mr. Leschly, Mr. Mahoney and Mr. Wiggans
filed a late report on Form 4 with respect to stock options granted to such directors in June 2006.

»  Each of Messrs. Bélingard and Jean filed a late report on Form 4 with respect to stock options granted to
such directors in October 2006,

+ Ipsen and Suraypharm filed a late report on Form 4 with respect to the shares of Tercica common stock
purchased by Suraypharm and the convertible promissory note and warrant issued to Ipsen in October
2006.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The following table provides certain information with respect to all of Tercica’s equity compensation plans
in effect as of December 31, 2006:

Number of securities

Number of securities remaining available for
to be issued upon Weighted-average issuance under equity
exercise of exercise price of compensation plans

outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
warrants and rights  warrants and rights  reflected in column (a))
Plan Category (a) {b) (c)

Equity compensation plans approved by security

holders ...... ..o 3,873,806 $7.24 1,439,865(1)
Equity compensation plans not approved by

security holders ........... ... ... ... ... .. — —_ —
Total ... e 3,873,806 $7.24 1,439,865(1)

(1) Of these shares, 191,070 shares remained available for the grant of future rights under Tercica’s 2004
Employee Stock Purchase Plan as of December 31, 2006.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Objectives of Tercica’s Compensation Program

Tercica is an early stage biopharmaceutical company that has been undergoing a transition from the
development stage to product commercialization. Tercica’s goal is to capitalize on the opportunities presented by
Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel® and to develop and commercialize additional new products for the treatment
of metabolic disorders. The success of earlier-stage biopharmaceutical companies is significantly influenced by the
quality of their work forces. As a result, Tercica faces significant competition for executives and other talented
employees from the numerous pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies in the San Francisco Bay Area. In light
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of these circumstances, Tercica’s compensation program is designed to help Tercica attract talented individuals to
manage and operate all aspects of Tercica’s business, to reward these individuals fairly, and to retain those
individuals who continue to meet Tercica’s high expectations and support the achievement of Tercica’s business
objectives. In this regard, during 2006, Tercica’s compensation program was specifically designed to:

+ reward employees and execuiives for Tercica's overall performance and for the achievement of
departmental and individual goals and responsibilities, as well as adherence to company values;

+ attract and retain talented individuals who are capable of leading Tercica in achieving its business
objectives in an industry characterized by competitiveness, growth and a challenging business
environment; and

» provide substantial alignment of management’s interests with the long-term interests of stockholders.

Tercica pays cash compensation to provide an appropriate and competitive level of current cash income and
to reward, in the case of any bonus or salary increase, exemplary performance over the past year. In this regard,
the bonuses awarded to Tercica’s executive officers reflect significant business and strategic achievements
during the past year, including the favorable outcome in Tercica’s patent infringement litigation against Insmed
Incorporated and the consummation of Tercica’s worldwide strategic collaboration in endocrinology with Ipsen.
Tercica also offers long-term incentive compensation. As discussed in further detail below, Tercica’s 2006
compensation program for its executive officers consisted of, and was intended to strike a balance among, the
following three primary components:

*  Base Salary. Base salary for each of Tercica’s executive officers was based principally on an evaluation
of individual job performance during the prior year, as well as base salary benchmarking against
comparable companies.

s Performance Bonus. Executive officer performance bonuses for 2006 were determined in accordance
with the criteria set forth under Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan, which takes into account
corporate goals approved by the Board of Directors and the executive officer’s performance with respect
to his or her department’s and personal performance objectives.

* Long-Term Incentive Compensation, Long-term incentive awards, comprised of stock option grants, are
designed to ensure that incentive compensation is linked to the long-term performance of Tercica
common stock and to align its executive officers’ performance objectives with the interests of Tercica’s
stockhelders. Stock options are granted to Tercica’s executive officers both as a reward for past
individual and corporate performance and as an incentive for future performance.

Role of the Compensation Committee of Tercica’s Board of Directors

The Compensation Committee of Tercica's Board of Directors oversees Tercica’s overall compensation
program for its employees and executive officers. In addition, the Compensation Committee evaluates the
performance and recommends the compensation of Tercica’s Chief Executive Officer to the Board of Directors.
The Compensation Committee is comprised entirely of independent directors who are not officers or employees
of Tercica. From January 2006 through October 2006, the Compensation Committee was comprised of
Dr. Henner and Messrs. Leschly and Wiggans. For the remainder of 2006 until the present, the Compensation
Committee has been comprised of Dr. Henner and Messrs. Leschly and Mahoney.

The stated policy of the Compensation Comrmittee is to maximize stockholder value over time. The primary
goal of the Compensation Committee and the executive compensation program is thercfore to closely align the
interests of the executive officers with those of Tercica’'s stockholders. To achieve this goal the Compensation
Committee attempts to:

» offer compensation opportunities that attract and rtetain executives whose abilities are critical to the
long-term success of Tercica, that motivate individuals to perform at their highest level and that reward
outstanding achievement;
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* maintain a significant portion of the executive’s total compensation at risk, tied to achievement of
financial, organizational and management performance goals; and

* encourage executives to manage from the perspective of owners with an equity stake in the company.

The responsibilities of the Compensation Committee include the following:

» annually reviewing and making recommendations to the Board of Directors for Tercica’s Chief
Executive Officer, and reviewing and approving for the other executive officers of Tercica the
following:

+ annual base salary;

* annual incentive bonus including the specific goals and amount;

*  equity compensation;

= employment agreements, severance arrangements, and change in control agreements/provisions; and

« any other benefits, compensation, compensation policies or arrangements, including compensation
relating to raises and promotions; and

* annually reviewing and making recommendations to the Board of Directors regarding general
compensation goals and guidelines for Tercica’s employees and the criteria by which bonuses tw
Tercica’s employees are determined.

In reviewing and approving such matters, the Compensation Committee considers such matters as it deems
appropriate, including Tercica’s financial and operating performance, the alignment of the interests of the
executive officers and Tercica’s stockholders, the performance of Tercica common stock and Tercica’s ability to
attract and retain qualified individuals. For executive compensation decisions, including decisions relating to the
grant of stock options to executive officers, the Compensation Committee typically considers the
recommendations of Dr. Scarlett, Tercica’s Chief Executive Officer, and Dr. Scarlett typically participates in the
Compensation Committee’s deliberations about executive compensation matters. However, Dr. Scarlett does not
participate in the determination of his own compensation, nor does he participate in deliberations with respect
thereto. Dr. Scarlett also annually develops Tercica’s strategic and other corporate goals, which are reviewed by
the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors, and, subject to their input, approved by the Board of
Directors. In determining his executive officer compensation recommendations, Dr. Scarlett solicits the input of,
and receives documentary support from, Tercica’s Human Rescurces group. The Compensation Committee also
receives documentary and analysis support from compensation and benefits consulting experts. Other than
Dr. Scarlett, no other executive officers recommended to the Compensation Committee the amount or form of
executive officer compensation. Mr. Rosenfield, Tercica’s Executive Vice President of Legal Affairs, General
Counsel and head of Tercica’s Human Resources group, participated in Compensation Comrmittee meetings at
which executive officer compensation was determined, but did not participate in any discussions of his own
compensation. The Compensation Committee has and does not delegate any of its functions to others in
determining executive compensation.

The Compensation Committee has not established any formal policies or guidelines for allocating
compensation between current and long-term incentive compensation, or between cash and non-cash
compensation. However, because of the overall importance to Tercica’s success of aggressively pursuing its
strategic goals, as well as to preserve its cash resources, a significant portion of Tercica’s executive officers’ total
compensation has been, and is expected to continue to be, comprised of stock options. In determining the amount
and mix of compensation elements and whether each element provides the comrect incentives and rewards for
performance consistent with Tercica’s short and long-term goals and objectives, the Compensation Committee
relies on its judgment about each individual rather than adopting a formulaic approach to compensatory decisions
that are too narrowly responsive to short-term changes in business performance.
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2006 and 2007 Compensation Surveys

The Compensation Committee believes that it is important when making compensation decisions to be
informed as to the current practices of comparable publicly-held companies. To this end, in each of 2006 and
2007, the Compensation Committee engaged the services of an independent compensation and benefits
consulting expert (i.e., Watson Wyatt in 2006 and Towers Perrin in 2007) to provide a review or an analysis of
Tercica’s salaries, bonuses and stock incentive awards for executive officers as compared to a peer group of

biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies of a size and complexity similar to that of Tercica.

Based on the Compensation Committee’s approval of a peer group for benchmarking executive
compensation for 2006 salaries, bonuses and stock incentive awards, Tercica’s Human Resources group provided
to the Compensation Committee a benchmarking survey comprised of the following component companies:

* Aerogen, Inc. (now Nektar
Therapeutics)

*  Anesiva, Inc.

*  Aradigm Corporation

*  Avigen, Inc.

* BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc.
+  Cell Genesys, Inc.

»  Cepheid

+  Cerus Corporation

» Ciphergen Biosystems, Inc.

» Clinimetrics Research
Assoctiates Inc.

+ CoTherix, Inc.
*  CV Therapeutics, Inc.

-

Cytokinetics, Inc.
Depomed, Inc.
DURECT Corporation

Dynavax Technologies
Corporation

Exelixis, Inc.

Genelabs Technologies, Inc.

Geron Corporation

Kosan Biosciences
Incorporated

Maxygen, Inc.
Novozymes A/S
Nuvelo, Inc.

Renovis, Inc.

Rigel Pharmaceuticals, Inc,
Sangamo BioSciences, Inc.
SuperGen, Inc.

Symyx Technologies, Inc,
Telik, Inc.

Theravance, Inc.

Titan Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Vaxgen, Inc.

ViroLogic, Inc. (now
Monogram Biosciences)

WorldHeart Corporation
Xenogen Corporation
Xoma (US) LLC-Berkeley

Based on the Human Resource group’s benchmarking analysis, Watson Wyatt supported Dr. Scarlett’s executive
compensation recommendations to the Compensation Committee regarding 2006 salaries, target bonus levels for
2006 performance (to be paid in 2007) and grants of stock options for executive officers,
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In 2007, Towers Perrin made specific recommendations to the Compensation Committee regarding
competitive ranges for executive compensation, including 2007 salaries, target bonus levels for 2007
performance (to be paid in 2008), bonus payments for 2006 performance (to be paid in 2007), and grants of stock
options in 2007, in each case, based on a Towers Perrin benchmarking survey. The component companies
comprising Tercica’s peer group approved by the Compensation Committee for Towers Perrin to benchmark
executive compensation data for 2007 were:

»  ACADIA Pharmaceuticals Inc.  + Dendreon Corporation *  Nektar Therapeutics
»  Advancis Pharmaceutical Corp.  + Dynavax Technologies * Neurocrine Biosciences, Inc.
+  Alkermes, Inc. Corporation » Nuvelo, Inc.
+  Anadys Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Exelixis, Inc. »  Onyx Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
Barrier Therapeutics, Inc. *  Genitope Corporation » PDL BioPharma, Inc.
«  BioMarin Pharmaceutical Inc. InterMune, Inc. +  Pharmion Corporation
+ Cell Genesys, Inc. *  Isis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. + Rigel Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
+ Connetics Corporation (now Kosan Biosciences »  Seattle Genetics, Inc.

Stiefel Laboratories, Inc.) ln‘corporated . +  Sirna Therapeutics, Inc.
*  CoTherix, Inc. »  Ligand Pharmaceuticals Inc. *  Sunesis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
+  Cubist Pharmaceuticals, Inc. * Maxygen, Inc. . Telik, Inc.
«  CV Therapeutics, Inc. »  Metabasis Therapeutics, Inc. . “Theravance, Inc.

. .. ¢« Myogen, Inc.
Cytokinetics, Inc. yog « ZymoGenetics, Inc.

Each of Watson Wyatt (for 2006) and Towers Perrin (for 2007) concluded that the specific levels of
executive compensation provided for past and set for future performance were generally competitive with the
levels offered by the comparator companies surveyed, although in individual cases, certain individuals were
above and certain individuals were below competitive norms. The Compensation Committee realizes that
benchmarking Tescica’s executive compensation program against compensation earned at comparable companies
may not always be appropriate as a stand-alone tool for setting compensation due to the aspects of Tercica’s
business and objectives that may be unique to Tercica; however, the Compensation Committee generally believes
that gathering this information is an important part of its decision-making process with respect to Tercica’s
executive compensation program.

In addition to compensation survey data and the analysis of its independent compensation and benefits
consulting experts, the Compensation Committee has historically taken into account input from other sources,
including input from other independent members of the Board of Directors and publicly available data relating 1o
the compensation practices and policies of other biotechnology and pharmaceutical companies.

Evaluation of Executive Performance; Incentive Compensation Plan

Executive officers are evaluated with respect to their achievement of their departmental and individual goals
and responsibilities, adherence to Tercica's core values and the achievement of the annual company-wide goals
set by the Board of Directors. Compensation for executive officers will continue to be based in large part on
Tercica’s ability to effectively develop and implement strategies and performance that enable Tercica to achieve
its company-wide goals and enhance stockholder value. In this regard, the Board of Ditectors adopted Tercica’s
Incentive Compensation Plan in February 2006. The Incentive Compensation Plan, which is administered by the
Compensation Committee, is designed to offer incentive compensation (i.e., bonuses and salary increases,
including for promotions) to eligible employees of Tercica, including executive officers, by rewarding the
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achievement of corporate and departmental goals and individual performance objectives. Tercica’s 2006
corporate goals approved by the Board of Directors for purposes of the Incentive Compensation Plan were to:

« achieve corporate objectives within the approved budget;
» achieve budgeted revenue;

» achieve a positive Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, opinion for Increlex™ from the
European Committee for Medicinal Products for Human Use for either the long-term treatment of
growth failure in children with severe Primary IGFD or with growth hormone gene deletion who have
developed neutralizing anttbodies to growth hormone;

« complete certain consultations with the FDA regarding further rhIGF-1 development, and, assuming the
consultations are positive, initiate such further rhIF-1 development;

» achieve certain patient enrollment goals;

+ complete the development and implementation of a new 1GF-1 diagnostic assay;
» develop and implement the strategy for Increlex™ European commercial rights;
« successfully litigate or settle patent infringement cases; and

» complete the technology evalvation for a development program for rhlGF-1 drug delivery, and,
assuming the assessments are positive, to initiate a feasibility and proof of concept program.

In evaluating Tercica’s performance of its 2006 corporate goals, the Compensation Committee weighted as
highly significant the (above) goals relating to the successful patent infringement litigation against Insmed
Incorporated and the Increlex™ European strategy, which resulted in the consummation of worldwide strategic
collaboration in endocrinology with Ipsen as well as the commercial in-licensing of Ipsen’s Somatuline®
Autogel® product for the United States and Canada.

Under the Incentive Compensation Plan, each Tercica employee has individual performance objectives (i.e.,
goals and responsibilities) that are determined at the beginning of each year, and officers are also ranked based
on the performance of their department. The Incentive Compensation Plan provides for the payment of cash
compensation 1o employees at various levels depending on the extent that corporate goals and individual
performance objectives are achieved. For 2006, 2007 and beyond, executive officer salary and cash bonus awards
were and wil] continue to be determined in accordance with the Incentive Compensation Plan.

Tercica’s 2006 Compensation Program

The three primary components of executive compensation in 2006 were salaries, performance bonuses and
grants of stock options.

Executive Officer Salaries

Salaries for executive officers are based principally on the Compensation Committee’s evaluation of
individual goals and departmental performance, Tercica’s assessment of the salaries paid by similar companies to
executive officers holding equivalent positions, and, with respect 1o executive officers other than Dr. Scarlett,
recommendations made by the Human Resources group and Dr. Scarlett. The Compensation Committee also
took into account the achievement of corporate goals approved by the Board of Directors under the Incentive
Compensation Plan for the prior year. In setting 2006 salaries, the Compensation Committee neither based its
considerations on any single factor nor did it specifically assign relative weights to factors, but rather it
considered a mix of factors and evaluated individual performance against that mix both in absolute terms and in
relation to other company executives.
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Executive Officer Performance Bonuses

Executive officer performance bonuses for 2006 performance were determined in accordance with the
criteria set forth under the Incentive Compensation Plan, and were awarded in 2007. As set forth under the
Incentive Compensation Plan, the total size of the potential company-wide bonus pool is determined each year by
the Compensation Commitiee. The extent to which Tercica meets, exceeds or falls short of the corporate goals
approved by the Board of Directors for each year, as determined by the Compensation Committee, determines
the amount of funds available in the company-wide bonus pool for that year. In 2007, the Compensation
Committee determnined that in 2006, Tercica had met the goals approved by the Board of Directors for purposes
of the Incentive Compensation Plan, with the exception of achieving the budgeted revenue and receiving a
positive Increlex™ MAA opinion, and that Tercica had far exceeded the goal of gaining a European commercial
partner for Increlex through the consummation of a worldwide strategic collaboration in endocrinclogy with
Ipsen as well as the commercial in-licensing of Ipsen’s Somatuline® Autogel® product for the United States and
Canada.

In 2007, the Compensation Committee allocated $1,940,433 to a Tercica-wide bonus pool to reward
employees (including all executive officers) for Tercica’s 2006 overall performance. The bonus pool is allocated
among eligible employees based on recommendations from management and, with respect to executive officers,
approval by the Compensation Committee, and with respect to Dr. Scarlett, by the Board of Directors. With
respect to cash bonuses, each executive officer is assigned a target cash bonus based on a percentage of base
salary, and a combination of Tercica’s performance with respect to its corporate goals and the individual’s
performance with respect to his or her department’s and personal performance objectives. For 2006, the target
bonus level for Dr. Scarlett was 60% of base salary eamed during 2006; 35% of base salary earned during 2006
for each of Mr. Bansal, Tercica’s Chief Financial Officer, and Mr. Rosenfield, Tercica’s Executive Vice
President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel (and head of Human Resources); and 30% of base salary earned
during 2006 for each of Dr. Grethlein, Tercica’s Senior Vice President, Pharmaceutical Operations, and Dr. von
Stein, Tercica’s Chief Medical Officer and Senior Vice President of Clinical and Regulatory Affairs.

The Compensation Committee retains the discretion to increase, reduce or eliminate the bonus award that
otherwise might be payable to any individual based on actual performance as compared to the individual’s
pre-established target bonus, and to pay bonuses even if certain corporate goals or individual performance
objectives are not met. Actual benus awards for 2006 were based on each executive officer’s achievement of
their departmental and individual performance objectives, demonstration of Tercica’s core values, and an
assessment of the executive's contribution to the achievement of Tercica's 2006 corporate goals. Executive
officer bonuses for 2006 were generally awarded close to or in certain cases, above, the target levels because of
Tercica’s and each executive officer’s 2006 performance of corporate, departmental and individual performance
goals.

The Compensation Committee has not determined whether it would attempt to recover bonuses from
Tercica’s executive officers if the performance objectives that led to a bonus determination were to be restated,
or found not to have been met to the extent originally believed by the Compensation Committee.

Executive Officer Long-Term Incentive Compensation

Long-term incentive awards, such as stock options, are designed to ensure that incentive compensation is
linked to the long-term performance of Tercica common stock. Tercica has provided long-term compensation to
certain members of senior management under Tercica’s 2004 Stock Pian. The 2004 Stock Plan provides Tercica
with the ability to periodically reward key employees, including executive officers, with options to purchase
shares of Tercica common stock as well as other stock purchase rights. The size of the option grant is generally
intended to reflect the executive officer’s position with Tercica and his or her individual job performance and
contributions to Tercica’s annual goals, An executive officer’s equity ownership position in Tercica is also
considered in determining the size of the option grant. The value of stock options is tied to the future
performance of Tercica common stock and provides value to the recipient only when the price of Tercica
common stock increases above the option grant price. Through option grants and other stock awards, executives
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receive significant equity incentives to build long-term stockholder value. Tercica does not time the granting of
its stock option awards with any favorable or unfavorable news released by Tercica and the proximity of the
grant of any awards to an eamnings announcement or other market events is coincidental. Additional long-term
equity incentives are provided through Tercica’s 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan in which all eligible
employees, including eligible executive officers of Tercica, may purchase stock of Tercica, subject to specified
limits, at 85% of fair market value. During 2006, Mr. Bansal and Dr. Grethlein purchased 1,000 shares and 1,782
shares, respectively, at 85% of fair market value on the date of purchase under the 2004 Employee Stock
Purchase Plan. Dr. Scarlett, Mr. Rosenfield and Dr. von Stein have not historically participated in the 2004
Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

Severance and Change of Control Benefits

Under their employment agreements, Tercica’s executive officers are entitled to certain severance and
change of control benefits, the terms of which are described in detail below under “Employment Agreements and
Arrangements—Executive Employment Agreements.” With respect to change of control benefits, Tercica
provides severance compensation if an executive officer is terminated in connection with a change of control
transaction, These change of control benefits that are structured on a “double-trigger” basis, meaning that before
an executive officer can receive severance compensation: (1) a change of centrol must occur and (2) within 12
months of such change of control, the executive officer’s employment must be terminated for good reason or
without cause. These provisions were included to motivate Tercica’s executive officers to act in the best interests
of Tercica’s stockholders by removing the distraction of post-change of contro} uncertainties faced by the
executive officers with regard to their continued employment and compensation. Tercica believes that double-
trigger change of control severance compensation is attractive to maintain continuity and retention of key
management personnel and is consistent with Tercica’s compensation philosophy. Tercica also believes that the
other severance benefits are appropriate, particularly with respect to a termination by Tercica without cause since
in that scenario, Tercica and the executive officer have a mutually-agreed-upon severance package that is in
place prior to any termination event which provides Tercica with more flexibility to make a change in executive
management if such a change is in the stockholders’ best interests.

Indemnification Agreements; D&O Liability Insurance

Tercica has entered and expects to continue to enter into agreements to indemnify its directors, executive
officers and other employees as determined by the Board of Directors. These agreements provide for
indemnification for related expenses including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred
by any of these individuals in any action or proceeding. Tercica believes that indemnification agreements are
necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and officers. Tercica also maintain directors’® and
officers’ liability insurance.

Other Benefits

Tercica maintains a 401(k) plan in which substantially all of its employees are entitled to participate.
Employees contribute their own funds, as salary deductions, on a pre-tax basis. Contributions may be made up to
plan limits, subject to government limitations. The 401(k) plan does not currently allow for matching
contributions by Tercica. Tercica also provides medical, dental and life insurance benefits to all full-time
employees, including Tercica’s executive officers.

2006 and 2007 Compensation Decisions

Tercica’s key compensation actions for Dr. Scarlett and the other named executive officers during 2006 and
2007 are summarized as follows:

John A. Scarlett, M.D.—President and Chief Executive Officer

The Compensation Committee recommended Dr. Scarlett’s 2006 salary, bonus and grants of stock options
to the Board of Directors. In setting Dr. Scarlett’s base salary for 2006, the Compensation Committee and Board
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of Directors evaluated the same factors for establishing the salary levels of the executive officers generally, as
well as Tercica’s 2005 financial and operating performance, and the performance of Tercica common stock. In
addition, the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors considered the status of Dr. Scarlett as Tercica’s
most senior officer, a review of the compensation for chief executive officers of comparable companies, and the
important role he performed in achieving overall corporate goals. No particular weighting was assigned to any
factor, although the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors weighted Tercica’s successful filing of
a new drug application and resultant FDA marketing approval for Increlex™ more heavily in setting his salary for
2006, and weighted the favorable outcome in Tercica’s patent infringement litigation against Insmed
Incorporated and the consurnmation of Tercica’s worldwide strategic collaboration in endocrinology with Ipsen
more heavily in setting his bonus and salary for 2007.

For fiscal 2006, Dr. Scarlett’s base salary was set at $400,000, or an approximately 18% increase from his
prior year's base salary of $340,000. Dr. Scarlett’s base salary for fiscal 2007 was set at $440,000, or an
approximately 10% increase from his 2006 base salary. Dr. Scarlett was also awarded a cash bonus award under
Tercica's Incentive Compensation Plan of $225,000 (which was determined and paid in 2007), or approximately
94% of his target bonus. Dr. Scarlett’s bonus award recommended by the Compensation Committee for 2006
performance and set by the Board of Directors was based primarily on Tercica’s performance of its 2006
corporate goals, including the favorable outcome in Tercica's patent infringement litigation against Insmed
Incorporated and the consummation of Tercica's worldwide strategic collaboration in endocrinology with Ipsen.
The Board of Directors believed that notwithstanding the highly-significant Ipsen transaction, Dr. Scarlett should
not be awarded 100% of his target bonus because Tercica had not achieved its 2006 corporate goals regarding
budgeted revenue and receiving a positive Increlex™ MAA opinion.

In 2006, Dr. Scarlett was awarded a stock option to purchase 250,000 shares of Tercica common stock at an
exercise price of $7.37 per share, the fair market value of Tercica common stock on the date of grant. As with all
grants of stock options to executive officers, 1/4% of the shares subject to the stock option vest on the first
anniversary of the grant date, and 1/48% of the shares subject to the stock option vest monthly thereafter. In 2007,
Dr. Scarlett was awarded a stock option to purchase 250,000 shares of Tercica common stock at an exercise price
of $5.56 per share, the fair market value of Tercica common stock on the date of grant. As was the case for all
named executive officers, the 2007 option grant was awarded both as a reward for 2006 individual and corporate
performance and as an incentive for future performance.

The Compensation Committee also reviewed perquisites and other compensation paid to Dr. Scarlett for
2006, which included $22,000 in housing costs reimbursed by Tercica and $16,367 in personal travel expenses
reimbursed by Tercica and found these amounts to be reasonable. Dr. Scarlett does not receive separate
compensation for serving as a member of the Board of Directors.

Ajay Bansal—Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance

For fiscal 2006, Mr. Bansal’s base salary was set at $300,000. Mr. Bansal joined Tercica effective
March 28, 2006 and his compensation for 2006 was largely based on the terms of his employment letter
agreement, which is described under “Employment Agreements and Arrangements—Executive Employment
Agreements.” In connection with joining Tercica, Tercica paid Mr. Bansal a $50,000 sign-on bonus that must be
repaid to Tercica, on a pro rata basis, if Mr. Bansal voluntarily resigns or is terminated for cause within 18
months of his employment start date. Mr. Bansal's base salary for fiscal 2007 was set at $325,000, or an
approximately 8% increase from his 2006 base salary. Mr. Bansal was also awarded a cash bonus award under
Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan of $100,000 {which was determined and paid in 2007), or approximately
125% of his target bonus. Mr. Bansal’s bonus award reflects his key contributions and exemplary performance in
consummating Tercica’s worldwide strategic collaboration in endocrinology with Ipsen. In 2006, Mr. Bansal was
awarded a stock option to purchase 225,000 shares of Tercica common stock at an exercise price of $6.68 per
share, the fair market value of Tercica common stock on the date of grant, pursuant to the terms of his
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employment letter agreement with Tercica. In 2007, Mr. Bansal was awarded a stock option to purchase 85,000
shares of Tercica common stock at an exercise price of $5.78 per share, the fair market value of Tercica common
stock on the date of grant.

Stephen N. Rosenfieldl—Executive Vice President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary

For fiscal 2006, Mr. Rosenfield’s base salary was set at $285,000, or an approximaltely 8% increase from his
prior year's base salary of $265,000. Mr. Rosenfield’s base salary for fiscal 2007 was set at $325,000, or an
approximately 14% increase from his 2006 base salary. Mr. Rosenfield was also awarded a cash bonus award
under Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan of $150,000 (which was determined and paid in 2007), or
approximately 150% of his target bonus. Mr. Rosenfield’s bonus award reflects his key contributions and
exemplary performance in consummating Tercica’s worldwide strategic collaboration in endocrinology with
Ipsen, as well as his key role as Tercica’s General Counsel in obtaining a favorable outcome in Tercica’s patent
infringement litigation against Insmed Incorporated. In 2006, Mr. Rosenfield was awarded a stock option to
purchase 83,333 shares of Tercica common stock at an exercise price of $7.37 per share, the fair market value of
Tercica common stock on the date of grant. In 2007, Mr. Rosenfield was awarded a stock option to purchase
120,000 shares of Tercica common stock at an exercise price of $5.78 per share, the fair market value of Tercica
common stock on the date of grant.

Andrew [J. Grethlein, Pl.D.—Senior Vice President, Pharmaceutical Operations

For fiscal 2006, Dr. Grethlein’s base salary was set at $275,000, or an approximately 10% increase from his
prior year's base salary of $250,000. Dr. Grethlein's base salary for fiscal 2007 was set at $295,000, or an
approximately 7% increase from his 2006 base salary. Dr. Grethlein was also awarded a cash bonus award under
Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan of $80,000 (which was determined and paid in 2007), or approximately
97% of his target bonus. In 2006, Dr. Grethlein was awarded a stock option to purchase 66,666 shares of Tercica
common stock at an exercise price of $7.37 per share, the fair market value of Tercica common stock on the date
of grant. In 2007, Dr. Grethlein was awarded a stock option to purchase 85,000 shares of Tercica common stock
at an exercise price of $5.78 per share, the fair market value of Tercica common stock on the date of grant,

Thorsten von Stein, M.D., Ph.D.—Chief Medical Officer and Senior Vice President of Clinical and
Regulatory Affairs

For fiscal 2006, Dr. von Stein’s base salary was set at $290,000, or an approximately 14% increase from his
prior year's base salary of $255,000. Dr. von Stein’s base salary for fiscal 2007 was set at $325,000, or an
approximately 12% increase from his 2006 base salary. Dr. von Stein was also awarded a cash bonus award
under Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan of $80,000 (which was determined and paid in 2007), or
approximately 92% of his target bonus. In 2006, Dr. von Stein was awarded a stock option to purchase 110,000
shares of Tercica common stock at an exercise price of $7.37 per share, the fair market value of Tercica common
stock on the date of grant. In 2007, Dr. von Stein was awarded a stock option to purchase 85,000 shares of
Tercica common stock at an exercise price of $5.78 per share, the fair market value of Tercica common stock on
the date of grant,

Accounting and Tax Considerations

Effective January 1, 2006, Tercica adopted the fair value provisions of Financial Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 123(R) (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment,” or SFAS 123R. Under SFAS 123R,
Tercica is required to estimate and record an expense for each award of equity compensation (including stock
options) over the vesting period of the award. The Compensation Committee has determined to retain for the
foreseeable future its stock option program as the sole component of its long-term compensation program, and,
therefore, to record this expense on an ongoing basis according to SFAS 123R. The Compensation Commitiee
has considered, and may in the future consider, the grant of restricted stock to Tercica’s executive officers in lieu
of stock option grants in light of the accounting impact of SFAS 123R with respect to stock option grants and
other considerations.
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Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 limits Tercica’s deduction for federal income tax
purposes to not more than $1 million of compensation paid to certain executive officers in a calendar year.
Compensation above $1 million may be deducted if it is “performance-based compensation.” The Compensation
Committee has not yet established a policy for determining which forms of incentive compensation awarded to
Tercica’s executive officers shall be designed to qualify as “performance-based compensation.” To maintain
flexibility in compensating its executive officers in a manner designed to promote Tercica’s objectives, the
Compensation Commiitee has not adopted a policy that requires all compensation to be deductible. However, the
Compensation Committee intends to evaluate the effects of the compensation limits of Section 162(tn) on any
compensation it proposes to grant, and the Compensation Committee intends to provide future compensation in a
manner consistent with Tercica’s best interests and those of its stockhelders.

Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth all of the compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to Tercica's principal
executive officer, principal financial officer and the three other highest paid executive officers for the year ended
December 31, 2006. The officers listed in the table below are referred to in this proxy statement as the “named
executive officers.” ‘

2006 SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

Non-Equity
Option Incentive Plan All Other
Salary Bonus Awards  Compensation Compensation Total

Name and Principal Position Year $) $) ($¥1) {§}2) ($) %)
John A. Scarlett, M.D. ....... 2006 400,000 —_— 713,971(3) 225,000 39,052(4) 1,378,023
President and Chief
Executive Officer
Ajay Bansal(5) ............. 2006 229,125 50,000(6) 245,506 100,000 690(7) 625,321

Chtef Financial Officer and
Senior Vice President of
Finance

Stephen N. Rosenfield ....... 2006 285,000 — 420,228 150,000 785(8) 856,013
Executive Vice President of
Legal Affairs, General
Counsel and Secretary

Andrew J. Grethlein, Ph.D. ... 2006 275,000 — 443,817 80,000 735(9) 799,552
Senior Vice President,
Pharmaceutical Operations

Thorsten von Stein, M.D.,
PhD..............cc... .. 2006 290,000 — 273,755 80,000 735(9) 644,490
Chief Medical Officer and
Senior Vice President of
Clinical and Regulatory
Affairs

(1) The dollar amounts in this column represent the compensation cost for the year ended December 31, 2006 of
stock option awards granted in and prior to 2006, These amounts have been calculated in accordance with
FASB Statement No. 123 (revised), “Share-Based Payment,” or SFAS No. 123R, using the Black-Scholes
model and the assumptions outlined in note 10 of Tercica’s financial statements included in its Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the SEC on March 9, 2007,
Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of estimated forfeitures related to service-
based vesting conditions.

(2) See footnote (1) to the 2006 Grants of Plan-Based Awards Table below.
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(3) A portion of the amount shown reflects the compensation cost for the year ended December 31, 2006 of
75,506 shares of common stock that were issued upon the early exercise of stock options granted to
Dr. Scarlett and that vested during the year ended December 31, 2006, as calculated in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R, and using a Black-Scholes model. See footnote (1) above for further information on the
assumptions made by Tercica in determining the compensation cost of Tercica’s equity awards.

(4) Consists of $22,000 in housing costs reimbursed by Tercica, $16,367 in personal travel expenses reimbursed
by Tercica, $250 in airline club membership dues reimbursed by Tercica, and $435 in life insurance
premiums paid by Tercica.

(5) Mr. Bansa! joined Tercica as its Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance effective
March 28, 2006,

(6) Represents a sign-on bonus that must be repaid to Tercica, on a pro rata basis, if Mr. Bansal voluntarily
resigns or is terminated for cause, as cause is defined in Mr. Bansal’s employment letter agreement with
Tercica, within 18 months of his employment start date.

(7) Consists of $400 in airline club membership dues reimbursed by Tercica and $290 in life insurance
premiums paid by Tercica.

(8) Consists of $350 in airline club membership dues reimbursed by Tercica and $435 in life insurance
premiums paid by Tercica.

(9) Consists of $300 in airline club membership dues reimbursed by Tercica and $435 in life insurance
premiums paid by Tercica.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth certain information regarding grants of plan-based awards to the named
executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2006.

2006 GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS TABLE

. All Other
Estimated Possible
Opton Awards:
Payouls l{:;g" Non- pN:;::bg‘; of ? Exercise or Grant
tncentve Pl Awards  Sertles  Dascfvice Dol Fal
Grant Approval Target Options Awards Option
Name Date Date (K1) #i2) ($/Sh) Awards($)(3)
John A. Scarlett, M.D. ... — — 240,000 —_ — —
03/10/06  03/10/06 — 250,000 1.37 1,318,300
Ajay Bansal ........... — — 80,194 — — —_
03/28/06 02/22/06 — 225,000 6.68 1,075,388
Stephen N. Rosenfield . .. — — 99,750 — — —
03/10/06 03/10/06 — 83,333 1.37 439,432
Andrew ], Grethlein,
PhD................ — — 82,500 — — —
03/10/06  03/10/06 — 66,666 71.37 351,543
Thorsten von Stein, M.D.,
PhD................ — — 87,000 — — —
03/10/06 03/10/06 — 110,000 7.37 580,052

(1) This column sets forth the target amount of each named executive officer’s annual cash bonus award for the
year ended December 31, 2006 under Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan. The actual cash bonus award
earned for the year ended December 31, 2006 for each named executive officer is set forth in the 2006

44




Summary Compensation Table above, As such, the amounts set forth in this column do not represent
additional compensation earned by the named executive officers for the year ended December 31, 2006. For
more information regarding Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan and the cash bonus awards granted to
the named executive officers for the year ended December 31, 2006, please see “—Compensation
Discussion and Analysis—Executive Officer Performance Bonuses.”

(2) Stock options were granted pursuant 10 Tercica's 2004 Stock Plan. 1/4% of the shares subject to the stock
option vest on the first anniversary of the grant date, and 1/48" of the shares subject to the stock option vest
monthly thereafter. Vesting is contingent upon continued service. For a description of the terms of stock
options granted under the 2004 Stock Plan, please see “—Employment Agreements and Arrangements—
Stock Option Awards.”

(3) Represents the grant date fair value of such option award as determined in accordance with SFAS 123R.
These amounts have been calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 123R using the Black Scholes model and
the assumptions outlined in note 10 of Tercica’s financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the SEC on March 9, 2007.

Employment Agreements and Arrangements
Executive Employment Agreements
John A. Scarlett, M.D.

In February 2002, Tercica entered into an employment agreement that was amended in May 2002 and
February 2005, and a restricted common stock purchase agreement for the purchase of 328,158 shares of
common stock, with John A. Scarlett, M.D., Tercica’s President and Chief Executive Officer. Pursuant to the
terms of the agreement, Dr. Scarlett’s base salary was initially set at $280,000, which is reviewed annually.
Dr. Scarlett is also eligible to participate in any bonus program applicable to Tercica’s executive officers,
including pursuant to Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan. The agreement also provides for the provision of
standard employee benefits as well as an up to $2,000 monthly housing allowance and the reimbursement of up
to $20,000 per year in personal travel expenses in connection with Dr. Scarlett’s weekly commute between the
San Francisco Bay Area and Austin, Texas.

Pursuant to the agreement and a related restricted stock purchase agreement, Dr. Scarlett purchased 328,158
shares of common stock at a price of $0.00625 per share. Of the 328,158 shares of common stock purchased in
February 2002, or the “founder shares,” 186,904 shares were initially subject to vesting and a right of repurchase
in favor of Tercica. With respect to these shares, Tercica’s right of repurchase lapsed as to 46,726 of these shares
in February 2003, and lapsed at rates between 3,893 and 3,895 shares each month thereafter until Tercica’s right
of repurchase lapsed in full in January 2006. In addition, pursuant to agreement (as amended), in June 2002,
Dr. Scarlett was granted an option to purchase 514,852 shares of Tercica common stock, representing 5.078% of
the total outstanding equity shares calculated on a fully diluted basis after taking into account the issuance of
Tercica’s Series A preferred stock on the date of grant. Dr. Scarlett early exercised these shares pursuant to a
restricted stock purchase agreement in December 2002. With respect to the shares purchased in December 2002,
Tercica’s right of repurchase lapsed as to 1/4% of the shares in May 2003, and lapsed at the rate of 1/48% of the
shares each month thereafter until Tercica’s right of repurchase lapsed in full in May 2006.

In the event that Dr. Scarlett is terminated without cause or terminates his own employment for good reason
at any time not within 12 months following a change of control, as these terms are defined in his employment
agreement, Dr. Scarlett will, subject to certain conditions, be entitled to receive certain severance benefits,
including the following:

* at Dr. Scarlett’s election, Dr. Scarlett will either (i) continue to receive, on Tercica’s standard payroll
dates, his base salary in effect as of his termination date for a period of 12 months following his
termination date, or {ii) receive a lump sum payment equal to 12 months of his base salary in effect as of
his termination date;
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* the unvested portion of all of Dr. Scarlett’s equity awards will be subject to accelerated vesting such that
the number of shares that would have vested had Dr. Scarlett’s employment continued for 12 months
following his employment termination date will immediately vest as of his employment termination date;

+ Tercica’s right of repurchase will lapse in full as to all founder shares (Dr. Scarlett’s founder shares had
already vested in full as of January 2006, however); and

» if Dr. Scarlett timely elects continuation of his Tercica-provided group health insurance coverage
pursuant to the Consclidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1985, or COBRA, then Tercica will
reimburse Dr. Scarlett for the cost of his COBRA premiums to continue his health insurance coverage
for him and his dependents for a period of 12 months following his employment termination date.

In the event that Dr. Scarlett is terminated without cause or terminates his own employment for good reason
within 12 months following a change of control, Dr. Scarlett will, subject to certain conditions, be entitled to
receive certain severance benefits, including the following:

*  Dr. Scarlett will continue to receive, on Tercica’s standard payroll dates, his base salary in effect as of
his termination date for a period of 24 months following his termination date (subject to the condition
that Dr. Scarlett not compete with or solicit employees of Tercica, or otherwise interfere with Tercica’s
employment relationships);

* the unvested portion of all of Dr. Scarleti’s equity awards will be subject to accelerated vesting such that
all of the unvested shares will immediately vest in full as of his employment termination date; and

» if Dr. Scarlett timely elects continuation of his Tercica-provided group health insurance coverage
pursuant to COBRA, then Tercica will reimburse Dr. Scarlett for the cost of his COBRA premiums to
continue his health insurance coverage for him and his dependents for a period of 18 months following
his termination date.

If the total amount of payments and benefits to be provided to Dr. Scarlett under his employment agreement
in connection with a change of control would cause Dr. Scarlett to incur “golden parachute” excise tax liability,
then the payments and benefits will be reduced to the extent necessary to leave him in a better after-tax position
than if no such reduction had occurred. The agreement does not provide for any tax “gross-up” payments to
Dr. Scarlett. All of the severance benefits provided for in Dr. Scarlett’s agreement are subject to Dr. Scarlett
entering into a final separation agreement containing Tercica's standard form of release of claims in favor of
Tercica and other standard provisions, including those relating to non-disparagement and confidentiality.

Ajay Bansal

In February 2006, Tercica entered into an employment letter agreement with Ajay Bansal, Tercica’s Chief
Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Mr. Bansal’s
base salary was initially set at $300,000, which is reviewed annually. The agreement also provides that
Mr. Bansal is eligible for an annual bonus based on company and individual performance of up to 35% of
Mr. Bansal’s annual base salary. The agreement provides for the provision of standard employee benefits as well
as a sign-on bonus of $50,000 that must be repaid to Tercica, on a pro rata basis, if Mr. Bansal voluntarily resigns
or is terminated for cause, as cause is defined in his employment agreement, within 18 months of his employment
start date. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Bansal was granted an option to purchase 225,000 shares of Tercica
common stock, which vests as to 1/4% of the shares upon the one-year anniversary date of the date of grant and
continues to vest at a rate of 1/48t of the shares on a monthly basis thereafter.

In the event that Mr. Bansal is terminated without cause or terminates his own employment for good reason
within 12 months following a change of control, as these terms are defined in his employment agreement,
Mr. Bansal will, subject to his entering into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to
receive a lump sum severance payment equal to one year of his base salary in effect as of his termination date

46




and the vesting of all of his stock options will be accelerated in full. In the event that Mr. Bansal is terminated
without cause at any time not within 12 months of a change of control, Mr. Bansal will, subject 1o his entering
into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to receive a lump sum severance payment
equal to one year of his base salary in effect as of his termination date.

Stephen N. Rosenfield

In June 2004, Tercica entered into an employment letter agreement, that was amended in February 2005,
with Stephen N. Rosenfield, Tercica’s Executive Vice President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary.
Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Mr. Rosenfield’s base salary was initially set at $260,000, which is
reviewed annually. Mr. Rosenfield is also eligible to participate in any bonus program applicable to Tercica’s
executive officers, including pursuant to Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan. The agreement also provides
for the provision of standard employee benefits. Pursuant to the agreement, Mr. Rosenfield was granted an option
to purchase 180,000 shares of Tercica common stock, which vested as to 1/4% of the shares upon the one-year
anniversary date of the date of grant and continues to vest at a rate of 1/48% of the shares on a monthly basis
thereafter.

In the event that Mr. Rosenfield is terminated without cause or terminates his own employment for good
reason within 12 months following a change of control, as these terms are defined in his employment agreement,
Mr. Rosenfield will, subject to his entering into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to
receive a lump sum severance payment equal to one year of his base salary in effect as of his termination date
and the vesting of all of his stock options will be accelerated in full. In the event that Mr. Rosenfield is
terminated without cause at any time not within 12 months of a change of control, Mr, Rosenfield will, subject to
his entering into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to receive a lump sum severance
payment equal to six months of his base salary in effect as of his termination date. These severance benefits are
subject to Mr. Rosenfield entering into a final separation agreement containing Tercica’s standard form of release
of claims in favor of Tercica and other standard provisions, including those relating to non-solicitation of Tercica
employees, non-disparagement and confidentiality. The separation agreement would also provide for COBRA
payments by Tercica that extend Mr. Rosenfield’s and his dependents’ existing health, vision and dental
insurance for a term equal to the number of months of severance base salary (i.e., either six months or one year),
or until Mr. Rosenfield becomes eligible to receive these benefits from a subsequent employer.

Andrew Grethlein, Ph.D.

In March 2003, Tercica entered into an employment letter agreement with Andrew Grethlein, Tercica’s
Senior Vice President, Pharmaceutical Operations. Pursuant to the terms of the agreement, Dr. Grethlein’s base
salary was initially set at $200,000, which is reviewed annually. Dr. Grethlein is also eligible to participate in any
bonus program applicable to Tercica's executive officers, including pursuant to Tercica’s Incentive
Compensation Plan. The agreement also provides for the provision of standard employee benefits. Pursuant to the
agreement, Dr. Grethlein was granted an option to purchase 87,500 shares of Tercica common stock, which
vested as to 1/4% of the shares upon the one-year anniversary date of the date of grant and continues to vest at a
rate of 1/48% of the shares on a monthly basis thereafter.

In the event that Dr. Grethlein is terminated without cause or terminates his own employment for good
reason within 12 months following a change of control, as these terms are defined in his employment agreement,
Dr. Grethlein will, subject to his entering into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to
receive a lump sum severance payment equal to six months of his base salary in effect as of his termination date
and the vesting of his stock options will be accelerated such that 50% of his unvested stock option shares will
immediately vest in full as of his employment termination date. In the event that Dr. Grethlein is terminated
without cause at any time not within 12 months of a change of control, Dr. Grethlein will, subject to his entering
into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to receive a lump sum severance payment
equal to three months of his base salary in effect as of his termination date.
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Thorsten von Stein, M.D., Ph.D.

In December 2004, Tercica entered into an employment agreement with Thorsten vean Stein, M.D,, Ph.D.,
Tercica’s Chief Medical Officer and Senior Vice President, Clinical and Regulatory Affairs. Pursuant to the
terms of the agreement, Dr. von Stein’s base salary was initially set at $255,000, which is reviewed annually. The
agreement also provides that Dr. von Stein is eligible for an annual bonus based on company and individual
performance of up to 30% of Dr. von Stein’s annual base salary. The agreement provides for the provision of
standard employee benefits. Pursuant to the agreement, Dr. von Stein was granted an option to purchase 110,000
shares of Tercica common stock, which vested as to 1/4% of the shares upon the one-year anniversary date of the
date of grant and continues to vest at a rate of 1/48% of the shares on a monthly basis thereafter.

In the event that Dr. von Stein is terminated without cause or terminates his own employment for good
reason within 12 months following a change of control, as these terms are defined in his employment agreement,
Dr. von Stein will, subject to his entering into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to
receive a lump sum severance payment equal to six months of his base salary in effect as of his termination date
and the vesting of his stock options will be accelerated such that 50% of his unvested stock option shares will
immediately vest in full as of his employment termination date. In the event that Dr. Grethlein is terminated
without cause at any time not within 12 months of a change of control, Dr. Grethlein will, subject to his entering
into of an effective release of claims in favor of Tercica, be entitled to receive a lump sum severance payment
equal 10 six months of his base salary in effect as of his termination date.

Stock Option Awards

Tercica currently grants stock options to its executive officers through the 2004 Stock Plan. The 2004 Stock
Plan was established to provide Tercica’s employees with an opportunity to participate, along with Tercica’s
other stockholders, in Tercica’s long-term performance. The following is a brief description of certain of the
permissible terms of options under the 2004 Stock Plan:

Exercise Price. The exercise price of an incentive stock option may not be less than 100% of the fair market
value of the stock subject to the option on the date of grant. The exercise price of a nonstatutory stock option may
not be less than 100% of the fair market value of the stock on the date of grant if the option is intended to qualify
as “performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenve Code, All
stock options granted to executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2006 have exercise prices equal
to 100% of the fair market value of the stock subject to the option on the date of grant.

Consideration. The exercise price of options granted under the 2004 Stock Plan must be paid, to the extent
permitted by applicable law and at the discretion of the Board of Directors, (i) by cash or check, (ii) promissory
note, (iii) pursuant to a cashless exercise program implemented by Tercica, {(iv} by delivery of other common
stock of Tercica, (v) pursuant to a reduction in the amount of any liability to the optionee, including any liability
attributable to the optionee’s participation in any Tercica-sponsored deferred compensation program or
arrangement, or {vi) in any other form of legal consideration acceptable to the Board of Directors.

Vesting. Options granted under the 2004 Stock Plan may become exercisable in cumulative increments, or
“vest,” as determined by the Board of Directors. Vesting typically will occur during the optionholder’s continued
service with Tercica, whether such service is performed in the capacity of an employee, director or consultant
and regardless of any change in the capacity of the service performed. Shares covered by different options
granted under the 2004 Stock Plan may be subject to different vesting terms. In addition, options granted to
executive officers under the 2004 Stock Plan may be exercised prior to vesting, or early exercised, subject to
repurchase rights in favor of Tercica that expire over the vesting period. Shares subject to stock options granted
to executive officers during the year ended December 31, 2006 vest as to 1/4™" of the shares on the one-year
anniversary of the date of grant and 1/48% of the shares on a monthly basis thereafter, subject to continued
service. The Board has the authority to accelerate the time during which an option may vest or be exercised.
Under the 2004 Stock Plan, in the event of “change in control,” the successor corporation may assume or
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substitute an equivalent award for each outstanding option. If there is no assumption or substitution of
outstanding options, the administrator will provide notice to the recipient that he or she has the right to exercise
the option as to all of the shares subject to the award, including shares which would not otherwise be exercisable,
for a period of 15 days from the date of the notice. The award will terminate upon the expiration of the 15-day
period. Further, as described above, Tercica’s executive officers are parties to agreements with Tercica that
provide for vesting acceleration in connection with certain termination events.

Tax Withholding. To the extent provided by the terms of a stock option agreement, a participant may satisfy
any federal, state or local tax withholding obligation relating to the exercise of the option by a cash payment
upon exercise, by authorizing Tercica to withhold a portion of the stock otherwise issuable to the participant or
by delivering already-owned common stock of Tercica.

Term. The term of options granted under the 2004 Stock Plan is generally ten years, except that in certain
cases, the maximum term is five years. All stock options granted to executive officers during the year ended
December 31, 2006 have ten-year terms.

Termination of Service. After termination of one of Tercica’s executive officers, he or she may exercise his
or her option for the period of time stated in the option agreement. Generally, if termination is due to death or
disability, the option will remain exercisable for 12 menths. In all other cases, the opticn will generally remain
exercisable for three months. However, an option may never be exercised later than the expiration of its term.

Restrictions on Transfer. The 2004 Stock Plan generally does not allow for the transfer of awards and only
the recipient of an award may exercise an award during his or her lifetime.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Additional long-term equity incentives are provided through Tercica’s 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan
in which all eligible employees, including eligible executive officers of Tercica, may purchase stock of Tercica,
subject to specified limits, at 85% of fair market value. Tercica’s 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan is
intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code and provides for consecutive, overlapping
24-month offering periods. Each offering period includes four six-month purchase periods. The offering periods
generally start on the first trading day on or after May 15 and November 15 of each year. Under the 2004
Employee Stock Purchase Plan, participants, including eligible executive officers, may purchase common stock
through payroll deductions of up to 10% of their eligible compensation and may purchase a maximum of up to
1,000 shares during a six-month purchase period. Amounts deducted and accumulated by the participant are used
to purchase shares of Tercica common stock at the end of each six-month purchase period. The purchase price is
85% of the lower of the fair market value of Tercica common stock at the beginning of an offering period or after
a purchase period end. If the fair market value at the end of a purchase period is less than the fair market value at
the beginning of the offering period, participants will be withdrawn from the current offering period following
their purchase of shares on the purchase date and will be automatically re-enrolled in a new offering period.
Participants may end their participation at any time during an offering peried, and will be paid their payroll
deductions to date. Participation ends automatically upon termination of employment with Tercica.

Annual Cash Bonus Awards

Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan provides for an annual cash bonus awards to reward executive
officers and other employees for the achievement of corporate goals and individual performance objectives. For
more information regarding Tercica’s Incentive Compensation Plan, please see “—Compensation Discussion and
Analysis—Evaluation of Executive Performance; Incentive Compensation Plan.”

Other Arrangements

Executive officers are eligible to participate in all of Tercica’s employee benefit plans, such as medical,
dental and life insurance and Tercica’s 401(k) plan, in each case generally on the same basis as other employees.
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Outstanding Equity Awards at December 31, 2006

The following table sets forth certain information regarding stock options granted to the named executive

officers that were outstanding as of December 31, 2006.

2006 OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END TABLE

Option Awards(1) Stock Awards(2)
Number of Number of
S iti S it
Underlying  Underlying o e
Unexercised  Unexercised  option Units of Stock  Units of Stock
ptions ptions Exercise Option That Have That Have
# # Price Expiration Not Vested Not Vested
Exercisable  Unexercisable % Date #) %)
John A, Scarlett, M.D. .......... 150,000(3) — 832  03/15/15 — —
250,000(4) — 7.37  03/10/16 — —
— — — — 14,584 72,920
AjayBansal ......... ... .. ... 225,000(5) — 6.68  (03/28/16 — —
Stephen N. Rosenfield .......... 180,000(6) — 854 07121/14 — —
20,000(7) — 8.29  03/17/15 — —
50,000(8) — 8.57 08/16/15 — —
83,333(4) — 7.37  03/10/16 — —
Andrew J. Grethlein, Ph.D. ....... 87,500(9) — 040  05/16/13 — —
12,500(10) — 160 08/12/13 — —
50,000(7) — 8.29  03/17/15 — —
50,000(8) — 8.57 08/16/15 —_ —
66,666(4) — 7.37  03/10/16 — —_
Thorsten von Stein, M.D., Ph.D. .. 110,000(11) — 9.96 01/04/15 — —
110,000(4) — 7.37  03/10/16 — —
(1) Stock options may be exercised prior to vesting, or early exercised, subject to repurchase rights in favor of

(2)

€

C))

(5)

(6)

)

Tercica that expire over the vesting periods indicated in the footnotes below. Accordingly, all stock options
granted to the named executive officers that were outstanding as of December 31, 2006 were exercisable in full.

Amounts in the “Stock Awards” columns reflect 14,584 shares of common stock issued to Dr. Scarlett that
were not yet vested as of December 31, 2006. The shares were issued upon the early exercise of a stock
option to purchase 87,500 shares of common stock, which vested as to 1/4t of the shares of common stock
subject to the stock option on August 12, 2004, and vests as to 1/48% of the shares subject to the stock option
each month thereafter. Tercica’s repurchase rights with respect to the early exercised shares lapses over the
vesting period of the stock option.

The stock option vested as to 1/4% of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on March 15,
2006, and vests as to 1/48'% of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter.

The stock option vests as to 1/4% of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on March 10,
2007, and vests as to 1/48" of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter,

The stock option vests as to 1/4% of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on March 28,
2007, and vests as to 1/48% of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter.

The stock option vested as to 1/4t of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on July 21,
2005, and vests as to 1/48 of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter.

The stock option vested as to 1/d% of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on March 17,
2006, and vests as to 1/48t of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter,
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(8) The stock option vested as to 1/4% of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on August 16,
2006, and vests as to 1/48% of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter.

(9) The stock option vested as to 1/4% of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on April 21,
2004, and vests as to 1/481 of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter.

(10) The stock option vested as to 1/4% of the shares of commen stock subject to the stock option on August 12,
2004, and vests as to 1/48% of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter.

(11) The stock option vested as to 1/4% of the shares of common stock subject to the stock option on January 4,
2006, and vests as to 1/48t of the shares subject to the stock option each month thereafter.

Option Exercises and Stock Vested During 2006

Tercica’s named executive officers did not exercise any stock options during the year ended December 31,
2006. The following table shows certain information regarding stock vested during the year ended December 31,
2006.

2006 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK VESTED TABLE

Stock Awards

Number of Shares  Value Realized
Acquired on Vesting on Vesting

Name #) ($)
John A. Scarlett, MD. (1) . ... .. oo 79,401 516,451
AjayBansal .. ... ... . — —

Stephen N. Rosenfield .......... ... ... . — —
Andrew J. Grethlein, Ph.D. ... ... e — —
Thorsten von Stein, MLD., Ph.D. ... . . — —

(1) Includes 75,506 shares of common stock that were issued to Dr. Scarlett upon the early exercise of stock
optiens granted to Dr, Scarlett and that vested during the year ended December 31, 2006,

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change in Control

See “—Employment Agreements and Arrangements—Executive Employment Agreements” above for a
description of the compensation and benefits payable to each of the named executive officers in certain
termination situations. The amount of compensation and benefits payable to each named executive officer in
various termination situations has been estimated in the tables below. The actual amount of compensation and
benefits payable in any termination event can only be determined at the time of the termination of the named
executive officer’s employment with Tercica.

John A, Scarlett, M.D.,

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for
Dr. Scarlett as if his employment had terminated as of December 29, 2006, the last business day of Tercica’s last
fiscal year.

No Change in Control = Change in Control

Termination Termination
without Cause or for  without Cause or for
Good Reason Good Reason
Compensation and Benefits % ($)
BaseSalaryPayment .......... ... . e 400,000(1} 800,000
Founder Share Vesting (2) . ........ . i i i i e — —
Stock Option Vesting Acceleration(3) . ........... ..ol 49,586 49,586
COBRA PIemiUms ... o0t ititiiiia ettt tae e nnasn et e, 16,990 25,485

(1) Dr. Scarlett is entitled to elect whether his base salary will be paid in the form of salary continuation or as a
lump sum payment.

51




(2) All of Dr. Scarlett’s founder shares were fully vested as of December 29, 2006.

(3) The value of vesting acceleration is based on the closing price of Tercica common stock on December 29,
2006 ($5.00) with respect to in-the-money unvested option shares minus the exercise price of the unvested
option shares, which such option shares had been early exercised by Dr. Scarlett.

Ajay Bansal

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for
Mr. Bansal as if his employment had terminated as of December 29, 2006, the last business day of Tercica’s last
fiscal year.

Na Change in Control Change in Coutrol
Termination Termination without Cause or
without Cause for Good Reason
Compensation and Benefits (3] 63
Base Salary Payment (Lump Sum). . ...................... 300,000 300,000
Stock Option Vesting Acceleration ......................, _ — (D

(1) All of Mr. Bansal’s unvested option shares were out-of-the-money based on the closing price of Tercica
common stock on December 29, 2006 ($5.00).

Stephen N. Rosenfield

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for
Mr. Rosenfield as if his employment had terminated as of December 29, 2006, the last business day of Tercica’s
last fiscal year.

No Change in Control Change in Control
Termination Termination without Cause or
without Cause for Good Reason
Compensation and Benefits (%) ($)
Base Salary Payment (Lump Sum) ....................... 142,500 285,000
Stock Option Vesting Acceleration ....................... — — (D
COBRA Premiums . ......ouvtiriitnrtinnannnnsanens 9,412 18,824

(1) All of Mr. Rosenfield’s unvested option shares were out-of-the-money based on the closing price of Tercica
common stock on December 29, 2006 ($5.00).

Andrew J. Grethlein, Ph.D.

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for
Dr. Grethlein as if his employment had terminated as of December 29, 2006, the last business day of Tercica’s
last fiscal year.

No Change in Control Change in Control
Termination Termination without Cause or
without Canse for Good Reason
Compensation and Benefits (3} (%)
Base Salary Payment (Lump Sum} ....................... 68,750 137,500
Stock Option Vesting Acceleration . ...................... —_ 424,686(1)

(1) The value of vesting acceleration is based on the closing price of Tercica common stock on December 29,
2006 ($5.00) with respect to in-the-money unvested option shares minus the exercise price of the unvested
opticn shares.
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Thorsten von Stein, M.D., Ph.D,

The following table describes the potential payments and benefits upon employment termination for Dr. von
Stein as if his employment had terminated as of December 29, 2006, the last business day of Tercica’s last fiscal
year.

No Change in Control Change in Control
Termination Termination without Canse or
without Cause for Good Reason
Compensation and Benefits ($) $)
Base Salary Payment (Lump Sum) ....................... 145,000 145,000
Stock Option Vesting Acceleration . ...................... — — ()

(1) Al of Dr. von Stein’s unvested option shares were out-of-the-money based on the closing price of Tercica
common stock on December 29, 2006 ($5.00).

Compensation of Directors

Cash Compensation Arrangements. Each non-employee director of Tercica currently receives $15,000 per
year, which accrues quarterly, plus $2,000 for each Board meeting attended in person and $1,000 for each Board
meeting attended by telephone. Tercica also pays the members, other than the chair, of each committee of the
Board of Directors $1,000 per committee meeting, and the chair of each committee $2,000 per committee
meeting. With regard to Dr. Henner’s services, this compensation was paid directly to MPM Asset Management,
LLC for the benefit of MPM BioVentures III, L.P. The members of Tercica’s Board of Directors are also eligible
for reimbursement for their expenses incurred in attending Board meetings in accordance with Tercica’s policy.

Equity Compensation Arrangements. Each non-employee director of Tercica is also eligible to receive stock
option grants under Tercica's 2004 Stock Plan. Under the 2004 Stock Plan, any new non-employee director
joining Tercica’s Board will automatically receive an option to purchase 22,500 shares of common stock. In
addition, non-employee directors, who have been directors for at least six months, are entitled to receive a
subsequent annual stock option grant to purchase 11,250 shares, or 22,500 shares for a non-employee director
who also is the Chairman of the Board of Directors {currently Dr. Barkas), on the date of each annual meeting of
Tercica’s stockholders. All options granted to non-employee directors under the automatic grant provisions of the
2004 Stock Plan have a term of ten years and an exercise price equal to fair market value on the date of grant.
Each initial option becomes exercisable as to one-third of the shares subject to the option on each anniversary of
the date of grant, provided the non-employee director remains a service provider on such dates. Each annual
option grant becomes exercisable as to 100% of the shares subject to the option on the first anniversary of the
date of grant, provided the non-employee director remains a service provider on such date. Options granted to
non-employee directors under the 2004 Stock Plan may be exercised prior to vesting, or early exercised, subject
to repurchase rights in favor of Tercica that expire over the vesting period. Under the 2004 Stock Plan, in the
event of “change in control,” the successor corporation may assume or substitute an equivalent award for each
outstanding option. If there is no assumption or substitution of outstanding options, the administrator will provide
notice to the recipient that he or she has the right to exercise the option as to all of the shares subject to the
award, including shares which would not otherwise be exercisable, for a period of 15 days from the date of the
notice. The award will terminate upon the expiration of the 15-day period. Under the 2004 Stock Plan, in the
event a non-employee director is terminated on or following a change in control, other than pursuant to a
voluntary resignation, his or her options will fully vest and become immediately exercisable.
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The table below summarizes the compensation paid by Tercica to its non-employee directors for the fiscal

year ended December 31, 2006. Neither Dr. Scarlett nor Dr. Clark, each of whom are executive officers of
Tercica, receives additional compensation for serving on the Board of Directors or its cornmittees.

2006 DIRECTOR COMPENSATION TABLE

Fees Earned or
Paidin Cash  Option Awards Total

Name ($) SHD(2)3) (5

Michael J. Astrue(4) .. ... e 28,739 43,749 72,488
Alexander Barkas, Ph.D. ... ... i e 40,000 125,449 165,449
Jean-Luc Bélingard(5) ....... ... .. ... ... i 6,261 5,200 11,461
Karin Eastham ... ............ . . i ittt 53,000 74,695(6) 127,695
Dennis Henmer, PhaD. .. ... i 41,000 74,695 115,695
Christophe Jean(7) ... .. . i i e 6,261 5,200 11,461
Mark Leschly ... ..o i i 48,000 74,695 122,695
David L. Mahoney .......... .. . .. i i 42,000 53,445 95,445
Thomas Wiggans(8) .. ... ... ... . ... . ... .. i, 28,739 40,962 69,701
(1) The dollar amounts in this column represent the compensation cost for the year ended December 31, 2006 of

(2)

3

4)
&)
(6)

)]
(8)

stock option awards granted in and prior to 2006. These amounts have been calculated in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R using the Black-Scholes model and the assumptions outlined in note 10 of Tercica’s
financial statements included in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, as
filed with the SEC on March 9, 2007. Pursuant to SEC rules, the amounts shown exclude the impact of
estimated forfeitures related to service-based vesting conditions.

The aggregate number of shares subject to outstanding stock options held by each of the directors listed in
the table above as of December 31, 2006 was as follows: Mr. Astrue, 7,500 shares; Dr. Barkas, 81,250
shares; Mr. Bélingard, 22,500 shares; Ms. Eastham, 35,000 shares; Dr. Henner, 45,000 shares; Mr. Jean,
22,500 shares; Mr. Leschly, 45,000 shares; Mr. Mahoney, 45,000 shares; and Mr. Wiggans, 7,500 shares.

The grant date fair value, as calculated in accordance with SFAS No. 123R and using a Black-Scholes
model, of the stock option awards granted during the year ended December 31, 2006 for each of the
directors listed in the table was as follows: Mr. Astrue, $31,808; Dr. Barkas, $63,617, Mr. Bélingard,
$75,938; Ms. Eastham, $31,808; Dr. Henner, $31,808; Mr. Jean, $75,938; Mr. Leschly, $31,808;
Mr. Mahoney, $31,808; and Mr. Wiggans, $31,808. See note 10 of Tercica’s financial statements included
in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006, as filed with the SEC on
March 9, 2007, for a discussion of assumptions made by Tercica in determining the grant date fair value of
Tercica’s equity awards.

Mr. Astrue resigned from the Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006.
Mr. Bélingard was elected to the Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006.

A portion of the amount shown reflects the compensation cost for the year ended December 31, 2006 of
2,500 shares of common stock that were issued upon the early exercise of a stock option granted to
Ms. Eastham and that vested during the year ended December 31, 2006, as calculated in accordance with
SFAS No. 123R and using a Black-Scholes model. See footnote (1) above for further information on the
assumptions made by Tercica in determining the compensation cost of Tercica's equity awards.

Mr, Jean was elected to the Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006.

Mr. Wiggans resigned from the Board of Directors effective October 13, 2006.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Policies and Procedures for Review of Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to the requirements set forth in applicable Nasdaq listing standards and as set forth in the charter of
Tercica’s Audit Committee, the Audit Committee is charged with reviewing related party transactions for
potential conflict of interest situations, and along with the Board of Directors, is responsible for approving such
related party transactions. Pursuant to Tercica’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, all of Tercica’s executive
officers and employees are required to report to the General Counsel under the Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics any conflicts of interest, including any related party transactions. In addition, all directors must repert any
conflicts of interest, including any related party transactions, to the Corporate Governance and Nominating
Committee. In approving or rejecting a proposed related party transaction, the Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors will consider the relevant facts and circumstances available and deemed relevant to the Audit
Committee and the Board of Directors, including, but not limited to the risks, costs and benefits to Tercica, the
terms of the transaction, the availability of other sources for comparable services or products, and, if applicable,
the impact on a director’s independence. The Audit Committee and the Board of Directors will approve only
those related party transactions that, in light of known circumstances, are in, or are not inconsistent with, the best
interests of Tercica, as the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors determines in the good faith exercise of
their discretion. With respect to related party transactions during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, the
Audit Committee did not review or approve the transactions contemplated by the strategic collaboration with
Ipsen since at the time Tercica entered into those transactions, no related persons had any direct or indirect
material interest in those transactions. In this regard, Messrs. Jean and Bélingard joined Tercica’s Board of
Directors upon the first closing of the transactions contemplated by the strategic collaboration. However, the
Board of Directors did approve the transactions with Ipsen.

Transactions with Related Persons
Strategic Collaboration with Ipsen, S.A.

In July 2006, Tercica entered into a stock purchase and master transaction agreement with Ipsen. Under the
terms of this agreement, Tercica agreed to issue to Ipsen (or its designated affiliate) 12,527,245 shares of Tercica
common stock, a convertible note in the principal amount of $25,037,000, a second convertible note in the
principal amount of €30,000,000, a third convertible note in the principal amount of $15,000,000, and a warrant
to purchase a minimum of 4,948,795 shares of Tercica common stock. In October 2006, at the first closing of the
transactions contemplated by the stock purchase and master transaction agreement, Tercica issued the 12,527,245
shares of Tercica common stock to Suraypharm (Ipsen’s designated affiliate) for an aggregate purchase price of
$77.318,944. Tercica also issued to Ipsen the warrant and the first convertible note in the principal amount of
$25,037,000, which represented the largest amount of principal balance outstanding to date on the first
convertible note, and entered into a number of agreements that govern their strategic relationship, including an
affiliation agreement, a registration rights agreement and license and collaboration agreements with respect to the
development and commercialization of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel®, which agreements are described in
more detail under the section of this proxy statement captioned “Collaboration with Ipsen.” At the first closing,
Tercica received from Ipsen €10,000,000, or $12,422,000, as an upfront payment under the Increlex™ license and
collaboration agreement. In addition, Tercica paid upfront payments of $25,037,000 to Ipsen under the
Somatuline® license and collaboration agreement (which Tercica satisfied through issuance of the first
convertible note to Ipsen). The first convertible note issued to Ipsen bears interest at a rate of 2.5% per annum
from the date of issuance, compounded quarterly, and is convertible into Tercica common stock at an initial
conversion price of $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment. The entire principal balance and accrued interest
under the first convertible note is due and payable on the later to occur of October 13, 2011 or the second
anniversary of the date on which Ipsen notifies the Tercica that it will not convert the first convertible note in
full. As of March 15, 2007, approximately $265,000 of interest had accrued on the first convertible note. To date,
there have been no payments of principal or interest on the first convertible note.
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Please see the discussion under the section of this proxy statement captioned “Collaboration with Ipsen” for
more information regarding Tercica’s strategic collaboration with Ipsen. Mr. Bélingard and Mr. Jean, each of
whom is an Ipsen designee to Tercica’s Board of Directors, also serve as the Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer and the Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, respectively, of Ipsen.

Investor Rights Agreement

Tercica, the prior holders of Tercica preferred stock and Dr. Scarlett, Dr. Clark and Dr. Isaksson, one of
Tercica’s former directors, have entered into an agreement pursuant to which these stockholders will be entitled
to require Tercica to register their shares under the Securities Act, subject to limitations and restrictions, on two
occasions. Also, if at anytime Tercica proposes to register any of its securities under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, either for Tercica’s account or for the account of other securities holders, the holders of these shares
will be entitled to notice of the registration and will be entitled to include, at Tercica’s expense, their shares of
Tercica common stock in the registration. In addition, these stockholders may require Tercica, at Tercica’s
expense and on not more than two occasions in any 12-month period, to file a registration statement on Form §-3
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, covering their shares of Tercica common stock. These rights
terminate on the earlier of five years after the effective date of Tercica’s initial offering public offering in March
2004, or, with respect to an individual stockholder, when such helder is able to sell all his shares pursuant to Rule
144 under the Securities Act in any 90-day period. These registration rights are subject to conditions and
limitations, including the right of underwriters to limit the number of shares of Tercica common stock included in
the registration statement.

Director and Officer Indemnification

Tercica’s amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions limiting the liability of
Tercica’s directors. Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws provide that Tercica must indemnify its directors and
officers and may indemnify Tercica’s other employees and agents to the fullest extent permitted by the Delaware
General Corporation Law. Tercica's amended and restated bylaws also permit Tercica to secure insurance on
behalf of any officer, director, employee or other agent for any liability arising out of his or her actions in that
capacity, regardless of whether Tercica’s amended and restated bylaws would otherwise permit indemnification.
Tercica has entered and expects to continue to enter into agreements to indemnify its directors, executive officers
and other employees as determined by Tercica’s Board of Directors. These agreements provide for
indemnification for related expenses including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines and settlement amounts incurred
by any of these individuals in any action or proceeding. Tercica believes that the amended and restated bylaw
provisions and indemnification agreements are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and
officers. Tercica also maintain directors’ and officers’ liability insurance.
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HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS

The SEC has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries (¢.g., brokers) to satisfy the delivery
requirements for proxy statements and annual reports with respect to two or more stockholders sharing the same
address by delivering a single proxy statement addressed to those stockholders. This process, which is commonly
referred to as “householding,” potentially means extra convenience for stockholders and cost savings for
companies.

This year, a number of brokers with account holders who are Tercica stockholders will be “householding™
Tercica’s proxy materials. A single proxy statement may be delivered to multiple stockholders sharing an address
unless contrary instructions have been received from the affected stockholders. Once you have received notice
from your broker that it will be “houscholding” communications to your address, “householding” will continue
until you are notified otherwise or until you notify your broker or Tercica that you no longer wish to participate
in “householding.” If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate in “householding” and would prefer to
receive a separate proxy statement and annual report in the future you may (1) notify your broker, (2} direct your
written request to: Investor Relations, Tercica Inc., 2000 Sierra Point Parkway, Suite 400, Brisbane, California
94005 or (3) contact Tercica’s Investor Relations department at (650) 624-4949, Stockhelders who currently
receive multiple copies of the proxy statement and annual report at their address and would like to request
“householding” of their communications should contact their broker. In addition, Tercica will promptly deliver,
upon written or oral request to the address or telephone number above, a separate copy of the annual report and
proxy statement to a stockholder at a shared address to which a single copy of the documents was delivered.
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OTHER MATTERS

The Board of Directors knows of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the Annual
Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in
the accompanying proxy to vote on such matters in accordance with their best judgment.

By Order of the Board of Directors

St 2. LAY

Stephen N. Rosenfield
Secretary

April 18, 2007
A copy of Tercica’s Annual Report to the Securities and Exchange Commission on Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, as amended, including the financial statements, schedules and list of

exhibits, and any particular exhibit specifically requested, is available without charge upon written request
to: Investor Relations, Tercica, Inc., 2000 Sierra Point Parkway, Suite 400, Brisbane, California 94005.
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APPENDIX A
SUPERMAJORITY CHARTER AMENDMENTS

A. AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION AMENDMENTS

1. Article VI shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as foltows:

ARTICLE VI

Subject to the rights of the holders of any series of Preferred Stock to elect additional directors under
specified circumstances, directors shall be elected at each annual meeting of stockholders for a term of one year;
provided, however, that the term of a director elected prior to [ ], 2007 shall not be affected by the
provisions of the foregoing sentence. Each director shall serve until his successor is duly elected and qualified or
until his death, resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors
shall shorten the term of any incumbent director.

2. Section 2 of Article VII shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

Section 2. In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, the Board of Directors is
expressly authorized to adopt, alter, amend or repeal the Bylaws of the Corporation. The affirmative vote of at
least a majority of the Board of Directors then in office shall be required in order for the Board of Directors to
adopt, amend, alter or repeal the Corporation’s Bylaws. The Corporation’s Bylaws also may be adopted,
amended, altered or repealed by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of
the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote in the election of directors; provided,
however, that the provisions of Sections 2.15 and 2.16 and of Article X of the Bylaws may be adopted, amended,
altered or repealed by the stockholders only upon the affirmative vote of the holders of at least sixty-six and two
thirds percent (66%3%) of the voting power of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Corporation entitled
to vote in the election of directors. No Bylaw hereafter legaily adopted, amended, altered or repealed by the
stockholders of the Corporation shall invalidate any prior act of the directors or officers of the Corporation which
would have been valid if such Bylaw had not been adopted, amended, altered or repealed.

3. Article X shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

ARTICLEX

Section 1. Except as otherwise provided for or fixed by or pursuant to the provisions of Article VI hereof in
relation to the rights of the holders of Preferred Stock to elect directors under specified circumstances, newly
created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors, created in accordance with the
Bylaws of the Corporation, and any vacancies on the Board of Directors resulting from death, resignation,
disqualification, removal or other cause shall be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining
directors then in office, even though less than a quorum of the Board of Directors, or by a sole remaining
director, and not by the stockholders. Any director elected in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold
office until such director’s successor shall have been elected and qualified, or until such director’s earlier death,
resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall shorten
the term of any incurmbent director.

Section 2. Any director or the entire Board of Directors may be removed from office at any time either:
(i) for cause by an affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of the issued and
outstanding capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote in the election of directors or (ii) without cause by an
affirmative vote of the holders of at least sixty percent (60%) of the voting power of the issued and outstanding
capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote in the election of directors.
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4. Section 2 of Article XII shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

Section 2. Unless otherwise required by law, special meetings of the stockholders of the Corporation, for
any purpose or purposes, may be called only by (i) the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (ii) the Chairman
of the Board of Directors of the Corporation, (iii} the Chief Executive Officer {or, in the absence of a Chief
Executive Officer, the President) of the Corporation or (iv) any stockholder who holds at least 15% of the voting
power of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the Corporation in accordance with Section 2.3 of the
Bylaws of the Corporation.

5. Article XIV shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

ARTICLE XIV

The Corporaticn reserves the right to amend, alter, change or repeal any provision contained in this
Certificate of Incorporation, in the manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute, and all rights conferred upon
stockholders herein are granted subject to this reservation; provided, however, that the provisions of Article XI
hereof and of this Article X1V may be amended, altered, changed or repealed only upen the affirmative vote of
the holders of at least sixty-six and two thirds percent (66%3%) of the voting power of the issued and outstanding
capital stock of the Corporation entitled to vote in the election of directors.

B. AMENDED AND RESTATED BYLAWS AMENDMENTS
1. Section 2.3 shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:
2.3. SPECIAL MEETING

A special meeting of the stockholders may be called at any time by: (i) the board of directors, (ii) by the
chairman of the board or by the chief executive officer (or, in the absence of a chief executive officer, by the
president), or (iii) by any stockholder who holds at least 15% of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the
corporation, but such special meetings may not be called by any other person or persons. If a special meeting is
called by the chairman of the board or by the chief executive officer (or, in the absence of a chief executive
officer, by the president), or by request to the corporation by any stockholder who holds at least 15% of the
issued and outstanding capital stock of the corporation, the request shall be in writing, specifying the time of such
meeling and the general nature of the business proposed to be transacted, and shall be delivered personally or
sent by registered mail or by fax transmission to the secretary of the corporation. If a special meeting is called as
set forth above, such meeting shall be held at such time and place as the Board of Directors shall determine, such
time to be not later than 90 days following receipt of notice as set forth above. No business may be transacted at
such special meeting otherwise than specified in the notice of such special meeting delivered to stockholders (or
any supplement thereto).

2. Section 2.16 shall be amended so as to include the following sentence immediately following “March 1,
2004 in the second paragraph of Section 2.16 to read in its entirety as follows:

“Notwithstanding the foregoing, nominations of persons nominated to the Board of Directors of the
corporation by Ipsen S.A. shall not be subject to the notice provisions set forth above in this Section 2.16.”

3. The second paragraph of Section 3.3 shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

Unless otherwise required by law or the certificate of incorporation, vacancies arising through death,
resignation, disqualification, removal an increase in the number of directors or otherwise may be filled only by a
majority of the remaining directors then in office, even though less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining
director, and not by the stockholders. Any director elected in accordance with the preceding sentence shall hold
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office until such director’s successor shall have been elected and qualified, or until such director’s earlier death,
resignation or removal. No decrease in the number of directors constituting the Board of Directors shall shorten
the term of any incumbent director.

4. Section 3.4 shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:
3.4. REMOVAL

Any director may be removed from office at any time either: (i} for cause by an affirmative vote of the
holders of at least a majority of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote at an
election of directors or (ii) without cause by an affirmative vote of the holders of at least sixty percent (60%) of
the issued and outstanding capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote at an election of directors.

5. Article X shall be amended and restated to read in its entirety as follows:

ARTICLEX
AMENDMENTS

In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by statute, the board of directors is expressly
authorized to adopt, alter, amend or repeal the bylaws of the corporation. The affirmative vote of at least a
majority of the board of directors then in office shall be required in order for the board of directors to adopt,
amend, alter or repeal the corporation’s bylaws. The corporation’s bylaws also may be adopted, amended, altered
or repealed by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the voting power of the issued and
outstanding capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote in the election of directors; provided, however, that
the provisions of Sections 2.15 and 2.16 and of this Article X may be adopted, amended, altered or repealed by
the stockholders only upon the affirmative vote of the holders of at least sixty-six and two thirds percent
(66%3%) of the voting power of the issued and outstanding capital stock of the corporation entitled to vote in the
election of directors. No bylaw hereafter legally adopted, amended, altered or repealed by the stockholders of the
corporation shall invalidate any prior act of the directors or officers of the corporation which would have been
valid if such bylaw had not been adopted, amended, altered or repealed.
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UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 194
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006

OR
[[] TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES
EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to
Commission File Neo. 000-50461

'TERCICA, INC.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 26-0042539
(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)
2000 Sierra Point Parkway, Suite 400
Brisbane, CA 94005
(650) 624-4900

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant’s principal executive offices)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered
Common Stock, $0.001 par value Nasdaq Global Market

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes [] No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the
Act. Yes ] No

Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past
90 days. Yes No [

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part I1I of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. [}

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, or a non-accelerated
filer. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated file” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act (Check one):

Large accelerated filer {] Accelerated filer Non-accelerated filer [

Indicate by check mark whether registrant is a shell company {(as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act). Yes ] No

The aggregate market value of the registrant’s common stock, $0.001 par value, held by non-affiliates of the
registrant as of June 30, 2006 was $92,114,611 (based upon the closing sales price of such stock as reported in the
Nasdaq Global Market on such date). Excludes an aggregate of 20,168,764 shares of the registrant’s common stock
held by officers and directors and by each person known by the registrant to own 5% or more of the registrant’s
outstanding commeon stock as of June 30, 2006. Exclusion of shares held by any person should not be construed to
indicate that such person possesses the power, direct or indirect, to direct or cause the direction of the management or
policies of the registrant, or that such person is controlled by or under common control with the registrant.

As of February 28, 2007, there were 50,162,610 shares of the registrant’s common stock, $0.001 par value,
outstanding.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A not later than 120 days after the end of the
fiscal year covered by this Form 10-K are incorporated by reference in Part II1, Items 10-14 of this Form 10-K.
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PART I

This report includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements
other than statements of historical facts are “forward-looking statements” for purposes of these provisions,
including any projections of earnings, revenues or other financial items, any statement of the plans and
objectives of management for future operations, any statements concerning proposed new products or licensing
or collaborative arrangements, any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance, and any
statement of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. In some cases, forward-looking statements can be
identified by the use of terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “estimates,”
“potential,” or “continue” or the negative thereof or other comparable terminology. Although we believe that
the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements contained herein are reasonable, there can be no
assurance that such expectations or any of the forward-looking statements will prove to be correct, and actual
results could differ materially from those projected or assumed in the forward-looking statements. Our future
financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to inherent
risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to the Risk Factors set forth under ftem 1A, and for the reasons
described elsewhere in this report. All forward-looking statements and reasons why results may differ included in
this report are made as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to update these forward-looking
statements or reasons why actual results might differ.

LI [T [

Item 1. Business.

Tercica, Inc. is a biopharmaceutical company developing and marketing a portfolio of endocrinology
products. We currently have the following products in our commercialization and development portfolio:

* Increlex™, which we began commercializing in the United States in January 2006; and

+ Somatuline® Autogel®, for which a New Drug Application, or NDA, was submitted in October 2006 to
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, by Ipsen S.A., or Ipsen, our collaborator; and was
approved for marketing in July 2006 by Health Canada for the treatment of acromegaly.

Increlex™. We market Increlex™ as a long-term replacement therapy for the treatment of children with
severe primary insulin-like growth factor deficiency, or severe Primary IGFD, or with growth hormone gene
deletion who have developed neutralizing antibodies to growth hormone. We obtained approval for the long-term
treatment of severe Primary IGFD from the FDA in August 2005. We are currently conducting a Phase 1Ib
clinical trial for the use of Increlex™ for the treatment of children with Primary IGFD. In January 2006, we
launched Increlex™ in the United States. Increlex™ generated net revenues of $1.3 million in 2006,

In December 2005, we submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, in the European Union
for the long-term treatment of growth failure in children with severe Primary IGFD or with growth hormone gene
deletion who have developed neutralizing antibodies to growth hormone. We expect to receive an opinion from
the Committee for Medicinal Products for Human Use on the Increlex™ MAA in the second quarter of 2007.
Pursuant to our worldwide strategic collaboration with Ipsen that was finalized in October 2006, we granted to
Ipsen and its affiliates the exclusive right under our patents and know-how to develop and commercialize
Increlex™ in all countries of the world except the United States, Japan, Canada, and for a certain period of time,
Taiwan and certain countries of the Middle East and North Africa, for all indications, other than treatment of
central nervous system and diabetes indications.

Somatuline® Autogel®. Pursuant to our worldwide strategic collaboration with Ipsen, we have the
exclusive right under Ipsen’s patents and know-how to develop and commercialize Somatuline® Autogel® in the
United States and Canada for all indications other than opthalmic indications. In July 2006, Somatuline®
Autogel® was approved for marketing by Health Canada for the treatment of acromegaly and is currently in the
reimbursement review process. Acromegaly is a hormonal disorder that results when a tumor in the pituitary
gland produces excess growth hormone, resulting in overproduction of insulin-like growth factor-1 (IGF-1) and




excessive growth, In Oclober 2006, Ipsen submitted an NDA to the FDA for the use of Somatuline® Autogel®
for the treatment of acromegaly. The FDA accepted the NDA on December 30, 2006, and the Prescription Drug
User Fee Act, or PDUFA, date for Somatuline® Autogel® for the treatment of acromegaly is August 30, 2007.

Somatuline® Autogel® is an injectable sustained-release formulation containing lanreotide, a somatostatin
analogue. The Somatuline® Autogel® formulation requires no excipient other than water and is generally injected
monthly. The preduct is contained in a pre-filled syringe, and can be administered as a deep subcutaneous
injection, In contrast, Sandostatin LAR, the only currently available, long-acting somatostatin analogue, which is
marketed by Novartis, must be reconstituted from a powdered form and drawn up inte a syringe, and must be
then be given as a deep intramuscular injection. Like Sandostatin LAR, Somatuline® Autogel® is used primarily
when circulating levels of growth hormone remain high despite surgery or radiotherapy in patients with
acromegaly. Through its inhibitory effects, Somatuline® Autogel® lowers growth hormone and IGF-1 levels, thus
controlling disease progression and relieving the symptoms associated with active disease.

Scientific Background—Short Stature

We believe that approximately one million children in each of the United States and Western Europe have
short stature. Short stature is caused by a deficiency of IGF-1 or growth hormone, or other abnormalities such as
genetic defects not associated with a deficiency of either hormone. Physicians vse a height standard deviation
score, or height SDS, to indicate how many standard deviations a person’s height is from the average height of
the normal population of a similar age and gender. The American Academy of Pediatrics and the American
Academy of Clinical Endocrinclogy define short stature as a height that is more than two standard deviations
below the average population height. Children with short stature are shorter than approximately 97.7% of
children of a similar age and gender, and if their deficit in growth continues unchanged, they will attain a final
height of no more than approximately 5'4” for boys and 4°11” for girls. Similarly, in evaluating 1GF-1
deficiency, physicians can use an IGF-1 standard deviation score, or IGF-1 SDS, to indicate how many standard
deviations a person’s IGF-1 level is from the average level of the population of a similar age and gender.

We define the indication severe Primary IGFD to mean a child who has both a height SDS and an 1GF-1
SDS of minus three or less; and the indication Primary IGFD to mean a child who has both a height SDS and an
IGF-1 SDS of less than minus two, in each case in the presence of normal or elevated levels of growth hormone.
Children with a height SDS of less than minus three are shorter than 99.9% of children of the same age and sex,
while children with a height SDS of less than minus two are shorter than 97.7% of children of the same age and
sex. Children with an IGF-1 SDS of less than minus three have 1GF-1 levels lower than 99.9% of children of the
same age, and children with an IGF-1 SDS of less than minus two have lower IGF-1 values than 97.7% of
children of the same age. We are currently conducting a Phase [1Ib clinical trial for the use of rhIGF-1 in Primary
IGFD,

We believe that approximately 30,000 children in each of the United States and Western Europe suffer from
Primary IGFD.

Role of IGF-1 in short stature. The endocrine system regulates metabolism through the use of hormones,
including IGF-1, which is a naturally occurring 70 amino acid protein that is necessary for normal human growth
and metabolism. A deficiency of IGF-1 can result in short stature and can lead, in children and adults, to a range
of other metabolic disorders. These metabolic disorders can include lipid abnormalities, decreased bone density,
obesity and insulin resistance. IGF-1 is normally produced as a result of a hormonal cascade beginning with the
secretion of growth hormone by the pituitary gland. Growth hormone binds to a growth hormone receptor on a
cell which initiates an intracellular process, known as intracellular signaling. This intracellular signaling
produces IGF-1 which is released into the blood, which then stimulates cartilage and bone growth.

The cellular production of IGF-1 is regulated by growth hormone. Growth hormone deficiency leads to
inadequate IGF-1 production, which results in short stature in children. Growth hormone replacement therapy,
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which increases IGF-1 levels, can often be used to successfully treat growth hormone deficiency. However, we
believe many individuals with short stature, despite normal growth hormone secretion, are IGF-1 deficient,
because their cells do not respond normally to growth hormone. These children are IGF-1 deficient usually
because of abnormalities in either their growth hormone receptors or in their growth hormone signaling
pathways. These individuals have Primary IGFD, which is characterized clinically by short stature, 1GF-1
deficiency, and growth hormone sufficiency. Individuals with Primary IGFD are candidates for rhIGF-1

replacement therapy.

The following diagram illustrates IGF-1 deficiency and the role of IGF-1 in growth.

IGF-1 Deficiency
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Increlex™ and Severe Primary IGFD. Our product, Increlex™, is identical to naturally occurring human
IGF-1, and we believe it performs the same functions in the body. Increlex’s™ product label defines severe
Primary IGFD to mean a child who has a height SDS and IGF-1 SDS of minus three or less and normal growth
hormone levels. These children do not respond to or respond poorly to growth hormone therapy. If their deficit in
growth continues unchanged, children with severe Primary IGFD who are untreated will typically attain a final
height of no more than approximately 5’1" for boys and 4'9%2” for girls. Increlex™ therapy supplies these
children with the 1GF-1 that their bodies are not producing enough of. We estimate that a total of 6,000 children
in each of the United States and Western Europe have severe Primary IGFD.

In our Phase III clinical trials of severe Primary IGFD, the data of which we submitted to the FDA in our
NDA, some patients experienced hypoglycemia, or low blood glucose levels. Other side effects noted in some
patients include hearing deficits, enlargement of the tonsils and intracranial hypertension. Of the children who
have completed at least one year of rhIGF-1 replacement therapy, which is the generally accepted length of time
required to adequately measure growth responses to drug therapy, a statistically significant increase in average
growth rate from 2.8 cm per year prior to treatment to 8.0 cm per year after the first year of thIGF-1 treatment
was demonstrated (p<0.0001). A p-value of less than (.000]1 means that the probability that this result occurred
by chance was less than 1 in 10,000. A probability of 5 in 100 or less, or p<0.05, is considered to be statistically
significant. Compared to pre-treatment growth rates, statistically significant increases were also observed during
each of the next five years of rhIGF-1 treatment (p<0.005). We believe these increases in growth rates were
clinically meaningful and comparable to those observed in clinical trials of other approved growih hormone
treatments. Statistically significant increases in height SDS compared 1o baseline were also observed for each of
the first eight years of thIGF-1 treatment (p<0.001).

Increlex™ and Primary IGFD. Although our first indication is for severe Primary 1GFD, we are evaluating
the use of Increlex™ for the treatment of children with Primary IGFD. Children with Primary IGFD suffer from
the same hormonal deficiency as those with severe Pnmary IGFD. If their deficit in growth continues unchanged,
children with Primary IGFD who are untreated will typically attain a final height of no more than approximately
5°4” for boys and 411" for girls. Excluding children with severe Primary IGFD, we believe that approximately
24,000 children in each of the United States and Western Europe suffer from Primary IGFD.

We are enrolling a Phase IIIb clinical trial in Primary IGFD, which is intended to serve as the basis for a
supplemental NDA filing for this indication. We are conducting this study in the United States and Europe. The
principal purpose of this clinical trial is to ensure safety in the broader population and to evaluate the safety and
efficacy of various doses of Increlex™ for patients with Primary IGFD. In mid-2005, we initiated another study
in Primary IGFD to investigate once-daily dosing of Increlex™,

Scientific Background—Acromegaly

The term acromegaly is derived from the Greek words *“acro” (extremities) and “megaly” (enlargement).
Acromegaly is an orphan disease where the pituitary gland secretes too much growth hormone resulting in
overproduction of IGF-1 and excessive growth. The most common cause of acromegaly is a benign tumor of the
pitvitary gland. The condition can be caused by tumors in other parts of the body, such as the adrenal glands,
lungs, or pancreas. Sometimes, these type of tumors can secrete growth hormone, or they might produce another
hormone (growth hormone-releasing hormone), which stimulates the pituitary gland to make more growth
hormone. If the condition develops before bone growth is completed in adolescence, it is called gigantism.

Acromegaly is a condition characterized by enlarged facial features, hands and feet, that results from
excessive production of growth hormone by a tumor affecting the pituitary gland in the brain. Lanreotide
decreases the production of the growth hormone and treats the symptoms of acromegaly without curing the
tumor. It can be used as first line medical treatment when the levels of growth hormone and IGF-1 remain
elevated following surgery or radiotherapy to treat the pituitary tumor.




The excessive growth associated with acromegaly occurs in the extremities where bones and soft tissues
increase in size. Because it is an uncommon disorder with symptoms that develop gradually over time,
acromegaly can be difficult to diagnose. We believe that a total of approximately 15,000 people in the United
States and Canada are estimated to have acromegaly. It is most commonly found in middle-aged adults,

Without treatment, acromegaly can lead to cardiovascular disease, hypertension, diabetes and a possible
increased risk of colon cancer. If untreated, the mortality rate of people with acromegaly is at least two times
higher, and the life expectancy is five to ten years less than that of the general population. Treatments that control
the excess production of growth hormone and IGF-1 have been shown to return the mortality rate in these
patients to normal.

Treatment options for acromegaly include surgical removal of the tumor, drug therapy and radiation therapy
of the pituitary gland. Depending on each individual case, a combination of these treatment options may be
needed to manage the effects of acromegaly. For example, although surgery can be an effective treatment
approach, in many cases, hormone levels may improve yet still not return to normal; these patients would then
need additional treatment, most commonly with drug therapy.

Drug therapies include somatostatin analogues, dopamine agonists and growth hormone receptor agonists:

* Somatostatin analogues operate like a naturally occurring hormone called somatostatin, which decreases
the production and secretion of growth hormone.

» Dopamine agonists promote the activity of dopamine, a chemical in the brain, to stop growth hormone
release by some pituitary tumors. These drugs generally do not work as well as the growth hormone
receptor antagonists or the somatostatin analogues,

s Growth hormone receptor antagonists, the most recent class of drugs developed to treat acromegaly,
prevent growth hormone from stimulating IGF-1 production by blocking the places on cells where
growth hormone binds, or connects, with the growth hormone receptor.

Radiation treatment is usually reserved for patients who cannot undergo surgery, or whose tumor is not
completely removed during surgery, or who have not responded adequately to medication.

Somatuline® Autogel® and acromegaly. Somatuline® Autogel® injection contains the active ingredient
lanreotide. Lanreotide belongs to a class of products called somatostatin analogues that operate similarly to a
naturally occurring hormone in the body called somatostatin. Somatostatin is produced in various parts of the
body, including the brain, gut and pancreas. It prevents the release of several hormones found in the body, such
as growth hormone, serotonin, insulin and vasoactive intestinal peptide (VIP).

Somatuline® Autogel® has marketing authorizations in over 50 countries for the treatment of acromegaly
and neuroendocrine tumors. In 2006, Somatuline® and Somatuline® Autogel® generated worldwide sales of
€92.2 million (approximately $120 miilion), up 12.8% versus 2005. In its main markets in Europe, Somatuline®
Autoge!® has achieved a 30% to 50% market share of the acromegaly market varying from country-to-country.

Strategy

Our goal is to capitalize on the opportunities presented by Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel® and to
develop and commercialize additional new products for the treatment of metabolic disorders. Key elements of
our strategy for achieving our goal include:

Grow Increlex™ usage in severe Primary IGFD. We believe that for the approximately 6,000 children in
the United States who suffer from severe Primary 1GFD, Increlex™ provides a favorable efficacy and safety
profile. Through our sales and marketing efforts, we make pediatric endocrinologists aware of the risks and
benefits of Increlex™ therapy, including conducting medical education programs, medical symposia, and regional
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speaker programs aimed at increasing physician awareness of Increlex™ and severe Primary IGFD. We have also
established a patient registry to provide additionat data on the safety and efficacy of Increlex™. In addition, we
seek to increase formulary acceptance of Increlex™ so it can be reimbursed in a timely manner following the
writing of a prescription.

Expand Increlex™ indication from severe Primary IGFD to Primary IGFD. To maximize the
opportunities presented by Increlex™ for the treatment of short stature, we initiated a Phase 1IIb clinical trial of
Increlex™ in children with Primary IGFD in late 2004. If the data from this trial are positive, we intend to submit
a supplemental NDA to expand the use of Increlex™ to encompass children with Primary 1GFD. If approved for
Primary IGFD in the United States and European Union, the market for Increlex™ would expand from the
approximately 6,000 children with severe Primary IGFD 1o encompass the approximately 30,000 children with
Primary IGFD, including severe Primary IGFD, in each of the United States and Western Europe.

Successfully Launch Somatuline® Autogel® in Canada and the United States. There are approximately
500 adult endocrinologists in the United States that prescribe approximately 90% of the prescriptions for
acromegaly. Subject to FDA approval, we believe that with the addition of approximately six additional sales
representatives 10 our existing sales force we will be able to effectively market Somatuline® Autogel® to these
physicians. In addition, we plan to conduct medical education programs, medical symposia, and regional speaker
programs aimed at establishing awareness of Somatuline® Autogel® and its role in treating patients with
acromegaly in the physician community. Somatuline® Autogel® has received a marketing approval in Canada
and is currently in the reimbursement review process.

Broaden our endocrinology development portfolie. We intend to pursue the development and
commercialization of additional products for the treatment of short stature, acromegaly and other metabolic
disorders. We are seeking to in-license products that may benefit from our expertise in the field of
endocrinology. In addition, as part of our strategic collaboration with Ipsen, we have granted to each other a right
of first negotiation for products in our respective endocrine pipelines and have agreed on a framework for joint
clinical development and subsequent commercialization of endocrine products on a worldwide basis. Ipsen has
several endocrinology compounds in pre-clinical development, including two products, BIM 23A760
(Dopastatin) and BIM 28131, that could enter clinical development in late 2007. BIM 23A760 (Dopastatin}, a
chimeric molecule directed towards somatostatin and dopamine receptors, is targeted at the possible treatment of
pituitary adenomas, including those causing acromegaly, Cushing’s disease and hyperprolactinemia as well as
non-functional pituitary adenomas. BIM 28131, a ghrelin agonist, is targeted at restoring normal body
composition in wasting diseases associated with chronic illness.

Key Relationships—Genentech

rhiGF-1. We entered into a U.S. License and Collaboration Agreement with Genentech in April 2002,
which was amended in July and November 2003. In addition, we entered into an International License and
Collaboration Agreement with Genentech in July 2003, which expands certain of the rights granted to us under
the U.S. License and Cellaboration Agreement to the remaining territories of the world outside of the United
States. Under these agreements, we have certain rights and licenses to Genentech’s intellectual property to
research, develop, use, manufacture and market rhIGF-1, alone or in combination with IGF binding protein-3,
which we refer to in this document as IGFBP-3, for a broad range of indications. The rights are exclusive with
respect to our development and sale of rhIGF-1 and non-exclusive with respect to our manufacture of rhIGF-1.
Indications not covered by our licenses from Genentech include diseases and conditions of the central nervous
system. In addition, we need to enter into a written agreement with another company if we desire to
commercialize thIGF-1 for diabetes outside of the United States.

Under both the U.S. License and Collaboration Agreement and the International License and Collaboration

Agreement, Genentech agreed to transfer to us its pre-clinical and clinical data related to rthIGF-1. This includes
data resulting from extensive animal testing as well as Phase [, Phase II and Phase III clinical trials with respect
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1o thIGF-1. In addition, under these agreements Genentech agreed to transfer its manufacturing technology and
know-how to us. In consideration of this transfer, we paid Genentech $1.0 million in cash and approximately
$4.1 million in Series A preferred stock upon execution of the U.S. License and Collaboration Agreement. We
paid Genentech $1.7 million upon execution of the International License and Collaboration Agreement and 514
million related to the license to Genentech’s rights to IGF-1 combined with IGFBP-3. In connection with the
approval of our NDA in August 2005, we paid Genentech a $1.0 million milestone payment related to the U.S.
License and Collaboration Agreement. We also agreed to pay to Genentech royalties on the sales of rhIGF-1
products and certain one-time payments upon the occurrence of specified milestone events, such as attaining
rhIGF-1 indication approvals and aggregate sales levels with respect to thIGF-1. We are subject to the following
milestone payments to Genentech as of December 31, 2006:

+ In addition to the amounts already paid to Genentech, if we achieve all of the additional milestones for
thIGF-1 under the U.S. License and Collaboration Agreement and the International License and
Collaboration Agreement, we will owe Genentech up to an aggregate of approximately $33.0 million.

« If we develop rhIGF-1 in combination with IGFBP-3, we would be subject to these same milestone
events and, upon achievement of all of the milestones, would owe Genentech up to an additional
aggregate of approximately $32.5 million.

Accordingly, we would owe Genentech up to an aggregate of approximately $65.5 million in milestone payments
if we achieved all of these milestone events for both thiGF-1 and for thIGF-1 in combination with IGFBP-3.
Both agreements require us to fulfill certain obligations to maintain our licenses.

Under the U.S. License and Collaboration Agreement, Genentech has exclusively licensed to us its right to
develop and commercialize thIGF-1 products in the United States for all indications other than diseases and
conditions of the central nervous system. Genentech has a right, the Opt-In Right, to elect, within a limited period
of time following an NDA-enabling clinical trial, to participate jointly with us in the development and
commercialization of thIGF-1 products we develop for diabetes indications and for all non-orphan indications.
Orphan indications are generally diseases or conditions that affect fewer than 200,000 individuals in the United
States. If Genentech elects to exercise its Opt-In Right for a particular indication, Genentech will pay us more
than 50% of the past development costs associated with that indication. In addition, after Genentech exercises its
Opt-In Right for a particular indication, we would share with Genentech the ongoing net operating losses and
profits resulting from the joint development and commercialization effort for that indication. Pursuant to this
arrangement, we would fund less than 50% of such operating losses and we would receive less than 50% of any
profits associated with any joint indication. In addition, if we elect to discontinue the development of rhIGF-1
products for diabetes or a substitute indication selected by us, subject to Genentech’s consent, Genentech has the
right to assume development of such indication. Any substitute indication agreed to by Genentech, under the
terms of the current agreement, must have a potential market greater than $250.0 million and not be an indication
for the central nervous system. In such event, our rights under the agreement for such indication would terminate
and Genentech would be granted a non-exclusive license under our rhIGF-1 intellectual property and technology
to manufacture, use and sell thIGF-1 products for diabetes, or if applicable the substitute indication, subject to an
obligation to pay us milestone payments and/or royalties to be negotiated by Genentech and us in good faith on
sales of these products.

With respect to those indications in the United States for which Genentech does not have an Opt-In-Right or
for which Genentech has not exercised its Opt-In-Right to jointly develop and commercialize rhIGF-1, we have
the final decision on disputes relating to development and commercialization of rhIGF-1. With respect to those
indications in the United States for which Genentech has exercised its Opt-In-Right, or for which its Opt-In-Right
has not expired or been waived by Genentech, Genentech has the final decision on disputes relating to
develepment and commercialization of thIGF-1.

Under the International License and Collaboration Agreement, Genentech has exclusively licensed to us its
right to develop and commercialize thIGF-1 products outside of the United States for all indications other than
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diseases and conditions of the central nervous system. In addition, we need to enter into a written agreement with
another company if we desire to commercialize rhIGF-1 for diabetes outside of the United States. Unlike the U.S.
License and Collaboration Agreement, Genentech does not have the right to participate in any of our
development or commercialization efforts for rhIGF-1 products outside of the United States.

Upon an uncured material breach of either the U.S. License and Collaboration or the International License
and Collaboration Agreement, the non-breaching party may terminate the agreement. We also have the right to
terminate either agreement at our sole discretion upon 60 days prior written notice to Genentech. If Genentech
terminates either agreement because of our material breach, or if we terminate either agreement for any reason
other than a material breach by Genentech, the rights and licenses granted to us under the respective agreement
would terminate. In such event, Genentech would be granted a non-exclusive license under our rhIGF-1
intellectual property and technology to manufacture, use and sell thIGF-1 products, subject to an obligation to
pay us royalties on sales of these products to be negotiated by Genentech and us in good faith.

Key Relationships—Ipsen

On October 13, 2006, we completed the first closing of the transactions contemplated by the stock purchase
and master transaction agreement we entered into with Ipsen in July 2006. At the closing, we issued 12,527,245
shares of our common stock to an affiliate of Ipsen for an aggregate purchase price of $77.3 million, a 30.0%
premium to the Company’s volume-weighted average closing stock price over the preceding 15 trading days
ending on July 17, 2006, and issued to Ipsen a convertible note in the principal amount of $25.0 million and a
warrant to purchase a minimum of 4,948,795 shares of our common stock, which warrant is exercisable at any
time during the five-year period after the initial closing and carries an initial exercise price equal to $7.41 per
share. Simultaneously with the initial closing, we and Ipsen (and/or affiliates thereof) entered into licensing
agreements with respect to Somatuline® Autogel® and Increlex™, and entered into certain other agreements,
including an affiliation agreement with respect to certain corporate governance matters and providing Ipsen with
the right to nominate a certain number of directors for election to our Board of Directors. Additionally, we
effected an amendment to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and adopted a rights agreement
implementing a stockholder rights plan. The stock purchase and master transaction agreement we entered into
with Ipsen in July 2006 also provides for the issuance by us of a second convertible note and a third convertible
note to Ipsen in the principal amounts of €30.0 million (or $39.6 million at December 31, 2006) and $15.0
million, respectively, at the second closing thereunder. Each of the convertible notes we issued or that we may
issue to Ipsen mature in October 2011 and carry a coupon of 2.5% per annum from the date of issuance,
compounded quarterly, and are convertible into shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price per
share equal to $7.41 per share (€5.92 per share with respect to the second convertible note). The number of
shares that Ipsen can purchase by exercising the warrant can increase over time. As of December 31, 2006, Ipsen
could purchase up to approximately 5,000,000 shares of our commeon stock by exercising the warrant,

Together with the shares issued at the initial closing, the conversion of all three convertible notes and the
exercise of the warrant in full would enable Ipsen to acquire an ownership interest in us of approximately 40% on
a fully diluted basis.

Pursuant to the licensing agreements we entered into with Ipsen (and/or affiliates thereof) in connection
with the initial closing under the stock purchase and master transaction agreement, we granted to Ipsen and its
affiliates exclusive rights to develop and commercialize Increlex™ in all countries of the world except the United
States, Japan, Canada, and for a certain period of time, Taiwan and certain countries of the Middle East and
North Africa, and Ipsen granted to us exclusive rights to develop and commercialize Somatuline® Autogel® in
the United States and Canada. Further, we and Ipsen granted to each other product development rights and agreed
to share the costs for improvements to, or new indications for, Somatuline® Autogel® and Increlex™. In addition,
we and Ipsen agreed to rights of first negotiation for our respective endocrine pipelines. Under the license and
collaboration agreement with respect to Increlex™, Ipsen made an upfront cash payment to us of €10.0 million or
$12.4 million and has agreed to pay us a milestone of €15.0 million (or $19.8 million as of December 31, 2006)
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upon approval of the Increlex™ MAA in the European Union for the targeted product label, If Increlex™ is
launched in Ipsen’s territory, Ipsen would pay royalties to us on a sliding scale from 15% to 25% of net sales, in
addition to a supply price of 20% of net sales of Increlex™. Under the license and collaboration agreement with
respect to Somatuline® Autogel®, we made an upfront payment of $25.0 million to Ipsen, which was financed
through the issuance by us of the first convertible note to Ipsen at the initial closing under the stock purchase and
master transaction agreement. If Somatuline® Autogel® is approved in the United States for the targeted product
label (and the second closing under the stock purchase and master transaction agreement is consummated), we
would make a milestone payment of €30.0 million (or $39.6 million as of December 31, 2006) to Ipsen, which
would be financed through the issuance by us of the second convertible note to Ipsen at the second closing. If the
second closing is consummated, we would also issue the third convertible note to Ipsen and Ipsen would deliver
$15.0 million to us, which would be used by us for working capital. Once Somatuline® Autogel® is launched in
our territory, we would pay royalties to Ipsen, on a sliding scale from 15% to 25% of net sales, in addition to a
supply price of 20% of net sales of Somatuline® Autogel®. For additional information on our collaboration with
Ipsen, please refer to “Note 7 of the Notes to Financial Statements.

Manufacturing

Increlex™. We have a Manufacturing Services Agreement with Cambrex Bio Science Baltimore, Inc., or
Cambrex Baltimore, for the manufacture and supply of bulk rhiGF-1. We have extended the Manufacturing
Service Agreement for four additional years and the agreement now terminates in December 2012. Under this
agreement, Cambrex Baltimore is obligated to provide us with up to 24 kilograms of thIGF-1 per year. We
believe this quantity will be sufficient to supply our expected requirements through at least 2011. We also have a
quality agreement with Cambrex Baltimore to ensure that product quality, compliance with cGMP and oversight
over all critical aspects of thIGF-1 production, testing and release is maintained.

In October 2006, Cambrex Corporation announced plans to sell its BioPharma subsidiary, which includes its
Baltimore manufacturing operations, to Lonza Group AG, or Lonza Baltimore Inc. The sale to Lonza Baltimore
was completed in February 2007, and we expect our contractual relationship with Cambrex to continue with
Lonza Baltimore.

In November 2006, we executed a Development and Supply Agreement and a Quality Agreement for drug
product filling, packaging, and labeling, with a commercial contract manufacturer. These agreements have an
initial term of five years from the time of first commercial sale, and thus are anticipated to last through 2012. We
expect to complete the technology transfer and manufacturing validation at this manufacturer by the end of 2007.

Our U.S. License and Collaboration Agreement with Genentech provides us with rights and access to
Genentech’s manufacturing technology and documentation associated with Genentech’s manufacture and testing
of thIGF-1, including Genentech’s proprietary large-scale manufacturing process for producing bulk rhIGF-1.
This includes production cell banks, production batch records, development reports, analytical methods and
regulatory documents describing improvements and changes to the production process.

Somatuline® Autogel®. Ipsen is our sole provider of Somatuline® Autogel®. We have no alternative
manufacturing facilities or plans for any alternative facilities at this time. We do not have direct control over
Ipsen’s compliance with regulations and standards. The facilities used by and operations of Ipsen to manufacture
Somatuline® Autogel® must undergo an inspection by the FDA for compliance with cGMP regulations before
Somatuline® Autogel® can be approved in the United States.

Sales and Marketing

Increlex™. Our Increlex™ sales and marketing efforts target approximately 500 pediatric endocrinologists
practicing in the United States. Pediatric endocrinologists are the physicians who customarily treat children with
severe Primary IGFD. Because these pediatric endocrinologists are primarily hospital-based and concentrated in
major metropolitan areas, we believe that our focused marketing organization and specialized sales force
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effectively serves them. We are conducting a variety of programs aimed at establishing physician awareness of
Increlex™ as a treatment for severe Primary IGFD, including medical education, symposiums and regional
speaker programs. We have also established a patient registry in order to provide further data on the safety and
efficacy of Increlex™.

Somatuline® Autogel®. Patients with acromegaly are typically treated by a subset of adult endocrinologists
who sub-specialize in pituitary disorders. We believe there are approximately 500 physicians in the United States
who write approximatcly 90% of the prescriptions for this disease. Subject to approval, we believe that with the
addition of approximately six sales representatives to our existing sales force we will be able to effectively
market Somatuline® Autogel® to these physicians. Like pediatric endocrinologists, adult endocrinologists are
primarily hospital-based and concentrated in major metropolitan areas. We plan to conduct medical education
programs, medical symposia and regional speaker programs aimed at establishing awareness of Somatuline®
Autogel® and its role in treating patients with acromegaly.

Somatuline® Autogel® has received marketing approval in Canada and is currently in the reimbursement
review process. At present, we have contracted sales and marketing operations in Canada to a third party.

Research and Development

Our principal experience has been developing late-stage preduct candidates and commercializing them. We
do not conduct any of our own pre-clinical laboratory research. However, we consult with academic research
institutions and other companies regarding both IGF-1 and non-IGF-1 related projects in endocrinology.
Research and development activities consist primarily of severe Primary IGFD, Primary IGFD, and clinical and
regulatory activities. Manufacturing development activities include pre-MAA approval preparation activities for
current good manufacturing practices (¢GMP), regulatory inspection preparation, technology transfer, process
development and validation, quality control and assurance activities, and analytical services. Clinical and
regulatory activities include the preparation, implementation, management of our clinical trials as well as
regulatory compliance, data management and biostatistics. Our research and development expenses were $42.0
million for the year ended December 31, 2006, $21.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $27.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2004,

Patents and Proprietary Rights

Our policy is to enforce our licensed patents to the extent our licensors have granted us such rights, and to
protect our proprietary technology. We intend to continue to file U.S. and foreign patent applications to protect
technology, inventions and improvements that are considered important to the development of our business.
There can be no assurance that any of these patent applications will result in the grant of a patent either in the
United States or elsewhere, or that any patents granted will be valid and enforceable, or will provide a
competitive advantage or will afford protection against competitors with simiiar technologies. Our success could
depend, in part, on our ability to obtain additional patents, protect our proprietary rights and operate without
infringing third party patents. We will be able to protect our licensed patents or proprietary technologies from
unauthorized use by third parties only to the extent that such patents or proprietary rights are covered by valid
and enforceable patents or are effectively maintained as trade secrets and such third party does not have any valid
defense.

We have licensed from Genentech certain intellectual property rights, including patent rights and
pre-clinical and clinical data, and manufacturing know-how, to develop and commercialize rh1GF-1 worldwide
for a broad range of indications. Such U.S. patents expire between 2010 and 2020, Our U.S. patent No. 6,331,414
B1 licensed from Genentech is directed to methods for bacterial expression of rthIGF-1 and expires in 2018. We
have no equivalent European patent. The European Patent Office has determined that the claims of Genentech’s
corresponding European patent application are not patentable under European patent law in view of public
disclosures made before the application was filed.
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We have licensed from Ipsen their intellectual property rights, including patent rights and pre-clinical and
clinical data, to develop and commercialize Somatuline® Autogel® in the United States and Canada for a broad
range of indications. Such rights include U.S. patents for the formulation and for methods of using Somatuline®
Autogel® that expire between 2015 and 2019. We do not have patent composition coverage on the lanreotide
molecule (the active pharmaceutical ingredient of Somatuline® Autogel®) alone.

There has been increasing litigation in the biopharmaceutical industry with respect to the manufacture and
sale of new therapeutic products. The validity and breadth of claims in biotechnology patents may involve
complex factual and legal issues for which no consistent policy exists. In particular, the patent protection
available for protein-based products, such as rhIGF-1, is highly uncertain and involves issues relating to the
scope of protection of claims to gene sequences and the production of their corresponding proteins.

There can be no assurance that our licensed patents will not be successfully circumvented by competitors. In
particular, we do not have patent composition coverage on the rhIGF-1 protein alone, and we are aware that
Chiron Corporation has developed a process to manufacture thIGF-1 using yeast expression, rather than bacterial
expression. In addition, the patent laws of foreign countries differ from those in the United States and the degree
of protection afforded by foreign patents may be different from the protection offered by U.S. patents. Our
competitors may obtain patents in the United States and Europe directed to methods for the manufacture or use of
rhIGF-1 that may be necessary for us to conduct our business free from claims of patent infringement. We may
not be able to license such patents on reasonable terms, if at all.

We may need additional intellectual property from other third parties to commercialize rhIGF-1 for
diabetes. We cannot be sure that we will be able to obtain a license to any third party technology we may require
to conduct our business.

In some cases, litigation or other proceedings may be necessary to defend against claims of infringement, to
enforce patents licensed to us, to protect our know-how or other intellectual property rights or to determine the
scope and validity of the proprietary rights of third parties. Any potential litigation could result in substantial cost
to us and diversion of our resources. We cannot be sure that any of our licensed patents will ultimately be held
valid. An adverse outcome in any litigation or proceeding could subject us to significant liability.

Declaratory judgments of invalidity against the patents asserted in any such actions could prevent us from
using the affected patents to exclude others from competing with us.

We generally enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees and consultants. Our confidentiality
agreements generally require our employees and consultants to hold in confidence and not disclose any of our
proprietary information. Despite our efforts to protect our proprietary information, unauthorized parties may
attempt 1o obtain and use our proprietary information. Policing unauthorized use of our proprietary information is
difficult, and the steps we have taken might not prevent misappropriation, particularly in foreign countries where
the laws may not protect our proprietary rights as fully as do the laws of the United States.

We have applied for registration of the trademarks “Increlex™,” “Tercica” and the Tercica logo in the
United States.

Competition

The biotechnology industry is intensely competitive and characterized by rapid technological progress. In
each of our potential product areas, we face significant competition from large pharmaceutical, biotechnology
and other companies. Most of these companies have substantially greater capital resources, research and
development staffs, facilities and experience at conducting clinical trials and obtaining regulatory approvals. In
addition, many of these companies have greater expericnce, expertise and resources in developing and
commercializing products.
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We cannot predict the relative competitive positions of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel®. However, we
expect that the following factors, among others, will determine our ability to compete effectively:

» acceptance of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel® by physicians and patients as a safe and effective
treatment;

* reimbursement adoption;

» product price;

* manufacturing costs;

* the effectiveness of our and Ipsen’s sales and marketing efforts;
* storage requirements and ease of administration;

* dosing regimen;

+ safety and efficacy;

» prevalence and severity of side effects; and

= competitive products.

We believe that many of our competitors spend significantly more on research and development-related
activities than we do. Our competitors may discover new treatments, drgs or therapies or develop existing
technologies te compete with our products. Our commercial opportunities will be reduced or eliminated if these
competing products are more effective, have fewer or less severe side effects, are more convenient or are less
expensive than our products,

Growth hormone products compete with Increlex™ for the treatment of severe Pnmary IGFD. If Increlex™
receives regulatory approval for the treatment of patients with Primary IGFD, growth hormone products will also
compete with Increlex™ for the treatment of patients in that indication. The major suppliers of commercially
available growth hormone products in the United States are Genentech, Eli Lilly and Company, Teva
Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd., Novo Nordisk A/S, Pfizer Inc., and Serono S.A. Investigators from a Novo
Nordisk climical trial presented data that demonstrated growth hormone was effective in a population that
included children with Primary IGFD.

In addition, children with Primary IGFD may be diagnosed as having I1SS. Eli Lilly and Company and
Genentech have received FDA approval for their respective growth hormone products for the treatment of
children with ISS in the United States, and Ipsen is seeking ISS approval for its growth hormone product in
Europe. Moreover, biosimilar growth hormone products, including Omnitrope marketed by Sandoz, a division of
the Novartis group, have been or may be approved in the United States and other countries. Accordingly, we
expect that several growth hormene products will compete directly with Increlex™ for the wreatment of children
with Primary 1GFD.

In addition, we are aware that Chiron Corporation has developed a process to manufacture thIGF-1 using
yeast expression and has intellectual property with respect to that process. We use bacterial expression, which
differs from yeast expression, to manufacture Increlex™,

We believe that Bristol-Meyers Squibb Company, Genentech, Merck & Co., Inc., Novo Nordisk and Pfizer
Inc. have conducted research and development of orally available small molecules that cause the release of
growth hormone, known as growth hormone secretagogues. We believe that Sapphire Therapeutics has licensed
certain rights to Novo Nordisk’s growth hormone secretagogues and is actively developing one of these
compounds for use in cancer cachexia, a wasting disorder affecting some cancer patients. These products work
by increasing the levels of thIGF-1 and, if approved, could potentially compete with Increlex™, It is possible that
there are other products currently in development or that exist on the market that may compete directly with
Increlex™,
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Somatuline® Autoge!®. Somatuline® Autogel® is approved in Canada for the treatment of acromegaly.
Together with Ipsen we are seeking regulatory approval for the same indication in the United States. In Canada,
and in the United States if approved, Somatuline® Autogel® will compete directly with Sandostatin® LAR®
Depot and Somavert®. Sandostatin® LAR® Depot is a somatostatin analogue and has the same mechanism of
action as Somatuline® Autogel®. Sandostatin® LAR® Depot is indicated for long-term maintenance therapy in
patients with acromegaly and in the treatment of symptoms related to carcinoid syndrome and vasoactive
intestinal peptide tumors. Somavert®, a growth hormone antagonist, and Sandostatin® LAR® Depot are marketed
by Pfizer and Novartis, respectively, in the United States and Canada. Moreover, a subset of patients with
acromegaly can be treated with radiotherapy and dopaminergic agonists. These therapies are commercially
available in the United States and Canada and will also compete with Somatuline® Autogel® for the treatment of
patients with acromegaly.

We are aware that Ambrilia Biopharma, QLT Inc., Valera Pharmaceuticals and Camurus AB are conducting
research and development programs with long acting versions of octreotide for the treatment of acromegaly.
Octreotide is the generic name of the active molecule in Sandostatin® and Sandostatin® LAR® Depot. We are
also aware that Novartis is developing pasiretide (SOM 230) and that Ipsen is developing dopastatin for the
treatment of acromegaly and other hormone secreting tumors. If approved, these therapies would compete with
Somatuline® Autogel® in these indications. It is possible that there are other products currently in development
or that exist on the market that may compete directly with Somatuline® Autogel®.

Government Regulation and Product Approval

The FDA and comparable regulatory agencies in state and local jurisdictions and in foreign countries
impose substantial requirements upon the clinical development, manufacture and marketing of pharmaceutical
products. These agencies and other federal, state and local entities regulate the testing, manufacture, quality
control, safety, effectiveness, labeling, storage, record keeping, advertising and promotion of our products.
Failure to comply with regulatory requirements may result in criminal prosecution, civil penalties, recall or
seizure of products, total or partial suspension of production or injunction, as well as other actions that could
affect our potential products or us. Any failure by us to comply with regulatory requirements, to obtain and
maintain regulatory approvals, or any delay in obtaining regulatory approvals could materially adversely affect
our business.

The process required by the FDA before drugs may be marketed in the United States generally involves the
following:

» pre-clinical 1aboratory and animal tests;

+ submission of an IND application, which must become effective before human clinical trials may begin;

+ adequate and well-controlled human clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the proposed
drug for its intended use; and

« FDA approval of an NDA.

The testing and approval process requires substantial time, effort, and financial resources, and we cannot be
certain that any approvals for rhIGF-1 or Somatuline® Autogel® will be granted on a timely basis, if at all.

Once a pharmaceutical candidate is identified for development it enters the pre-clinical testing stage. During
pre-clinical studies, laboratory and animal studies are conducted to show biological activity of the drug candidate
in animals, both healthy and with the targeted disease. Also, pre-clinical tests evaluate the safety of drug
candidates. Pre-clinical tests must be conducted in compliance with good laboratory practice regulations. In some
cases, long-term pre-clinical studies are conducted while clinical studies are ongoing.

Prior to commencing a clinical trial, we must submit an IND application to the FDA. The IND automatically
becomes effective 30 days after receipt by the FDA, unless the FDA, within the 30-day time period, raises
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concerns or questions. In such a case, the IND sponsor and the FDA must resolve any outstanding concerns
before the clinical trial can begin. Our submission of an IND may not result in FDA authorization to commence a
clinical trial. All clinical trials must be conducted under the supervision of a qualified investigator in accordance
with good clinical practice regulations. These regulations include the requirement that all subjects provide
informed consent. Further, an independent institutional review board at the medical center proposing to conduct
the clinical trial must review and approve the plan for any clinical trial before it commences. Reports detailing
the results of the clinical trials must be submitted at least annually to the FDA, and more frequently, if adverse
events OCCur.

Human clinical trials are typically conducted in three sequential phases that may overlap:

* Phase I: The drug is initially introduced into healthy human subjects or patients and tested for safety,
dosage tolerance, absorption, metabolism, distribution and excretion.

* Phase 1I: Involves studies in a limited patient popalation to identify possible adverse effects and safety
nisks, to determine the efficacy of the product for specific targeted diseases and to determine dosage
tolerance and optimal dosage.

* Phase lI: Clinical trials are undertaken to further evaluate dosage, clinical efficacy and safety in an
expanded patient population at geographically dispersed clinical study sites. These studies are intended to
establish the overall risk-benefit ratio of the product and provide, if appropriate, an adequate basis for
product labeling.

* In the case of some products for severe or life-threatening diseases, especially when the product may be
too inherently toxic to ethically administer to healthy volunteers, the initial human testing is often
conducted in patients. Because these patients already have the target disease, these studies may provide
initial evidence of efficacy traditionally obtained in Phase II trials, and thus these trials are frequently
referred to as Phase I/1I trials.

The FDA or an institutional review board or the sponsor may suspend a clinical trial at any time on various
grounds, including a finding that the subjects or patients are being exposed to an unacceptable health risk.

Concurrent with clinica! trials and pre-clinical studies, companies also must develop information about the
chemistry and physical characteristics of the drug and finalize a process for manufacturing the product in
accordance with cGMP requirements. The manufacturing process must be capable of consistently producing
quality batches of the product and the manufacturer must develop methods for testing the quality, purity, and
potency of the final drugs. Additionally, appropriate packaging must be selected and tested and chemistry
stability studies must be conducted to demonstrate that the product does not undergo unacceptable deterioration
over 1ts shelf-life.

The results of product development, pre-clinical studies and clinical studies, along with descriptions of the
manufacturing process, analytical tests conducted on the chemistry of the drug, and results of chemical studies
are submitted to the FDA as part of an NDA requesting approval to market the product. The FDA reviews all
NDAs submitted before it accepts them for filing. It may request additional information rather than accept an
NDA for filing. In this event, the NDA must be resubmitted with the additional information. The resubmitted
application also is subject to review before the FDA accepts it for filing. Once the submission is accepted for
filing, the FDA begins an in-depth review of the NDA. The submission of an NDA is subject to user fees, but a
waiver of such fees may be obtained. The FDA may deny an NDA if the applicable regulatory criteria are not
satisfied or may require additional clinical or other data. Even if such data is submitted, the FDA may ultimately
decide that the NDA does not satisfy the criteria for approval. Once issued, the FDA may withdraw product
approval if compliance with regulatory standards is not maintained or if problems occur after the product reaches
the market. In addition, the FDA may require testing and surveillance programs to monitor the effect of approved
products, which have been commercialized, and the FDA has the power to prevent or limit further marketing of a
product based on the results of these post-marketing programs.
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The FDA has established priority and standard review classifications for original NDAs and efficacy
supplements. Priority review applies to the time frame for FDA review of completed marketing applications and
is separate from and independent of orphan drug status and the FDA’s fast track and accelerated approval
mechanisms. The classification system, which does not preclude the FDA from doing work on other projects,
provides a way of prioritizing NDAs upon receipt and throughout the FDA application review process.

The classification system sets the target date for the completion of FDA review and for taking action to
approve or not approve an NDA after its acceptance for filing. If the priority review designation criteria are not
met, standard review procedures apply. Under the Prescription Drug User Fee Amendments of 2002, the FDA’s
performance goals for fiscal years 2003-2007 involve reviewing 90% of priority applications within six months
of filing and 90% of standard applications within ten months of submission of the NDA.

Priority designation applies to new drugs that have the potential for providing significant improvement
compared to marketed products in the treatment, diagnosis or prevention of a disease. Hence, even if an NDA is
initially classified as a priority application, this status can change during the FDA review process, such as in the
situation where another product is approved for the same disease for which previously there was no available
therapy.

We cannot guarantee that the FDA will grant a request for priority review designation or will permit
expedited development, accelerated approval, or treatment use of any product. We also cannot guarantee that if
such statutory or regulatory provisions apply to our products, that they will necessarily affect the time period for
FDA review or the requirements for approval. Additionally, the FDA's approval of drugs can include restrictions
on the product’s use or distribution, such as permitting use only for specified medical procedures, limiting
distribution to physicians or facilities with special training or experience, or requiring pre-submission of
advertising and promotional materials.

Satisfaction of FDA requirements or simitar requirements of state, local and foreign regulatory agencies
typically takes several years and the actual time required may vary substantially, based upon the type, complexity
and novelty of the product or disease. Government regulation may delay or prevent marketing of potential
products or new diseases for a considerable period of time and impose costly procedures upon our activities.
Success in early stage clinical trials does not assure success in later stage clinical trials. Data obtained from
clinical activities are not always conclusive and may be susceptible to varying interpretations, which could delay,
limit or prevent regulatory approval. Even if a product receives regulatory approval, the approval may be
significantly limited to specific diseases and dosages. Further, even after regulatory approval is obtained, later
discovery of previously unknown problems with a product may result in restrictions on the product or even
complete withdrawal of the product from the market. Delays in obtaining, or failures to obtain regulatory
approvals for thIGF-1 could harm our business. In addition, we cannot predict what adverse governmental
regulations may arise from future U.S. or foreign governmental action.

Any drug products manufactured or distributed by us pursuant to FDA approvals are subject to continuing
regulation by the FDA, including record-keeping requirements, reporting of adverse experiences with the drug,
drug sampling and distribution requirements, notifying the FDA and gaining its approval of certain
manufacturing or labeling changes, complying with certain electronic records and signature requirements, and
complying with FDA promotion and advertising requirements. Drug manufacturers and their subcontractors are
required to register their establishments with the FDA and certain state agencies, and are subject to periodic
unannounced inspections by the FDA and certain state agencies for compliance with ¢cGMP, which impose
certain procedural and documentation requirements upon us and our third party manufacturers. We cannot be
certain that we or our present or future suppliers will be able to comply with the pharmaceutical cGMP
regulations and other FDA regulatory requirements.

The FDA’s policies may change and additional government regulations may be enacted which could prevent
or delay regulatory approval of Increlex™ for other indications, including Primary IGFD, and Somatuline®
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Autogel® for acromegaly. We cannot predict the likelihood, nature or extent of adverse governmental regulation,
which might arise from future legislative or administrative action, either in the United States or abroad.

Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may grant orphan drug designation to drugs intended to treat rare
diseases or conditions, which are generally diseases or conditions that affect fewer than 200,000 individuals in
the U.S. Orphan drug designation must be requested before submitting an NDA, After the FDA grants orphan
drug designation, the identity of the therapeutic agent and its potential orphan use are disclosed publicly by the
FDA. Orphan drug designation does not convey any advantage in or shorten the duration of the regulatory review
and approval process. If a product that has orphan drug designation subsequently receives FDA approval for the
disease or condition for which it has such designation, the product is entitled to orphan exclusivity, which means
that the FDA may not approve any other applications to market the same drug for the same indication, except in
limited circumstances, for seven years. The FDA may, however, approve applications to market the same drug
for different indications, and applications to market different drugs for the same indication as the drug that has
orphan exclusivity.

The FDA granted Increlex™ seven years of orphan exclusivity for the long-term treatment of growth failure
in children with severe Primary IGFD or with growth hormone gene deletion who have developed neutralizing
antibodies to growth hormone. In addition, we intend to file for orphan drug designation for other rhIGF-1
diseases that meet the criteria for orphan exclusivity.

Under the Drug Price Competition and Patent Term Restoration Act of 1984, also known as the Hatch-
Waxman Act, Congress created an abbreviated FDA review process for generic versions of pioneer (brand name)
drug products like Increlex™. The law also provides incentives by awarding, in certain circumstances, non-patent
marketing exclusivities to pioneer drug manufacturers. For example, the Hatch-Waxman Act provides five years
of “new chemical entity” exclusivity to the first applicant to gain approval of an NDA for a product that does not
contain an active ingredient found in any other approved product. The FDA granted Increlex™ new chemical
entity exclusivity, which expires on August 30, 2010.

During this period, the FDA is prohibited from accepting any abbreviated NDA, or an ANDA, for a generic
version of Increlex™. An ANDA is a type of application in which approval is based on a showing of “sameness”
to an already approved drug product. An ANDA does not contain full reports of safety and effectiveness, as do
NDAs, but rather demonstrates that the proposed product is “the same as” a reference product in terms of
conditions of use, active ingredient, route of administration, dosage form, strength, and labeling. ANDA
applicants are also required to demonstrate the “bioequivalence” of their products to reference products.
Bioequivalence generally means that there is no significant difference in the rate and extent to which the active
ingredient in the products becomes available at the site of drug action. ANDAS also must contain data relating to
formulation, raw materials, stability, manufacturing, packaging, labeling, and quality control, among other
information.

During this exclusivity period, the FDA is also prohibited from accepting any NDA for a modified version
of Increlex™ where the applicant does not own or have a legal right of reference to all of the data required for
approval, otherwise known as a 505(b)(2) application. The FDA has determined that 505(b)(2) applications may
be submitted for products that represent changes to approved products like Increlex™. Such changes may be to
the approved product’s conditions of use, active ingredient, route of administration, dosage form, strength,
labeling, or bicavailability. A 505(b)(2) applicant also may reference more than one approved product. It is the
FDA’s position that such an applicant must only submit the pre-clinical and clinical data necessary to
demonstrate the safety and effectiveness of the changes made to the approved product,

This new chemical entity exclusivity protects the entire new chemical entity franchise, including all
products containing Increlex™s active ingredient for any use and in any strength or dosage form. This
exclusivity will not, however, prevent the submission or approval of a full NDA, as opposed to an ANDA or
505(b)(2) application, for any drug, including a drug with the same conditions of use, active ingredient, route of
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administration, dosage form, and strength as Increlex™. In addition, an ANDA or a 505(b){2) application may be
submitted after four years, rather than five years, if that ANDA or 505(b)(2) application contains a certification
(known as a “Paragraph 1V certification”) that one of the patents listed with the Increlex™ NDA is invalid or will
not be infringed by the manufacture, use, or sale of the product described in that ANDA or 505(b)(2) application.

The Hatch-Waxman Act also provides three years of new use exclusivity for the approval of NDAs,
505(b)(2) applications, and NDA supplements, where those applications contain the results of new clinical
investigations (other than bioavailability studies) essential to the FDA’s approval of the applications. Such
applications may be submitted for new indications, new dosage forms, new strengths, or new conditions of use of
already approved products like Increlex™. So long as the new clinical investigations are essential to the FDA’s
approval of the change, this new use exclusivity prohibits the approval of ANDAs or 505(b)(2) applications for
products with the specific changes associated with those clinical investigations. Should Increlex™ receive this
exclusivity, however, it will not prevent the submission or approval of a full NDA for any drug, including a drug
with the same changes as are protected by the exclusivity. It also would not prohibit the FDA from accepting or
approving ANDAs or 505(b)(2) applications for other products containing the same active ingredient. 1t would
only protect against the approval of ANDAs and 505(b)(2) applications for products with the specific changes to
Increlex™ that were approved based on the new clinical investigations.

The Hatch-Waxman Act also requires an ANDA or 505(b)(2) applicant that has submitted an ANDA or a
505(b)(2) application with a Paragraph IV certification to notify the owner of the patent that is the subject of the
Paragraph IV certification and the holder of the approved NDA of the factual and legal basis for the applicant’s
opinion that that patent is invalid or will not be infringed by the manufacture, use, or sale of the product
described in that ANDA or 505(b)(2) application. The NDA holder or patent owner may then sue such an ANDA
or 505(b)(2) applicant for infringement. If the

NDA holder or patent owner files suit within 45 days of receiving notice of the Paragraph IV certification, a
one-time 30-month stay of the FDA's ability to approve the ANDA or 505(b)(2) application is triggered.
However, the FDA may approve the ANDA or 505(b)(2) application before the expiration of the 30-month stay
if a court finds the patent invalid or not infringed, or if the court shortens the 30-month period because a party
failed to cooperate in expediting the litigation. In addition, if the NDA holder or patent owner chooses not to sue
such an ANDA or 505(b)(2) applicant after receiving notification of the Paragraph 1V certification, or sues
outside of the 45-day window, the FDA may approve the ANDA or 505(b)(2) application whenever all of the
other requirements for approval are met.

The FDA Modernization Act of 1997 included a pediatric exclusivity provision that was extended by the
Best Pharmaceuticals for Children Act of 2002. Pediatric exclusivity is designed to provide an incentive to
manufacturers to conduct research about the safety and effectiveness of their products in children. Pediatric
exclusivity, if granted, provides an additional six months of market exclusivity in the United States for new or
currently marketed drugs. Under Section 505a of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cosmetic Act, the extra six months
of market exclusivity may be granted in exchange for the voluntary completion of pediatric studies in accordance
with an FDA-issued “Written Request.” The FDA may issue a Written Request for studies on unapproved or
approved indications, where it determines that information relating to the use of a drug in a pediatric population,
or part of a pediatric population, may produce health benefits in that population. We have not requested or
received a Written Request for such pediatric studies, although we may ask the FDA to issue a Written Request
for such studies in the future. To receive the six-month pediatric exclusivity, we would have to receive a Written
Request from the FDA, conduct the requested studies, and submit reports of the studies in accordance with a
written agreement or commonly accepted scientific principles. There is no guarantee that the FDA will issue a
Written Request for such studies or accept the reports of the studies. We believe that Increlex™ may become
eligible for pediatric exclusivity, although there can be no assurances that FDA will grant such exclusivity. The
current pediatric exclusivity provision is scheduled to expire on October 1, 2007, and there can be no assurances
that it will be reauthorized.
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Reimbursement

Sales of biopharmaceutical products depend in significant part on the availability of third-party
reimbursement. Third-party payors provide reimbursement for Increlex™ and, if approved by the FDA, we
expect they would pay for Somatuline® Autogel®. It is time consuming and expensive for us to seek
reimbursement from third-party payors. Reimbursement may not be available or sufficient to allow us to sell our
products on a competitive and profitable basis.

The passage of the Medicare Prescription Drug and Modernization Act of 2003, or the MMA, imposed new
requirements for the distribution and pricing of prescription drugs for Medicare beneficiaries, which may affect
the marketing of our products. The MMA also introduced a new reimbursement methodology, part of which went
into effect in 2004. At this point, it is not clear what effect the MMA will have on the prices paid for currently
approved drugs and the pricing options for new drugs approved after January 1, 2006. Moreover, while the MMA
applies only to drug benefits for Medicare beneficiaries, private payors often follow Medicare coverage policy
and payment limitations in setting their own payment rates. Any reduction in payment that results from the MMA
may result in a similar reduction in payments from non-governmental payors.

In addition, in some foreign countries, the proposed pricing for a drug must be approved before it may be
lawfully marketed. The requirements governing drug pricing vary widely from country to country. For example,
the European Union provides options for its member states to restrict the range of medicinal products for which
their national health insurance systems provide reimbursement and to control the prices of medicinal products for
human use. A member state may approve a specific price for the medicinal product or it may instead adopt a
system of direct or indirect controls on the profitability of the medicinal product.

We expect that there will continue to be a number of federal and state proposals to implement governmental
pricing controls. While we cannot predict whether such legislative or regulatory proposals will be adopted, the
adoption of such proposals could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
profitability.

Employees

As of December 31, 2006, we had 106 full-time employees. Of the full-time employees, 34 were engaged in
research and product development and 72 were engaged in selling, general and administrative positions. We
believe that our employee base will need to grow in order to execute our development and commercialization
plans for thIGF-1. We believe our relations with cur employees are good.
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Executive Officers of the Registrant

Our executive officers, their ages and their positions as of March 7, 2007, are as follows:

Name Age  Position(s)

John A. Scarlett, MD. ............... 56 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Ross G.Clark, PhD. ................ 56  Chief Technical Officer and Director

AjayBansal ... 45 Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance

Richard A. King .................... 42  Chief Qperating Officer

Stephen N. Rosenfield ............... 57 Executive Vice President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel
and Secretary

Andrew J. Grethlein, Ph.D. ........... 42  Senior Vice President, Pharmaceutical Operations

Thorsten von Stein, M.D., Ph.D. ....... 45  Chief Medical Officer and Senior Vice President of Clinical
and Regulatory Affairs

SusanWong ....... ... 44 Vice President, Finance and Chief Accounting Officer

John A. Scarlett, M.D., has served as our President and Chief Executive Officer and as a member of our
board of directors since February 2002, From March 1993 1o May 2001, Dr. Scarlett served as President and
Chief Executive Officer of Sensus Drug Development Corporation, a development stage pharmaceutical
company. In 1995, he co-founded Covance Biotechnology Services, Inc., 2 biotechnology contract manufacturing
company, and served as a member of its board of directors from inception to 2000. From 1991 to 1993,
Dr. Scarlett headed the North American Clinical Development Center and served as Senior Vice President of
Medical and Scientific Affairs at Novo Nordisk Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Novo
Nordisk A/S, a pharmaceutical company. From 1985 to 1990, Dr. Scarlett served as Vice President, Clinical
Affairs and headed the clinical development group at Greenwich Pharmaceuticals, Inc., a pharmaceutical
company. From 1982 to 1985, Dr. Scarlett served as Associale Director and, subsequently, as Director, of
Medical Research and Services at Ortho-McNeil Pharmaceuticals, a wholly owned subsidiary of Johnson &
Johnson. Dr. Scarlett received his B.A. degree in chemistry from Earlham College and his M.D. from the
University of Chicago, Pritzker School of Medicine.

Ross G. Clark, Ph.D., has served as our Chief Technical Officer since May 2002 and as a member of our
board of directors since December 2001. From December 2001 to August 2003, Dr. Clark served as Chairman of
our board of directors. From December 2001 to February 2002, Dr. Clark served as our Chief Executive Officer
and President. Dr. Clark founded Tercica Limited, our predecessor company in New Zealand, in September
2000. Since September 1997, Dr. Clark has served as Professor of Endocrinology at the University of Auckland.
From October 1997 to January 2000, Dr. Clark served as Chief Scientist for NeuronZ Limited, a New Zealand
biotechnology company. In July 1999, Dr. Clark served as a board member of ViaLactia Biosciences (NZ) Ltd, a
biotechnology subsidiary of the New Zealand Dairy Board. From 1990 to 1997, Dr. Clark served as a senior
scientist for Genentech, Inc., a biotechnology company. Dr. Clark received his B.Sc., Dip.Sci. and Ph.D. degrees
in veterinary physiology from Massey University, New Zealand.

Ajay Bansal has served as our Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Finance since March
2006. From February 2003 to January 2006, Mr. Bansal served as Vice Present of Finance and Administration
and Chief Financial Officer of Nektar Therapeutics. From July 2002 until February 2003, Mr. Bansal served as
Director of Operations Analysis at Capital One Financial. From August 1998 to June 2002, Mr. Bansal was at
Mehta Partners LLC, a financial advisory firm where he was named partner in January 2000. Prior to joining
Mehta Partners, Mr. Bansal spent more than 10 years in management roles at Novartis and in consulting at
Arthur D. Little, Inc., McKinsey & Company, Inc. and ZS Associates. Mr. Bansal holds a Bachelor of
Technology degree from the Indian Institute of Technology (Delhi), an M.S. in Operations Management from
Northwestern University and an M.B.A. from Northwestern University.

Richard A. King, has served as our Chief Operating Officer since February 2007. From January 2002 to
September 2006, Mr, King served as Executive Vice President, Commercial Operations of Kos Pharmaceuticals, Inc.,
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where he was respensible for sales, marketing, managed care, sales operations and customer service functions. From
January 2000 1o Janvary 2002, Mr. King served as Senior Vice President of Commercial Operations at Solvay
Pharmaceuticals. From January 1992 to January 2000, Mr. King held various marketing positions at SmithKline
Beecham Pharmaceuticals. Mr, King began his career in the pharmaceutical industry at Lederle Laboratories, Ltd.
Mr. King received his B.S. degree in chemical engineering from the University of Surrey and his M.B.A. from
Manchester Business School.

Stephen N. Rosenfield has served as our Executive Vice President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel and
Secretary since March 2006. From July 2004 through Febmary 2006, Mr. Rosenfield acted as our Senior Vice
President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary, From February 2003 to May 2004, Mr. Rosenfield
served as Executive Vice President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary of InterMune, Inc., a
biopharmaceutical company. From February 2000 to February 2003, Mr. Rosenfield served as Senior Vice
President of Legal Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary of InterMune, Inc. From February 1996 to March
2000, Mr. Rosenfield was as an attormey at Cooley Godward LLP and served as outside counsel for
biotechnology and technelogy clients. Mr. Rosenfield received his B.S. degree from Hofstra University and his
J.D. degree from Northeastermn University School of Law.,

Andrew Grethlein, Ph.D., has served as our Senior Vice President, Pharmaceutical Operations since August
2005 and served as our Vice President, Manufacturing from April 2003 to August 2005. From December 2000 to
April 2003, Dr. Grethlein served as Senior Director, South San Francisco Operations for Elan Corporation, ple, a
pharmaceutical company, From November 1998 to December 2000, he served as Director, Biopharmaceutical
Operations for Elan Corporation, plc. From 1997 to November 1998, Dr. Grethlein served as Associate Director,
Neurotoxin Production for Elan Corporation, plc. From 1995 to 1997, Dr. Grethlein served as Manager,
Biologics Development and Manufacturing for Athena Neurosciences, Inc., a biotechnology company. From
1991 to 1995, Dr. Grethiein served in various enginecring positions for Michigan Biotechnology Institute, a
non-profit technology research and business development corporation, and its wholly-owned subsidiary, Grand
River Technologies, Inc. Dr. Grethlein received his B.S. degree in biology from Bates College and his Ph.D. in
chemical engineering from Michigan State University.

Thorsten von Stein, M.D., Ph.D., has served as our Chief Medical Officer and Senior Vice President of
Clinical and Regulatory Affairs since January 2005. From August 2003 to January 2005, Dr. von Stein served as
Chief Medical Officer at NeurogesX, Inc., a pharmaceutical company. From December 2001 to July 2003,
Dr. von Stein served as Vice President, Clinical Development at Neurogesx. From 1994 to 2001, Dr. von Stein
held positions of increasing responsibility in medical research, global clinical development and project
management for Roche Palo Alto and F. Hoffman-La Roche AG in Basel, Switzerland. Dr. von Stein served as
Director of Medical Research at Reche Palo Alto from 1998 to December 2001. Dr. von Stein received his M.ID.
degree from Munich University, Germany, and his Ph.D. degree in computer science from the University of
Hamburg, Germany.

Susan Wong has served as our Vice President of Finance and Chief Accounting Officer since March 2006
and Acting Chief Financial Officer from June 2005 to March 2006; and Vice President, Finance and Controller
from January 2004 to March 2006. From November 2001 to December 2003, Ms. Wong was an independent
financial services consultant. From August 2000 to October 2001, she served as Senior Vice President and
Corporate Controller at innoVentry Corp., a privately-held provider of fee-based financial services. From
September 1993 to July 2000, Ms. Wong served as Vice President and Corporate Controller at Ocular Sciences,
Inc., a publicly-held manufacturer and distributor of soft contact lenses. From September 1989 to 1993,
Ms. Wong served as Director of Corporate Accounting and Financial Reporting, Planning & Analysis at Vanstar,
Inc., a computer reseller. Ms. Wong held varicus positions in the audit group at Coopers & Lybrand from August
1985 to August 1989. Ms, Wong is a Certified Public Accountant, and received her B.S. degree in finance and
accounting from University of California, Berkeley.
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Corporate Information

Tercica, Inc. was formed in December 2001 as a Delaware corporation. In early 2002, Tercica, Inc. acquired
all the intellectual property rights and assumed specified liabilities of Tercica Limited, which was formed in
October 2000 as a New Zealand company. Tercica Limited was subsequently liquidated.

Available Information

We file electronically with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, our annual reports on
Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to those reports filed
or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. We make available on
our website at http://www.tercica.com, free of charge, copies of these reports as soon as reasonably practicable
after filing these reports with, or fuishing them to, the SEC.
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Item 1A. Risk Factors.

We have identified the following additional risks and uncertainties that may have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition or results of operations. Investors should carefully consider the risks
described below before making an investment decision. The risks described below are not the only ones we face.
Additional risks not presently known to us or that we currently believe are immaterial may also significantly
impair our business operations. Our business could be harmed by any of these risks. The trading price of our
common stock could decline due to any of these risks, and investors may lose all or part of their investment.

Risks Related to Qur Business

We have a limited operating history and may not be able to successfully market and sell products,
generate significant revenues or attain profitability,

We are primarily focused on the development and commercialization of products for the treatment of short
stature and other endocrine disorders. We had an accumulated deficit of $248.7 million at December 31, 2006.
We had net revenues of $1.5 million and incurred a net loss of $83.0 million during the year ended December 31,
2006. We may not be able to generate significant revenues from operations and may not be able to attain
profitability. We expect to incur substantial net losses, in the aggregate and on a per share basis, for the
foreseeable future as we attempt 10 develop, market and sell Increlex™ for severe Primary IGFD and Primary
IGFD and Somatuline® Autogel® for acromegaly. We are unable to predict the extent of these futare net losses,
or when we may attain profitability, if at all. These net losses, among other things, have had and will continue to
have an adverse effect on our stockholders’ equity and net current assets,

We anticipate that for the foreseeable future our ability to generate revenues and achieve profitability will be
dependent on the successful commercialization by us and Ipsen of Increlex™ for the treatment of severe Primary
IGFD and Primary IGFD, as well as on the successful commercialization by us of Somatuline® Autogel® for
acromegaly in the United States and Canada. There is no assurance that we will be able to obtain or maintain
governmental regulatory approvals to market our products in the United States or rest of the world for these or
any other indications. If we are unable to generate significant revenue from Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel®,
or attain profitability, we will not be able to sustain our operations.

If there are fewer children with severe Primary IGFD or Primary IGFD than we estimate, our ability to
generate revenues sufficient to fund our development and commercialization efforts may be curtailed, or we
may not be able to complete our clinical trials for Increlex™ .

If there are fewer children with severe Primary IGFD or Primary IGFD than we estimate, our ability to
generate revenues sufficient to fund our development and commercialization efforts may be curtailed. We
estimate that the number of children in the United States with short stature is approximately one million, of
which approximately 380,000 are referred to pediatric endocrinologists for evaluation. We believe that
approximately 30,000 of these children have Primary IGFD, of which approximately 6,000 have severe Primary
IGFD. Our estimate of the size of the patient population is based on published studies as well as internal data,
including our interpretation of a study conducted as part of Genentech’s National Cooperative Growth Study
program. This study reported results of the evaluation of the hormonal basis of short stature in approximately
6,450 children referred to pediatric endocrinologists over a four-year period. We believe that the aggregate
numbers of children in Western Europe with Primary IGFD and severe Primary IGFD are substantially
equivalent to the numbers in the United States. If the results of Genentech’s study or our interpretation and
extrapolation of data from the study do not accurately reflect the number of children with Primary IGFD or
severe Primary IGFD, our assessment of the market may be incorrect, making it difficult or impossible for us to
meet our revenue goals or to receive royalties from our collaboration with Ipsen to the extent that we currently
anticipate, or to enroll a sufficient number of patients in our clinical trials on a timely basis, or at all.
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Our products may fail to achieve market acceptance, which could harm our business.

Prior to our January 2006 commercial launch of Increlex™ in the United States for the treatment of severe
Primary IGFD, thIGF-1 had never been commercialized in the United States or Europe for any indication. Even
though the FDA has approved Increlex™ for sale in the United States, and Somatuline® Autogel® has received
marketing approval in Canada, physicians may choose not to prescribe these products, and third-party payers
may choose not to pay for them, in which event we may be unable to generate significant revenue or become
profitable.

Acceptance of our products will depend on a number of factors including:

« acceptance of our products by physicians and patients as a safe and effective treatment;
* reimbursement adoption;

» product price;

« the effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforts;

« storage requirements and ease of administration;

« dosing regimen;

» safety and efficacy;

» prevalence and severity of side effects; and

* competitive products.

Reimbursement for our products may be slow, not available at the levels we expect, or not available at all,
resulting in our expected revenues being delayed or substantially reduced.

Market acceptance, our sales of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autoge!®, and our profitability will depend on
reimbursement policies and health care reform measures. The levels at which government authorities and third-
party payers, such as private health insurers and health maintenance organizations, reimburse the price patients
pay for our products, and the timing of reimbursement decisions by these payers, will affect the
commercialization of our products. If our assumptions regarding the timing of reimbursement decisions and level
of reimbursement, or regarding the age, dosage or price per patient for Increlex™ are incorrect, our expected
revenues, including potential royalties from our collaboration with Ipsen, may be delayed or substantially
reduced. Since Increlex™ is approved by the FDA for severe Primary IGFD, only prescriptions for that indication
may be reimbursable. Also, we cannot be sure that the formulary status that our products ultimately receive by
payers will not limit the ability of patients to afford our products and therefore reduce the demand for, or the
price of, our products. If reimbursement is not available or is available only to limited levels, we may not be able
to market and sell our products and our revenues may be delayed or substantially reduced.

We beljeve that the annua! wholesale acquisition cost of Increlex™ therapy for the treatment of severe
Primary IGFD for a 24 kilogram child at a 120mg/kg twice daily dose at 100% compliance is approximately
$27,200 per year. The actual cost per year per patient for Increlex™ will depend on the weight of the child, the
treatment dose prescribed and compliance. If our assumptions regarding the revenue per patient of Increlex™
therapy for the treatment of severe Primary IGFD and Primary 1GFD are incorrect, our expected revenues and the
market opportunity for Increlex™ therapy for the treatment of severe Primary IGFD and Primary 1GFD may be
substantially reduced.

In recent years, officials have made numerous proposals to change the health care system in the United
States. These proposals include measures that would limit or prohibit payments for certain medical treatments or
subject the pricing of drugs to government control. In addition, in many foreign countries, particularly in Canada
and the countries of the European Union, the pricing of prescription drugs is subject to government control. If our
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products become subject to government legislation that limits or prohibits payment for our products, or that
subjects the price of our products to governmental control, we may not be able to generate revenues, attain
profitability or market and sell our products. Because these initiatives are subject to substantial political debate,
which we cannot predict, the trading price of biotechnology stocks, including ours, may become more volatile as
this debate proceeds.

As a result of legislative proposals and the trend towards managed health care in the United Siaies, third-
party payers are increasingly attempting to contain health care costs by limiting both coverage and the level of
reimbursement of new drugs. They may also refuse to provide any coverage of uses of approved products for
medical indications other than those for which the FDA has granted market approvals, or require patients to pay
co-insurance for our products. As a result, significant uncertainty exists as to whether and how much third-party
payers will reimburse patients for their use of newly approved drugs, which, in tumn, could put pressure on the
pricing of drugs and/or the adoption of new products based on reimbursement policies.

We may not realize the anticipated benefits from our collaboration with Ipsen.

Somatuline® Autogel® may not receive U.S. regulatory approval in a timely manner, for the label that we
anticipate, or at all. Even if Somatuline® Autogel® receives U.S. regulatory approval, the approval may not be
maintained, including as a result of the failure to maintain compliance with cGMP regulations, and lpsen may be
unable to maintain the supply of the product. In addition, revenues from sales of Somatuline® Autogel® in the
United States and Canada may not meet our expectations, including as a result of competing products or
unavaiiable or limited reimbursement by third-party payers. Under the license and collaboration agreement with
respect to Somatuline® Autogel®, Ipsen may terminate the agreement in a particular country if we fail to meet
certain minimum sales and promotional requirements with respect to that country. It is also possible that Ipsen
will not be successful in marketing and selling Increlex™ in the licensed territories, or may be delayed in doing
50, in which case we would not receive royalties on the timeframe and to the extent that we currently anticipate.
We also may not be able to successfully develop additional products or improvements to, or new indications for,
Somatuline® Autogel® and/or Increlex™ or share the costs of such developments in a manner that is
commercially feasible for us. In addition to cross-licensing agreements for Somatuline® Autogel® and Increlex™,
we and Ipsen have granted to each other a right of first negotiation for products in our respective endocrine
pipelines and have agreed on a framework for joint clinical development and subsequent commercialization of
endocrine products on a worldwide basis. However, the development of Ipsen’s endocrine pipeline may not
advance at the rate we currently expect, or at all, and in any event, we cannot assure you that we will be able to
reach an agreement with Ipsen on reasonable terms, or at all, for any of these endocrine pipeline products. The
license and collaboration agreements would also be terminable by Ipsen under certain circumstances, including
certain change of control transactions. In any such or similar events, we may not realize the anticipated benefits
from our cellaboration with Ipsen.

There can be no assurance that we will receive all or any remaining portion of the anticipated proceeds from
our collaboration with Ipsen, nor can there be an assurance that we would achieve the anticipated benefits of our
collaboration with Ipsen. Further, we would be required to pay to Ipsen the principal amounts, including accrued
interest, under all three convertible notes we issued or that we may issue to Ipsen if Ipsen elects not to convert
these notes into shares of our common stock.

We are dependent on our collaboration with Ipsen for the development and commercialization of
Increlex™ outside of the United States, Canada and Japan and for a certain period of time, certain countries
of the Middle East and North Africa and Taiwan. We may also be dependent upon additional collaborative
arrangements in the future. These collaborative arrangements may place the development and
commercialization of our product candidates outside of our control, may require us to relinquish important
rights or may otherwise be on terms unfavorable to us.

Under the terms of our collaboration with Ipsen, we granted Ipsen the exclusive right to develop and
commercialize Increlex™ in all regions of the world except the United States, Japan, and Canada and for a certain
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period of time, certain countries of the Middle East and North Africa and Taiwan. We may also enter into
additional collaborations with third parties to develop and commercialize our product candidates. Dependence on
collaborators for the development and commercialization of our product candidates subjects us to a number of
risks, including:

+ we may not be able to control the amount and timing of resources that our collaborators devote to the
development or commercialization of product candidates or to their marketing and distribution, which
could adversely affect our ability 1o obtain milestone and royalty payments;

+ collaborators may delay clinical trials, provide insufficient funding for a clinical trial program, stop a
clinical trial or abandon a product candidate, repeat or conduct new clinical trials or require a new
formulation of a product candidate for clinical testing;

» disputes may arise between us and our collaborators that result in the delay or termination of the
research, development or commercialization of our product candidates or that result in costly litigation or
arbitration that diverts management’s attention and resources;

« our collaborators may experience financial difficulties;

+ collaborators may not properly maintain or defend our intellectual property rights or may use our
proprietary information in such a way as to invite litigation that could jeopardize or invalidate our
proprietary information or expose us to potential litigation;

+ business combinations or significant changes in a collaborator’s business strategy may also adversely
affect a collaborator’s willingness or ability to complete its obligations under any arrangement;

+ a collaborator could independently move forward with a competing product candidate developed either
independentty or in collaboration with others, including our competitors; and

« the collaborations may be terminated or allowed to expire, which would delay product development and
commercialization efforts.

We face significant competition from large pharmaceutical, biotechnology and other companies that
could harm our business.

The biotechnology industry is intensely competitive and characterized by rapid technological progress. In
each of our potential product areas, we face significant competition from large pharmaceutical, biotechnology
and other companies. Most of these companies have substantially greater capital resources, research and
development staffs, facilities and experience at conducting clinical trials and obtaining regulatory approvals. In
addition, many of these companies have greater experience, expertise and resources in developing and
commercializing products.

We cannot predict the relative competitive positions of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel®. However, we
expect that the following factors, among others, will determine our ability to compete effectively:

« acceptance of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel® by physicians and patients as a safe and effective
treatment;

« reimbursement adoption;

« product price;

* manufacturing costs;

« the effectiveness of our and Ipsen’s sales and marketing efforts;
+ storage requirements and ease of administration;

» dosing regimen;

+ safety and efficacy;
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« prevalence and severity of side effects; and

* competitive products.

We believe that many of our competitors spend significantly more on research and development-related
activities than we do. Our competitors may discover new treatments, drugs or therapies or develop existing
technologies to compete with our products. Our commercial opportunities will be reduced or eliminated if these
competing products are more effective, have fewer or less severe side effects, are more convenient or are less
expensive than our products.

Growth hormone products compete with Increlex™ for the treatment of severe Primary IGFD. If Increlex™
receives regulatory approval for the treatment of patients with Primary IGFD, growth hormone products will also
compete with Increlex™ for the treatment of patients in that indication. The major suppliers of commercially
available growth hormone products in the United States are Genentech, Eli Lilly and Company, Teva
Pharmaceutical Industries Ltd., Novo Nordisk A/S, Pfizer Inc and Serono S.A. Investigators from a Novo
Nordisk clinical trial presented data that demonstrated growth hormone was effective in a population that
included children with Primary IGFD,

In addition, children with Primary 1GFD may be diagnosed as having idiopathic short stature, or 1SS. Eli
Lilly and Company and Genentech have received FDA approval for their respective growth hormone products
for the treatment of children with ISS in the United States. Moreover, biosimilar growth hormone products,
inctuding Omnitrope marketed by Sandoz, a division of the Novartis group, have been or may be approved in the
United States and other countries. Accordingly, we expect that several growth hormone products will compete
directly with Increlex™ for the treatment of children with Primary IGFD.

In addition, we are aware that Chiron Corporation has developed a process to manufacture rhIGF-1 using
yeast expression and has intellectual property with respect to that process. We use bacterial expression, which
differs from yeast expression, to manufacture Increlex™,

We believe that Bristol-Meyers Squibb Company, Genentech, Merck & Co., Inc., Novo Nordisk and Pfizer
Inc. have conducted research and development of orally available small molecules that cause the release of
growth hormone, known as growth hormone secretagogues. We believe that Sapphire Therapeutics has licensed
certain rights to Novo Nordisk’s growth hormone secretagogues and is actively developing one of these
compounds for use in cancer cachexia, a wasting disorder affecting some cancer patients. These products work
by increasing the levels of thIGF-1 and, if approved, could potentially compete with Increlex™.

Somatuline® Autoget® is approved in Canada for the treatment of acromegaly and together with Ipsen, we
are seeking regulatory approval for the same indication in the United States. In Canada, and in the United States
if approved, Somatuline® Autogel® will compete directly with Sandostatin® LAR® Depot and Somaven®,
Sandostatin® LAR® Depot is a somatostatin analogue and has the same mechanism of action as Somatuline®
Autogel®. Sandostatin® LAR® Depot is indicated for long-term maintenance therapy in patients with acromegaly
and in the treatment of symptoms related to carcinoid syndrome and vasoactive intestinal peptide tumors.
Somavert®, a growth hormone antagonist, and Sandostatin® LAR® Depot are marketed by Pfizer and Novartis,
respectively, in the United States and Canada. Moreover, a subset of patients with acromegaly can be treated with
radiotherapy and dopaminergic agonists. These therapies are commercially available in the United States and
Canada and will also compete with Somatuline® Autoge!® for the treatment of patients with acromegaly.

We are aware that Ambrilia Biopharma, QLT Inc., Valera Pharmaceuticals, and Camurus AB are
conducting research and development programs with long acting versions of octreotide for the treatment of
acromegaly. Octreotide is the generic name of the active molecule in Sandosiatin® and Sandostatin® LAR®
Depot. We are also aware that Novartis is developing pasiretide and that Ipsen is developing dopastatin for the
treatment of acromegaly and other hormone secreting tumors. If approved, these therapies would compete with
Somatuline® Autogel® in these indications. It is possible that there are other products currently in development
or that exist on the market that may compete directly with Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel®,
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If we do not receive additional regulatory marketing approvals for the target labels, our business will be
harmed.

We are currently developing Increlex™ for the treatment of Primary IGFD. The FDA has substantial
discretion in the approval process and may decide that the data from our clinical trial is insufficient to allow
approval of Increlex™ for Primary IGFD for the target label. If we do not receive regulatory marketing approval
in the United States for Primary IGFD for the target label, our business will be harmed. We will also need to file
applications with regulatory authorities in foreign countries to market Increlex™ for Primary IGFD in foreign
countries. Although we have submitted a marketing authorization application in Europe for severe Primary
IGFD, there is no assurance that we will receive marketing approval in Europe for either severe Primary 1GFD or
Primary IGFD. In addition, if we fail to obtain European marketing approval for Increlex™ for the target label,
under our license and collaboration agreement with Ipsen (or for a label which provides access to an agreed upon
number of patients), we would not receive the European Medicines Agency, or EMEA, approval-related
milestone payment provided for under our agreement with Ipsen. Further, even if European marketing
authorization for Increlex™ is obtained but the target label or access to the agreed upon patient population is not
approved within three years from the date of obtaining such initial marketing authorization, we would not be
owed the EMEA approval-related milestone payment provided for under our agreement with Ipsen. Further, if
EMEA approvals are delayed, it would postpone our ability to receive royalties from the commercialization of
Increlex™ in Europe.

In addition, if FDA does not approve Somatuline® Autogel® for the treatment of acromegaly, or the
approval is significantly delayed, or we do not receive the target label that we anticipate, our ability to generate
revenues would be adversely affected, and our business would be harmed. We may also determine not to, or we
may be unable to develop or obtain FDA approval of Somatuline® Autogel® for indications other than
acromegaly, such as neuroendocrine tumors.

We rely solely on single-source third parties in the manufacture, testing, storage and distribution of
Increlex™.

We source all of our Increlex™ fill-finish manufacturing and testing and final product storage and
distribution operations, as well as all of our bulk manufacturing, testing, and shipping operations, through single-
source third-party suppliers and contractors. Single-source suppliers are the only approved suppliers currently
available to us, and could only be replaced by qualification of new sites for the same operations.

If our contract facilities, contractors or suppliers become unavailable to us for any reason, including as a
result of the failure to comply with cGMP regulations, manufacturing problems or other operational failures,
such as equipment failures or unplanned facility shutdowns required to comply with cGMP, damage from any
event, including fire, flood, earthquake or terrorism, business restructuring or insolvency, or if they fail to
perform under our agreements with them, such as failing to deliver commercial quantities of bulk drug substance
or finished product on a timely basis and at commercially reasonable prices, we may be delayed in manufacturing
Increlex™ or may be unable to maintain validation of Increlex™. This could delay or prevent the supply of
commercial and clinical product, or delay or otherwise adversely affect revenues. If the damage to any of these
facilities is extensive, or, for any reason, they do not operate in compliance with cGMP or are unable or refuse to
perform under our licenses and/or agreements, we will need to find alternative facilities. Further, we are
responsible for the manufacture and supply of Increlex™ to Ipsen {through our contract manufacturer) for Ipsen’s
clinical development and commercial needs. In the event we fail to meet Ipsen’s supply obligations, Ipsen would
have the right to exercise its option to manufacture Increlex™ on its own or to engage a third-party manufacturer
to do so. The number of contract manufacturers with the expertise and facilities to manufacture rhIGF-1 bulk
drug substance on a commercial scale in accordance with cGMP regulations is extremely limited, and it would
take a significant amount of time and expense to arrange for alternative manufacturers, If we need to change to
other commercial manufacturers, these manufacturers’ facilities and processes, prior to our use, would likely
have to undergo pre-approval and/or cGMP compliance inspections. In addition, we would need to transfer and
validate the processes and analytical methods necessary for the production and testing of rhIGF-1 to these new
manufacturers.
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Our inability to timely transfer to an alternate single-source manufacturer to fill-finish Increlex™ could
adversely affect our commercial supply and ability to grow revenues.

We currently source all of our Increlex™ fill-finish manufacturing and portions of release testing through a
single-source third-party supplier. This supplier is the only FDA-approved manufacturer currently available to
us, and could only be replaced by qualification of a new site for the same operations. We have negotiated a short-
term commercial agreement with this fill-finish manufacturer and during the term of this agreement, we are
attempting to move our process to another fill-finish manufacturer. It will take a significant amount of time and
expense to complete the transfer to, and validate an alternative manufacturer. For us to change to this commercial
fill-finish manufacturer, the manufacturer’s facilities and processes, prior to our use, will need to undergo
pre-approval and/or cGMP compliance inspections. In addition, we need to transfer and validate the processes
and certain analytical methods necessary for the production and testing of rthIGF-1 to this new manufacturer. A
delay in this transfer may also result in a shortage of our commercial product and a loss of revenues,

If our contract manufacturers’ and/or Ipsen’s facilities and operations do not maintain satisfactory
c¢GMP compliance, we may be unable to market and sell Increlex™ and/or Somatulines Autogele.

The facilities used by and operations of our contract manufacturers to manufacture and test Increlex™ must
undergo continuing inspections by the FDA for compliance with ¢cGMP regulations in order to maintain our
Increlex™ approval for the treatment of severe Primary IGFD. Similarly, the facilities used by and operations of
Ipsen to manufacture Somatuline® Autogel® must undergo an inspection by the FDA for compliance with cGMP
regulations before Somatuline® Autogel® can be approved. Currently, Lonza Baltimore is our sole provider of
bulk thIGF-1 and Ipsen is our sole provider of Somatuline® Autogel®. We have no alternative manufacturing
facilities or plans for additional facilities at this time. We do not know if the Lonza Baltimore facilities or their
operations required for the commercial manufacture of Increlex™ will continue to receive satisfactory cGMP
inspections and we do not know if Ipsen’s facilities or their operations required for the commercial manufacture
of Somatuline® Autogel® will receive a satisfactory ¢cGMP inspection. In the event these facilities or operations
do not receive, or continue to receive, satisfactory cGMP inspections for the manufacture of our products, or for
the operation of their facilities in general, we may need to invest in significant compliance improvement
programs, fund additional modifications to our manufacturing processes, conduct additional validation studies, or
find alternative manufacturing facilities, any of which would result in significant cost to us as well as result in a
delay or prevention of commercialization, and may result in our failure to obtain or maintain approvals. In
addition, Lonza Baltimore, and any alternative contract manufacturer we may utilize, will be subject to ongoing
periodic inspection by the FDA and corresponding state and foreign agencies for compliance with ¢cGMP
regulations and similar foreign standards. We do not have direct control over Ipsen’s or our contract
manufacturers’ compliance with these regulations and standards. Any of these factors could delay or suspend
clinical trials, regulatory submissions or regulatory approvals, entail higher costs and result in us being unable to
effectively market and sell our products or maintain our products in the marketplace, which would adversely
affect our ability to generate revenues.

We rely in certain cases on single-source and sole-source materials suppliers to manufacture Increlex™,

Certain specific components and raw materials used to manufacture Increlex™ at our third-party
manufacturers are obtained and made available through either single-source or sole-source suppliers. Single-
source suppliers are the only approved suppliers currently available to us, and could only be supplemented by
qualification of new sources for the material required. Sole-source suppliers are the only source of supply
available to vs, and could only be replaced through qualification of an alternate material after demonstrating
suitability. Supply interruption of these materials could result in a significant delay to our manufacturing
schedules and ability to supply product, and would likely be required to undergo lengthy regulatory approval
procedures prior to product distribution. Limits or termination of supply of these materials could significantly
impact our ability to manufacture Increlex™, cause significant supply delays while we qualified, at significant
expense, new suppliers or new materials, and would consequently cause harm to our business, including as a
result, our failure to meet our supply obligations to Ipsen.
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Difficulties or delays in product manufacturing due to advance scheduling requirements, capacity
constraints and/or manufacturing lot failures at our third-party manufacturers or Ipsen could harm our
operating results and financial performance.

The manufacture of Increlex™ requires successful coordination between us and all of our suppliers,
contractors, service-providers, and manufacturers. Coordination failures with these different elements of our
supply chain, or with Ipsen’s supply of Somatuline® Autogel® to us, could require us to delay shipments and/or
impair our ability to distribute and supply product, including increlex™ to Ipsen. Furthermore, uncertainties in
estimating future demand for new products such as Increlex™ may result in manufacture of surplus inventory
requiring us to record charges for any expired, unused product, or may result in inadequate manufacturing of
product inventory, causing delays to shipments or no shipments at all. Additionally, our reliance on third-party
manufacturing requires long lead times from order to delivery of product, and may be hampered by available
capacity at those manufacturers, making our ability to supply product supplies in excess of our forecast
extremely difficult. As a consequence, we may have inadequate capacity to meet unexpected demand, which
could negatively affect our operating results and our ability to meeting our supply obligations to Ipsen. Further,
our operating results and financial performance may suffer if we experience more than anticipated manufacturing
lot failures.

Claims and concerns may arise regarding the safety and efficacy of our products, which could require us
to perform additional clinical trials, could slow penetration into the marketplace, or cause reduced sales or
product withdrawal after introduction.

Increlex™ was approved in the United States for the treatment of severe Primary IGFD based on long-term
and extensive studies and clinical trials conducted to demonstrate product safety and efficacy. Somatuline®
Autogel® was approved in Canada for the treatment of acromegaly on a similar basis. Discovery of previously
unknown problems with the raw materials, product or manufacturing processes, such as loss of sterility,
contamination, new data suggesting an unacceptable safety risk or previously unidentified side effects for these
products, could result in a voluntary or mandated withdrawal of the products from the marketplace, either
temporarily or permanently. Studies may result in data or evidence suggesting another product is safer, better
tolerated, or more efficacious than our products, which could lead to reduced sales and royalties. Additionally,
discovery of unknown problems with our products or manufacturing processes for our products could negatively
impact the established safety and efficacy profile and result in possible reduced sales or product withdrawal.
Such outcomes could negatively and materially affect our product sales, royalty stream, operating results, and
financial condition.

If other companies overcome our U.S. orphan drug marketing exclusivity for Increlex™, or for
Somatuline® Autogel® if obtained, or obtain marketing exclusivity in Europe for the freatment af severe
Primary IGFD, they will be able to compete with us, and our revenues will be diminished.

Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may grant orphan drug designation to drugs intended 10 treat a rare
disease or condition, which is generally a disease or condition that affects fewer than 200,000 individuals in the
United States. The company that obtains the first FDA approval for a designated orphan drug for a rare disease
receives marketing exclusivity for use of that drug for the designated condition for a period of seven years.
Increlex™ has received from the FDA orphan drug marketing exclusivity for the long-term treatment of patients
with severe Primary IGFD. Ipsen is seeking orphan drug marketing exclusivity for Somatuline® Autogel® for
acromegaly in connection with the marketing approval application that Ipsen submitted to the FDA; however,
there can be no assurance that the EDA will grant marketing exclusivity to Somatuline® Autogel®.

Although Increlex™ has received marketing exclusivity for severe Primary IGFD, the FDA can still approve
different drugs for use in treating the same indication or disease covered by our product, which would create a
more competitive market for us. Similarly, there may be additional drugs for treating acromegaly that could
compete with Somatuline® Autogel® despite its seven-year orphan drug marketing exclusivity, even if granted by
the FDA.
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Furthermore, drugs considered to be the same as Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel® that are clinically
supertor or provide a major contribution to patient care may be approved for marketing by the FDA despite our
initial orphan drug marketing exclusivity for either Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel®, if obtained. If other
companies are able to overcome our U.S. orphan drug exclusivity, they will be able to compete with us, and our
revenues will be diminished.

We will not be able to sell our products if we are not able to maintain our regulatory approval due to
changes to existing regulatory requirements.

Although we have obtained regulatory approval for Increlex™ in the United States for the treatment of
severe Primary IGFD, this product and our manufacturing processes are subject to continued review and ongoing
regulation by the FDA post approval, including, for example, changes to manufacturing process standards or
good manufacturing practices, changes to product labeling, revisions to existing requirements or new
requirements for manufacturing practices, or changing interpretations regarding regulatory guidance. Such
changes in the regulatory environment and requirements could occur at any time during the commercialization of
Increlex™. We face similar risks with respect to the commercialization of Somatuline® Autogel® in Canada and,
if we receive FDA approval, in the United States. Changes in the regulatory environment or requirements could
adversely affect our ability to maintain our approval or require us to expend significant resources to maintain our
approvals, which could result in the possible withdrawal of our products from the marketplace, which would
harm our business and negatively impact our financial performance.

Competitors could develop and gain FDA approval of products confaining rhIGF-1, which could
adversely affect our competitive position.

In the future, thIGF-1 manufactured by other parties may be approved for use in the United States. For
example, we are aware that Chiron Corporation has developed a process to manufacture rhIGF-1 using yeast
expression and has intellectual property with respect to that process. In the event there are other rhIGF-1 products
approved by the FDA to treat indications other than those covered by Increlex™, physicians may elect to
prescribe a competitor’s product containing rhlGF-1 to treat the indications for which Increlex™ has received and
may receive approval. This is commonly referred to as off-label use. While under FDA regulations a competitor
is not allowed to promote off-label use of its product, the FDA does not regulate the practice of medicine and as a
result cannot direct physicians as to which product containing rhIGF-1 to prescribe to their patients. As a result,
we would have limited ability to prevent off-label use of a competitor’s product containing rhIGF-1 to treat any
diseases for which we have received FDA approval, even if it violates our method of use patents and/or we have
orphan drug exclusivity for the use of thIGF-1 to treat such diseases.

Competitors could challenge our patents and file an Abbreviated New Drug Application or a 505(b)(2)
new drug application for an IGF-1 or Somatuline® Autogel® product and adversely affect the competitive
position of each.

Products approved for commercial marketing by the FDA are subject to the provisions of the Drug Price
Competition and Patent Term Restoration Act of 1984, or “Hatch-Waxman Act.” The Hatch-Waxman Act
provides companies with marketing exclusivity for varying time periods during which generic or modified
versions of a drug may not be marketed and allows companies to apply to extend patent protection for up to five
additional years. It also provides a means for approving generic versions of a drug once the marketing exclusivity
period has ended and all relevant patents have expired. The period of exclusive marketing, however, may be
shortened if a patent is successfully challenged and defeated. Competitors with a generic IGF-1 or Somatuline®
Autogel® product or a modified version of IGF-1 or Somatuline® Autogel® may attempt to file an ANDA or a
505(b)(2) NDA and challenge our patents and marketing exclusivity. Such applications would have to certify that
one of the patents in the Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel® NDA is invalid or not infringed by the manufacture,
use, or sale of the product described in that ANDA or 505(b)(2) application under the Hatch-Waxman Act. If
successful, a competitor could come to market at an earlier time than expected, We can provide no assurances
that we can prevail in a challenge or litigation related to our patents or exclusivity.
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We are subject to “fraud and abuse” and similar laws and regulations, and a failure to comply with such
regulations or prevail in any litigation related to noncompliance could harm our business.

Upon approval of Increlex™ by the FDA, we became subject to various health care “fraud and abuse” laws,
such as the Federal False Claims Act, the federal anti-kickback statute and other state and federal laws and
regulations. Pharmaceutical companies have faced lawsuits and investigations pertaining to violations of these
laws and regulations. We cannot guarantee that measures that we have taken to prevent such violations, including
our corporate compliance program, will protect us from future violations, fawsuits or investigations. If any such
actions are instituted against us, and we are not successful in defending ourselves or asserting our rights, those
actions could have a significant impact on our business, including the imposition of significant fines or other
sanctions.

If we fail or are unable to protect or defend our intellectual property rights, competitors may develop
competing products, and our business will suffer.

If we are not able to protect our proprietary technology, trade secrets and know-how, our competitors may
use our inventions to develop competing products. We have licensed intellectual property rights, including patent
rights, relating to rhIGF-1 and Somatuline® Autogel® technologies from Genentech and Ipsen, respectively.
However, these patents may not protect us against our competitors. Patent litigation is very expensive, and we
therefore may be unable to pursue patent litigation to its conclusion because currently we do not generate
meaningful revenues.

We do not have patent composition coverage on the thIGF-1 protein alone. Although we have licensed from
Genentech its rights to its methods of use and manufacturing patents, it may be more difficult to establish
infringement of such patents as compared to a patent directed to the thIGF-1 protein composition alone. Our
licensed patents may not be sufficient to prevent others from competing with us. We cannot rely solely on our
patents to be successful. The standards that the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and foreign patent offices use
to grant patents, and the standards that U.S. and foreign courts use to interpret patents, are not the same and are
not always applied predictably or uniformly and can change, particularly as new technologies develop. As such,
the degree of patent protection obtained in the United States may differ substantially from that obtained in
various foreign countries. In some instances, patents have issued in the United States while substantially less or
no protection has been obtained in Europe or other countries. Our U.S. Patent No. 6,331,414 Bl licensed from
Genentech is directed to methods for bacterial expression of thIGF-1 and expires in 2018. We have no equivalent
European patent. The European Patent Office has determined that the claims of Genentech’s corresponding
European patent application are not patentable under European patent law in view of public disclosures made
before the application was filed.

We do not have patent composition coverage on the lanreotide molecule (the active pharmaceutical
ingredient of Somatuline® Autogel®) alone. We have licensed from Ipsen its rights to formulation and method of
use patents for Somatuline® Autogel® that expire between 2015 and 2019, and we intend to seck and obiain
seven-year orphan drug marketing exclusivity in connection with any marketing authorization for Somatuline®
Autogel® for the treatment of acromegaly in the United States. However, there can be no assurance that we have
patent rights sufficient to prevent others from competing with us, nor can there be any assurance that we will be
granted any orphan drug marketing exclusivity to block a competitor from marketing the same drug for the
treatment of acromegaly.

If we attempt to enforce against a competitor the patent rights we have licensed from Ipsen or the patent
rights we have licensed from Genentech, and if such patents are challenged in court by defenses the competitor
may raise, such as invalidity, unenforceability or possession of a valid license, we may fail to stop the competitor
and we may lose the ability to assert the affected patents against other competitors as well. If we assert the
patents we licensed from Ipsen in an infringement proceeding against a competitor, and if the court were to find
in favor of any defense of invalidity or unenforceability raised by the competitor against the asserted patents, we
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would be unable to use the affected patents to exclude others from competing with Somatuline® Autogel®, In
addition, the type and extent of patent claims that will be issued to us in the future are uncertain. Any patents that
are issued may not contain claims that will permit us to stop competitors from using technology similar to our
Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel® technologies.

In addition to the patented technology licensed from Genentech and Ipsen, we also rely on unpatented
technology, trade secrets and confidential information, such as the proprietary information we use to manufacture
Increlex™. We may not be able to effectively protect our rights to this technology or information. Other parties
may independently develop substantially equivalent information and techniques or otherwise gain access to or
disclose this technology. We generally require each of our employees, consultants, collaborators, and certain
contractors to execute a confidentiality agreement at the commencement of an employment, consulting or
collaborative relationship with us. However, these agreements may not provide effective protection of this
technology or information or, in the eveni of unauthorized use or disclosure, they may not provide adequate
remedies.

We may incur substantial costs as a result of patent infringement litigation or other proceedings relating
to patent and other intellectual property rights, and we may be unable to protect our intellectual property
rights.

A third party may claim that we are using its inventions covered by its patents and may initiate litigation to
stop us from engaging in our operations and activities. Although no third party has claimed that we are infringing
on their patents, patent lawsuits are costly and could affect our results of operations and divert the attention of
managerial and technical personnel. There is a risk that a court would decide that we are infringing the third
party’s patents and would order us to stop the activities covered by the patents. In addition, there is a risk that a
court will order us to pay the other party damages for having infringed the other party’s patents. The
biotechnology industry has produced a proliferation of patents, and it is not always clear to industry participants,
including us, which patents cover various types of products or methods of use. The coverage of patents is subject
to interpretation by the courts, and the interpretation is not always uniform. If we are sued for patent
infringement, we would need to demonstrate that our products or methods of use do not infringe the patent
claims of the relevant patent and/or that the patent claims are invalid, and we may not be able to do so. Proving
invalidity, in particular, is difficult since it requires a showing of clear and convincing evidence to overcome the
presumption of validity enjoyed by issued patents.

We are aware of a U.S. patent of Chiron Corporation related to processes of manufacturing thiGF-1 in yeast
host cells, to fusion proteins, DNA, and yeast host cells useful in such processes of manufacturing thIGF-1 in
yeast host cells, and to rhIGF-1 made as a product of such processes. While we use bacterial expression, not
yeast expression, in our process for manufacturing Increlex™, we cannot predict whether our activities relating to
the development and commercialization of Increlex™ in the United States will be found to infringe Chiron’s
patent in the event Chiron brings patent infringement proceedings against us. We may not be able to obtain a
license to Chiron’s patent under commercially reasonable terms, if at all. If we are unable to obtain a license to
Chiron’s patent, and if in any patent infringement proceeding Chiron brings against us the court decides that our
activities relating to the development and commercialization of Increlex™ in the United States infringe Chiron’s
patent, the court may award damages and/or injunctive relief to Chiron. Any such damages, injunctive relief and/
or other remedies the court may award could render any further development and commercialization of
Increlex™ commercially infeasible for us or otherwise curtail or cease any further development and
commercialization of Increlex™.

We cannot be certain that others have not filed patent applications for technology covered by the issued
patents of any of our licensors, or by our pending applications or by the pending applications of any of our
licensors, or that we or any of our licensors were the first to invent the technology because:

« some patent applications in the United States may be maintained in secrecy until the patents are issued,
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+ patent applications in the United States and many foreign jurisdictions are typically not published until
18 months after filing, and

+ publications in the scientific literature often lag behind actual discoveries and the filing of patents
relating to those discoveries.

Patent applications may have been filed and may be filed in the future covering technology similar to ours.
Any such patent application may have priority over our patent applications and could further require us to obtain
rights to issued patents covering such technologies. In the event that another party has filed a U.S. patent
application on inventions similar to ours, we may have to participate in an interference proceeding declared by
the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office to determine priority of invention in the United States. The costs of these
proceedings could be substantial, and it is possible that such efforts would be unsuccessful, resulting in a loss of
our U.S. patent position with respect to such inventions.

Some of our competitors may be able to sustain the costs of complex patent litigation more effectively than
we can because they have substantially greater resources. In addition, any uncertainties resulting from the
initiation and continuation of any litigation could harm our business.

Ipsen may seek to influence our business in a manner that is contrary to our goals or strategies or to the
interests of our other stockholders.

Based on its significant ownership position through certain protective provisions, Ipsen has the' ability to
significantly influence the outcome of certain actions by our Board of Directors and those requiring the approval
of our stockholders. Our other stockholders may be unable to prevent actions taken by Ipsen. Together with the
12,527,245 shares of our common stock that we issued in connection with the initial closing of our collaboration
with Ipsen, the conversion of the convertible notes we issued or that we may issue to Ipsen and the exercise of
the warrant that we issued to Ipsen would enable Ipsen to acquire an ownership interest in us of approximatcly
40% on a fully diluted basis, with the opportunity to increase its ownership position to 60% or greater through
market purchases upon the expiration of a one-year standstill period. Ipsen was also granted a preemptive right to
purchase its pro rata portion of new securities that we may offer in the future to maintain its percentage
ownership interest. In addition, under the terms of our affiliation agreement with Ipsen, so long as Ipsen holds at
least 15% of the outstanding shares of our common stock, Ipsen would be entitled to nominate two out of the
nine directors on our Board of Directors. In the event that Ipsen holds at least 10% of the outstanding shares of
our common stock, but less than 15%, it would be entitled to nominate one director to our Board of Directors.
Our affiliation agreement with Ipsen also provides that in the event Ipsen holds at least 60% of the outstanding
shares of our common stock, Ipsen is entitled to nominate an unlimited number of directors to our Board of
Directors. For so long as Ipsen holds at least 15% of the outstanding shares of our common stock, Ipsen is also
entitled to nominate additional independent director nominees, who must be independent of Ipsen, starting in
2008. Our certificate of incorporation was also amended in connection with our collaboration with Ipsen to waive
the corporate opportunity provisions under Delaware law and the corporate opportunity doctrine with respect to
opportunities of which Ipsen and Ipsen’s designees to our Board of Directors may become aware as a result of
their affiliation with us. Additionally, our certificate of incorporation provides that any person purchasing or
acquiring an interest in shares of our common stock shall be deemed to have consented to these provisions of our
certificate of incorporation. This deemed consent might restrict the ability to challenge transactions carried out in
compliance with these provisions. We make no assurances that Ipsen will not seek to influence our business in a
manner that is contrary to our goals or strategies or the interests of other stockholders. Moreover, persons who
are directors and/or officers of Ipsen and who also serve on our Board of Directors may decline to take action in a
manner that might be favorable to us but adverse to Ipsen. Currently, two of our directors, Jean-Luc Bélingard
and Christophe Jean, also serve as the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officer, respectively, of
Ipsen.
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If we lose our licenses from Genentech or Ipsen, we may be unable to continue our business.

We have licensed intellectual property rights and technology from Genentech and from Ipsen. Under our
license and collaboration agreements with Genentech and Ipsen, each of Genentech and Ipsen have the right to
terminate our licenses if we are in material breach of our obligations under our agreements with them and fail to
cure that breach. Under the terms of the agreements, we are obligated, among other things, to use reasonable
business efforts to meet specified milestones, including in the Genentech agreements, filing for regulatory
approval in the United States for either a diabetes indication or a substitute indication by December 31, 2008, If
any of these agreements are terminated, then we would lose our rights to utilize the technology and intellectuai
property covered by that agreement to develop, manufacture, market and sell Increlex™ for any indication and/or
to develop, market and sell Somatuline® Autogel®. This may prevent us from continuing our business,

We are subject to Genentech’s option rights with respect to the commercialization of Increlex™ for all
diabetes and non-orphan indications in the United States. We are also subject to Ipsen’s right of first
negotiation to develop and commercialize other products subsequently acquired or owned by us.

Under our U.S. license and collaboration agreement with Genentech, Genentech has the option to elect 1o
jointly commercialize rhIGF-1 for all diabetes and non-orphan indications in the United States. Orphan
indications are designated by the FDA under the Orphan Drug Act, and are generally rare diseases or conditions
that affect fewer than 200,000 individuals in the United States. With respect to those non-orphan and diabetes
indications in the United States, once Genentech has exercised its option to jointly develop and commercialize,
Genentech has the final decision on disputes relating to development and commercialization of such indications,
Our ability to sublicense the development and commercialization of such products requires the consent of
Genentech. In addition, under our license and collaboration agreement with Ipsen with respect to Increlex™,
Ipsen has a right of first negotiation © develop and commercialize, in Ipsen’s territory, other products
subsequently acquired or owned by us in the field of endocrinology. Accordingly, we may not receive a
reasonable return on our investment if we develop new endocrinology products,

We do not know whether our planned clinical trials will begin on time, or at all, or will be completed on
schedule, or at all.

The commencement or completion of any of our clinical trials may be delayed or halted for numerous
reasons, including, but not limited to, the following;

+ the FDA or other regulatory authorities either do not approve a clinical trial protocol or place a clinical
trial on clinical hold;

» patients do not enrol] in clinical trials at the rate we expect (for example, in our current Phase I clinical
trials of rhIGF-1 in Primary IGFD, patients have not enrolled at the rate we expected);

= patients experience adverse side effects;
= patients develop medical problems that are not related to our products or product candidates;

* third-party clinical investigators do not perform our clinical trials on our anticipated schedule or
consistent with the clinical trial protocol and good clinical practices, or other third-party organizations do
not perform data collection and analysis in a imely or accurate manner;,

* contract laboratories fail to follow good laboratory practices;

» interim results of the clinical trial are inconclusive or negative;

» sufficient quantities of the trial drug may not be available, or avaijlable drug may become unusable;
* our trial design, although approved, is inadequate to demonstrate safety and/or efficacy;

+ re-gvaluation of our corporate strategies and priorities; and

* limited financial resources.
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In addition, we may choose to cancel, change or delay certain planned clinical trials, or replace one or more
planned clinical trials with alternative clinical trials. Qur clinical trials or intended clinical trials may be subject
to further change from time to time as we evaluate our research and development priorities and available
resources. Our development costs will increase if we need to perform more or larger clinical trials than planned.
Significant delays for our current or planned clinical trials may harm the commercial prospects for Increlex™ and
our prospects for profitability.

Clinical development is a long, expensive and uncertain process, and delay or failure can occur at any
stage of any of our clinical trials.

To gain approval to market a product for treatment of a specific disease, we must provide the FDA and
foreign regulatory authorities with clinical data that demonstrate the safety and statistically significant efficacy of
that product for the treatment of the disease. Clinical development is a long, expensive and uncertain process, and
delay or failure can occur at any stage of any of our clinical trials. For example, we may seek to develop
Somatuline® Autogel® for indications other than acromegaly, such as neuroendocrine tumors, but we may
determine that such trials are prohibitively expensive and ultimately may not proceed with such trials. A number
of companies in the pharmaceutical industry, including biotechnology companies, have suffered significant
setbacks in advanced clinical trials, even after promising results in earlier trials. Success in pre-clinical testing
and early clinical trials does not ensure that later clinical trials will be successful. If a clinical trial failed to
demonstrate safety and statistically significant efficacy, we would likely abandon the development of that
product, which could harm our business and may result in a precipitous decline in our stock price.

If third-party clinical research organizations do not perform in an acceptable and timely manner, our
clinical trials could be delayed or unsuccessful.

We do not have the ability to conduct all of our clinical trials independently. We rely on clinical
investigators, third-party clinical research organizations and consultants to perform a substantial portion of these
functions. If we cannot locate acceptable contractors to run our clinical trials or enter into favorable agreements
with them, or if these contractors do not successfully carry out their contractual duties, satisfy FDA requirements
for the conduct of clinical trials, or meet expected deadlines, we may be unable 10 obtain or maintain required
approvals and may be unable to market and sell our products on a timely basis, if at all.

If we fail to identify and in-license other patent rights, products or product candidates, we may be unable
{0 grow our revenues.

We do not conduct any discovery research. Our strategy is to in-license products or product candidates and
further develop them for commercialization. The market for acquiring and in-licensing patent rights, products
and product candidates is intensely competitive. If we are not successful in identifying and in-licensing other
patent rights, products or product candidates, we may be unable to grow our revenues with sales from additional
products. Further, under the terms of our collaboration with Ipsen, Ipsen has certain approval rights with respect
to our entering into material contracts or transactions, making capital expenditures or acquiring certain assets.
Accordingly, Ipsen may prevent us from in-licensing products or product candidates. In addition, under the terms
of our collaboration, Ipsen has a right of first negotiation to develop and commercialize, in Ipsen’s territory,
products subsequently acquired or owned by us in the field of endocrinology.

In addition, we may need additional intellectual property from other third parties to market and sell our
products for indications other than severe Primary 1GFD, Primary IGFD or acromegaly. We cannot be certain
that we will be able to obtain a license to any third-party technology we may require to conduct our business.

The committed equity financing facility that we entered into with Kingsbridge Capital Limited may not be
available to us if we elect to make a draw down, and may require us to pay certain liguidated damages.

In October 2005, we entered into a committed equity financing facility, or CEFF, with Kingsbridge Capital
Limited, or Kingsbridge, which entitles us to sell and obligates Kingsbridge to purchase, from time to time over a
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period of three years, newly issued shares of our common stock for cash consideration of up to an aggregate of
$75.0 million, subject to certain conditions and restrictions. Kingsbridge will not be obligated to purchase shares
under the CEFF unless certain conditions are met, which include:

* a minimum price for our common stock;
* the accuracy of representations and warranties made to Kingsbridge;
* compliance with laws;

+ effectiveness of the registration statement, filed by us with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC, for the resale of the shares of common stock issuable in connection with the CEFF
and the shares of common stock underlying the warrant we issued to Kingsbridge in connection with the
entering into of the CEFF; and

» the continued listing of our stock on the Nasdaq Global Market, or Nasdagq.

In addition, Kingsbridge is permitted to terminate the CEFF if it determines that a material and adverse
event has occurred affecting our business, operations, properties or financial condition. 1f we are unable to access
funds through the CEFF, or if the CEFF is terminated by Kingsbridge, we may be unable to access capital on
favorable terms or at all.

The terms of the CEFF require us to pay certain liquidated damages in the event that the registration
statement filed by us with the SEC is not available for the resale of securities purchased by Kingsbridge under
the CEFF or upen exercise of the warrant we issued to Kingsbridge. Except for certain periods of ineffectiveness
permitted under the CEFF, we are obligated to pay to Kingsbridge an amount equal to the number of shares
purchased under the CEFF and held by Kingsbridge at the date the registration statement becomes unavailable,
multiplied by any positive difference in price between the volume weighted average price on the trading day
prior to such period of unavailability and the volume weighted average price on the first trading day after the
period of unavailability. In addition, we are entitled in certain circumstances to deliver a “blackout™ notice to
Kingsbridge to suspend the use of the registration statement and prohibit Kingsbridge from selling shares under
the registration statement. If we deliver a blackout notice in the 15 irading days following a settlement of a draw
down, then we must make a blackout payment to Kingsbridge as liquidated damages, or issue Kingsbridge
additional shares in lieu of this payment, calculated by means of a varying percentage of an amount based on the
number of shares purchased and held by Kingsbridge and the change in the market price of our common stock
during the period in which the use of the registration statement is suspended. If the trading price of our common
stock declines during a suspenston of the registration statement, the blackout payment could be significant and
could adversely affect our liquidity and our ability to raise capital. In addition, under the terms of an affiliation
agreement we entered into pursuant to our collaboration with Ipsen, we have only a limited ability to raise capital
through the sale of our equity without first obtaining Ipsen’s approval.

We may not have the ability to raise the funds necessary to finance the repayment of the convertible notes
we issued or that we may issue to Ipsen, which could adversely affect our cash position and harm our
business.

Under the terms of our collaboration with Ipsen, we issued Ipsen a convertible note in the principal amount
of $25.0 million, and may issue up to two additional convertible notes to Ipsen in the principal amounts of
€30.0 million and $15.0 million, respectively. All of these notes mature on October 13, 2011 and carty a 2.5%
coupon per annum from the date of issuance, compounded quarterly. If Ipsen chooses not to convert these notes,
we would be required to pay to Ipsen the principal amount of the notes plus accrued interest at maturity, We will
also be subject to currency risk on the €30.0 million convertible note that we may issue to Ipsen, which, if the
note is not converted, may result in the need to raise a greater amount of U.S. dollars to repay this note at
maturity than would be required based on a conversion of this note to U.S. dollars at the time we entered into the
stock purchase and master transaction agreement with Ipsen in July 2006 or issuance of the note. If we are
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required to pay the notes in cash, we will likely need to raise such amounts from the capital markets or through a
stralegic transaction. There is no assurance that we would be able to do so in a timely manner or on reasonable
terms. If we are unable to do so, we may be required to delay or curtail our development and commercialization
efforts, which would harm our business.

Our indebtedness to Ipsen could have significant additional negative consequences, including, but not
limited to:

* increasing our vulnerability to general adverse economic and industry conditions;
« limiting our ability to obtain additional financing;

- limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which
we compete; and

« placing us at a possible competitive disadvantage to less leveraged competitors and competitors that have
better access to capital resources,

If we fail to obtain the capital necessary to fund our operations, we will be unable to execute our business
plan,

We believe that our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments as of December 31, 2006, together
with the funds that we would potentially receive from our collaboration with Ipsen, will be sufficient to meet our
projected operating and capital expenditure requirements through at least the middle of 2008 based on our current
business plan. However, our future capital needs and the adequacy of our available funds will depend on many
factors, including:

+ changes in our business plan;

+ our ability to market and sell sufficient quantities of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel® at the
anticipated level;

« the commercial status of the Increlex™ bulk drug manufacturing operations at Lonza Baltimore,
including the success of our cGMP production activities;

« the success of Increlex™ final drug product manufacturing;

+ the costs, timing and scope of additional regulatory approvals for Increlex™;

+ Ipsen’s ability to supply Somatuline® Autogel® to us in sufficient quantities;

« the cost, timing and scope of additional regulatory approvals for Somatuline® Autogel®;

« Ipsen’s ability to market and sell sufficient quantities of Increlex™ in the licensed territories at the
anticipated level;

« any required repayment of the convertible notes we issued or that we may issue to Ipsen;
« the status of competing products;

+ the rate of progress and cost of our future clinical trials and other research and development activities;
and

+ the pace of expansion of administrative and legal expenses.

We expect capital outlays and operating expenditures to increase over the next several years as we expand
our operations. We expect that we may require and attempt to raise additional funds through equity or debt
financings, collaborative arrangements with corporate partners or from other sources, and the CEFF. However,
there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available when needed, or, if available, that the terms
will be favorable. In addition, under the terms of an affiliation agreement we entered into pursuant to our
collaboration with Ipsen, we have only a limited ability to raise capital through the sale of our equity without first
obtaining Ipsen’s approval. If additional funds are not available, we may be forced to curtail or cease operations.
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If we are unable to manage our expected growth, we may not be able to implement our business plan.

Our ability to implement our business plan requires an effective planning and management process. As of
December 31, 2006, we had 106 full-time employees, and we expect to hire additional employees in the near
tetmn. Our offices are located in the San Francisco Bay area where competition for personnel with
biopharmaceutical skills is intense. If we fail to identify, attract, retain and motivate these highly skilled
personnel, we may be unable to continue our development and commercialization activities.

We believe that our anticipated future growth may strain our management, systems and resources. To
manage the anticipated growth of our operations, we may need to increase management resources and implement
additional financial and management controls, reporting systems and procedures, If we are unable to manage our
growth, we may be unable to execute our business strategy.

If product liability lawsuits are brought against us, we may incur substantial liabilities.

One potential risk of using growth factors like rhIGF-1 is that it may increase the likelihood of developing
cancer or, if patients already have cancer, that the cancer may develop more rapidly. Increlex™ may also increase
the risk that diabetic patients may develop or worsen an existing retinopathy, which could lead to the need for
additional therapy such as laser treatment of the eyes or result in blindness. In our Phase III clinical trials for
severe Primary IGFD, the data of which we submitted to the FDA in our NDA, some patients experienced
hypoglycemia, or low blood glucose levels. Other side effects noted in some patients include hearing deficits,
enlargement of the tonsils and intracranial hypertension.

Somatuline® Autogel® is a member of a class of products known as somatostatin analogs, which have the
potential to cause gallstones and other disorders associated with obstruction of the biliary tract, including
pancreatitis. These products also alter the balance between the counter-regulatory hormones insulin, glucagon
and growth hormone, which may result in hypoglycemia or hyperglycemia, and suppress secretion of thyroid
stimulating hormone, which may result in hypothyrodism. Cardiac conduction abnormalities have also occurred
during treatment with this class of drugs.

There may also be other adverse events associated with the use of Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel®,
which may result in product lability suits being brought against us, While we have licensed the rights to develop,
market and sell Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel® in certain indications, we are not indemnified by any third
party, including our contract manufacturers, for any liabilities arising out of our development or use of rhIGF-1
or Somatuline® Autogel® .

Whether or not we are ultimately successful in defending product liability litigation, such litigation would
consume substantial amounts of our financial and managerial resources, and might result in adverse publicity or
reduced acceptance of Increlex™ or Somatuline® Autogel® in the market, all of which would impair our
business. We have obtained clinical trial insurance and product liability insurance; however, we may not be able
to mainiain our clinical trial insurance or product liability insurance at an acceptable cost, if at all, and this
insurance may not provide adequate coverage against potential claims or losses.

Budgetary or cash constraints may force us to delay our efforts to develop certain research and
develppment programs in faver of developing others, which may prevent us from meeting our stated timetables
and completing these projects through to product commercialization.

Because we are a company with limited financial resources, and because research, development and
commercialization activities are costly processes, we must regularly prioritize the most efficient allocation of our
financial resources. For example, we may choose to delay or abandon our research and development efforts for
the treatment of a particular indication or project to ailocate those resources to another indication or project, or to
commercialization activities, which could cause us to fall behind our initial timetables for development. As a
result, we may not be able to fully realize the value of some of our product candidates in a timely manner, since
they will be delayed in reaching the market, or may not reach the market at all.
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We must implement additional finance and accounting systems, procedures and controls as we grow our
business and organization and to satisfy new reporting requirements.

As a public reporting company, we must comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the related rules
and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, including expanded disclosures and accelerated
reporting requirements and more complex accounting rules. Compliance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, or Section 404, and other requirements will increase our costs and require additional management
resources. We have upgraded our finance and accounting systems, procedures and controls and will need to
continue to implement additional procedures and controls as we grow our business and organization and to
satisfy new reporting requirements. Section 404 requires annual management assessments of the effectiveness of
our internal control over financial reporting and a report by our independent registered public accountants
attesting to and reporting on these assessments. If our independent registered public accounting firm is unable to
provide us with an unqualified report as to the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting,
investors could lose confidence in the reliability of our internal control over financial reporting, which could
adversely affect our stock price.

If we are unable to attract and retain additional qualified personnel, our ability to market and sell our
products and develop other product candidates will be harmed.

Our success depends on our continued ability to attract and retain highly qualified management and
scientific personnel and on our ability to develop relationships with leading academic scientists and clinicians.
We are highly dependent on our current management and key medical, scientific and technical personnel,
including: Dr. John A. Scarlett, our President and Chief Executive Officer and Dr. Ross G. Clark, our Founder
and Chief Technical Officer, whose knowledge of our industry and technical expertise would be extremely
difficult to replace. We have at will employment contracts with all of our executive officers. They may terminate
their employment without cause or good reason and without notice to us.

Risks Related to Our Common Stock
If our results do not meet our and analysts’ forecasts and expectations, our stock price could decline.

Analysts who cover our business and operations provide valuations regarding our stock price and make
recommendations whether to buy, hold or sell our stock. Our stock price may be dependent upon such valuations
and recommendations. Analysts’ valuations and recommendations are based primarily on our reported results and
our and their forecasts and expectations concerning our future resuits regarding, for example, expenses, revenues,
clinical trials, regulatory marketing approvals and competition. Our future results are subject to substantial
uncertainty, and we may fail to meet or exceed our and analysts’ forecasts and expectations as a result of a
number of factors, including those discussed under the section entitled “Risks Related to Qur Business” above. If
our results do not meet our and analysts’ forecasts and expectations, our stock price could decline as a result of
analysts lowering their valuations and recommendations or otherwise,

If our officers, directors and largest stockholders choose to act together, they are able to control our
management and operations, acting in their best interests and not necessarily those of other stockholders.

As of December 31, 2006, our directors, executive officers and principal stockholders and their affiliates
beneficially owned approximately 73.16% of our common stock. Our greater than five percent beneficial owners
include Ipsen and its affiliates, which beneficially owned 35.7% (not including shares subject to Himited voting
agreements with certain of our stockholders); entities affiliated with MPM Capital, L.P. which beneficially owned
13.8%: entities affiliated with Prospect Management Co. I, LLC, which beneficially owned 6.1%; Medlmmune,
Inc., which beneficially owned 6.0%; and entities affiliated with Rho Capital Partners, which beneficially owned
6.0%:; and AIMS Fund Management, Inc., which beneficially owned 5.7%. Our directors, executive officers and
principal stockholders and their affiliates collectively have the ability to determine the election of all of our directors
and to determine the outcome of most corporate actions requiring stockholder approval. They may exercise this
ability in a manner that advances their best interests and not necessarily those of other stockholders.
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Our collaboration with Ipsen limits our ability to enter into transactions and to pursue opportunities in
conflict with Ipsen, which could cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Under the terms of an affiliation agreement we entered into pursuant to our collaboration with Ipsen, the
approval of Ipsen is required for us to take certain actions, including, but not limited to:

L]

entering into most material transactions or agreements;
metging or consolidating with other entities;

establishing or approving an operating budget with anticipated research and development spending in
excess of $25.0 million per year, plus potential additional amounts for new Ipsen projects under the
license and coliaboration agreement we entered into with respect to Somatuline® Autogel®;

subject to limited exceptions, incurring any indebtedness other than certain permitted indebtedness
(provided that our total permitted indebtedness may not exceed $2.5 million if ocur ratio of net
indebtedness to EBITDA exceeds 1:1);

incurring capital expenditures of more than $2.0 million in any given year;
making any investment, other than certain permitted investments;

entering into any transaction that resuits in competition with 1psen;
declaring or paying any cash dividends;

taking any action with respect to takeover defense measures, including with respect 1o our stockholder
rights plan; and

issuing or selling shares of our capital stock, other than issuances or sales after the second anniversary of
the initial closing of our collaboration with Ipsen that may not exceed $25.0 million in any three-year
period, and other limited exceptions.

These provisions could continue indefinitely and may limit our ability to enter into transactions otherwise
viewed as beneficial to uvs, which could cause the price of our common stock to decline.

Our stockholder rights plan and anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents and under Delaware
law could make an acquisition of us, which may be beneficial to our stockholders, more difficult.

Provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and restated bylaws, as
well as provisions of Delaware law, could make it more difficult for a third party 1o acquire us, even if doing so
would benefit our stockholders. These provisions:

establish a classified Board of Directors so that not all members of our board may be elected at one time;

authorize the issuance of “blank check” preferred stock that could be issved by our Board of Directors to
increase the number of outstanding shares and hinder a takeover attempt;

limit who may call a special meeting of stockholders;

prohibit stockholder action by written consent, thereby requiring all stockholder actions to be taken at a
meeting of our stockholders; and

establish advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our Board of Directors or for
proposing matters that can be acted upon at stockholder meetings.

In addition, Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which prohibits business combinations
between us and one or more significant stockholders unless specified conditions are met, may discourage, delay
or prevent a third party from acquiring us.

We have adopted a rights agreement under which certain stockholders have the right to purchase shares of a
new series of preferred stock at an exercise price of $40.00 per one one-hundredih of a share of such preferred
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stock if a person or group of persons acquires more than a certain percentage of our common stock. The rights
ptan could make it more difficult for a person to acquire a majority of our outstanding voting stock. The rights
plan could also reduce the price that investors might be willing to pay for shares of our common stock and result
in the market price being lower than it would be without the rights plan. In addition, the existence of the rights
plan itself may deter a potential acquirer from acquiring us. As a result, either by operation of the rights plan or
by its potential deterrent effect, mergers or other business combinations that our stockholders may consider in
their best interests may not occur.

The committed equity financing facility that we entered into with Kingsbridge may result in dilufion lo
our stockholders.

Pursuant to the CEFF, Kingsbridge committed to purchase, subject to certain conditions and at our election,
up to $75.0 million of our common stock. Should we sell shares to Kingsbridge under the CEFF, or issue shares
in lieu of any “blackout” payment, it will have a dilutive effect on the holdings of our current stockholders, and
may result in downward pressure on the price of our common stock. If we draw down amounts under the CEFF,
we will issue shares to Kingsbridge at a discount of up to ten percent from the volume weighted average price of
our common stock. If we draw down amounts under the CEFF when our share price is decreasing, we will need
to issue more shares to raise the same amount than if our stock price was higher. Issuances in the face of a
declining share price will have an even greater dilutive effect than if our share price were stable or increasing,
and may further decrease our share price.

Our stock price may be volatile, and an investment in our stock could decline in value.

The trading price of our common stock has fluctuated significantly since our initial public offering in March
2004, and is likely to remain volatile in the future. The trading price of our common stock could be subject to
wide fluctuations in response to many events or factors, including the following:

+ announcements by us, Ipsen, our suppliers and key third-party vendors, or our competitors of regulatory
developments, product development agreements, clinical trial results, clinical trial enroliment, regulatory
filings, new products and product launches, significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships or joint
ventures;

» estimates of our business potential and earnings prospects;

+ deviations from analysts’ projections regarding business potential, costs and/or earnings prospects;
+ developments with respect to our collaboration with Ipsen;

+ quarterly variations in our operating results,

« significant developments in the businesses of biotechnology companies;

« changes in financial estimates by securities analysts;

» changes in market valuations or financial results of biotechnology companies;

» additions or departures of key personnel;

« changes in the structure of healthcare payment or reimbursement systems, regulations or policies;
« activities of short sellers and risk arbitrageurs;

« future sales of our common stock, including potential sales of a substantial number of shares by Ipsen
and its affiliates, or the perception that such sales are likely to occur;

« general economic, industry and market conditions; and
« volume fluctuations, which are particularly common among highly volatile securities of biotechnelogy

companies.
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In addition, the stock market has experienced volatility that has particularly affected the market prices of
equity securities of many biotechnology companies, which often has been unrelated or disproportionate 1o the
operating performance of these companies. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect the market
price of our common stock. If the market price of our common stock declines in value, you may not realize any
return on your investment in us and may lose some or all of your investment.

We are at risk of securities class action litigation.

In the past, securities class action litigation has ofien been brought against a company following a decline in
the market price of its securities. This risk is especially relevant for us because biotechnology companies have
experienced greater than average stock price volatility in recent years, If we faced such litigation, it could result
in substantial costs and a diversion of management’s aitention and resources, which could harm our business.

Substantial sales of shares may impact the market price of our commeon stock,

If our stockholders sell substantial amounts of our common stock, including shares issued upon the exercise
of outstanding options or pursuant to the CEFF, and the shares issued or issuable to Ipsen and its affiliates, the
market price of our common stock may decline. In addition, the perceived risk of dilution from sales or issuances
of our common stock to or by Kingsbridge or Ipsen may cause holders of our common stock to sell their shares,
or it may encourage short selling by market participants, which could contribute to a decline in our stock price.
These sales also might make it more difficult for us to sell equity or equity-related securities in the future at a
time and price that we deem appropriate. We are unable to predict the effect that sales may have on the
prevailing market price of our common stock.

As of December 31, 2006, we had 50,162,610 outstanding shares of common stock. Of these shares, the
18,975,000 shares sold in our public offerings were frecly tradable without restriction or further registration
unless purchased by our affiliates, Of the remaining 31,187,610 shares outstanding as of December 31, 2006,
substantially all of these shares, other than the 12,527,245 shares we issued to an affiliate of Ipsen, were eligible
for sale in the public market (subject to certain restrictions on sales by affiliates and vesting in the case of early
exercised options). The 12,527,245 shares we issued to an affiliate of Ipsen will become eligible for sale in the
public market under Rule 144 in October 2007, subject to compliance with the volumne, manner of sale and other
limitations under Rule 144, As of December 31, 2006, we had 3,873,806 shares subject to outstanding options
granted under our equity compensation plans. In addition, as of December 31, 2006, §405,524 shares were
issuable upon the exercise of the warrant and conversion of convertible note we issued to Ipsen in connection
with the initial closing of our coliaboration. Further, the terms of the warrant we issued to Ipsen provide that the
number of shares of our common stock subject to the warrant may increase in the event of certain issuances of
equity securities by us that dilute Ipsen’s percentage ownership interest in us, Moreover, the initial exercise price
of the warrant, and the conversion price of convertible notes we issued or that we may issue to Ipsen, are subject
to certain weighted-average price-based antidilution adjustmenis. These terms of the warrant and convertible
notes may entitle Ipsen to acquire a greater number of shares of our common stock than we currently. anticipate.

We have filed a registration statement covering shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of options
and other grants pursuant to our stock plans. In September 2005, we filed a shelf registration statement pursuant
to which we may, from time-to-time, sell shares of our common stock and preferred stock, various series of debt
securities andfor warrants to purchase any of such securities, either individually or in units, in one or more
offerings. In November 2005, we also filed a registration statement for the resale of the shares of common stock
issuable in connection with the CEFF and the shares of common stock underlying the warrant we issued to
Kingsbridge in connection with our entering inta the CEFF. Moreover, we have agreed that, upon Ipsen’s request
after October 13, 2007, we would file one or more registration statements in order to permit Ipsen and its
affiliates to offer and sell a substantial number of shares of our common stock, including the 12,527,245 shares
we issued to an affiliate of Ipsen and the shares issuable upon exercise of the warrant and conversion of the
convertible notes we issued or that we may issue to Ipsen. In addition, certain holders of shares of our common
stock that are parties to our amended and restated investors’ rights agreement are entitled to registration rights.
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Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2. Properties.

Our facilities consist of approximately 32,000 square feet of office space located in Brisbane, California that
is leased to us until October 2011. We have no laboratory or research facilities. We believe that our Brisbane
facilities will be adequate for our near-term needs and that suitable additional space will be available on
commercially reasonable terms to accommodate expansion of our operations, if any.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

On December 20, 2004, we initiated patent infringement proceedings against Avecia Limited and Insmed as
co-defendants in the High Court of Justice (Chancery Division Patents Court) in the United Kingdom. On
December 23, 2004, we, with Genentech, initiated patent infringement proceedings against Insmed in the U.S.
District Court for the Northern District of California. We initiated these proceedings because we believe that
Insmed and Avecia are infringing and/or have infringed on our patents that cover Insmed’s product’s use and
manufacture. There were no material developments in our patent infringement litigation against Avecia and
Insmed in the United Kingdom during the 12 months ended December 31, 2006.

On June 30, 2006, the court issued rulings on several claims construction issues and cross-motions for
summary judgment in our patent infringement litigation against Insmed in the United States. The court granted us
summary judgment that Insmed infringes claims 1, 2 and 9 of U.S. Patent No. 6,331,414, and granted us
summary judgment that certain publications asserted by Insmed against the validity of U.S. Patent No. 5,187,151
do not qualify as prior art and cannot be used to attack the validity of that patent. In addition, the court denied
Insmed summary judgment that Insmed does not infringe any of claims 1 through 4, 9 and 10 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,331,414, denied Insmed summary judgment that claims 1 through 4, 9 and 10 of U.S. Patent No. 6,331,414
are invalid under 35 U.S.C. §101 and §112, denied Insmed summary judgment that Insmed does not infringe
claims 1, 4, 5 and 7 of U.S. Patent No. 5,187,151, and granted Insmed summary judgment that no recovery can
be had against it based on any activities conducted by Celtrix Pharmaceuticals, Inc. prior to December 23, 1998,
On July 14, 2006 Insmed filed a motion for partial reconsideration of the summary judgment order with respect
to infringement of claims 1 and 2 of U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414, and filed a request seeking the court’s permission (o
file the motion. On September 29, 2006, the court granted its permission to Insmed for the filing of that motion.
On October 13, 2006, Genentech and we filed an opposition to Insmed’s motion for partial reconsideration of the
court’s summary judgment order. On October 31, 2006, the court issued a written ruling denying Insmed’s
motion for partial reconsideration of the court’s summary judgment order.

On November 6, 2006, the court initiated jury trial proceedings relating to Genentech’s and our claims that
Insmed had infringed U.S. Pat. No. 5,258,287 and 5,187,151 and relating to Insmed’s defense of invalidity
against the asserted claims of U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414. On December 6, 2006, the jury returned a verdict finding
that Insmed had infringed U.S. Pat. No. 5,258,287 and U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151 and that the asserted claims of
U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414 were not invalid. In addition, the jury found that Insmed’s infringement of U.S. Pat.
No. 5,187,151 was willful. For Insmed’s past acts of infringement, the jury awarded Genentech and us damages
of an upfront payment of $7.5 million and a 15 percent royalty on past net sales of Iplex. This award has not been
reflected in our financial statements in 2006 in accordance with U.S. GAAP as we have not realized the value of
the award which will occur upon payment {0 us.

On November 29, 2006, the court held an evidentiary hearing on Insmed’s defense of inequitable conduct
against U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151, instructed Insmed to submit a brief in support of Insmed’s inequitable conduct
defense, granted Genentech and us leave to submit Genentech’s and our closing arguments regarding Insmed’s
inequitable conduct defense in the form of a brief in opposition to such defense, and granted Insmed leave to
submiit a brief in reply to any opposition brief that Genentech and we may submit. On December 6, 2006, Insmed
submitted a brief in support of Insmed’s inequitable conduct defense against U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151, On
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December 11, 2006, Genentech and we submitted closing arguments regarding Insmed’s defense of inequitable
conduct in the form of a brief in opposition to such defense. On December 13, 2006, Insmed submitted a brief in
reply to Genentech’s and our opposition brief,

On December 22, 2006, Genentech and we filed a motion requesting that the court award Genentech and us
a permanent injunction prohibiting Insmed from making or selling Iplex for commercial use as a treatment for
Severe Primary Insulin-Like Growth Factor Deficiency, award Genentech and us a trebling of the damages
awarded by the jury, and award Genentech and us our attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses.

In December 2005, we filed a complaint against Insmed for False Advertising and Unfair Competition, Case
No. C-05-5027 SBA, in the U.S. District Court for the Northemn District of California. The complaint alleged that
Insmed made false, misleading and deceptive statements about Increlex™ and its product. On June 9, 2006, the
Court granted Insmed’s motion to dismiss the case. On June 12, 2006, we filed a complaint against Insmed for
False Advertising, Unfair Competition and Intentional Interference with Prospective Business Relations, Case
No. 3:06cv403, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia. The complaint alleged that Insmed
made false, misleading and deceptive statements about Increlex™ and its product and intentionally interfered
with our business relationships. We are seeking monetary and injunctive relief. On June 23, 2006, we filed our
First Amended Complaint. On July 27, 2006, Instned filed a motion to dismiss the case, On QOctober 3, 2006, the
Court denied in part and granted in part Insmed’s motion to dismiss, and ordered the case, with our allegations
narrowed, to move forward with a March 2007 trial date. On October 13, 2006, Insmed filed a counterclaim in
the case, alleging that we made false and misleading statements regarding Insmed’s product and Increlex™.

On March 6, 2007, Insimed, Avecia, Tercica and Genentech publicly announced agreements that settled all
the ongoing litigation among the companies.

Itemd. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
A special meeting of our stockholders was held on October 12, 2006 for the purposes of:

1. To approve the issuance of the following securities to Ipsen or its designated affiliate in connection with
the transactions contemplated by the Stock Purchase and Master Transaction Agreement dated July 18, 2006:

* 12,527,245 shares of our common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $77.0 million;

* a warrant to purchase a minimum of 4,948,795 shares of our common stock at an initial exercise price of
$7.41 per share and the shares of our common stock issuable upon exercise of the warrant;

* a convertible promissory note in the principal amount of $25.0 million, which would be convertible into
shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price of $7.41 per share, and the shares of our common
stock issuable upon conversion of the note; a convertible promissory note in the principal amount of
€30.0 million, which would be convertible into shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price of
€5.92 per share, and the shares of our common stock issuable upon conversion of the note; and

* aconvertible promissory note in the principal amount of $15.0 million, which would be convertible into
shares of our common stock at an initial conversion price of $7.41 per share, and the shares of our
common stock issuable upon conversion of the note.

2. To approve amendments to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and amended and
restated bylaws to eliminate our classified board of directors and certain other anti-takeover protections,

3. To approve amendments to our amended and restated certificate of incorporation to waive the corporate
opportunity provisions under Delaware law and corporate opportunity doctrine with respect to opportunities of
which Ipsen and the Ipsen designees to our Board of Directors may become aware as a result of Ipsen’s
affiliation with us.

4. To approve a stockholders rights plan, commonly referred to as a “poison pill,” to be entered into between
us and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. as rights agent.
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Proxies for the special meeting were solicited pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, and there was no solicitation in opposition of management’s solicitations. The final vote on the
proposals were recorded as follows:

1. Proposal No. 1

2% ) A 29,928,554
ABAINSL Lottt e 40,900
ABSIAIIL + st et ettt sttt et et s 3,475
Broker Nom-VoteS « .ot r e it iee i in e ta it titaaannn et aaas —

2. Proposal No. 2

1210 G U RGPS 22,428,495
ABAINSL ..ottt 7,518,959
ADSIAIN o ot o ettt ettt et e 5475
Broker NoNn-WOles . ..o ottt et i sttt anaaraeasat sy —_

3. Proposal No. 3

=7 oAU U G 29,928,254
Against ..... ... FR R A 39,200
ADSIAIN .ttt e e et 5,475
BroKer NOM-VoOleS . ..t i ittt tee e imieeem e it st annan et as —
4. Proposal No. 4
| oY AP A e 21,700,295
AZAINSL .o e ittt e 8,267,159
N 21 « T PP 5,475
Broker NOM-VOteS & .ottt it ea e itnee it reaaanm s an —_

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.
Our common stock has been traded on the Nasdag Global Market under the symbol “TRCA™ since
March 17, 2004. The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the high and low closing sale prices of
our common stock, as reported by the Nasdaq Global Market,

Prices
Shgh  Lew
Fiscal 2006:
First Fiscal QUANET ... ...\ttt ieete e aa e ieaae s $ 790 $6.29
Second Fiscal QUAer ... ... cirtir ittt 6.88 3.07
Third Fiscal QUATTET .. ... .\ ottt aaaaa i ans 6.70 4.21
Fourth Fiscal Quarter . ........coviiinnreir it sar s 6.24 4.90
Fiscal 2005:
First Fiscal QUarter ... ...conoerinneiran i tiiae e $10.55 $7.63
Second Fiscal QUarer ... ... v vt iine it inae e 9.21 7.14
Third Fiscal QUarter .. ...\t vaamaanna st iennas 12.65 8.41
Fourth Fiscal Quarter . ........ ..ttt an 11.94 6.74

There were approximately 37 holders of record of our common stock as of February 28, 2007. In addition,
we believe that a significant number of beneficial owners of our common stock hold their shares in street name,
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Dividend Policy

We have never declared or paid any cash dividends on our common stock. We currently expect to retain any
future earnings for use in the operation and expansion of our business and do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.

Stockholder Return Comparison

The following graph shows the total stockholder return of an investment of $100 cash on March 17, 2004,
the date Tercica became a public company, for our common stock, or on February 28, 2004 in the NASDAQ
Global Market—US Index and the NASDAQ Biotechnology Index. The stock price performance shown on the
graph is not necessarily indicative of future price performance.

COMPARISON OF 33 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
Among Tercica Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index

And The NASDAQ Biotechnology index
$140 -
$120 - =
$100

$60 W

$60

$40 -

$20 4

so 1 T )
3/04 12/04 1205 12/06

—B8-— Tercica Inc. — A— NASDAQ Composite - - © - -NASDAQ Biotechnology

The information required by this item regarding equity compensation plans is incorporated by reference to the
information set forth in Item 12 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data has been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements,
The information below is not necessarily indicative of results of future operations, and should be read in
conjunction with Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations” of this Form 10-K and the financial statements and related notes thereto, included in ftem 8 of this
Form 10-K to fully understand factors that may affect the comparability of the information presented below.

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Statements of Operations Data (in thousands,
except per share data):
Net revenues:
Net product Sales . . .. ..vvvevnerern e $ 1315 § — % — 8§ T
LiCEnSE TEVENUE .« o\ e et veve v e cte et ennens 194 — — — —
Total NEL TEVEIMUES: .« v it vn v ran e csremenararnnanmnan 1,509 — —_ — —
Costs and expenses:
Costof SAlE5 . .. ... i i 1,667 —_ —_ — -
Research and development . ............oovvinniean o 42,034 21,587 29,335 20916 7,045
Selling, general and administrative . ............ ..o 44 248 25913 12,552 4,834 1,978
Total costs and EXPenses ... ..ocvvvuiievreonaise sy 87,949 47.500 41,887 25,750 9,023
Loss from operations . .. ... voveviirane e (86,440) (47,500} 41,887 (257500 (9.023)
INEETES EXPEIISE . oo v vccvvatvvnnvessaemsnaeanene s (162) (1,080) _ — (106)
Interest and otherincome, net .. ... ..o e v e s 4,226 2,347 285 327 177
Loss before inCome tAXeS ..\ o vveurr e ornaronesis (82,376) {46,233) (41,002) (24,423) (8932)
Provision for iNCOME tAXeS . ..ot vvrrvrnn oo iarsronencss (621) — — —_ —
NELIOSS o vt er e et me v e aata e (82,997) (46233)  (41,002) (25423) (3,952)
Deemed dividend related to beneficial conversion features of
convertible preferred stock(3) ... ... — — — (44,153 —_
Net loss allocable to common stockhelders ... ............. $ (82,997) $ (46,233) § (41,002) $(65.576) $(8.952)
Basic and diluted net loss per share allocable to ¢common
stockholders(1) .. ..oourivin s $ (209 % (51 % (212) § (3859 $ (5.716)
Shares used in computing basic and diluted net loss per share
allocable to common stockholders(1) ............... ... 39,789 30,590 19,302 1,803 1,555
December 31,
2006 2008 2004 2003 2002
Balance Sheet Pata (in thousands):
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments ........... $125575 § 58626 $ 52,001 $37313 $15.870
Working capital . ... ... oo i 123,181 53,752 45,542 33,346 15,707
TOtAl ASSEIS .+ v v vt e e e ettt e 137,687 66,316 55,022 42,484 16,348
Long-term convertible debt(2) ........... ... ... 25,172 _— — — —_
Convertible preferred stock .. ... — — — 68,637 24,693
Accumulated deficit . ... it e (248,738)  (165,741) (119,508) (78,506) (8,930)
Total stockholders’ equity (deficit) ............... ... .0t 89,931 56,798 47677 (33,198) (8913)

(1) See Note 3 of the Notes to Financial Statements for information regarding the computation of per share amounts.

(2) See Note 7 of the Notes to Financial Statements for information regarding the collaboration agreement with Ipsen.

(3) We recorded a deemed dividend of $44,153,000 associated with this issuance of preferred shares to reflect the value of
the beneficial conversion feature embedded in the Series B convertible preferred stock. The deemed dividend increases
the net loss allocable to common stockholders in the calculation of basic and diluted net loss per common share for the
year ended December 31, 2003,
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

This report includes “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. All statements
other than statements of historical facts are “forward-looking statements™ for purposes of these provisions,
including any projections of earnings, revenues or other financial items, any statement of the plans and
objectives of management for future operations, any statements concerning proposed new products or licensing
or collaborative arrangements, any statements regarding future economic conditions or performance, and any
statement of assumptions underlying any of the foregoing. In some cases, forward-looking statements can be
identified by the use of terminology such as “may,” “will,” “expects,” “plans,” “anticipates,” “estimates,”
“potential,” or “continue” or the negative thereof or other comparable terminology. Although we believe that
the expectations reflected in the forward-looking statements contained herein are reasonable, there can be no
assurance that such expeciations or any of the forward-looking statements will prove to be correct, and actual
results could differ materially from those projected or assumed in the forward-looking statements. Our future
financial condition and results of operations, as well as any forward-looking statements, are subject to inherent
risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to the Risk Factors set forth under Item 1A above, and for the
reasons described elsewhere in this report. All forward-looking statements and reasons why results may differ
included in this report are made as of the date herecf, and we assume no obligation to update these forward-
looking statements or reasons why actual results might differ.

LI "ow [T FIRT

We are a biopharmaceutical company developing and marketing a portfolio of endocrinology products. We
currently have the following products in our commercialization and development portfolio:

» Increlex™, which we began commercializing in the United States in January 2006;

» Somatuline® Autogel®, for which a New Drug Application, or NDA, was submitted in 2006 to the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, by Ipsen S.A., or Ipsen, our collaborator; and was approved for
marketing in July 2006 by Health Canada for the treatment of acromegaly.

Increlex™. We market Increlex™ as a long-term replacement therapy for the treatment of children with
severe primary insulin-like growth factor deficiency, or severe Primary IGFD, or with growth hormone gene
deletion who have developed neutralizing antibodies to growth hormone, or growth hormone. We obtained
approval for the long-term treatment of severe Primary IGFD, from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, ot
FDA, in August 2005. We are currently conducting a Phase [IIb clinical trial for the use of Increlex™ for the
treatment of children with Primary IGFD. In January 2006, we launched Increlex™ in the United States.
Increlex™ generated net revenues of $1.3 million in 2006.

In December 2005, we submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, in the European Union
for the long-term treatment of growth failure in children with severe Primary IGFD or with growth hormone gene
deletion who have developed neutralizing antibodies to growth hormone. We expect to receive an opinion from
the Committee for Medicinal Products for Human Use on the Increlex™ MAA in the second quarter of 2007.
Pursuant to our worldwide strategic collaboration with Ipsen that was finalized in October 2006, we granted to
Ipsen and its affiliates the exclusive right under our patents and know-how to develop and commercialize
Increlex™ in all countries of the world except the United States, Japan, Canada, and for a centain period of time,
Taiwan and certain countries of the Middle East and North Africa, for all indications, other than treatment of
central nervous system and diabetes indications.

Somatuline® Autogel®. Pursuant to our worldwide strategic collaboration with Ipsen, we have the exclusive
right under Ipsen’s patents and know-how to develop and commercialize Somatuline® Autogel® in the United
States and Canada for all indications other than opthalmic indications. In July 2006, Somatuline® Autogel® was
approved for marketing by Health Canada for the treatment of acromegaly and is currently in the reimbursement
review process. Acromegaly is a hormonal disorder that results when a tumor in the pitvitary gland produces
excess growth hormone, resulting in overproduction of insulin-like growth factor-1 (IGF-1) and excessive

48




growth. In October 2006, Ipsen submitted an NDA to the FDA for the use of Somatuline® Autogel® for the
treatment of acromegaly. The FDA accepted the NDA on December 30, 2006, and the Prescription Drug User
Fee Act, or PDUFA, date for Somatuline® Autogel® for the treatment of acromegaly is August 30, 2007.

Somatuline® Autogel® is an injectable sustained-release formulation containing lanreotide, a somatostatin
analogue. The Somatuline® Autogel® formulation requires no excipient other than water and is generally injected
monthly. In some patients, the time between injections can be lengthened to up to 56 days. The product is
contained in a pre-filled syringe, and can be administered as a deep subcutaneous injection. In contrast,
Sandostatin LAR, the only currently available, long-acting somatostatin analogue, which is marketed by
Novartis, must be reconstituted from a powdered form and drawn up into a syringe, and must be then be given as
a deep intramuscular injection. Like Sandostatin LAR, Somatuline® Autogel® is used primarily when circulating
levels of growth hormone remain high despite surgery or radiotherapy in patients with acromegaly. Through its
inhibitory effects, Somatuline® Autogel® lowers growth hormone and IGF-1 levels, thus controlling disease
progression and relieving the symptoms associated with active disease.

In October 2005, we entered into a committed equity financing facility, or CEFF, with Kingsbridge Capital
Limited, or Kingsbridge, which entitles us to sell, and obligates Kingsbridge to purchase, a maximum of
approximately 6,000,000 newly issued shares of our common stock over a three-year period for cash up to an
aggregate of $75.0 million, subject to certain conditions and restrictions. See the discussion below under
“Committed Equity Financing Facility” for further details on the CEFF. As of December 31, 2006, we had not
issued any shares under this facility. Under the terms of an affiliation agreement we entered into pursuant to our
collaboration with Ipsen, we have only a limited ability to raise capital through the sale of our equity without first
obtaining Ipsen’s approval, and would generally not have the ability to draw down any funds under the CEFF
without Ipsen’s prior approval.

As of December 31, 2006, we had approximately $125.6 million in cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments. We have funded our operations since inception through the private placement of equity securities
and public offerings of our common stock, including a follow-on public offering of common stock completed on
January 27, 2006 in which we raised net cash proceeds of approximately $34.2 million. In October 2006, we also
received cash proceeds in connection with our strategic partnership with Ipsen as described under “Liquidity and
Capital Resources—Ipsen Collaboration” below.

Critical Accounting Policies and the Use of Estimates

Our management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based on
our financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the U.S., or GAAP. The preparation of our financial statements requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in our financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could differ materially from those estimates.

The items in our financial statements requiring significant estimates and judgments are as follows:
Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the sale of our products and contract arrangements. QOur revenue arrangements
with multiple elements are divided into separate units of accounting if certain criteria are met, including whether
the delivered element has stand-alone value to the customer and whether there is objective and reliable evidence
of the fair value of the undelivered items. The consideration we receive is allocated among the separate units
based on their respective fair values, and the applicable revenue recognition criteria are applied to each of the
separate units. Advance payments in excess of amounts earned are classified as deferred revenue until earned.

+ We recognize revenue from product sales when there is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exits, title
passes, the price is fixed and determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. We record provisions for
discounts to customers, rebates to government agencies, product returns and other adjustments which are
based on our historical experience.
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* License revenue includes upfront and continuing licensing fees. Nonrefundable upfront fees that require
our continuing involvement in the manufacturing or other commercialization efforts by us are recognized
as revenue ratably over the contractual term. We believe the contractual term is our best estimate for
recognition of license revenue which could change in the future if we decide another methodology is
appropriate.

Stock-based Compensation

Prior to 2006, we accounted for stock-based compensation plans under the recognition and measurement
provisions of APB Opinion No. 25 and related interpretations, and provided the disclosure-only provisions of
SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. On January 1, 2006, we adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS No. 123R, which
requires the measurement and recognition of non-cash compensation expense for all share-based payment awards
made to employees and directors including employee stock options and employee stock purchases related to our
2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan based on estimated fair values. In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange
Commission issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107, or SAB 107, relating to SFAS No. 123R. We have
applied the provisions of SAB 107 in our adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

We adopted SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective transition method. Under that transition
method, non-cash compensation expense has been recognized beginning in the first quarter of fiscal 2006 and
includes the following: (a) compensation expense related to any share-based payments granted through, but not
yet vested as of January 1, 2006, and (b) compensation expense for any share-based payments granted
subsequent to January 1, 2006 based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 123R. We recognize non-cash compensation expense for the fair values of these share-based awards
on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of each of these awards. Because non-cash stock
compensation expense is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced by estimated
forfeitures. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Our financial statements as of December 31,
2006 refiect the impact of SFAS No. 123R. In accordance with the modified prospective transition method, our
financial statements for prior periods have not been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS
No. 123R.

As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R, we recognized stock-based compensation expense of $5.7 million
during the year ended December 31, 2006, which primarily affected our reported research and development and
selling, general, and administrative expenses, Approximately $2.0 and $3.7 million are included in research and
development expenses, and selling, general and administrative expenses, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2006. We calculated this expense based on the fair values of the stock-based compensation awards
as estimated using the Black-Scholes model. Use of this model requires us to make assumptions about expected
future volatility of our stock price and the expected term of the options that we grant. Calculating stock-based
compensation expense under SFAS No. 123R also requires us to make assumptions about expected future
forfeiture rates for our option awards. As of December 31, 2006, total unrecognized compensation expense
related to unvested share-based compensation arrangements previously granted under our various plans was
$10.4 million, which we expect to recognize over a weighted-average period of 2.6 years. However, it is difficult
to predict the actual amount of share-based compensation expense that we will recognize in future periods as that
expense can be affected by changes in the amount or terms of our share-based compensation awards issued in the
future, changes in the assumptions used in our model to value those future awards, changes in our stock price,
and changes in interest rates, among other factors.

During the period from February 1, 2003 through January 31, 2004, we granted certain stock options with
exercise prices that were below the reassessed fair value of the common stock at the date of grant. Deferred stock
compensation, from inception through January 31, 2004, of $10.9 million was recorded in accordance with APB
Opinion No. 25, and was being amortized to expense over the related vesting period of the options. From
inception through December 31, 2005, stock-based compensation expense of $5.7 million was recognized and
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$2.6 million was reversed as a result of employee terminations. The remaining deferred stock compensation
balance of $2.6 million as of December 31, 2005 was reversed on January 1, 2006 upon adoption in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R.

For more information on stock-based compensation expense recorded for the year ended December 31,
2006, please refer to “Note 10—Stock Based Compensation” in: the Notes to Financial Statements.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.
The valuation of inventory requires us to estimate potential obsolete or excess inventory. The determination of
obsolete or excess inventory requires us to estimate the future demands for Increlex™; however, if our current
assumptions about future production or inventory levels, demand or competition were to change or if actual
market conditions are less favorable than those we have projected, inventory write-downs may be required that
could negatively impact our results of operations.

Clinical Trial Expenses

We contract with third-party clinical research organizations to perform various clinical trial activities. We
recognize research and development expenses for these contracted activities based upon a variety of factors,
including actual and estimated patient enrollment rates, clinical site initiation activities, labor hours and other
activity-based factors. We match the recording of expenses in our financial statements to the actual services
received from and efforts expended by these third-party clinical research organizations. Depending on the timing
of payments to the service providers, we record prepaid expenses and accruals relating to clinical trials based on
our estimate of the degree of completion of the event or events as specified in each clinical study or trial contract.
We monitor each of these factors to the extent possible and adjust estimates accordingly. Such adjustments to
date have not been material to our results of operations or financial position.

Valuation of Warranits

In order to estimate the value of warrants, we use the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model, which
requires the use of certain subjective assumptions. The most significant assumption is the estimate of the
expected volatility. The value of a warrant is derived from its potential for appreciation in value. The more
volatile the stock, the more valuable the option becomes because of the greater possibility of significant changes
in the stock price. We record the value of a warrant to additional paid-in capital based on the estimated value,
using certain assumptions, at the closing of a warrant transaction. However, it is difficult to predict the valuation
of warrants issued in future periods as that value can be affected by changes in the volatility assumptions of our
common stock.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, or FIN
48. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN 48 on our
financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements, or SFAS No. 157. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 on
our financial statements.
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Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2005

Revenues. We began shipment of Increlex™ to specialty pharmacy distributors in January 2006. Product
sales less product returns and cash discounts were $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. There
were minimal government rebates to state Medicaid agencies for the year ended December 31, 2006. As
Increlex™ is generally ordered by our distributors to fill specific prescriptions, we believe that our distributors
carty minimal levels of inventory, We also recorded $194,000 of amortized license revenue in connection with
our Increlex™ License and Collaboration Agreement with Ipsen, or the Increlex™ License. We are amortizing the
upfront payment, received in October 2006 of €10.0 million or $12.4 million over a period of approximately 16
years (See Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements for further details on our collaboration with Ipsen). There
were no revenues in 2005.

The Prescription Drug User Fee Act, or PDUFA date for Somatuline® Autogel® for the treatment of
acromegaly is August 30, 2007. Somatuline® Autogel® has already received marketing approval in Canada and is
currently in the reimbursement review process.

Cost of Product Sales. Our cost of product sales represents the supply cost and cost of production,
shipping, distribution and handling costs, royalties owed to our licensor, inventory write-downs/write-offs based
on our review of obsolete, excess, expired and failed inventory lots, and other costs related to production
activities, including technology transfer and validation cost associated with manufacturing site changes.

Cost of product sales was $1.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 which included write-offs of
inventory totaling $0.7 million due to manufacturing lot failures as well as costs related to transfer of
manufacturing processes to an alternative manufacturer of $0.1 million. Prior to regulatory approval of Increlex™
in August 2005, drug supply production costs were charged to research and development. Beginning in the fourth
quarter of 2005, with the marketing approval of Increlex™ by the FDA, we began capitalizing these production
costs to inventory and began to charge cost of product sales in the first quarter of 2006 as units of Increlex™ were
sold. In addition to these capitalized drug supply production costs, there are also certain variable and fixed
shipping, distribution and handling costs charged to cost of product sales. Qur cost of product sales as a
percentage of net product sales may fluctuate over time as the drug supply produced prior to August 20035 is sold,
as the mix of the fixed versus variable costs change over time, as we execute other production activities, and the
percentage of manufacturing lots that are successfully completed. There was no cost of product sales in 2005.

Research and Development Expenses. Research and development expenses have consisted primarily of
costs associated with clinical, regulatory, manufacturing development activities and acquired rights to technology
or products in development. Clinical and regulatory activities include the preparation, implementation, and
management of our clinical trials and assay development, as well as regulatory compliance, data management
and biostatistics. Manufacturing development activities include pre-regulatory approval activities associated with
technology transfer, process development and validation, quality control and assurance, analytical services, as
well as preparations for current good manufacturing practices (cGMP) and regulatory inspecttons. In addition to
these manufacturing development and clinical activities, license payments for patents and know-how to develop
and commercialize products, are also recorded as research and development expense,

Research and development expenses increased to $42.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 from
$21.6 million for the same period in 2005, The $20.4 million increase was due primarily to:

* A license fee of $25.0 million paid in October 2006 to Ipsen related 10 our Somatuline® License and
Collaboration Agreement. (See Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements for further details on our
collaboration with Ipsen),

+ partially offset by $3.8 million in lower external project costs, primarily due to lower manufacturing
development activities in 2006 as compared to 2005 and $1.0 million paid in 2005 to Genentech related
to Increlex™. Manufacturing development in 2005 was focused on production and validation of our
rhlGF-1 manufacturing process and pre-NDA activities.
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The $42.0 million in expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was comprised primarily of $25.0
million license fees paid to Ipsen, personnel and related costs of $10.7 miilion, external project costs related to
our clinical activities for Primary IGFD and severe Primary IGFD of $4.7 million, and costs associated with our
MAA filing activities of $1.3 million.

Excluding the $25.0 million license fee charged in 2006, we expect our research and development expenses
to increase in 2007 as we continue our clinical activities in Primary IGFD and severe Primary IGFD, Increlex™
activities in support of our MAA, Somatuline® Autogel® activities in acromegaly and other clinical development
activities. Our projects or intended projects may be subject to change from time to time as we evaluate our
research and development priorities and available resources.

Selling, General and Adminisirative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist
primarily of payroll and related costs associated with sales and marketing personnel, executive management,
corporate administration, legal fees, commercial activities, medical education, facility costs, insurance,
information technology and accounting services. We expanded our corporate staffing, infrastructure, and
commercial activities in 2005 as we prepared for our January 2006 launch of Increlex™, as well as our 2005
implementation of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. Activities associated with litigation and with
marketing Increlex™ for severe Primary IGFD, medical education and other infrastructure support increased in
2006.

Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to $44.2 million for the year ended December 31,
2006, from $25.9 million for the same period in 2005. The $18.3 million increase was attributable to:

» additional expenditures associated with sales and marketing activities of $7.9 million;

» increased general and administrative personnel and other costs of $3.2 million;

+ increased legal expenses primarily associated with litigation with Insmed of $2.8 million;
» increased expenses of $2.3 million associated with medical education and

« free goods expense of $1.5 million, of which $0.8 million was related to inventory write-offs due to
manufacturing lot failures and $0.1 million for inventory write-downs.

We expect total selling, general and administrative expenses in 2007 to be similar to expenses in 2006. We
expect that increases in our expenses due to commercial activities associated with Somatuline® Autogel® in the
United States and Canada, will be largely offset by decreased legal costs associated with our litigation with
Insmed and Avecia.

Interest expense. Interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $0.2 million. Interest
expense was $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 due to the issuance of our common stock to
VLL. Interest expense in 2005 represented the value of 112,500 shares of common stock we issued in 2005 in
connection with our loan agreement with VLL of $1.0 million and $0.1 million of commitment fees related to our
loan agreement with VLL.,

Interest and Other Income, net.  lnterest and other income, net, increased to $4.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, from $2.3 million for the same period in 2005. The increase was primarily due to interest
income on higher average cash, cash equivalents and short-term investment balances as a result the cash received
from Ipsen transaction in October 2006 and the impact of higher interest rates in 2006 compared to 2005.

Provision for income taxes. The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2006
represents $0.6 million of French foreign income taxes withheld on an upfront license fee received from Ipsen
under the Increlex™ License. There is no domestic provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31,
2006 and 2005 because we have incurred operating losses to date.
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Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Research and Development Expenses. Upon FDA approval for Increlex™ in August 2005, costs associated
with manufacturing activities associated with the Increlex™ commercial production were charged to inventory or
cost of sales. Manufacturing development activities included in research and development expenses stariing in
September 2005 were primarily in support of our MAA as well as clinical supply production. Prior to receiving
regulatory approval, we charged all drug supply preduction costs to research and development.

Research and development expenses decreased to $21.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005,
from $29.3 million for the same period in 2004. The decrease of $7.7 million was primarily due to lower costs
related to manufacturing activities, which decreased by $8.8 million from the same period in 2004.
Manufacturing development expenses in 2004 included establishment and validation of our rhIGF-I
manufacturing process at our contract manufacturers and ¢cGMP preparations for the anticipated NDA filing in
severe Primary IGFD, neither of which were required in 2005, and $1.4 million of acquired in-process research
and development primartly related to a license payment to Genentech. Costs in 2005 associated with our
development projects for Primary IGFD and severe Primary IGFD decreased by $1.3 million due primarily to the
timing of certain start up clinical trial expenses incurred in 2004, These decreases were partially offset by higher
personnel costs of $2.3 million and a milestone payment to Genentech of $1.0 million in 20035.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased to
$25.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, from $12.6 million for the same period in 2004. The $13.3
million increase was attributable to increased legal fees of $7.0 million primarily associated with our litigation
with Insmed and Avecia, increased personnel costs of $2.8 million and increased corporate administration
expenses including consulting, professional fees, insurance, facilities and other expenses of $3.5 million.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $1.1 million for the vear ended December 31, 2005. We did not
incur any interest expense in the comparable period in 2004. Interest expense in 2005 represented the value of
112,500 shares of common stock we issued in 2005 in connection with our loan agreement with VLL of $1.0
million and $0.1 million of commitment fees related to our loan agreement with VLL.,

Interest and Other Income, net. Interest and other income, net, increased to $2.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005, from $0.9 mitlion for the same period in 2004. The increase was primarily due to interest
income on higher average cash, cash equivalents and short-term investment balances as a result of the cash
proceeds received from our initial public offering in March 2004 and our follow-on public offering in February
2005 and the impact of higher interest rates in 2005 compared to 2004.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity

As of December 31, 2006, we had an accumulated deficit of $248.7 million, which was primarily comprised
of $205.7 million of accumulated net losses and $44.1 million of a non-cash deemed dividend related to the
beneficial conversion feature of convertible preferred stock. We have funded our operations and growth from
inception through December 31, 2006 with net cash proceeds of $66.0 in private equity financings and $135.3
million from our public offerings of common stock and $100.0 million, net of issuance costs, from the issuance
of common stock and a convertible note to Ipsen.

Committed Equity Financing Facility

Under ihe terms of the CEFF, Kingsbridge committed to purchase a maximum of approximately 6,000,000
newly issued shares of our common stock over a three-year period beginning in October 2005, for cash up to an
aggregate of $75.0 million, subject to certain conditions. We may draw down under the CEFF in tranches of up
to the lesser of $7.0 million or 2% of our market capitalization at the time of the draw down of such tranche,
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subject to certain conditions. The common stock o be issued for each draw down will be issued and priced over
an eight-day pricing period at discounts ranging from 6% to 10% from the volume weighted average price of our
common stock during the pricing period. During the term of the CEFF, Kingsbridge may not short our stock, nor
may it enter into any derivative transaction directly related to our stock. The minimum acceptable purchase price,
prior to the application of the appropriate discount for any shares to be sold to Kingsbridge during the eight-day
pricing period, is determined by the greater of $3.00 or 90% of our closing share price on the trading day
immediately prior to the commencememt of each draw down. In connection with the CEFF, we issued a warrant
to Kingsbridge to purchase up to 260,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of $13.12 per share.
We intend to exercise our right to draw down amounts under the CEFF, if and to the extent available, at such
times as we have a need for additional capital and when we believe that sales of our common stock under the
CEFF provide an appropriate means of raising capital. However, we are not obligated to sell any of the $75.0
million of common stock available under the CEFF, and there are no minimum commitments oI minimum use
penalties. Under the terms of the affiliation agreement with Ipsen, we have only a limited ability to raise capital
through the sale of its equity without first obtaining Ipsen’s approval, and would generally not have the ability to
draw down any funds under the CEFF without Ipsen’s prior approval.

Convertible Note

On July 18, 2006, we entered into a Stock Purchase and Master Transaction Agreement, or the Purchase
Agreement, with Ipsen (see Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements “Ipsen Collaboration™). Under the terms
of the Purchase Agreement, we agreed to issue to Ipsen a convertible note in the principal amount of $250
million, or the First Convertible Note. In accordance with the Purchase Agreement, at the first closing, we issued
the First Convertible Note in the principal amount of $25.0 million to Ipsen on October 13, 2006, the First
Closing. The First Convertible Note accrues interest at a rate of 2.5% per year, compounded quarterly, and is
convertible into our commen stock at an initial conversion price of $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment, which
represents 3,397,031 shares at December 31, 2006. The number of conversion shares could increase depending
on the market value of our common stock. The entire principal balance and accrued interest under the First
Convertible Note is due and payable on the later to occur of (i} October 13, 2011; or (ii) the second anniversary
of the date on which Ipsen (or a subsequent holder of the First Convertible Note) notifies vs that it will not
convert the First Convertible Note in full. As of December 31, 2006, approximately $0.1 million of interest
expense on the First Convertible Note was accrued.

Cash Flow

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments totaled $125.6 million at December 31, 2006, compared
to $58.6 million at December 31, 2005 and $52.0 million at December 31, 2004. The increase in 2006 was
primarily due to net proceeds of $34.2 million from the issuance of common stock under a shelf registration and
net proceeds of $100.0 million, net of issuance costs, from the issuance of common stock and the First
Convertible Note to Ipsen, partially offset by cash used in operating activities of $67.4 million. The increase in
2005 was primarily due to net proceeds of $51.1 million from the issuance of common stock in a follow-on
public offering, partially offset by cash used in operating activities of $43.4 million.

Net cash used in operating activities totaled $67.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2006, compared
to $43.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 and $34.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2004,
The increase in net cash used in 2006 operating activities from 2005 was primarily due to the increase in our net
loss in 2006 adjusted for the non-cash compensation charge of $5.7 million related to our adoption of FAS 123R
compared to 2005, which is discussed above in the results of operations, and the increase in our inventory
balance; partially offset by the $12.4 million received from Ipsen for the upfront Increlex™ license fee. Cash used
in operating activities in 2005 includes the receipt of a $1.0 million reimbursement from our landlord for facility
improvements which was recorded as deferred rent. The increase in net cash used in 2005 operating activities
from 2004 was primarily due to the increase of our net loss in 2005 compared to 2004, which is discussed above
in the results of operations, and the capitalization of inventory after we obtained FDA approval of Increlex™,
partially offset by the recognition of the leasehold improvement allowance received from our landlord
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Net cash used in investing activities totaled $41.8 million in the year ended December 31, 2006, compared
to $7.7 million in the year ended December 31, 2005 and $3.4 million in the year ended December 31, 2004. Net
cash wsed in investing activities represent purchases, sales and maturities of investments and purchases of
property and equipment net against proceeds received from the sale of equipment. Net purchases of short-term
investments were $40.7 million in 2006, an increase of $35.5 million from 2005. Due to the relatively short-term
maturities of our investment portfolio during 2004, 2005 and 2006, the increases and decreases in net purchases
of short-term investments were primarily due to timing of maturities, sales and purchases of short-term
investments. Net purchases of short-term investments were $5.2 million in 2005, an increase of $2.2 million from
2004. Purchases of property and equipment were $1.1 million in 2006, a decrease $1.7 million from 2005.
Purchases of property and equipment were lower in 2006 because leasehold improvements for the new office
building recorded in 2005 did not continue in 2006. Purchases of property and equipment were $2.8 million in
2005, an increase of $2.4 million from 2004. The increase in purchases of property and equipment in 2005
primarily relate to the purchase of leasehold improvements and office furniture for our new offices located in
Brisbane, California, and the purchase of computer equipment and software for new employees hired in 2005,
Proceeds received from the sale of equipment were $0.3 million in 2005, compared to $0 in 2004.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $134.7 million,
compared to $51.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005 and $50.3 million for the year ended
December 31, 2004. Net cash provided by financing activities primarily relate to net proceeds received from our
public offerings of common stock, proceeds from the issuance of the First Convertible Note to Ipsen, interest on
our cash investments and proceeds received from the issuance of common stock under our stock plans. Net
proceeds received from our public offerings of common stock were $34.2 million, $51.1 million and $50.0
million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Net proceeds from the issuance of common stock and a convertible
note to Ipsen were $100.0 million in 2006. Proceeds from the issuance of common stock under our equity
compensation plans were $0.5 million, $0.8 million and $0.3 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

We expect capital outlays and operating expenditures to increase over the next several years as we expand
our operations. We believe that our cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments as of December 31, 2006,
together with the funds that we would potentially receive from our collzboration with Ipsen, will be sufficient to
meet our projected operating and capital expenditure requirements through at least the middle of 2008 based on
our current business plan. However, our future capital needs and the adequacy of our available funds will depend
on many factors, including:

» changes to our business plan;

* our ability to market and sell sufficient quantities of Increlex™ and Somatuline® Autogel® at the
anticipated level;

» the commercial status of the Increlex™ bulk drug manufacturing operations at Lonza Baltimore Inc.,
including the success of our cGMP production activities;

+ the success of Increlex™ final drug product manufacturing;

* the costs, timing and scope of additiona! regulatory approvals for Increlex™;

» Ipsen’s ability to supply Somatuline® Autogel® to us in sufficient quantities;

* the cost, timing and scope of additional regulatory approvals for Somatuline® Autogel®;

» lpsen’s ability to market and sell sufficient quantities of Increlex™ in the licensed territories at the
anticipated level;

* any required repayment of the convertible notes we issued or that we may issue to Ipsen;
* the status of competing products;
+ the rate of progress and cost of our future clinical trials and other research and development activities; and

* the pace of expansion of administrative and legal expenses.
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Due to the significant risks and uncertainties inherent in the manufacturing, clinical development and
regulatory approval processes, the costs to complete our projects through product commercialization are not
accurately predictable. Results from regulatory review, manufacturing operations and clinical trials may not be
favorable. Further, data from clinical trials is subject to varying interpretation, and may be deemed insufficient
by the regulatory bodies reviewing applications for marketing approvals. As such, our development projects are
subject to risks, uncertainties and changes that may significantly impact cost projections and timelines. As a
result, our capital requirements may increase in future periods.

As a result, we expect that we may require and attempt to raise additional funds through equity or debt
financings, collaborative arrangements with corporate partners or from other sources, and the CEFF. However,
there can be no assurance that additional financing will be available when needed, or, if available, that the terms
will be favorable. In addition, under the terms of an affiliation agreement we entered into pursuant to our
collaboration with Ipsen, we have only a limited ability to raise capital through the sale of our equity without first
obtaining Ipsen’s approval. If additional funds are not available, we may be forced to curtail or cease operations.

Litigation

On December 20, 2004, we initiated patent infringement proceedings against Avecia Limited and Insmed
Incorporated as co-defendants in the High Court of Justice (Chancery Division Patents Court) in the United
Kingdom. On December 23, 2004, we, with Genentech, initiated patent infringement proceedings against Insmed
in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. We initiated these proceedings because we
believe that Insmed and Avecia are infringing and/or have infringed on our patents that cover Insmed’s product’s
use and manufacture. There were no material developments in our patent infringement litigation against Avecia
and Insmed in the United Kingdom during the 12 months ended December 31, 2006.

On June 30, 2006, the court issued rulings on several claims construction issues and cross-motions for
summary judgment in our patent infringement litigation against Insmed in the United States. The court granted us
summary judgment that Insmed infringes claims 1, 2 and 9 of U.S. Patent No. 6,331,414, and granted us
summary judgment that certain publications asserted by Insmed against the validity of U.S. Patent No. 5,187,151
do not qualify as prior art and cannot be used to attack the validity of that patent. In addition, the court denied
Insmed summary judgment that Insmed does not infringe any of claims 1 through 4, 9 and 10 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,331,414, denied Insmed summary judgment that claims 1 through 4, 9 and 10 of U.S. Patent No. 6,331,414
are invalid under 35 U.S.C. §10} and §112, denied Insmed summary judgment that Insmed does not infringe
claims 1, 4, 5 and 7 of U.S. Patent No. 5,187,151, and granted Insmed summary judgment that no recovery can
be had against it based on any activities conducted by Celtrix Pharmaceuticats, Inc. prior to December 23, 1998,
On July 14, 2006 Insmed filed a motion for partial reconsideration of the summary judgment order with respect
to infringement of claims 1 and 2 of U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414, and filed a request seeking the court’s permission to
file the motion. On September 29, 2006, the court granted its permission to Insmed for the filing of that motion.
On October 13, 2006, Genentech and we filed an opposition to Insmed’s motion for partial reconsideration of the
court’s summary judgment order. On October 31, 2006, the court issued a written ruling denying Insmed’s
motion for partial reconsideration of the court’s summary judgment order.

On November 6, 2006, the court initiated jury trial proceedings relating to Genentech’s and our claims that
Insmed had infringed U.S. Pat. No. 5,258,287 and 5,187,151 and relating to Insmed’s defense of invalidity against
the asserted claims of U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414, On December 6, 2006, the jury retuned a verdict finding that
Insmed had infringed U.S. Pat. No. 5,258,287 and U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151 and that the asserted claims of U.S. Pat.
No. 6,331,414 were not invalid. In addition, the jury found that Insmed’s infringement of U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151
was willful. For Insmed’s past acts of infringement, the jury awarded Genentech and us damages of an upfront
payment of $7.5 million and a 15 percent royalty on past net sales of Iplex. This award has not been reflected in our
financial statements in 2006 in accordance with U.S. GAAP as we have not realized the value of the award which
will occur upon payment to us. This award has not been reflected in our financial statements in 2006 in accordance
with U.S. GAAP as we have not realized the value of the award which will occur upon payment 10 us.
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On November 29, 2006, the court held an evidentiary hearing on Insmed’s defense of inequitable conduct
against U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151, instructed Insmed to submit a brief in support of lnsmed’s inequitable conduct
defense, granted Genentech and us leave to submit Genentech’s and our closing arguments regarding Insmed’s
inequitable conduct defense in the form of a brief in opposition to such defense, and granted Insmed leave to
submit a brief in reply to any opposition brief that Genentech and we may submit. On December 6, 2006, Insmed
submitted a brief in support of Insmed’s inequitable conduct defense against U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151. On
December 11, 2006, Genentech and we submitted closing arguments regarding Insmed’s defense of inequitable
conduct in the form of a brief in opposition to such defense. On December 13, 2006, Insmed submitted a brief in
reply to Genentech’s and our opposition brief.

On December 22, 2006, Genentech and we filed a motion requesting that the court award Genentech and us
a permanent injunction prohibiting Insmed from making or selling Iplex for commercial use as a treatment for
Severe Primary Insulin-Like Growth Factor Deficiency, award Genentech and us a trebling of the damages
awarded by the jury, and award Genentech and us our attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses.

In December 2003, we filed a complaint against Insmed for False Advertising and Unfair Competition, Case
No. C-05-5027 SBA, in the U.S. District Court for the Northern District of California. The complaint alleged that
Insmed made false, misleading and deceptive statements about Increlex ™ and its product. On June 9, 2006, the
Court granted Insmed’s motion to dismiss the case, On June 12, 2006, we filed a complaint against Insmed for
False Advertising, Unfair Competition and Intentional Interference with Prospective Business Relations, Case
No. 3:06cv403, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia. The complaint alleged that Insmed
made false, misleading and deceptive statements about Increlex™ and its product and intentionally interfered
with our business relationships. We are seeking monetary and injunctive relief. On June 23, 2006, we filed our
First Amended Complaint, On July 27, 2006, Insmed filed a motion to dismiss the case. On October 3, 2006, the
Court denied in part and granted in part Insmed’s motion to dismiss, and ordered the case, with our allegations
narrowed, to move forward with a March 2007 trial date. On Qctober 13, 2006, Insmed filed a counterclaim in
the case, alleging that we made false and misleading statements regarding Insmed’s product and Increlex™.

On March 6, 2007, Insmed, Avecia, Tercica and Genentech publicly announced agreements that settled all
the ongoing litigation among the companies.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

QOur contractual obligations as of December 31, 2006 were as follows (in thousands):

Payment due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years

Contractual Obligations '
Operating lease obligations(1} ....................... $ 4270 3811 $1,800 % 1,659

$—

Other long-term liabilities reflected on the Registrant’s
Balance Sheet under GAAP2) .. ................... 28,362 — — 28,362 —
Total contractual obligations .................... $32,632  $811 $1,800  $30021 &:

(1} Our obligations for operating leases include leases for our present office facility and office equipment. In
2005, we obtained a $340,000 imevocable leiter of credit in conjunction with the lease agreement covering
our present facility. This irrevocable letter of credit is collateralized for the same amount by cash, cash
equivalents and short-term investments held in a Company bank account and has been recorded as restricted
cash.

(2) Other long-term liabilities reflected on cur Balance Sheet under GAAP refers to the long-term convertible
note issued in connection with the Purchase Agreement with Ipsen, which accrues interest at a rate of
2.5% per year, compounded quarierly, and is copvertible into our common stock at an initial conversion
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price of $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment. The entire principal balance and accrued interest under the
First Convertible Note is due and payable on the later to occur of (i) October 13, 2011; or (ii) the second
anniversary of the date on which Ipsen (or a subsequent holder of the First Convertible Note) notifies us that
it will not convert the First Convertible Note in full. The balance as of December 31, 2006 included accrued
interest of $0.1 million.

We also have contractual payment obligations, the timing of which is contingent on future events. Under our
license agreements with Genentech, aggregate payments of up to $0.5 million would be due if milestones relating
to the initial product approval of thIGF-1 for severe Primary IGFD in Europe are achieved. Additional milestone
payments would be due for subsequent indication approvals, including for approvals of products consisting of
thIGF-1 or IGF binding protein 3, in the United States or Europe.

Our Purchase Agreement with Ipsen provides that, at the Second Closing of the transaction contemplated by
the Purchase Agreement (see Note 7 to the financial statements), subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the
conditions thereto, the Company would issue a convertible note to Ipsen for the sum of €30.0 million ($39.6
million). Conditions to the Second Closing include the occurrence of the milestone event provided for in the
Somatuline® License related to marketing approval of Somatuline® Autogel® by the FDA for the targeted
product label.

Pursuant to the Increlex™ License we granted to Ipsen and its affiliates the exclusive right under the
Company's patents and know-how to develop and commercialize Increlex™ in all countries of the world except
the United States, Japan, Canada, and for a certain period of time, Taiwan and certain countries of the Middle
East and North Africa, for all indications, other than treatment of central nervous system indications and diabetes
indications. Further to the Increlex™ License, we granted to Ipsen product development rights and agreed to
share the costs for improvements to, or new indications for Increlex™, and also agreed to rights of first
negotiation for the endocrine pipelines. Under the Increlex™ License Agreement, we are required to provide
Ipsen with 100% of their Increlex™ supply to meet their demand and development activities through the term of
the Increlex™ License which extends 15 years from the first commercial sale by Ipsen. Additionally in
connection with the Increlex™ License, we have granted an exclusive option for Ipsen to make or have made the
drug product known and marketed in the United States as Increlex™ if we fail to provide drug product in
accordance with the terms of the Increlex™ License.

Under our agreement with Lonza Baltimore Inc., we have a non-cancelable obligation to reimburse Lonza
Baltimore Inc. on a time and materials and per batch basis in connection with the commercial production of
Increlex™. We estimate that our total purchase commitment to Lonza Baltimore Inc. is approximately $8.5
million through December 31, 2007. Further, as we reach certain milestones, we will be committed to make
certain future purchases.

Under our agreement with a third-party fill and finish agent, we have a non-cancelable obligation to
reimburse such agent on a milestone basis in connection with the preparation for commercial production of
Increlex™. We estimate that our total purchase commitment to this agent, as we validate the fill and finish
processes which must then be approved by the FDA, is approximately $1.0 million through December 31, 2007.
If we reach certain milestone, we will be committed to make certain future purchases.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve our capital for the purpose of funding
operations while at the same time maximizing the income we receive from our investments without significantly
increasing risk. To achieve these objectives, our investment policy allows us to maintain a portfolio of cash
equivalents and short-term investments in a variety of securities, including auction rate debt securities,
commercial paper, federal agency bonds, repurchase agreements and money market funds.

59

-
<
=
3
=
i
7z




As of December 31, 2006, we held $40.3 million in cash and cash equivalents consisting of highly liquid
investments having original maturity dates of less than 90 days. Declines of interest rates over time would reduce
our interest income from our highly liquid short-term investments. Based upon our balance of cash and cash
equivalents, a decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points would cause a corresponding decrease in our annual
interest income of approximately $0.4 million for these investments. Due to the nature of our highly liquid cash
equivalents, a change in interest rates would not materially change the fair market value of our cash and cash
equivalents.

As of December 31, 2006, we held $85.2 million in short-term investments, which consisted primarily of
money market funds held by large institutions in the United States, federal agency bonds, commercial paper,
auction market preferred securities, corporate bonds, repurchase agreements and asset-backed securities maturing
in less than twelve months. The weighted average interest rate of our portfolio was approximately 5.50% at
December 31, 2006. A decline in interest rates over time would reduce our interest income from our short-term
investments. A decrease in interest rates of 100 basis points would cause a corresponding decrease in our annual
interest income of approximately $0.9 million for these investments. Due to the nature of our highly liquid cash
equivalents, a change in interest rates would not materially change the fair market value of our short-term
investments.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Tercica, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Tercica, Inc. as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the
related statements of operations, stockbolders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Tercica, Inc. at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, in 2006, Tercica, Inc., changed its method of accounting for
stock-based compensation in accordance with guidance provided in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123R, “Share-Based Payment”.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
{United States), the effectiveness of Tercica, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 5, 2007 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

Is/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
March 5, 2007
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Tercica, Inc.

We have audited management's assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on
Internal Control over Financial Reporting at Item 9A, that Tercica, Inc. maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Tercica, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial
reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the
company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Qur audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reascnable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Tercica, Inc. maintained effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2006, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO criteria. Also, in
our opinion, Tercica, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2006, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related statements of operations,
stockholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006
of Tercica, Inc. and our report dated March 5, 2007 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
March 5, 2007
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TERCICA, INC.

BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets

Current assets;
Cashandcashequivalents ............ ... ... .. ... ... .. ... ...
ShOrt-term INVESHTIENTS . o .ottt et et e e e
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $8 at December 31,2006 . ..............
InvenmtOries ... .. e e e

Total CUITENt ASSELS . ...\ttt e it et e ettt e e e
Property and equIpment, NEE . . ... ...\t i it e e
Restricted cash ... ... e e
OhEr A88E8 . . . oottt e e e

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... .. e e
ACCTUEd EXPEIISES . ..ottt ettt i e et e e
Liability for early exercise of stock options, less long-term portion .............
Other current liabilities . ... ... ..

Total current liabilities ........... ..o o e
Liability for early exercise of stock options, long-term portion .. ..................,
Long-term convertible note . ....... ... . .. . . .. i
Deferred rent . .. ... e e e

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 5,000,000 shares authorized, no shares issued
and outstanding at December 31,2006 and 2005 . .. ... . ... ... ... ... ...

Common stock, $0.001 par value: 100,000,000 shares authorized; 50,141,776 and
31,578,859 shares issued and outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005,
TSPECHIVelY . ..

Additional paid-incapital ... ... ... ... . . e

Deferred stock compensation ............ ... ... oo o,

Accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) ............ ... .. L

Accumulated deficit . ... .. L e

Total stockholders’ equity .......... ... ... i
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity .. ................ .. ..o onn...

See accompanying notes.
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December 31,

2006 2005
$ 40,339 § 14,817
85,236 43,809
335 —
5,092 1,636
1,948 1,555
132,950 61,817
3,861 4,021
340 340
536 138
$137.687 % 66,316
$ 2457 § 2245
6,214 5,750
32 70
290 —
776 —_
9,769 8,065
— 24
25,172 —
1,363 1,429
11,452 —
47,756 9,518
50 32
338,608 225,100
— (2,591)
11 (2)

(248,738) (165,741)

89,931

56,798

$ 137,687 $ 66,316




TERCICA, INC.

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Net revenues:
Net product SAIES . ...\ veut vttt $ 1,315 % — § —
LiCenSe TEVEIIE . .\ v ot ittt ntmasarasns s asasaanenr e araian 194 — —
Total BT TEVENUES . .o v v v i s vt itaannans s nsannsstaonnsssns 1,509 — _
Costs and expenses:
oSt OF SAlES . o vt ittt et e 1,667 — —_
Research and development® .. ... .. i 42,034 21,587 29,335
Selling, general and administrative® ... ........ .. .o 44248 25,913 12,552
Total costs and EXPENSES ... ....uuuvronveernurerasnrsarresainrauon 87,949 47,500 41,887
Loss from OPerations . ...........vveneerorare i (86,440) (47,5000 (41,887)
INEETESE EXPEMSE . o v v vvn et v vasen s s es s aann e aa s et (162)  (1,080) —
Interest and other INCOME, ML .. v\ v vv et vt enrinrr i ea s anreaaar e 4,226 2,347 885
L0SS DefOre INCOME LAXES . .\ vv s e inr e cninriasansens s sianasissans (82,376) (46,233) (41,002)
Provision fOr INCOME tAXES . .. . i v vveenr i ceearnanasmsesntruasaronese (621) — —_
B d08S - v v o vttt et ee e et aa ettt e $(82,997) $(46,233) $(41,002)
Basic and diluted net 10ss Per share ... ......c.ovvvrvreenne it iiiaaeann, $ (209 % Q.51 § (212 -
Shares used to compute basic and diluted net loss per share . ............... 39,789 30,590 19,302 E
* Includes stock-based compensation expense as follows: ;
Research and development . ... ... ..vvvennnerre oo $ 2,043 $ 1,188 § 1,386
Selling, general and administrative ...... ...l 3,680 1,006 1,455
o7 R U PO N $ 5723 § 2,194 § 2841

See accompanying notes.
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TERCICA, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Nt 088 L ittt i it ettt e e e e e e

Adjusiments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization ............... e e e e e
Loss on disposal of property and equipment ........... ... ... s
(Accretion) / Amortization of (discounts)} /premiums relating to available-for-sale securities
Stock based compensation .. ... .. e
Amortization of debt 1ssUanCe COSIS . .., . ... e e
Commitment fee written-off due to termination of senior credit facility ................
Stock compensation to consultants in exchange forservices . ........................
L0115

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Prepaid expenses and other 85t .. .. i i i,
Accounts receivable, net ... ... ... e
D 1 T o T

Accounts payable ... e e,

ACCTUCH BXPENMSES L L\ttt r it et aaie et i
Deferred rent ... ... . e

Net cash used in operating activities ......... ... .o i iiiiiiiii i,

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchases of property and equipment ... ... ... i e
Proceeds received from sale of equipment . .. .. ... ... ... .. e
Purchases of available-for-sale securities . . ........ ... . i

Net cash used in investing activities . .. ... .. o vt ir i et ey

Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from issuance of convertible note, net of isswance costs . ....... .0 e
Proceeds from issuance of common stock, excleding early exercised options ...............
Proceeds from early exercised Options ... .. ... ... i e
Repurchases of unvested early exercised oplions . ..........c.coiniiriiirinrrrainn s
Payment of commitment fees for senior credit facility ......... . .. ... i
Net proceeds from public offerings of commonstock .. ... i i
Net proceeds from the sale of common stock toIpsen, S.A. ... ...,

Net cash provided by financing activities ....... ... ... .. iiiiiii i i

Net increase incash and cashequivalents .. ... ... ... ... . i i i
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year ... ... .

Cash and cash equivalents,end of year . ... ... ... i s

Supplemental schedule of noncash activities:
Cash patd during the year for:

Taxes pald ... e e e e
Cashpaid forimterest ... .. L. e

Non-cash investing and financing activities:

Reversal of deferred stock upon adoption of SFAS 123R ... i
Increase in common stock from vesting of early exercises of stock options . ................
Issuance of common stock for senjoreredit facility .. ..., ... L o
Issuance of warrant in connection with committed equity financing facility ................
Issuance of warrant in connection with Ipsen transaction ...........coiviiiiainiaranenes
Deferred stock compensation, netof forfeitures . ...... . ... o il i
Conversion of Series A and B convertible preferred stock into common stock ..............

See accompanying notes.
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Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
$(82,997) $ (46,233) § (41.002)
1,162 707 446
121 76 9
(756) (701) 454
5,723 2,102 2,734
28 1,002 —
—_ 75 —
—_ 72 107
—_ 23 —_
(300} {338} 2.101
(335)
(3,372) (1,636) —
—_ (340) —_
212 {1,7122) {1,334)
464 2,718 1,818
224 1,429 —
12,226 — —_
136
(67,464) (43,366) 34717y
(1,123 (2,838) 407)
— 300 J—
(92,294) (110,641) (113,184)
51,636 105,475 119,165
(41,781) (7,704) (3,426)
24,555 — —_
519 806 260
23 —_ 40
— (111} —
— (76) —_—
34,186 51,142 50,020
75.484 - —
134,767 51,761 50,320
25,522 691 12,177
14,817 14,126 1,949
$40339 § 14817 § 14,126
s 612 8 — § @ —
— 15 —
$ (2591) % — 3 —
84 140 173
—_ 1,001 —
— 1,196 —
13,622 —_ —
— (1,695) 3,138
— — 68,637




TERCICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Company and Basis of Presentation
Company

Tercica, Inc. (the “Company™), is a biopharmaceutical company developing and marketing a portfolio of
endocrinology products. The Company currently has the following products in our commercialization and
development portfolio:

« Increlex™, which the Company began commercializing in the United States in January 2006;

+ Somatuline® Autogel®, for which a New Drug Application, or NDA, was submitted in 2006 to the U.S.
Food and Drug Administration, or FDA, by Ipsen S.A., or Ipsen, the Company’s collaborator; and was
approved for marketing in July 2006 by Health Canada for the treatment of acromegaly.

Increlex™ The Company markets Increlex™ as a long-term replacement therapy for the treatment of
children with severe primary insulin-like growth factor deficiency, or severe Primary IGFD, or with growth
hormone gene deletion who have developed neutralizing antibodies to growth hormone. The Company obtained
approval for the long-term treatment of severe Primary IGFD, from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or
FDA, in August 2005. We are currently conducting a Phase IIIb clinical trial for the use of Increlex™ for the
treatment of children with Primary IGFD. In January 2006, the Company launched Increlex™ in the United
States. Increlex™ generated net revenues of $1.3 million in 2006.

In December 2005, the Company submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, in the
European Union for the long-term treatment of growth failure in children with severe Primary IGFD or with
growth hormone gene deletion who have developed neutralizing antibodies to growth hormone. The Company
expects to receive an opinion from the Committee for Medicinal Products for Human Use on the Increlex™ MAA
in the second quarter of 2007. Pursuant to the Company’s worldwide strategic collaboration with Ipsen that was
finalized in October 2006, the Company granted to Ipsen and its affiliates the exclusive right under the
Company’s patents and know-how to develop and commercialize Increlex™ in all countries of the world except
the United States, Japan, Canada, and for a certain period of time, Taiwan and certain countries of the Middle
East and North Africa, for all indications, other than treatment of central nervous system and diabetes
indications.

Somatuline® Autogel®. Pursuant to the worldwide strategic collaboration with Ipsen, the Company has the
exclusive right under Ipsen’s patents and know-how to develop and commercialize Somatuline® Autogel® in the
United States and Canada for all indications other than opthalmic indications. In July 2006, Somatuline®
Autogel® was approved for marketing by Health Canada for the treatment of acromegaly and is currently in the
reimbursement review process. Acromegaly is a hormonal disorder that results when a tumor in the pituitary
gland produces excess growth hormone, resulting in overproduction of insulin-like growth factor-1 (IGF-1) and
excessive growth. In October 2006, Ipsen submitted an NDA to the FDA for the use of Somatuline® Autogel®
for the treatment of acromegaly. The FDA accepted the NDA on December 30, 2006, and the Prescription Drug
User Fee Act, or PDUFA, date for Somatuline® Autogel® for the treatment of acromegaly is August 30, 2007.

Basis of Presentation

Prior to 2006, the Company had been considered to be a development stage company as it has not yet
generated significant revenue from product sales. The Company had devoted substantially all of its efforts since
incorporation to the development and commercialization of Increlex™ for the treatment of severe Primary IGFD
and Primary IGFD. These efforts have included establishing its facilities, recruiting personnel, conducting
research and development, business development, business and financial planning and raising capital. The
Company began commercializing Increlex™ in 2006 and generated net revenues of $1.3 million from sales of
Increlex™. Based on these factors, the Company is no longer considered to be in the development stage.
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TERCICA, INC,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)

Use of Estimates and Reclassifications

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the
financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Certain reclassifications of prior period amounts have been made to our financial statements to conform to
current period presentation.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Concentrations

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash, cash equivalents
and short-term investments to the extent of the amounts recorded on the balance sheets. The Company’s cash,
cash equivalents and short-term investments are placed with high credit-quality financial institutions and issuers.
The Company believes its established guidelines for investment of its excess cash maintain safety and liquidity
through its policies on diversification and investment maturity.

The Company sources all of its bulk manufacturing and fill-finish manufacturing through single-source
third-party suppliers and contractors and the Company obtains specific components and raw materials used to
manufacture Increlex™ from either single-source or sole-source suppliers. If these contract facilities, suppliers or
contractors become unavailable to the Company for any reason, the Company may be delayed in manufacturing
Increlex™ or may be unable to maintain validation of Increlex™, which could delay or prevent the supply of
commercial and clinical product, or delay or otherwise adversely affect revenues and our license and
collaboration agreement with Ipsen whereby we are required to supply to them Increlex™. The Company believes
that it has established guidelines to maintain an adequate level of inventory to mitigate this potential negative
impact.

We promote our products to medical professionals, but we sell our products primarily to distributors and our
product revenues and accounts receivable are concentrated with a few customers. Customer concentrations in
gross product sales that are greater than 10% of the relative total are 24%, 23%, 22% and 14% for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Customer concentrations in trade accounts receivable that are greater than 10% of the
relative total are 21%, 17%, 16%, 15% and 11% at December 31, 2006. Commercialization of our product
Increlex™ began in 2006 and, therefore, we had no sales or accounts receivable in prior years. Sales of the
Company’s product in the US represent approximately 92% of total product sales,

Cash, and Cash Equivalents, Short-Term Investments and Restricted Cash

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with a remaining maturity of 90 days or less at the
date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. The
Company’s cash equivalents include interest-bearing money market funds, The Company’s short-term
investments primarily consist of readily marketable debt securities with remaining maturities of more than 90
days at the time of purchase but not exceeding one year.

The Company has classified its entire investment portfolio as available-for-sale. These securities are recorded
as either cash equivalents or short-term investments and are carried at fair value with unrealized gains or losses
included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) in the stockholders’ equity (deficit). The amortized cost
of debt securities is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization
and accretion are included in interest and other income, net. Realized gains and losses are also included in interest
and other income, net. The cost of all securities sold is based on the specific identification method.
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TERCICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-—(Continued)

The Company obtained a $340,000 irrevocable letter of credit in conjunction with a lease agreement for its

The following is a summary of available-for-sale securities (in thousands):

facility. The letter of credit is collateralized for the same amount by cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments held in a Company bank account and has been recorded as restricted cash (see Note 6) in the
accompanying balance sheet.

December 31, 2006
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Auvailable-for-sale debt securities maturing within 1 year:
Auction market preferred . ... oo $ 30,700 $— — $ 30,700
Corporate bonds ........ ... 4,280 — — 4,289
Commercial paper ..........coiiiii i 58,942 8 — 58,950
Government sponsored entity bonds . ................... 10,866 2 — 10,868
Repurchase agreements . .........coooeeeinnioaneenn-. 9,325 — — 9,325
Asset-backed securities ....... ... i e 1410 1 — _ 1411
Total available-for-sale debt securities . .............covoon.. $121,532 $1_1 $__—_ $121,543
December 31, 2005
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Available-for-sale debt securities maturing within 1 year:
Corporate bonds ...........iviiiiiiiiii e $ 36,150 — $— $ 36,150
Commercial Paper ..........c. o iiiiiii i 13,468 3 — 13,471
Government sponsored entitybonds .. ........... ... 5477 — { 5,472
Municipalbonds ......... .. ... o 3,000 — = 3,000
Total available-for-sale debt securities ............. .ot $ 58,095 ﬁ $_(§ $ 58,093
The Company’s financial instruments are classified as follows (in thousands);
December 31,
2006 2005
CaSh . e e e e $ 4372 $ 873
Cashequivalents . ... it iarer e 35,967 13,944
Cashandcashequivalents . ...... ..ot 40,339 14,817
ShOrt-termm INVESTIMENTS . . vt e e ottt ee e ae e a ettt annanraens 85,236 43 809
Long-term restricted cash . ... oo 340 340
4 1721 P $125,915  $58,966

Realized losses on the sale of available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

2004 were immaterial.
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TERCICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The fair value of our cash equivaients and marketable securities is based on quoted market prices. The
carrying amount of cash equivalents and marketable securities is equal to their respective fair values at
December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Other financial instruments, including accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, are
carried at cost, which we believe approximates fair value because of the short-terrn maturity of these instruments,
The fair value of our convertible debt was $25.2 million at December 31, 2006. We determined this value using
available market information and a valuation of the instrument by an independent third-party valuation expert.
Other long-term obligations at December 31, 2005 approximate their fair values due to the relatively short
maturities.

Trade Accounts Receivable

Trade accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount. We perform evaluations of our customers’
financial condition and generally do not require collateral. We make judgments as to our ability to collect
outstanding receivables and provide allowances for the portion of receivables when collection becomes doubtful.
We have not recorded reserves related to the collectibility of our trade accounts receivable for the year ended
December 31, 2006. All allowances recorded are based on net payment terms afforded to our customers.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out basis. The
valuation of inventory requires the Company to estimate obsolete or excess inventory based on analysis of future
demand for our products. If inventory costs exceed expected market value due to obsolescence or lack of
demand, inventory write-downs may be recorded as deemed necessary by management for the difference
between the cost and the market value. These inventory write-downs are determined based on significant
estimates by management and will be recorded as a write-down to net realizable value in the period that
impairment is first recognized.

Products released from inventory which have been sold are recorded in cost of goods sold. Products released
from inventory as free goods are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses. Accordingly, cost of
inventory write-downs are allocated to cost of goods sold and free goods expense as appropriate.

The Company recorded inventory write-downs of approximately $1,566,000, during the year ended
December 31, 2006. Inventory write-downs for the year ended December 31, 2006 primarily related to Increlex
™ manufacturing lot failures in the second and third quarters of 2006. Cost of inventory write-downs allocated to
cost of goods sold and free goods expenses was $690,000 and $876,000, respectively, for the year ended
December 31, 2006.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue from the sale of our products, royalties earned and contract arrangements. Qur
revenue arrangements with multiple elements are divided into separate units of accounting if certain criteria are
met, including whether the delivered element has stand-alone value to the customer and whether there is
objective and reliable evidence of the fair value of the undelivered items. The consideration we receive is
allocated among the separate units based on their respective fair values, and the applicable revenue recognition
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criteria are applied to each of the separate units. Advance payments in excess of amounts earned are classifted as
deferred revenue until earned.

« We recognize revenue from product sales when there is persuasive evidence that an arrangement exits,
title passes, the price is fixed and determinable, and collectibility is reasonably assured. We record
provisions for discounts to customers, rebates to government agencies, product returns and other
adjustments.

» License revenue includes upfront and continuing licensing fees. Nonrefundable upfront fees that require
our continuing involvement in the manufacturing or other commercialization efforts by us are recognized
as revenue ratably over the contractual term.

Research and Product Development Costs

In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 2, Accounting for Research
and Development Costs, research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development
expenses consist primarily of costs associated with clinical and regulatory activities, payroll and related costs,
non-cash stock-based compensation, laboratory supplies, certain allocated costs, manufacturing development
activities and in 2006 an upfront licensing fee associated with our license of Somatuline® Autogel®,
Manufacturing development expenses include costs associated with the Company’s contract manufacturers,
inchuding technology transfer, pre-approval product manufacturing, process development, validation and
qualification activities, analytical development, and compliance-related support, pre-regulatory approval
preparations for current good manufacturing practices (CGMP), quality control and assurance activities, as well
as personnel and related benefits and depreciation, prior to regulatory approval. Clinical and regulatory activities
include the preparation, implementation and management of the Company’s clinical trials and assay
development, as well as regulatory compliance, data management and biostatistics.

Acquired in-process research and development relates to in-licensed, in-process technology, intellectual
property and know-how. The nature of the remaining efforts for completion of research and development
activities generally include completion of clinical trials, completion of manufacturing validation, interpretation of
clinical and pre-clinical data and obtaining marketing approval from the FDA and other foreign regulatory
bodies, the cost, length and success of which are extremely difficult to determine. Numerous risks and
uncertainties exist with timely completion of development projects, including clinical trial results, manufacturing
process development results, ongoing feedback from regulatory authorities, including obtaining marketing
appivval. In addition, products under development may never be successfully commercialized due to the
uncertainties associated with the pricing of new pharmaceuticals, the cost of sales to produce these products in a
commercial setting, changes in the reimbursement environment, or the introduction of new competitive products.
As a result of the uncertainties noted above, the Company charges in-licensed intellectual property and licenses
for unapproved products to research and development expense.

Clinical Trial Expenses

The Company contracts with third-party clinical research organizations to perform various clinical trial
activities. The Company recognizes research and development expenses for these contracted activities based
upon a variety of factors, including actual and estimated patient enrollment rates, clinical site initiation activities,
labor hours and other activity-based factors. The Company matches the recording of expenses in the financial
statements to the actual services received and efforts expended. Depending on the timing of payments to the
service providers, the Company records prepaid expenses and accruals relating to clinical trials based on the
estimate of the degree of completion of the event or events as specified each clinical study or trial contract. The
Company monitors each of these factors to the extent possible and adjusts estimates accordingly.
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Promotional and Advertising Expenses

The Company expenses the costs of promotional and advertising expenses, as incurred. Promotional and
advertising expenses consist primarily of promotional materials and activities, design and layout costs of
promotional materials, and direct mail advertising. Promotional and advertising expenses were $1,396,000,
$1,069,000 and $75,000 in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, but not more than:

Description Estimated Useful Lives
Computer equipment and software ......................... 3 years
Officeequipment . ....... ... ... it 5 years
Furniture and fixtures ............ ... .. ... i, T years
Manufacturing equipment .......... ... . i 10 years
Leasehold improvements .. .......... .. ... ... o, Shorter of useful life or

life of lease

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews its long-lived assets, including property and equipment, for impairment whenever
events or changes in business circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not be fully
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized when estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to result
from the use of the asset and its eventual disposition are less than its carrying amount. Impairment, if any, is
assessed using discounted cash flows.

Income Taxes

The Company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes as required by SFAS No. 109,
Accounting for Income Taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on
differences between financial reporting and tax reporting bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using
enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. The
provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2006 represents $621,000 of French foreign income
taxes withheld on an upfront license fee received from Ipsen under the Increlex ™ License. There is no domestic
provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 because the Company has
incurred operating losses to date.

Valuation of Warrants

In order to estimate the value of warrants, the Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model,
which requires the use of certain subjective assumptions. The most significant assumption is estimate of the
expected volatility. The value of a warrant is derived from its potential for appreciation in value. The more
volatile the stock, the more valuable the option becomes because of the greater possibility of significant changes
in the stock price. The Company records the value of a warrant to additional paid-in capital based on the
estimated value, using certain assumptions, at closing of a warrant transaction. However, it is difficolt to predict
the valuation of warrants issued in future periods as that value can be affected by changes in the volatility of the
Company’s common stock.
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Stock-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123R”) which requires the measurement and recognition of non-cash
compensation expense for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors including employee
stock options and employee stock purchases related to the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (“Purchase
Plan™) based on estimated fair values. SFAS No. 123R supersedes the Company’s previous accounting under
Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, for periods
beginning in fiscal 2006, In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 107 (“SAB 107”) relating to SFAS No. 123R. The Company has applied the provisions of SAB 107
in its adoption of SFAS No. 123R. See Note 10—Stock-Based Compensation for further detail.

After the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, stock compensation arrangements with non-employee service
providers continue to be accounted for in accordance with SFAS No. 123 and Emerging Issues Task Force
(“EITF") No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments that Are Issued to Other than Employees Jor Acquiring,
or in Conjunction with Selling, Goods or Services, using a fair value approach. The compensation costs of these
arrangements are subject to remeasurement over the vesting terms as earned.

Comprehensive Loss

Comprehensive loss is comprised of net loss and unrealized gains/losses on available-for-sale securities in
accordance with SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income. The following table presents the calculation
of comprehensive loss (in thousands):

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Netloss, as TepOrted .. ..ottt $(82,997) $(46,233) $(41,002)
Change in unrealized gains/(losses) on marketable securities, net of taxes . . ... 13 70 (54)
Comprehensive LOSS .. ... .vuitiit i $(82,984) $(46,163) $(41,056)

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No, 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, or FIN
48. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in financial statements in
accordance with SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute of tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax return. FIN 48 is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2006. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting FIN 48 on our
financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 157, Fair Value
Measurements, or SFAS No. 157. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value in generally accepted accounting principles, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and
interim periods within those fiscal years. We are currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 on
our financial position or results of operations.
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3, Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is calculated by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of common
shares outstanding for the period, without consideration for common stock equivalents. Diluted net loss per share
is computed by dividing the net loss by the weighted-average number of common share equivalents outstanding
for the period determined using the treasury-stock method for warrants and options and the as-if converted
method for the conveniible notes. For purposes of this calculation, common stock subject to repurchase by the
Company, prefersed stock, options, and warrants are considered to be common stock equivalents and are only
included in the calculation of diluted net loss per share when their effect is dilutive,

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands, except per share data)
Numerator:
NEt oSS . i e e $(82,997) $(46,233) $(41,002)
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding . ..................... 39,789 30,619 19,377
Less: Weighted-average unvested commeon shares subject to
TEPUICHASE . . o oottt e e — 29) (75)
Denominator for basic and diluted net loss pershare .................., .. 39,789 30,590 19,302
Basic and diluted net loss pershare ................. ... .o . $ 20 % (s $ (212
Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
(In thousands)
Outstanding dilutive securities not included in diluted net loss per share
Options to purchase common stock .................. ... ... ... L. 3,895 2,851 2,077
03] N5 1) (= T (- U 3,397 — —
WaITANLS . ...ttt ettt e 5,268 260 —

12,560 3,111 2,077

4. Balance Sheet Details

Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005
Rawmaterials . ....... . ... it e $1,477 $ 319
WOTK-IM-PrOCESS ..ottt ettt e e eiae st ne et aaesnnnes 3,280 1,229
Finished goods .. ... ..o i i it i s 335 88
TOtal ... e e e $5,092 $1,636

The Company’s finished goods included obsolescence write downs of approximately $246,000 and $45,000
for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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Property and equipment, net, consists of the following (in thousands):

Pecember 31,

2006 2005
Office EQUIPMENT . . ..o o .\ttt ittt $ 316 § 292
Furniture and fIXIUIES . ...t tv et it i it 635 628
Computer equipment and software ......... .. ... oo i 2,291 1,683
Manufacturing eqUIPIMEnt ... ... . oot 1,240 1,004
Leasehold improvements . ... ....v it eainii i 1,302 1,450
ConStruCtion N PYOZIESS ... vvv vt ur e et orriiianeenee 216 175

6,000 5,232
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ...... ... ... i (2,139) (1,211)
Property and equipment, DEL ... ... i $ 3,861 § 4,021

Depreciation expense was $1,240,000, $707,000 and $446,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Accrued liabilities consist of the following (in thousands):

December 31,
2006 2005
Accrued compensation and related liabilities ................ ..o $2,938 $2,626
Accrued professional fees ...... ... .. ... i 1,691 1,577
Accrued contract manufacturing eXpenses ..........c.o i 629 543
Clinical trial COSES .\ttt c it in e i es 335 276
Other accrued liabilities . .. ... ... 621 728

$6,214 $5,750

5. Long-Term Debt
Convertible Note

On October 13, 2006, the Company issued to Ipsen a convertible note in the principal amount of
$25,037,000 (the “First Convertible Note™). The First Convertible Note accrues interest at a rate of 2.5% per
year, compounded quarterly, and is convertible into the Company’s common stock at an initial conversion price
of $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment, which represents 3,397,031 shares at December 31, 2006. See “Ipsen
Collaboration” in Note 7 in the Notes to Financial Statements for further discussion regarding the First
Convertible Note.

Senior Credit Facility

On January 21, 2005, the Company entered into a Loan Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with Venture
Leasing & Lending IV, Inc. (“*VLL") under which the Company had the option to draw down funds in the
aggregate principal amount of up to $15,000,000 through December 31, 2005. The Company paid a $75,000 fee
as part of this Loan Agreement and issued a total of 112,500 shares of its common stock to an affiliate of VLL.
The 112,500 shares of common stock issued were recorded at fair market value on the dates of issuance of
$1,002,000. As of December 31, 2005, the entire amount was recognized as interest expense. The facility expired
on December 31, 2005, and the Company did not borrow any funds under this facility.
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6. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company leases approximately 32,000 square feet of office space in Brisbane, California. The lease
expires in October 2011 with an option to renew for five years. This lease agreement includes scheduled rent
increases over the lease term and rent abatement for the first 15 months. The Company recognizes rent expense
on a straight-line basis over the term that the facility is physically utilized, taking into account the scheduled rent
increases, rent abatement, rent holidays and the leasehold improvement reimbursement. In September 2005, the
Company received a $1,046,000 reimbursement from the landlord for facility improvements, which was recorded
as deferred rent and is being amortized to offset rent expense over the remaining life of the lease. Under the lease
agreement, the Company originally provided the landlord with imrevocable letters of credit amounting to
$790,000, which were subsequently reduced to $340,000 in September 2005 after the FDA approved Increlex™
for marketing in late August 2005. The remaining irrevocable letter of credit is collateralized for the same
amount by cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments held in a Company bank account. The Company
has tecorded the collateralized bank account balance as restricted cash.

At December 31, 2006, future minimum lease commitments under operating leases were as follows (in
thousands):

Year ending December 31,

2007 o e e e e $ 811
200 . 889
2000 e e e e e e 911
2000 L e e e e e e 944
710 3 U 715
e ter . . oot et e e e e —

$4.270

Rent expense, including the impact of the allowance for leasehold improvements of $172,000 in 2006, was
$389.,000, $641,000 and $453,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Manufacturing Services Agreement

In December 2002, the Company entered into a development and commercial supply agreement (the
“Manufacturing Agreement”) with Cambrex Bio Science Baltimore, Inc. (“*Cambrex Baltimere™). At that time,
the Company began to transfer its manufacturing technology to Cambrex Baltimore in order for them to establish
the process for rhIGF-1 fermentation and purification. Further, under the terms of the Manufacturing Agreement,
Cambrex Baltimore is obligated to annually provide the Company with certain minimum quantities of bulk
thIGF-1 drug substance. In February 2007, Cambrex Baltimore was purchased by Lonza Group AG, or Lonza
Baltimore Inc. The Company’s contractual relationship continued with Lonza Baltimore Inc. and has a
non-cancelable obligation to reimburse Lonza Baltimore Inc. on a time and materials and per batch basis in
connection with the commercial production of Increlex™ of approximately $8,500,000 through December 31,
2007. Payments under this agreement were 33,638,000, 36,887,000 and $11,699,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

In November 2006, the Company entered into a development and commercial supply agreement with a
third-party fill and finish agent. At that time, the Company began to transfer its manufacturing technology to this
agent in order for the agent to establish the process for drug product fill and finish. Further, under the terms of
this agreement, the agent is obligated to annually provide the Company with certain minimum quantities of
finished rhIGF-1 drug product. The Company has a non-cancelable obligation to reimburse the agent on a
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milestone basis in connection with the preparation for commercial production of Increlex™. We estimate that our
total purchase commitment to this agent as we validate the fill and finish processes which must then be approved
by the FDA is approximately $950,000 through December 31, 2007.

Guarantees and Indemnifications

The Company, as permitted under Delaware law and in accordance with its Bylaws, indemnifies its officers
and directors for certain events or occurrences, subject to certain limits, while the officer or director is or was
serving at the Company’s request in such capacity. The term of the indemnification period is for the officer’s or
director’s lifetime. The Company may terminate the indemnification agreements with its officers and directors
upon 90 days written notice, but termination will not affect claims for indemnification relating to events
occurring prior to the effective date of termination, The maximum amount of potential future indemnification is
unlimited; however, the Company has a director and officer insurance policy that limits its exposure and may
enable it to recover a portion of any future amounts paid. The Company belicves the fair value of these
indemnification agreements is minimal. Accordingly, the Company has not recorded any liabilities for these
agreements as of December 31, 2006.

Contingencies

On December 20, 2004, the Company initiated patent infringement proceedings against Avecia Limited and
Insmed Incorporated as co-defendants in the High Court of Justice (Chancery Division Patents Court) in the
United Kingdom. On December 23, 2004, the Company, with Genentech, initiated patent infringement
proceedings against Insmed in the U.S. District Court for the Northem District of California. The Company
initiated these proceedings because it believes that Insmed and Avecia are infringing and/or have infringed on the
Company’s patents that cover Insmed’s product’s use and manufacture. There were no material developments in
our patent infringement litigation against Avecia and Insmed in the United Kingdom during the 12 months ended
December 31, 2006,

On June 30, 2006, the court issued rulings on several claims construction issues and cross-motions for
summary judgment in the Company’s patent infringement litigation against Insmed in the United States. The
court granted the Company summary judgment that Insmed infringes claims I, 2 and 9 of U.S. Patent
No. 6,331,414, and granted it summary judgment that certain publications asserted by Insmed against the validity
of U.S. Patent No. 5,187,151 do not qualify as prior art and cannot be used to attack the validity of that patent. In
addition, the court denied Insmed summary judgment that Insmed does not infringe any of claims 1 through 4,9
and 10 of U.S. Patent No. 6,331,414, denied Insmed summary judgment that claims 1 through 4, G and 10 of U.S.
Patent No. 6,331,414 are invalid under 35 U.S.C. §101 and §112, denied Insmed summary judgment that Insmed
does not infringe claims 1, 4, 5 and 7 of U.S. Patent No. 5,187,151, and granted Insmed summary judgment that
no recovery can be had against it based on any activities conducted by Celtrix Pharmaceuticals, Inc. prior to
December 23, 1998. On July 14, 2006 Insmed filed a motion for partial reconsideration of the summary judgment
order with respect to infringement of claims 1 and 2 of U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414, and filed a request seeking the
court’s permission to file the motion. On September 29, 2006, the court granted its permission to Insmed for the
filing of that motion. On October 13, 2006, Genentech and the Company filed an opposition to Insmed’s motion
for partial reconsideration of the court’s summary judgment order. On October 31, 2006, the court issued a
written ruling denying Insmed’s motion for partial reconsideration of the court’s summary judgment order.

On November 6, 2006, the court initiated jury trial proceedings relating to Genentech’s and the Company’s
claims that Insmed had infringed U.S. Pat. No. 5,258,287 and 5,187,151 and relating to Insmed’s defense of
invalidity against the asserted claims of U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414, On December 6, 2006, the jury returned a
verdict finding that Insmed had infringed U.S. Pat. No. 5,258,287 and U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151 and that the
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asserted claims of U.S. Pat. No. 6,331,414 were not invalid. In addition, the jury found that Insmed’s
infringement of U.S. Pat. No, 5,187,151 was willful. For Insmed’s past acts of infringement, the jury awarded
Genentech and the Company damages of an upfront payment of $7.5 million and a 15 percent royalty on past net
sales of Iplex. This award has not been reflected in the Company’s financial statements for 2006, and will not be
until the award has been paid.

On November 29, 2006, the court held an evidentiary hearing on Insmed’s defense of inequitable conduct
against U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151, instructed Insmed to submit a brief in support of Insmed’s inequitable conduct
defense, granted Genentech and the Company leave to submit Genentech’s and the Company’s closing
arguments regarding Insmed’s inequitable conduct defense in the form of a brief in opposition to such defense,
and granted Insmed leave to submit a brief in reply to any opposition brief that Genentech and the Company may
submit. On December 6, 2006, Insmed submitted a brief in support of Insmed’s inequitable conduct defense
against U.S. Pat. No. 5,187,151. On December 11, 2006, Genentech and the Company submitted closing
arguments tegarding Insmed’s defense of inequitable conduct in the form of a brief in opposition to such defense.
On December 13, 2006, Insmed submitted a brief in reply to Genentech’s and the Company’s opposition brief.

On December 22, 2006, Genentech and the Company filed a motion requesting that the court award
Genentech and the Company a permanent injunction prohibiting Insmed from making or selling Iplex for
commercial use as a treatment for Severe Primary Insulin-Like Growth Factor Deficiency, award Genentech and
the Company a trebling of the damages awarded by the jury, and award Genentech and the Company our
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses.

In December 2005, we filed a complaint against Insmed for False Advertising and Unfair Competition, Case
No. €C-05-5027 SBA, m the U,3. District Court for the Northern District of California. The complaint alleged that
Insmed made false, misleading and deceptive statements about Increlex™ and its product. On June 9, 2006, the
Court granted Insmed’s motion to dismiss the case. On June 12, 2006, we filed a complaint against Insmed for
False Advertising, Unfair Competition and Intentional Interference with Prospective Business Relations, Case
No. 3:06cv403, in the U.S. District Court for the Eastern District of Virginia. The complaint alleged that Insmed
made false, misleading and deceptive statements about Increlex™ and its product and intentionally interfered
with our business relationships. We are seeking monetary and injunctive relief. On June 23, 2006, we filed our
First Amended Complaint. On July 27, 2006, Insmed filed a motion to dismiss the case. On October 3, 2006, the
Court denied in part and granted in part Insmed’s motion to dismiss, and ordered the case, with our allegations
narrowed, to move forward with a March 2007 trial date. On October 13, 2006, Insmed filed a counterclaim in
the case, alleging that we made false and misleading statements regarding Insmed’s product and Increlex™.

On March 6, 2007, Insmed, Avecia, Tercica and Genentech publicly announced agreements that settled all
the ongoing litigation among the companies.

7. License and Collaboration Agreements and Related Party Transactions
Ipsen Collaboration

On July 18, 2006, the Company entered into a Stock Purchase and Master Transaction Agreement (the
“Purchase Agreement”) with Ipsen. Under the terms of the Purchase Agreement, the Company agreed to issue to
Ipsen (or its designated affiliate): (i) 12,527,245 shares of common stock (the “Shares”} for an aggregate
purchase price of $77,318,944; (ii) a convertible note in the principal amount of $25,037,000 (the “First
Convertible Note™); (ii) a second convertible note in the principal amount of €30,000,000 ($39,600,000 at
December 31, 2006; the “Second Convertible Note); (iv) a third convertible note in the principal amount of
$15,000,000 (the “Third Convertible Note”); and (v} a warrant to purchase a minimum of 4,948,795 shares of the
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Company’s common stock (the “Warrant”). The initial closing under the Purchase Agreement was consurmnmated
on October 13, 2006 (the “First Closing”) after receiving approval by the Company’s stockholders of the required
aspects of the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement at a Special Meeting of Stockholders held
on October 12, 2006. In accordance with the Purchase Agreement, at the First Closing, the Company issued the
Shares, the First Convertible Note and the Warrant, and the Company and Ipsen (and/or affiliates thereof) entered
into an Increlex™ License and Collaboration Agreement (“Increlex™ License™), a Somatuline® License and
Collaboration Agreement (“Somatuline® License” and together with the Increlex™ License, the “License
Agreements”), a Registration Rights Agreement and an Affiliation Agreement. In connection with the First
Closing, the Company also adopted certain amendments to its amended and restated centification of incorporation
and adopted a Rights Agreement implementing a stockholder rights plan (the “Rights Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Somatuline® License, Ipsen granted to the Company the exclusive right under Ipsen’s patents and know-how
to develop and commercialize Somatuline® Autogel® in the United States and Canada for all indications other
than opthalmic indications. Pursuant to the Increlex™ License, the Company granted to Ipsen and its affiliates the
exclusive right under the Company’s patents and know-how 1o develop and commercialize Increlex™ in all
countries of the world except the United States, Japan, Canada, and for a certain period of time, Taiwan and
certain countries of the Middle East and North Africa, for all indications, other than treatment of central nervous
system indications and diabetes indications. Ipsen’s territory would expand, subject to Genentech’s approval, to
include Taiwan and any of the excluded countries of the Middle East or North Africa upon termination or expiry
of certain third-party distribution agreements in such countries. Pursuant to the License Agreements, the
Company and Ipsen granted to each other product development rights and agreed to share the costs for
improvements to, or new indications for, Somatuline® Autogel® and Increlex™, and also agreed to rights of first
negotiation for their respective endocrine pipelines.

At the First Closing, the Company received from Ipsen proceeds of $77,318,944 for the issuance of the
Shares, which Shares represented 25% of the Company’s outstanding common stock on a non-diluted basis.
Further, the Company received from Ipsen, €10,000,000 or $12,422,000 as an upfront license fee under the
Increlex™ License. For 2006, approximately $194,000 was recognized as License Revenue, and as of
December 31, 2006 $11,452,000 was recorded as Long Term Deferred Revenue and $776,000 was recorded as
Short Term Deferred Revenue. The upfront license fee is amortized over the life of the license agreement which
is approximately 16 years. The Company paid an upfront license fee of $25,037,000 under the Somatuline®
License and was recorded to research and development for the year ended December 31, 2006. As indicated
above, the First Convertible Note in the principal amount of $25,037,000 was issued to Ipsen at the First Closing.
The First Convertible Note accrues interest at a rate of 2.5% per year, compounded quarterly, and is convertible
into the Company’s common stock at an initial conversion price of $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment, which
represents 3,397,031 shares at December 31, 2006. The number of conversion shares could increase depending
on the market value of the Company common stock. The entire principal balance and accrued interest under the
First Convertible Note is due and payable on the later to occur of (i) October 13, 2011; or (ii) the second
anniversary of the date on which Ipsen (or a subsequent holder of the First Convertible Note) notifies the
Company that it will not convert the First Convertible Note in full. As of December 31, 2006, approximately
$135,000 of interest expense on the First Convertible Note was accrued. The amount payable on October 13,
2011 will be $28,362,000 which includes interest of $3,325,000

Additionally, the Company issued the Warrant to Ipsen, which is exercisable for such number of shares of
the Company’s common stock equal to the greater of (i) 4,948,795 shares of the Company’s common stock (the
“Baseline Amount”) or (ii) the Baseline Amount plus a variable amount of shares of Tercica’s common stock,
which variable amount will fluctuate throughout the term of the Warrant. The number of common shares
exercisable under the Warrant as of the First Closing was 5,026,712 with a fair value of $13,622,000, estimated
using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model, and recorded to Additional Paid in Capital. The number of
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common stock shares exercisable under the warrant as of December 31, 2006 was 5,008,429. The Warrant is
exercisable, in full or in part, at any time during the five years following the date of the First Closing at an initial
exercise price of $7.41 per share, subject to adjustment under certain circumstances.

The Purchase Agreement provides that, at the second closing of the transactions contemplated by the
Purchase Agreement, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of the conditions thereto, the Company will issue the
Second Convertible Note and the Third Convertible Note, and Ipsen would deliver the sum of €30,000,000
($39,600,000 at December 31, 2006) and $15,000,000 to the Company (the “Second Closing”). The issuance of
the Second Convertible Note and the Third Convertible Note, together with the Shares and the Warrant, would
enable Ipsen to increase its equity ownership in the Company to approximately 40% on a fully diluted basis.
Conditions to the Second Closing include the occurrence of the milestone event provided for in the Somatuline®
License related to marketing approval of Somatulines Autogele by the FDA for the targeted product label. There
can be no assurance that the Second Closing will occur on a timely basis or at all.

Upon closing the Ipsen transaction, the Company incurred $3,004,000 in issuance costs, and allocated these
costs to the license, debt and equity components of the agreement based on the relative fair value of the
components, $687,000 was allocated to the License and Collaboration Agreements for Somatuline® Autogel®
and Increlex™ and was expensed to SG&A as incurred. $1,835,000 was allocated to the equity financing and
recorded to additional paid in capital. $482,000 was allocated to the Convertible Note and recorded as a prepaid
financing cost. In 2006, $28,000 of prepaid financing costs was amortized, and as of December 31, 2006, the
remaining balance was $454,000.

Related Party Transactions

We enter into transactions with our related parties, Ipsen and other Ipsen affiliates under existing
agreements in the ordinary course of business. The accounting policies we apply to our transactions with our
related parties are no more favorable to the Company than with independent third-parties.

Genentech Collaboration

On April 15, 2002, the Company entered into a license and collaboration agreement (the “U.S. License and
Collaboration Agreement”) with Genentech under which it obtained licenses to certain technology, know-how,
and intellectual property rights to develop and commercialize rhIGF-1 in the U.S.

The Company is required to make cash payments based on the achievement of certain milestones and
royalties on sales. Genentech has certain Opt-In rights to participate in the commercialization of certain rhIGF-1
products. If Genentech elects to exercise its Opt-In Right for a particular indication, Genentech will pay the
Company more than 50% of the past development costs associated with that indication. In addition, after
Genentech exercises its’ Opt-In Right for a particular indication, the Company would share with Genentech the
ongoing net operating losses and profits resulting from the joint development and commercialization effort for
that indication. Pursuant to this arrangement, the Company would fund less than 50% of such operating losses
and the Company would receive less than 50% of any profits. In 2004 and early 2006, the Company paid
Genentech cash of $1,100,000 and $100,000, respectively, under this agreement.

On July 25, 2003, the Company entered into an international license and collaboration agreement (the
“International License and Collaboration Agreement”) with Genentech, obtaining certain rights to develop and
commercialize thIGF-1 for a broad range of indications, including short stature, outside of the United States. The
Company paid Genentech cash of $1,670,000 upon the execution of this license in 2003 and $167,000 in 2004.
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The Company also agreed to pay to Genentech royalties on the sales of rhIGF-1 products and certain one-time
payments upon the occurrence of specified milestone events. As the Company was several years away from
having an approved product to market, the amount paid for this license was charged to acquired in-process
research and development expense.

In addition to the amounts already paid to Genentech, if the Company achieves all of the additional
milestones for thIGF-1 under the U.S. and International License and Collaboration Agreements, the Company
will owe Genentech up to an aggregate of approximately $33,000,000 in milestone payments. If the Company
develops rhIGF-1 in combination with IGF binding protein-3, the Company would be subject to these same
milestone events and, upon achievement of all of the milestones, would owe Genentech up to an additional
aggregate of approximately $32,500,000 in milestone payments. In connection with the U.S. License and
Collaboration Agreement, the Company paid $100,000 and $1,000,000 milestone payments to Genentech in the
year ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These amounts were recorded as research and
development expense when such payments became due. Additionally, the Company paid royalties of $256,000 in
2006.

8. Committed Equity Financing Facility

On October 14, 2005, the Company entered into a committed equity financing facility (“CEFF”} with
Kingsbridge Capital Limited (“Kingsbridge™), which entitles the Company to sell and obligates Kingsbridge to
purchase, a maximum of approximately 6.0 million newly issued shares of the Company’s common stock over a
period of three years for cash up to an aggregate of $75,000,000, subject to certain conditions and restrictions.
The Company may draw down under the CEFF in tranches of up to the lesser of $7,000,000 or 2% of the
Company’s market capitalization at the time of the draw down of such tranche, subject to certain conditions. The
common stock to be issued for each draw down will be issued and priced over an eight-day pricing period at
discounts ranging from 6% to 10% from the volume weighted average price of the Company’s common stock
during the pricing period. During the term of the CEFF, Kingsbridge may not short the Company’s stock, nor
may it enter into any derivative transaction directly related to the Company’s stock. The minimum acceptable
purchase price, prior to the application of the appropriate discount for any shares to be sold to Kingsbridge
during the eight-day pricing period, is determined by the greater of $3.00 or 90% of the Company’s closing share
price on the trading day immediately prior to the commencement of each draw down. In connection with the
CEFF, the Company issued a warrant to Kingsbridge to purchase up to 260,000 shares of the Company’s
common stock at an exercise price of $13.12 per share. The exercise term of the warrant is five years beginning
on April 14, 2006. The warrant was valued on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes method using the
following assumptions: a risk-free interest rate of 4.1%, a life of 5.5 years, no dividend yield and a volatility
factor of 0.5. The estimated value of this warrant was $1,196,000 and was recorded as a contra-equity amount in
additiona) paid-in capital in 2005,

On November 9, 2005 the Company filed a shelf registration statement with the SEC relating to the resale of
up to 6,296,912 shares of common stock that the Company may issue to Kingsbridge pursuant to a common
stock purchase agreement and warrant agreement noted above. The Company will not sell common stock under
this registration statement and will not receive any of the proceeds from the sale of shares by the selling
stockholder.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company did not draw down any funds under the CEFF and
had not issued any shares pursuant to the CEFF as of December 31, 2006. Under the terms of an affiliation
agreement the Company entered into pursuant to its collaboration with Ipsen, the Company has only a limited
ability to raise capital through the sale of its equity without first obtaining Ipsen’'s approval, and would generally
not have the ability to draw down any funds under the CEFF without Ipsen’s prior approval.

83




TERCICA, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

9. Stockholders’ Equity

On January 27, 2006, the Company completed the sale of 5,750,000 shares of its common stock under this
shelf registration statement, at a price to the public of $6.40 per share, including the exercise of the over-
allotment option by the underwriters. Net cash proceeds from this offering were approximately $34,200,000 after
deducting underwriter discounts and other offering expenses.

Preferred Stock

As of December 31, 2006, the Company was authorized to issue 5,000,000 shares of preferred stock. The
board of directors has the authority, without action by its stockholders with the exception of stockholders who
hold board positions, to designate and issue shares of preferred stock in one or more series. The board of
directors may also designate the rights, preferences and powers of each series of preferred stock, any or all of
which may be greater than the rights of the common stock including restrictions of dividends on the common
stock, dilution of the voting power of the common stock, reduction of the liquidation rights of the common stock,
and delaying or preventing a change in control of the Company without further action by the stockholders. To
date, the board of directors has not designated any rights, preference or powers of any preferred stock and no
shares have been issued.

Warrants

On October 13, 2006, the Company issued to Ipsen a warrant to purchase a minimum of 4,948,795 shares of
the Company’s common stock. The warrant is exercisable for such number of shares of the Company’s common
stock equal to the greater of (i) 4,948,795 shares of the Company’s common stock (the “Baseline Amount™) or
(ii) the Baseline Amount plus a variable amount of shares of Tercica’s common stock, which variable amount
will fluctuate throughout the term of the warrant. The number of common stock shares exercisable under the
warrant as of the First Closing was 5,026,712, The fair value of the warrant, based on a measurement date of
October 13, 2006, was $13,622,000, estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model. This value was
recorded as offsetting entries to additional paid in capital since the warrants are accounted for as common stock
issuance costs. The number of common stock shares exercisable under the warrant as of December 31, 2006 was
5,008,429, The warrant is exercisable, in full or in part, at any time during the five years following the date of the
First Closing at an exercise price of $7.41 per share. See “Ipsen Collaboration” in Note 7 in the Notes to
Financial Statements for further discussion regarding the warrant.

In connection with the CEFF (see Note 8), the Company issued a warrant to Kingsbridge to purchase up to
260,000 shares of the Company’s common stock at an exercise price of $13.12 per share. The exercise term of
the warrant is five years beginning on April 14, 2006. This warrant was valued on the date of grant using the
Black-Scholes method using the following assumptions: a risk-free interest rate of 4.1%, a life of 5.5 years, no
dividend yield and a volatility factor of 0.54. The estimated value of this warrant was $1,196,000 and was
recorded as a contra-equity amount in additional paid-in capital in 2005.

Restricted Stock Purchases and Early Exercise of Options

In February 2002, 328,158 restricted shares of common stock were issued to an employee in exchange for
$2,000 in cash. As of December 31, 2006 there were no shares subject to repurchase by the Company related to
this purchase. Shares subject to repurchase by the Company at December 31, 2005 were 3,895.

In December 2002, the Company issued 692,943 shares of its common stock to two employees under
restricted stock purchase agreements pursuant to the early exercise of their stock options for $71,000 in cash in
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December 2002 and $206,000 in cash in January 2003. During 2003, the Company issued 237,500 shares of
common stock under restricted stock purchase agreements to three employees pursuant to the early exercises of
their stock options in exchange for $305,000 in cash. In Janvary 2004, the Company issued 10,000 shares of
common stock under a restricted stock purchase agreement to a director pursuant to the early exercise of stock
options in exchange for $40,000 in cash. In February 2006, the Company issued 15,647 shares of common stock
under restricted stock purchase agreements to an employee pursuant to the early exercises of stock options in
exchange for $23,000 in cash. Under the terms of these agreements, these shares generally vest over a four-year
period for employees and over a three-year period for the director. Total unvested shares, which amounted to
20,834 and 93,700 at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, are subject to a repurchase option held by the
Company at the original issuance price in the event the optionees’ employment or director’s tenure is terminated
either voluntarily or involuntarily. These repurchase terms are considered to be a forfeiture provision and do not
result in variable accounting. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the Company repurchased 130,718
shares of its common stock for approximately $111,350 under restricted stock purchase agreements due to
employee forfeitures. In accordance with EITF No. 00-23, Issues Related to the Accounting for Stock
Compensation under APB Opinion No. 25, and FIN No. 44, the shares purchased by the employees pursuant to
the early exercise of stock options are not deemed to be issued until those shares vest. Therefore, amounts
received in exchange for these shares have been recorded as liability for early exercise of stock options on the
balance sheet. and will be reclassified into common stock and additional paid-in capital as the shares vest. There
were no repurchases in the year ended December 31, 2006. There were 88,513 shares at an original purchase
price of $84,000 reclassified into common stock and additional paid-in capital during the year ended
December 31, 2006, 201,374 shares at an original purchase price of $141,000 reclassified into common stock and
additional paid-in capital during the year ended December 31, 2005 and 258,913 shares at an original purchase
price of $173,000 reclassified into common stock and additional paid-in capital during the year ended
December 31, 2004.

Shares Reserved for Issuance
The Company had reserved shares of common stock for future issuance as follows:

December 31,
2006 2005

2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ..................coooiiine 191,070 152,101
Stock option plans:

Shares available forgrant . ...... ... oo 1,439,865 1,338,983

Options oWSIANdING . . ... v vttt e 3,894,640 2,945,163
Shares available for issuance underthe CEFF ...................... 6,036,912 6,036,912
Shares available for issuance under the convertible notes ............. 3,397,095 -
Warrants outstanding to purchase commonstock . .................. 5,268,429 260,000

20,228,011 10,733,159

10. Stock Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment. SFAS
No. 123R establishes accounting for stock-based awards made to employees and directors. Accordingly, stock-
based compensation expense is measured at the grant date, based on the fair value of the award, and is recognized
as expense over the remaining requisite service period. The Company previously applied APB Opinion No. 25,
Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees, and related interpretations and provided the required pro forma
disclosures of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation. Total stock-based compensation
expense of $5,723,000 was recorded during the year ended December 31, 2006.
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The Company has four active stock-based compensation plans, which are described below.

2004 Stock Plan

The Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 2004 Stock Plan (formerly the 2003 Stock Plan) in
September 2003 and the Company’s stockholders approved it in October 2003. The 2004 Stock Plan became
effective on March 16, 2004. The 2004 Stock Plan provides for the grant of incentive stock options to employees
and for the grant of nonstatutory stock options, stock purchase rights, restricted stock, stock appreciation rights,
performance units and performance shares to the Company’s employees, directors and non-employee service
providers. Shares reserved under the 2004 Stock Plan include (a) shares reserved but unissued under the
Company’s 2002 Executive Stock Plan and the Company’s 2002 Stock Plan at March 16, 2004, (b) shares
returned to the 2002 Executive Stock Plan and the 2002 Stock Plan as the result of cancellation or forfeiture of
options or the repurchase of shares issued under the 2002 Executive Stock Plan and the 2002 Stock Plan, and
(c) annual increases in the number of shares available for issuance on the first day of each year beginning on
January 1, 2005 equal to the lesser of:

+ 4% of the outstanding shares of common stock on the first day of the Company’s fiscal year,
s 1,250,000 shares, or

+ an amount the Company’s Board of Directors may determine.

Incentive stock options must be granted with exercise prices not less than 100% of fair market value of the
common stock on the date of grant. Nonqualified stock options may be granted with an exercise price as
determined by the Company’s Board of Directors; however, nonstatutory stock options intended to qualify as
“performance-based compensation” within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code must be
granted with exercise prices not less than 100% of fair market value on the date of grant. The exercise price of
any incentive stock option granted 1o a 10% stockholder will not be less than 110% of the fair market value of
the common stock on the date of grant. Options granted under the 2004 Stock Plan expire no later than 10 years
from the date of grant; however, incentive stock options granted to individuals owning over 10% of the total
combmed voting power of all classes of stock expire no later than five years from the date of grant. Options
granted under the 2004 Stock Plan vests over pericds determined by the Company’s Board of Directors,
generally over four years. The 2004 Stock Plan has a term of 10 years. The Company’s Board of Directors
approved an increase of 1,250,000 shares to the reserve for the year ended December 31, 2006.

2002 Stock Plan and 2002 Executive Stock Plan

The terms of the 2002 Stock Plan and 2002 Executive Stock Plan (the “2002 Plans™) are similar to those of
the Company’s 2004 Stock Plan. The shares reserved but unissued under the 2002 Plans as of March 15, 2004
were reserved for issuance under the 2004 Stock Plan. In addition, any shares returned to the 2002 Plans as a
result of cancellation or forfeiture of options or repurchases of shares after March 16, 2004 that were issued
under the 2002 Plans are added to the shares reserved for the 2004 Stock Plan. Effective as of March 16, 2004,
no additional stock options were issuable under the 2002 Plans.

As of December 31, 2006, there were a total of 6,453,834 shares authorized for issuance under the 2004
Stock Plan and the 2002 Plans.,

2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company’s Board of Directors adopted the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (formerly the 2003
Stock Purchase Plan) in September 2003 and the Company’s stockholders approved it in October 2003. The 2004
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “Purchase Plan”) became effective on March 16, 2004. As of December 31,
2006, there were a total of 347,979 shares reserved for issuance under the Purchase Plan. In addition, the
Purchase Plan provides for annual increases in the number of shares available for issuance under the Purchase
Plan on the first day of each year, beginning with January 1, 2005 equal to the lesser of:

+ 0.5% of the outstanding shares of common stock on the first day of the Company’s fiscal year,
« 125,000 shares, or

« such other amount as may be determined by the Company’s Board of Directors.

The Purchase Plan permits eligible employees to purchase common stock at a discount through payroll
deductions during defined offering periods. Offering periods are successive and overlapping of 24 months’
duration. Each offering period includes four six-month purchase periods and generally begins on the first trading
day on or after May 15 and November 15 of each year. The price at which the stock is purchased is equal to the
lower of 85% of the fair market value of the common stock at the beginning of an offering period or after a
purchase period ends.

Adoption of SFAS No. 123R

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised
2004), Share-Based Payment, or SFAS No. 123R using the modified prospective transition method, which
requires the measurement and recognition of non-cash compensation expense for all share-based payment awards
made to employees and directors including employee stock options and employee stock purchases related to our
2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan based on estimated fair values. Under that transition method, non-cash
compensation expense was recognized in the year ended December 31, 2006 and included the following:
(a) compensation expense related to any share-based payments granted through, but not yet vested as of
January 1, 2006, and (b) compensation expense for any share-based payments granted subsequent to January 1,
2006, based on the grant-date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 123R. The
Company recognizes non-cash compensation expense for the fair values of these share-based awards on a
straight-line basis over the requisite service period of each of these awards. Because non-cash stock
compensation expense is based on awards ultimately expected to vest, it has been reduced by an estimate for
future forfeitures. SFAS No. 123R requires forfeitures to be estimated at the time of grant and revised, if
necessary, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. The Company’s financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006 reflects the impact of SFAS No. 123R. In accordance
with the modified prospective transition method, the Company’s financial statements for prior periods have not
been restated to reflect, and do not include, the impact of SFAS No. 123R.

During the period from February 1, 2003 through January 31, 2004, certain stock options were granted with
exercise prices that were below the reassessed fair value of the common stock at the date of grant. Total deferred
stock compensation of $10,873,000 was recorded in accordance with APB Opinion No. 25, and was being
amortized to expense over the related vesting period of the options. From inception through December 31, 2005,
stock-based compensation expense of $5,740,000 was recognized and $2,542,000 was reversed as a result of
employee terminations, Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the years ended December 31, 2005
and 2004 was $2,102,000 and $2,734,000, respectively. The remaining deferred stock compensation balance of
$2.591,000 as of December 31, 2005 was reversed on January 1, 2006 upon adoption in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123R.

The stock-based compensation expense related to SFAS No. 123R for year ended December 31, 2006 was
$5,723,000. As a result of adopting SFAS No. 123R on January 1, 2006, the Company’s net loss and basic and
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diluted net loss per share for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $4,069,000 and $0. 10 higher, respectively, than
if the Company had continued to account for stock-based compensation expense under APB Opinion No. 25.

The following table presents the pro forma effect on net loss and net loss per share if the Company had
applied the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 to options granted under the Company’s share-
based compensation arrangements during the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands, except per
share amounts):

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2004
(In thousand except per share data)
Netloss,asreported . ... .. ... .. i i i i $(46,233) $(41,002)
Plus: Employee stock compensation expense based on intrinsic value method . . 2,102 2,734
Less: Employee stock compensation expense determined under the fair value
method forall awards ... ....... . . 0. i i (4,424) (3,307

Proformanet Ioss . ... . i i e R $(48,555) $(41,575)
Net loss per share:

Basic and diluted, asreported . .. ... ... ... $ (15D $ 212

Basic and diluted, proforma ........................ e $ (159 3 (2.15

Other than options granted to non-employee service providers and the grant of certain stock options to
employees with exercise prices that were below the reassessed fair value of the common stock as the date of the
grant, there was no other stock-based compensation recognized during the year ended December 31, 2005.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated at the grant date using the Black-Scholes model with the
following weighted average assumptions:

Year Ended
December 31,
2006 2005
Expected volatility ......... ... 75.2% 50%
Expected term (years) ...... ...ttt e 6.2 3.6
Risk-free interestrate . .. ... ... .. ..ttt e e 5.1% 3.8%

Dividend yield ... ... e — —

The Company's computation of expected volatility for the year ended December 31, 2006 is based on an
average of the historical volatility of the Company’s stock and the historical volatility of a peer-group of similar
companies. The Company’s computation of expected term in the year ended December 31, 2006 utilizes the
simplified method in accordance with SAB 107. The risk-free interest rate for periods within the contractual life
of the option is based on treasury constant maturities rates in effect at the time of grant. The Company recognizes
stock-based compensation expense for the fair values of these awards on a straight-line basis over the requisite
service period of each of these awards,
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A summary of activity of all options are as follows (in thousands, except per share data and contractual term):

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual  Intrinsic

Shares Price Term Value
Outstanding at December 31,2003 ....... ...t 1,202 $0.71
Options granted .. ..... ...t iiiieerii e 1,284 7.38
Options granted outside of Plans . ... .........oovniiaiiinnt 22 4.00
Options exercised . ........ ot (298) 0.72
Options cancelledforfeited . .............co i (133) 3.25
Outstanding at December 31,2004 ..... ... 2,077 4,72
Options granted .. .......ooviuurirr i 1,959 9.13
Options exercised . ........ooiiiiiii i (352) 1.76
Options cancelledfforfeited . .............oiiiiiinin (586) 8.18
Options cancelled/forfeited outside of Plans . .................... (22) 4.00
Optionsrepurchased ............. ..o (131) 085
Outstanding at December 31,2005 .., . .............0 v iieeln 2,945 7.49
Options granted . ........vviveonnntniireaairs i 1,788 6.71
Options exercised ..........oiviiiiii i (199 1.04
Options cancelled/forfeited .............. . ...t (639)  9.06
Outstanding at December 31,2006 .. .......... ...t 3895 §$7.21 ﬁ $1,428
$6.98 8.4 $1,342

Exercisable at December 31,2006 . ... ..ot 3,097

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on the
Company's closing stock price of $5.00 on December 29, 2006, which would have been received by the option
holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2006. This amount changes based on the
fair market value of the Company’s stock. Total intrinsic value of options exercised for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $1,084,000, $2,685,000 and $2,514,000, respectively. The weighted-
average grant date fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were
$4.74. $3.94 and $6.13 per share, respectively. Total fair value of options vested for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $4,359,000, $4,736,000 and $2,678,000.

As of December 31, 2006, unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to stock options of
$10,372,000 was expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.

The following table summarizes information concerning total outstanding and vested options as of
December 31, 2006 (in thousands, except per share data and contractual term):

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Range of Welghted-Average Weighted Weighted
Exercise Number Remaining Average Number Average
Prices Outstanding Contractual Term Exercise Price Exercisable Exercise Price
30.40 - $1.60 251 6.4 £ 071 239 $ 069
$3.46-$5.81 651 8.5 $ 455 521 $ 4.50
$6.41 — $8.85 2,437 8.7 $ 7172 1,992 $ 774
$9.04 - $12.65 556 8.4 $10.99 345 $10.69
3,895 3,097
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A summary of activity of all nonvested stock options are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):

Weighted- Average

Grant Date Fair
Shares Value
Nonvested stock options at December 31,2005 ..................... 2,259 $8.01
Granted . ..o e e e s 1,788 6.71
Vested ... e ey (973) 7.22
Forfeited . . ... ... e e (404) 8.31
Nonvested stock options at December 31,2006 ..................... 2,670 $7.38

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

For the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company recorded $353,000 of compensation expense related to
the Purchase Plan. During the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, 86,031, 42,584 and 28,294 shares,
respectively, were purchased under the Purchase Plan. The fair value of awards issued under the Purchase Plan is
measured using assumptions simnilar to those used for stock options, except that the weighted average term of the
awards were 1.49, 1.25 and 0.91 years for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Disclosures Pertaining to All Stock-Based Compensation Plans

Cash received from option exercises and the Purchase Plan contributions under all share-based payment
arrangements for years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 was $542,000, $806,000 and $300,000,
respectively. Because of the Company’s net operating losses, the Company did not realize any tax benefits for the
tax deductions from share-based payment arrangements during the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005.

11. Income Taxes

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2006 represents $621,000 of French
foreign income taxes withheld on an upfront license fee received from Ipsen under the Increlex™ License (see
footnote 7 “Ipsen Collaboration™). There is no domestic provision for income taxes because the Company has
incurred operating losses to date. Deferred income taxes reflect the tax effects of net operating loss and tax credit
carryovers and temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Significant components of the Company’s
deferred tax assets are as follows (in thousands}):

December 31,
2006 2005
Net operating loss carryforwards . ......... . ... . . i $45705 $ 30,403
Capitalized license fees . ... ... .. i e e 13,044 3,168
Orphandrugcredits ... .. .. . . s 9,065 5,881
Capitalized research expenses ............... ... oeuun e e e 8,913 1,779
Deferredrevenue .............cvvveninn.. e e e e e, 5,013 —
Research tax credit carryforwards . ....... ... ... . e e 4,332 3,948
Capitalized InVentOTY COSIS . .. oottt et i ie et aeeaennnn e 2,519 —
Capitalized Start-Up COSIS .. ...ttt e it 304 3
1= 350 250
Total deferred taX ASS8ES « .ottt t o e e e e e e 89,245 45,960
Valuation allowance . ... ... ... ittt it i e e e e, {89,245) (45,960)
Net deferred (AKX A85818 . ..\ttt et ettt ettt it et e e 5 — 3 —
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Realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income, if any, the
amount and timing of which are uncertain. Accordingly, the net deferred tax assets have been fully offset by a
valuation allowance. The valuation allowance increased by approximately $43,285,000, $11,843,000 and
$19,040,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

As of December 31, 2006, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$115,324,000. The Company also had California net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $92,045,000.
The federal net operating loss carryforwards will expire at various dates beginning in 2022, if not utilized. The
California net operating loss carryforwards expire beginning in 2012. The Company also has federal research,
state research and federal orphan drug credit carryforwards of approximately $2,212,000, $3,261,000 and
$9,065,000, respectively. The federal research and orphan drug credits expire beginning in 2022 and the state
research credits have no expiration date.

Utilization of the net operating loss carryforwards is subject to a substantial annual limitation due to the
ownership change limitations provided by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and similar state
provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of net operating losses and credits before
utilization.

12. 401(k) Plan

Effective January 2005, the Company began sponsoring a 401(k) plan, which covers all eligible employees.
Under this plan, employees may contribute specified percentages of their eligible compensation, subject to
certain Internal Revenue Service restrictions. The plan does not currently allow for matching contributions by the
Company.

13. Quarterly Financial Data—Unaudited

The following table presents unaudited quarterly financial data of the Company. The Company's quarterly
results of operations for these periods are not necessarily indicative of future results of operations.

Fiscal year 2086 Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30 September 30  December 31

(In thousands, except per share data)

Total NELTEVENUES .+ o v v e ve e e v s iaetaanennnens 3 85 % 166 § 316 $ 942)
Net product 5ales ..........covvvneoiiiiearanennnes 5 85 $ 166 §$ 316 $ 748)
Costof productsales .............coiiiiiiinranneannne $ BHS (55 $ (516) $ (51D
Research and development ........... ... iieuiinennnn $ (4630) $ (4,596) $ (3.513)  §(29,295)
Selling, general and administrative .................. ..., $(10,504) $(10,586) $(10,162)  $(12,996)
I3[ 0 L Lo S OO U O $(14,269) $(14,684) $(13,063)  $(40,981)
Basic and diluted net loss pershare . ............. 000 vas $ (040) $ (©3% $ (035 § (0.85)
Fiscal year 2005 Quarter Ended

March 31 June 30  September 3¢ December 31

(In thousands, except per share data)

Research and development . ...........coviiiiirennnn- $ (4871) $ (6,320) $ (5,681) § (4,716)
Selling, general and administrative ..............c...c.un. $ (4,179 $ (6,458) § (6,393) § (8,882)
L (= 0 [Tl T O P $ (9,108) $(12,401) $(i1,518)  $(13,206)
Basic and diluted net loss pershare . ............0000eenns $ (032 $ (0400 $ (037D § (042)

91

s
=]
=
g
]
o
3




Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Based on their evaluation as of December 31, 2006, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, with the participation of management, have concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures {as
defined in Rules 13a—15(¢e) and 15d-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) are effective.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as defined in Rules [3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934. Internal
control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles in the United States.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer
and Acting Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 using the criterta set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal Control—Integrated Framework. Based on this
evaluation, our management concluded that as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over financial
reporting was effective.

Attestation Report of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

Emst & Young LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm that has audited our financial
statements included herein, has issued an attestation report on management’s assessment of our internal control
over financial reporting, which report is included under Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the quarter ended
December 31, 2006 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Qur disclosure controls and procedures provide our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
reasonable assurances that our disclosure controls and procedures will achieve their objectives. However,
company management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, does not expect that
our disclosure contrels and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting can or will prevent all
human error. A control system, no matter how well designed and implemented, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Furthermore, the design of a control system
must reflect the fact that there are internal resource constraints, and the benefit of controls must be weighed
relative to their corresponding costs. Because of the limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls
can provide complete assurance that all control issues and instances of error, if any, within our company are
detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision-making can be faunlty, and
that breakdowns can occur due to human error or mistake. Additionally, controls, no matter how well designed,
could be circumvented by the individual acts of specific persons within the organization. The design of any
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system of controls is also based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there

can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated objectives under all potential future
conditions.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None
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PART I

Certain information required by Part III is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K because the
registrant will file with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission a definitive proxy statement pursuant to
Regulation 14A in connection with the solicitation of proxies for the Company's Annual Meeting of
Stockholders expected to be held in May 2007 (the “Proxy Statement”) not later than 120 days after the end of
the fiscal year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and certain information included therein is
incorporated herein by reference.

item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance.,

The information required by this item with respect to directors and executive officers may be found under
the caption “Executive Officers of the Registrant” in Part I, Item 1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, and in
the section entitled “Proposal 1—Election of Directors” appearing in the Proxy Statement. Such information is
incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this Item with respect to our audit committee and audit committee financial
expert may be found in the section entitled “‘Proposal 1—Election of Directors—Audit Committee” appearing in
the Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

The information required by this Item with respect to compliance with Section 16(a) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and our code of ethics may be found in the sections entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” and “Proposal ]1—Election of Directors—Code of Business Conduct and
Ethics,” respectively, appearing in the Proxy Statement. Such information is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this Item with respect to director and executive officer compensation is
incorporated herein by reference to the information from the Proxy Statement under the section entitled
“Executive Compensation.”

The information required by this Item with respect to Compensation Committee interlocks and insider
participation is incorporated herein by reference to the information from the Proxy Statement under the section
entitled “Proposal 1—Election of Directors—Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

The information required by this Item with respect to our Compensation Committee's review and discussion
of the Compensation Discussion and Analysis included in the Proxy Statement is incorporate herein by reference
to the information from the Proxy Statement under the section entitled “Propesal 1—Election of Directors—
Compensation Committee Report.”

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information required by this Item with respect to security ownership of certain beneficial owners and
management is incorporated herein by reference to the information from the Proxy Statement under the section
entitled “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management.”

The information required by this Item with respect to securities authorized for issuance under our equity

compensation plans is incorporated herein by reference to the information from the Proxy Statement under the
section entitled “Equity Compensation Plan Information.”
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item with respect to related party transactions is incorporated herein by
reference to the information from the Proxy Statement under the section entitled “Certain Relationships and
Related Transactions.”

The information required by this Item with respect to director independence is incorporated herein by
reference to the information from the Proxy Statement under the section entitled “Proposal 1—Election of
Directors—Independence of the Board of Directors.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information required by this Item is incorporated herein by reference to the information from the Proxy
Statement under the section entitled “Proposal 2—Ratification of Selection of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm.”
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PART IV

Item 15, Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules
(a) Documents filed as part of this report

1

Financial Statements

See Index to Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, which is incorporated
herein by reference,

2. Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules are omitted because the information is inapplicable or presented in the
Notes to Financial Statements,

3. The following exhibits are included herein or incorporated herein by reference:

Exhibit
Number

3.1
32
3.3
3.4
4.1
42
43
44
45
4.6A

4.68
10.1A
10.1B
10.2A
10.2B
10.3A
10.3B
1044
1048
10.5
10.6A
10.6B
10.6C

Description
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation(1)
Amended and Restated Bylaws(2)
Certificate of Designation of Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock(3)
Certification of Amendment of Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation{3)
Form of Specimen Stock Certificate(4)
Reference is made to Exhibits 3.1, 3.2, 3.3, and 3.4
Warrant issued to Kingsbridge Capital Limited, dated October 14, 2005(5)
Warrant issued to Ipsen, S.A., dated October 13, 2006(4)
First Senior Convertible Promissory Note issued to ipsen, S.A., dated October 13, 2006(4)

Rights Agreement, dated as of October 13, 206, between the Registrant and Computershare Trust
Company, N.A., as Rights Agent(4)

Form of Right Certificate(4)

2002 Stock Plan, as amended(4)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2002 Stock Plan(2)*

2002 Executive Stock Plan, as amended(4)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2002 Executive Stock Plan(2)*

2004 Stock Plan(4)*

Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 2004 Stock Plan(2)*

2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan(4)*

Form of Subscription Agreement under the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan(2)*

Form of Indemnification Agreement(2)*

Sublease Agreement dated June 24, 2002 between Elan Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and the Registrant(2)
Sublease Agreement dated March 21, 2003 between Elan Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and the Registrant(2)
Lease Agreement dated July 24, 2003 between Gateway Center, LLC and the Registrant(2)
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Number

10.6D

10.6E

10.6F
10.6G

10.7A

10.7B

10.7C

10.7D

10.8

10.9A
10.9B
10.9C
10.9D
10.9E
10.9F
10.9G
10.9H
10.91
10.9)
10.9K
10.9L
10.9M
10.9N
10.90
10.9P
10.9Q
10.9R
1098
10.9T
10.9U

Description

First Amendment to Lease Agreement dated September 24, 2003 between Gateway Center, LLC and
the Registrant(2)

Second Amendment to Lease Agreement dated June 28, 2004 between Gateway Center, LLC and the
Registrant(6)

Lease Agreement dated March 7, 2005 between 2000 Sierra Point, LLC and the Registrant(7)

First Amended to Lease Agreement dated May 1, 2006 between Clarendon Hills Investors, LLC and
the Registrant(8)

License and Coliaboration Agreement, between Genentech, Inc. and the Registrant, dated as of
April 15, 2002(2)¥

First Amendment to the License and Collaboration Agreement, between Genentech, Inc. and the
Registrant, dated as of July 25, 2003(2)+

International License and Collaboration Agreement, between Genentech, Inc. and the Registrant,
dated as of July 25, 2003(2)t

Second Amendment to the License and Collaboration Agreement, between Genentech, Inc. and the
Registrant, dated as of November 25, 2003(9)

Manufacturing Services Agreement between the Registrant and Cambrex Bio Science Baltimore,
Inc., dated as of December 20, 2002(2)1

Key Employment Agreement for John A. Scarlett, M.D. dated February 27, 2002(2)*
Amendment to Key Employment Agreement for John A, Scarlett, M.D. dated May 15, 2002¢2)*
Key Employment Agreement for Ross G. Clark dated May 15, 2002(2)*

Intentionally omitted

e
=
~
3
-

Intentionally omitted
Intentionally omitted

Employment Letter to Andrew Grethlein dated March 5, 2003(2)*

Intentionally omitted

Intentionally omitted

Intentionally omitted

Intentionally omitted

Employment Letter to Stephen Rosenfield dated June 23, 2004(3)*

Employment Letter to Thorsten von Stein dated December 3, 2004(5)*

Amendment to Key Employment Agreement for John A. Scarlett, M.D. dated February 22, 2005(4)*
Amendment to Key Employment Agreement for Ross G. Clark dated February 22, 2005(4)*
Intentionally omitted

Intentionally omitted

Amendment to Employment Letter for Stephen N. Rosenfield dated February 22, 2005(7)*
Intentionally omitted

Non-Employee Director Compensation Arrangements(11)

Employment Letter to Christopher E. Rivera, dated March 31, 2005(12)*
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Exhibit
Number Description

109V Intentionally omitted

10.0W Tercica, Inc. Incentive Compensation Plan(13)

10.9X Employment letter to AjayBansal, dated February 27, 2006(14)

10.10 Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement dated July 9, 2003(2)

10.11A Amendment to Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agreement dated February 27, 2004(2)
10.11B Consent, Waiver and Amendment, dated as of Qctober 13, 2006

10.12A Intentionally omitted

10.12B Commeon Stock Purchase Agreement, dated January 21, 2005, between Venture Lending & Leasing
IV, LLC and the Registrant(10)

10.13A Common Stock Purchase Agreement, by and between Kingsbridge Capital Limited and the
Registrant, dated October 14, 2005(5)

10.13B Registration Rights Agreement, by and between Kingsbridge Capital Limited and the Registrant,
dated October 14, 2005(5)

10.14A Stock Purchase and Master Transaction Agreement, by and between the Registrant and Ipsen, S.A.,
dated July 18, 2006(15)

10.14B Affiliation Agreement, by and between the Registrant, Suraypharm and Ipsen, S.A., dated
October 13, 2006

Registration Rights Agreement, by and between the Registrant, Suraypharm and Ipsen, S.A., dated
October 13, 2006

10.14C Increlex™ License and Collaboration Agreement, by and between the Registrant and Beaufour Ipsen
Pharma, dated October 13, 20061+

10.14D Somatuline® License and Collaboration Agreement, by and between the Registrant, SCRAS and
Beaufour Ipsen Pharma, dated October 13, 200611

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

24.1 Power of Attorney (included on the signature pages hereto)

311 Certification of Chief Executive Officer of Tercica, Inc., as required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule
15d-14(a).

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer of Tercica, Inc., as required by Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule
15d-14(a).

321 Centification by the Chief Executive Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and
Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350).

322 Certification by the Chief Financial Officer, as required by Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) and

Section 1350 of Chapter 63 of Title 18 of the United States Code (18 U.S.C. §1350).

Management contract or compensation plan or arrangement.

Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. This exhibit omits the

information subject to this confidentiality request. Omitted portions have been filed separately with the SEC.
1  Confidential treatment has been requested with respect to certain portions of this exhibit. This exhibit

omits the information subject to this confidentiality request. Omitted portions have been filed separately

with the SEC.
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(H

(2)

(3)
C)
(5)
(6)
Q)
®
(9
(10)

(11)

(12)
(13)
(14)

(15)

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50461) filed on May 13, 2004,

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s registration
statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-108729) and amendments thereto, declared effective on March 16,
2004.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 000-50461) filed on October 18, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No, 000-50461) filed on November 3, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50461) filed on November 4, 2003.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50461) filed on August 16, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s annual report on
Form 10-K (File No. 000-50461) filed on March 24, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50461) filed on August 9, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50461) filed on August 4, 2005.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s registration
statement on Form S-1 (File No. 333-122224) and amendments thereto, declared effective on February 7,
2005.

Incorporated by reference to the information under the heading “Executive Compensation—Compensation
of Directors” in the Registrant’s definitive proxy statement filed pursuant to Regulation 14A (File No.
000-50461) on April 24, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50461) filed on May 16, 2005,

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 000-50461) filed on February 28, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q (File No. 000-50461) filed on May 10, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to the similarly described exhibit included with the Registrant’s Current Report
on Form 8-K (File No. 000-50461) filed on July 24, 2006,
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

TERCICA, INC.

By:/8/_JOHN A. SCARLETT, M.D.

John A. Scarlett, M.D.
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

Dated: March 9, 2007
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears below
constitutes and appoints John A. Scarlett, M.D. and Ajay Bansal, and each of them, as his true and lawful
attorneys-in-fact and agents, with full power of substitution for him, and in his name in any and all capacities, to
sign any and all amendments to this Annunal Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with exhibits thereto and
other documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission, granting unto said
attorneys-in-fact and agents, and each of them, full power and authority to do and perform each and every act and
thing requisite and necessary to be done therewith, as fully to all intents and purposes as he might or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming all that said attorneys-in-fact and agents, and any of them or his or her
substitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereof,

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the following
persons on behalf of the Registrant in the capacities indicated on March 9, 2007;

Signature Title
/s/  JOHN A. SCARLETT, M.D. President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
John A. Scarlett, M.D, (Principal Executive Officer)
/s AJAY BANSAL Chief Financial Officer
Ajay Bansal (Principal Accounting and Financial Officer)
/s/  ALEXANDER BARKAS, PH.D. Director
Alexander Barkas, Ph.D.
/s/ Ross G. CLARK, PH.D, Director
Ross G. Clark, Ph.D.
/s!  KARIN EASTHAM Director
Karin Eastham
/s/ DENNIS HENNER, PH.D. Director

Dennis Henner, Ph.D.

s/ MARK LESCHLY Director
Mark Leschly
/s/ DavID L. MAHONEY Director

David L. Mahoney

/s/ CHRISTOPHE JEAN Director
Christophe Jean
/s/  JEAN-LUC BELINGARD Director
Jean-Luc Bélingard
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EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:
(1) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-129574) of Tercica, Inc,,
(2) Registration Statement {Form S-3 No. 333-128224) of Tercica, Inc.,

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-126307) pertaining to the 2004 Stock Plan and the 2004
Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Tercica, Inc., and

{(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-113718) pertaining to the 2002 Stock Plan, the 2002 Executive
Stock Plan, the 2004 Stock Plan, and the 2004 Employee Stock Purchase Plan of Tercica, Inc.,

of our reports dated March 5, 2007, with respect to the financial statements of Tercica, Inc., Tercica, Inc.
management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, and the effectiveness
of internal control over financial reporting of Tercica, Inc., included in the Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the
year ended December 31, 2006.

fs/  Ernst & Young LLP

Palo Alto, California
March 5, 2007
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EXHIBIT 31.1
CERTIFICATION

1, John A. Scarlett, M.D.,, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tercica, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
materia] fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-14(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(¢} Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
peniod covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions);

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 2, 2007

18/ JOHN A, SCARLETT, M.D.

John A. Scarlett, M.D.
President and Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION

1, Ajay Bansal, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Tercica, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements
were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f))for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the
period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 9, 2007

/s/ AsaY BANSAL

Ajay Bansal
Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, John A. Scarlett, M.D., certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Tercica, Inc. on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2006 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Tercica, Inc.

Date: March 9, 2007

By: /s/ JOBRN A. SCARLETT, M.D.

John A. Scarlett, M.D.
Chief Executive Officer

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K to which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Tercica, Inc. under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before
or after the date of the Form 10-K), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Ajay Bansal, certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Tercica, Inc. on Form 10-K for the
vear ended December 31, 2006 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents, in all
material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of Tercica, Inc.

Date: March 9, 2007

By:/s/ Ajay BANSAL

Ajay Bansal
Chief Financial Officer

This certification accompanies the Form 10-K to which it relates, is not deemed filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference into any filing of Tercica, Inc. under the
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (whether made before
or after the date of the Form 10-K), irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing.
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